
NOTICE OF THE DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

BOARD MEETING  

PURSUANT TO MINN. STAT. § 13D.02 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN Duluth Airport Authority will hold its regular meeting on 
Tuesday, August 20th, 2024 at 8:00 a.m. in the Amatuzio Conference Room, Third Floor, 
in the Duluth International Airport Terminal Building, 4701 Grinden Drive, Duluth, MN 55811 

Members of the public may monitor the meeting by clicking below to access the meeting by 
Microsoft Teams: “Microsoft Teams Meeting” (information below). 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 249 336 734 244  

Passcode: ihi3nk
Download Teams | Join on the web 

The public may express their comments for consideration by the Duluth Airport Authority prior 
to the meeting by email or in writing to daa@duluthairport.com or to Duluth Airport Authority, 
4701 Grinden Drive, Duluth, MN 55811. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTFhY2M3NzktM2YxOC00MTEyLWI0YjMtNGI0ODBhYmEzY2E2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%222dad78c2-f188-421c-8e58-3d1c8a779eb1%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%222857070a-eb70-447f-a52c-6515f9cbfe55%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
mailto:daa@duluthairport.com


DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
MEETING AGENDA 
AUGUST 20, 2024 

AMATUZIO CONFERENCE ROOM 
DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

I. *EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

A. Information Letter to DAA Directors

II. *APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES & OTHER CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

A. Approval of July 16, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes

III. *DAA CASH DISBURSEMENTS

A. Operating Check Registers #19-21; Operating ACH Payment Register #20-23;
Construction ACH Register #10.

IV. *CORRESPONDENCE

A. DLH Construction Notice
i. July 12, 2024
ii. July 19, 2024
iii. July 29, 2024: Runway 9/27 Closure THIS WEEKEND
iv. August 1, 2024: Taxiway A – Phase 3 Reconstruction Update

B. July 2024: Letter from International 180/185 Club.
C. July 2024: The Breeze of Park Point.
D. July 2024: Airport of the Month – Duluth – DLH. Minnesota Flyer.
E. July 10, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport hosts ribbon-cutting ceremony for new $2.6 million

terminal. Northern News Now.
F. July 10, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport opens new terminal for pilots and passengers.

WDIO.
G. July 11, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport Soars to New Heights Opening New Terminal.

Fox21.
H. July 14, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal. Duluth News

Tribune.
I. July 16, 2024: Annual Certification Inspection Closeout. Federal Aviation

Administration.
J. July 19, 2024: DLH urges passengers to check flight status amid delays due to

global IT outage. Northern News Now.
K. July 21, 2024: July 19-22, 2024 operation, An update to Delta customers from CEO

Ed Bastain. Delta News Hub.
L. July 23, 2024: Duluth International Airport experiencing minimal issues following

global tech outage. Northern News Now.



M. July 25, 2024: Reconstruction of Rice Lake Road to boost city’s growth. Northern
News Now.

N. July 29, 2024: Letter to President Joseph Biden re: Duluth ATC Tower.
O. July 29, 2024: Explore the Great Outdoors with Kids in Duluth, Minnesota. Chicago

Parent.
P. August 10, 2024: Discovery Flights takes off over the Iron Range. Northern News

Now.

V. OPPORTUNITY FOR PERSONS TO BE HEARD

VI. OLD BUSINESS

None 

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution to Approve the Updated 2024 Rates and Charges Schedule for DLH.
B. Resolution to Approve the Updated 2024 Rates and Charges Schedule for DYT.
C. Resolution to Approve the Amended and Restated Operator Agreement between the

Duluth Airport Authority and Monaco Air Duluth, LLC.
D. Resolution to Approve the Space Lease Agreement between the Duluth Airport

Authority and Monaco Air Duluth, LLC.
E. Resolution to Approve the Peer to Peer Car Sharing Agreement between the Duluth

Airport Authority and TURO Inc.
F. Resolution to Approve Standard Space Lease between the United States of America

Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and Duluth Airport
Authority.

G. Resolution to Approve the Assignment of a Food, Beverage, Retail Concession, and
Lease Agreement Between the Duluth Airport Authority and Oakwells Commuter Rail
LLC to Tailwinds Hospitality Inc. effective August 27, 2024.

H. Resolution to Approve the Lot 8 Land Lease Agreement between the Duluth Airport
Authority and Yellow Dog Aviation, LLC.

I. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2024-11 between Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc
and the Duluth Airport Authority for the Design of Midfield Ramp – Phase 3.

J. *June 2024 Financial Reports
K. *August 2024 Accounts Receivable
L. *July 2024 Airline Statistics, Landline Statistics

VIII. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS

Items annotated by an asterisk (*) are approved by consent and require no discussion or 
action unless questioned by a Director (in accordance with resolution passed by 
Directors on March 19, 2002). 



DATE: August 20, 2024 
TO: Duluth Airport Authority Board of Directors 
FROM: Executive Director 
SUBJECT: Executive Director’s Review 

The following items will be discussed during the Executive Director’s Review. If action is 
required of the DAA on any of these items, they will also appear on the agenda. If you have 
questions or desire additional information, please contact me and I will provide it at the DAA 
meeting.  

AIR SERVICE 

• Passenger statistics will be presented at the meeting.

OPERATIONS/CONSTRUCTION/PLANNING 

• Planning:
o New Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT)
o 2024 Air Spectacular Recap

• Construction:
o Taxiway A – Phase 3 Construction

 60 Hour Closure Recap
o Customs and Boarder Protection Federal Inspection Services Construction

Update
• Operations and Maintenance:

o Commercial Ground Transportation Lane Technology Update
o Snow Removal Equipment Acquisition

• Sky Harbor:
o New Sky Harbor Airport Terminal
o New Snow Removal Equipment Building

BUSINESS/PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

• Airport Economic Development Summit Recap
• Life Link Hangar Project Update
• Cirrus Hush-House and Fuel Calibration Facility Location Update
• Farewell to our summer intern Eli Strayer

FINANCIAL UPDATE 

• Administrative Coordinator Position Update
• 2nd Quarter 2024 Financial Update

MARKETING/COMMUNICATIONS 

• Natalie’s Return Update

I. Executive Director's Review 



LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 

• ATCT Advocacy Update

PRESENTATIONS/TOURS/TRAVEL RECAP 

• NSR

OTHER 

• DAA Board Retreat, September 4th, at the Sheraton Hotel, Gooseberry Falls Room.

Submitted by, 

Tom Werner, A.A.E. 
Executive Director 



Duluth Airport Authority
Meeting Minutes

July 16, 2024

MEETING LOCATION: Amatuzio Conference Room, Duluth International Airport

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kevin O’Brien, President
Michael Henderson, Vice President
Jeff Anderson, Secretary 
Elissa Hansen 
Jason Crawford
Sandy Hoff

OTHERS PRESENT: Tom Werner, DAA Executive Director
Mark Papko, DAA Dir. of Operations
Jana Kayser, DAA Dir. of Business Development
Jenny Delnay, DAA Administrative Coordinator
Eli Strayer, DAA Summer Intern
Briana Johnson, American Heart Association
Dante Tomassoni, Cirrus 
Eric Monson, Lake Superior Helicopters
Don Monaco, Monaco Air Duluth
Rob Missinne, Monaco Air Duluth
Matthew Stewart, SEH
Mike Bown, SEH

OTHERS PARTICIPATING VIA ELECTRONIC MEANS: 
Kathy Leon, DAA Confidential Bookkeeper
Robb Enslin, Duluth City Attorney
James Gibson, Cirrus
Horeya Czaplewski, EXP 
Phillip Scott, EXP
Andy Hoffmann, H+U Construction
Dexter Silvers, H+U Construction
Joe Uhlhorn, H+U Construction
Paul Huston, HNTB

CALL TO ORDER: Dir. O’Brien called the DAA board meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. He noted that all 
board members are in person, with Dir. Hanson arriving late at 8:14am.

Dir. O’Brien invited Mr. Tom Werner to provide the Executive Director’s Review

I. *EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

A. Air Service: Mr. Werner provided an update on the current air service with a presentation.
Mr. Werner presented year-to-date numbers. He shared that numbers are trending in 
the right direction but will need to keep the planes full in order to ensure this level of 
capacity in the future. Mr. Werner shared a report compiled by Mr. Mike Bown looking at 
advanced bookings, comparing Duluth to the national scene. There was a large spike in 

II. Previous Meeting Minutes



the summer months, which correlated for Great Lakes Cruising. Mr. Werner shared that 
this has been a great boost for the local economy, and specifically for the airport by
causing an increase in frequency and bringing in larger aircraft. Mr. Werner shared that 
the per capita income of Duluth is the lowest in the comparator group, which has been 
true for a long time and directly correlates to seats per capita. He empathized that 
economic growth in the region is needed to grow air service. Mr. Werner shared that 
both Delta and United would be back to 2019 levels for July and August for the first time 
since the pandemic and forecasting to be within 10% of 2019 levels for the fall.
o Dir. O’Brien asked if that is due to the easing of the pilot shortage.

Mr. Werner stated that is correct. There are more pilots flying now, but still 
some issues with aircraft shortages due to the Boeing problems. Overall, it 
is trending well. 
Mr. Bown added that regional airlines feel confident about the pilot situation 
moving forward.

Breeze Airways Presentation: Mr. Werner invited Mr. Bown to speak and introduce a 
business case for Breeze Airways. 
o Mr. Bown shared that he will share his slides and is happy to answer questions or

take phone calls about this information, as it can be complex. This is designed to
be a P&L estimate, which can be difficult to understand.

o Mr. Bown covered the leadership of Breeze Airlines, including Mr. David
Neeleman, Founder and CEO, who has started multiple successful airlines.
Thanks to his well-known reputation, Breeze has access to significant capital. All
the top leadership at Breeze have a background at Allegiant Airlines, who know
this market well. He noted that Mr. Werner previously had a great relationship with
Allegiant.

o Mr. Bown shared Breeze’s current route map, which is mostly focused on the East
Coast. They are now looking to add more routes in the center of the country. He
noted that their bases are listed in red on the map and would be good to focus on.
Breeze flies primarily one aircraft type, the A220, which is a unique aircraft. While
Breeze is considered a ULCC, they operate a much different product. They have
3 ticket types: main cabin, economy comfort and first class.

Mr. Werner noted that their customer service sets them apart, especially 
with the multiple products they can offer. 

o Mr. Bown shared that operationally, the would be comparable to American Airlines
and have a better reputation than other ULCCs. They are focused on operating
point-to-point instead of the hub and spoke concept. Their prices are very
reasonable and in line with other ULCCs. They are looking to add 1 aircraft per
month through 2028 and therefore are likely to add new routes. They are looking
to fly internationally by year end. They are already profitable, which is impressive.
They have 189 seats per aircraft, instead of the ULCC standard of 137.

o Mr. Bown noted that he compared potential Breeze routes to historical Allegiant
data due to their leadership’s familiarity with Allegiant.

Historically, Allegiant’s aircraft had 166 seats. They also tracked their 
customers and found that on a second purchase, they purchased 25% more 
due to upgraded services. 
Mr. Bown shared historical passenger data for Las Vegas. He noted to not 
look at if the plane was full, but rather the price per seat, since they will fill 
the plane by dropping prices. Once the prices started dropping, that’s when 
the route is pulled. He noted there are three likely factors for a price drop: 1. 



ULCC capacity at MSP increased, mostly from Spirit. 2. A strong US Dollar 
reduced demand from Thunder Bay. 3. Vegas burnout from customers. This 
would likely be a year-round route, but Breeze would likely look at the latest 
(and worst) data. 
The Phoenix route is very seasonal and would likely remain that way. It is 
understood that people want to go south during the winter months. 
Orlando is similar to Phoenix and would likely be seasonal, but there is the 
possibility for a year-round market eventually. 
There may be an option for a Mexican Market, such as Cancun, as Breeze 
is working on approval for international flights. 

o Mr. Bown presented a P&L for Breeze based on peak demand of the historic 
routes, assuming load factor and revenue would stay the same. In order to 
maintain this revenue, the fare would need to be around $418. Historical Allegiant 
data showed fares at $379. This increase would be doable based on the products 
offered. Assuming the fare increase is doable, even with trough demand, there 
would still be around 10% profit. Mr. Bown noted that these are mature forecasts, 
after the brand is known to the market. The first 6 months would likely be worse, 
while building up customers. 

o Mr. Bown expressed that Breeze has stated some interest in Duluth. They are 
receiving several new routes proposed to them currently. A $1.5 million minimum 
revenue guarantee (MRG) would get their attention and could start as soon as 
next year. With a $500,000 MRG may have about a 3 year start time. With more 
communities and states providing economic support, the game is changing. 

o Mr. Bown believes that Breeze is probably the best option for Duluth to grow its air 
service. He could see them expanding to Denver or Cancun in the future. It would 
be expected to spend any money laid out in an MRG, since it will take time for the 
service to grow. 

o Dir. Henderson asked how they remain profitable as a start up? 
Mr. Bown shared that community support helps. Breeze has been lucky with 
their aircraft, since the A220s are not having the same issues as Boeing. 
They already had work orders for additional A220s before the Boeing issues 
started. 

o Dir. Henderson asked what the risk was in offering community support. How long 
until the airline could be profitable. 

Mr. Bown stated it varied by market. Typically, 6-9 months is what is 
expected, but it could be profitable right away or could take a couple years. 
If it was taking years, the route would likely be pulled. However, there is a 
balance, since airlines that pull routes immediately can get a bad reputation. 
It is likely they would start with a few seasonal routes, then build from there. 
Mr. Werner shared that there is risk mitigation for the airline and the 
package the community offers to get them here. This is an unknown 
package in the Duluth Market. There would need to be heavy marketing 
support to get the customers to fly these routes. Marketing support has not 
been discussed thus far. Mr. Werner expects that a $250,000-$500,000 
MRG would likely be what is able to be offered based on constraints of 
fundraising here. It would also include incentives from the Incentive 
Program recently approved by the board to include fee waivers for selected 
routes. 



B. Operations/Construction/Planning: Mr. Papko provided the following updates: 
Planning:
o New Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT) Update: Mr. Papko shared that this project is 

moving along. There is a second round of ATP funding which has applications due 
at the end of the month (this is where the initial $10 million came from). This is on 
an expedited timeline, since applications last year were due in October with the 
announcements in February. This year, announcements are expected to come out 
before November. Mr. Papko feels that DLH is positioned well and will be asking 
for the remaining dollar amount for the entire project, although doesn’t expect to 
receive the full amount. 

Mr. Papko shared the latest renderings of the ATCT following the 50% 
review. He is excited about how the project is shaping up. There was $66 
million as the initial estimate, however those numbers and specifics are 
becoming more defined as the design work continues. The FAA hasn’t 
updated their $22 million for FAA reimbursable equipment, possible due to a 
backlog of projects. There are still contingencies built into these numbers, to 
supplies and inflation. Mr. Papko stated that the cost estimates today he is 
hoping would be the highest number presented to the board. 
Mr. Werner noted that as the total cost estimate rises, the reality of this 
project sets in. It would be incredibly difficult to fully fund a $75 million 
project with federal and state funding. There may be a need to start 
planning for a funding gap to be bonded locally. The amount of this gap is 
yet to be determined and won’t be known for a while, as the federal and 
state funding opportunities are worked through. Staff will start drafting 
possible scenarios for the board to review. 
Dir. O’Brien asked if the escalation contingency is the same as an inflation 
contingency.

o Mr. Papko confirmed that is correct. The number grew due to the 
delay in the groundbreaking. While there has been a leveling off of 
inflation prices to a more “normal” amount of inflation, there are still 
additional contingencies built in. 

Dir. Hoff asked if funding from the bonding bill at the state level would help. 
o Mr. Papko confirmed that if there is no bonding bill passed by the 

state next year, it would seriously hamper successful completion of 
this project. 

o 2024 Air Spectacular: This is happening on Wednesday, July 31st over Lake 
Superior with the Canadian Snowbirds. They will stage out of the airport, but the 
airport is not really involved in this airshow. There will be a temporary flight 
restriction over Sky Harbor and parts of Lake Superior. This will affect the 
approaches for DLH, but the airport will remain open, unlike the normal airshow at 
the airport. 

Construction:
o Taxiway A – Phase 3 Construction: Construction is going and has been doing 

nightly closures after the last commercial flight arrives and reopening before 5am. 
While not the most efficient construction method, it allows for the runway to 
remain open. Tenants have been appreciative and cooperative thus far. 

o Customs and Boarder Protection Federal Inspection Services Construction 
Presentation: The international area of the terminal is rarely seen and isn’t used 
often. It was never a certified CPB station when it was built. As requirements get 



updated, our area would need to be updated as well. This is currently estimated to 
be about $800,000 of local money to complete the current updates. There will 
need to be board conversations in August or September about if this is something 
DLH should pursue. While there is a potential business case for international 
flights, if there is not a compliant FIS, then could not start international flights. 
There are no grants or state funding available to support this project. While it can 
be used for diversions for emergency situations without this investment, it cannot 
be used for regularly scheduled service. This will go out for bids to get a firm 
number for updates, then will have a conversation about if this is the correct item 
to focus on. 

Mr. Werner added that Mr. Bown had talked earlier about the possibility of 
adding Cancun flights, but these would likely be twice a week flights. There 
is no amount of fees that could be added to these international flights or 
level of demand that would recoup this investment. This would need to be 
covered by other revenue streams, such as non-aeronautical revenue. This 
type of 6 figure investment would likely continue to happen every few years 
to continue to keep up with the requirement changes. 

Operations and Maintenance: 
o Part 139 Inspection Recap: The FAA 139 inspection has been completed. DLH is 

regulated by Part 139, which states the condition the airport must be in and 
includes an FAA inspection every two years, lasting two days. There were no 
discrepancies found this year, which has also been true the last couple of years. 
Mr. Papko passed his compliments to the airside team who manages this program 
to ensure the airfield is compliant. He noted that it is not uncommon for airports to 
have 4-5 discrepancies during these inspections. He stated that the team did a 
fabulous job and set a standard of excellence. 

Mr. Werner added that it is under Mr. Papko’s leadership this standard of 
excellence exists. 

o TSA Annual Inspection: There are not results of the TSA Inspection yet, as this 
inspection is longer and lasts 2 weeks. Mr. Papko had hoped to have a recap for 
the board meeting, but it is not complete yet. He will update on this next month.

Sky Harbor: Mr. Papko noted that both the Terminal and SRE building are substantially 
complete. Both buildings are currently being used. 

C. Business/Property Development: Ms. Kayser provided an update on the following:
Airport Economic Development Summit: Ms. Kayser shared that the Summit is 
happening today and expressed her thanks to those who signed up and are planning to 
attend. The event is split between DAA and MNDOT with lunch provided by SEH. There 
are about 40 people registered in person plus an additional 20 online. There is good 
diversity in the audience. 
o Mr. Werner expressed his thanks to Ms. Kayser for handling all the logistics for 

this Summit. She did a great job bringing this to fruition. 
Life Link Hangar Construction Progress: Ms. Kayser has received a high-level cost 
estimate for this project from SEH which has been sent to Life Link. She is currently
working on that design with them and will bring forward design changes to the board 
soon. 
FBO Acquisition Due Diligence: Mr. Werner shared that the DAA put together a great 
offer, but in the end, it was not accepted by Monaco. He felt good about exploring this 
opportunity and thought that the DAA put its best foot forward. He stated that Mr. 



Monaco continues with his process and looks forward to the new ownership structure 
and how the DAA can support it. 

D. Financial Update: Ms. Bodin provided an update on the following:
Administrative Positions Update: Ms. Delnay has accepted the Finance Technician 
position and has been training in that role. She also passed an AAAE ACE Finance 
Course. Ms. Bodin is working to backfill the Administrative Coordinator position and is 
currently reviewing applicants. In the meantime, board communication will continue to 
go through Ms. Delnay at the daa@duluthairport.com email at this time. 
MNDOT will be at DLH tomorrow to complete an audit of state grants.
Ms. Bodin has completed the System for Award Management renewal to be able to 
receive federal awards for the next 12 months. 
Ms. Bodin noted that there was a transposed number in the finance reports regarding 
the cash balance goal in the board packet. The cash balance goal is 2.9, and as of July 
9th, the DAA had 2.6, but that excluded the grants receivable that are about 3.8. Ms. 
Bodin noted that the DAA is still in an ok spot with cash but is looking forward to having 
more grants come through. 

E. Marketing/Communications: Mr. Werner provided an update on the following:
Sky Harbor Art Show Recap: Mr. Werner shared that this partnership with a local artist 
highlighted the new building. The Art Show was July 15-30 with an opening event, 
which had great local turnout. He stated that events like this bring the general public 
closer to aviation, even indirectly. 
Ranch Hangar Ribbon Cutting Recap: Mr. Werner noted that there was great coverage 
of this event and expressed his thanks to everyone who attended. The furniture was the 
last major element to come into place for the new terminal, which has now been 
delivered. He noted that the tenants seem very happy with the new building. 

F. Legislative Update: Mr. Werner provided an update on the following:
NSR

G. Presentations/Tours/Travel Recap: Mr. Werner provided an update on the following:
NSR 

H. Other: Mr. Werner provided an update on the following:
Mr. Werner noted that he will be out the remainder of the week for a family obligation 
and Mr. Papko will be the Acting Executive Director. 

Dir. O’Brien thanked everyone for their reviews and moved to item II of the agenda.

II. *APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES & OTHER CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS AS 
INDICATED BY *:

A. Approval of June 18, 2024 Meeting Minutes
Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Motion: Dir. Hansen
o Second: Dir. Henderson  
o Abstain: None
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously. 



III. *DAA CASH DISBURSEMENTS
A. Operating Check Register Sheets #16-18; Operating ACH Payment Register #17-19; 

Construction ACH Register #8-9.

IV. *CORRESPONDENCE
A. DLH Construction Notice

i. June 14, 2024
ii. June 21, 2024
iii. June 28, 2024
iv. July 8, 2024

B. June 26, 2024: Two Weeks Away! Ribbon Cutting Ceremony.
C. June 15, 2024: Local artist exhibits work at Sky Harbor Airport Saturday. Northern News Now. 
D. June 16, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport Unveils New Terminal By Hosting Art Gallery. Fox21.
E. July 8, 2024: Letter from FBO Advisors, LLC, Re: DAA Offer for Monaco Air Duluth and Duluth 

Flying Club.

V. OPPORTUNITY FOR PERSONS TO BE HEARD
A. Mr. Don Monaco signed up to be heard regarding FBO Sale. 

Mr. Monaco echoed what Mr. Werner stated earlier, stating that the DAA put forth a 
good proposal, which stood out, but there were better proposals submitted. Yesterday, 
Mr. Monaco accepted an offer from Aero Centers, a small FBO chain with 7 locations. 
He stated they have a very good leadership team and he sees this as a great 
opportunity for the community. They will likely be coming to the board in August or 
September to introduce themselves. Mr. Monaco is hoping to close in September and 
have the DAA approve the transfer of ownership in September. The current local 
leadership will remain in place and they will not be appointing a new general manager 
to replace Mr. Monaco. Aero Centers’ COO lives in Minneapolis, so will be able to come 
up to Duluth as needed. 
o Multiple Directors expressed their thanks and congratulations to Mr. Monaco for 

his years of service. 
B. Mr. Dante Tomassoni signed up to be heard regarding Cirrus/IPO.

Mr. Tomassoni shared that last Friday, there was an official announcement publicly
regarding Cirrus’s IPO. He noted that the IPO does not change any domestic 
operations, number of local employees, or their commitment to parts and supply chain 
based in America. 
o Dir. Hoff asked which exchange and which percentage of ownership was affected.

Mr. Tomassoni noted it was the Hong Kong exchange. There previously was 
Chinese ownership, but now vested approximately 15% to the public 
market. 

o Mr. Werner stated while he understood they were not expecting changes in 
operation, but with this increase in capital, he asked if there were expected 
growth opportunities.

Mr. Tomassoni shared they raised about $200 million and are hoping to 
increase growth and productivity locally, but still working on the exact plan. 

VI. OLD BUSINESS
A. None.



VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution to Award Construction Contract in the Amount of $11,335,704.00 to Ulland 
Brothers, Inc. for the Construction of Taxiway A – Phase 5 and associated Alternate 
Schedules.

Mr. Papko shared that construction is underway for Phase 3, with Phase 4 being done 
last year. Phase 5 is expected to happen next year. There were great bids received 
back for this phase. This project was initially estimated to cost $13-14 million, but this 
bid came in for $11.3 million. This also includes Midfield Ramp Phase 2. Previously, Mr. 
Papko had informed the board of the rejection of all Midfield Ramp Phase 2 bids due to 
high costs. When it was re-bid concurrently with Phase 5, it dramatically reduced costs. 
Mr. Papko recommended approval. 
Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Dir. O’Brien appreciated Mr. Papko looking after DAA funds as if they were his 

own. 
o Motion: Dir. Crawford
o Second: Dir. Hoff
o Abstain: None
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously. 

B. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2024-6 between the Duluth Airport Authority and Short 
Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. for the Construction Administration of Taxiway A – Phase 5.

Mr. Papko shared that the construction project awarded in Resolution A needs 
construction administration oversight and closeouts, which would fall under the SEH 
Master Plan. This did go out for Independent Fee Estimate (IFE), where it goes to a 
competitor who was not planning to bid on the project and needs their proposed bid to 
come within 10% of SEH’s proposal. Mr. Papko noted that SEH’s proposal was below 
the IFE.
o Dir. O’Brien asked what the cost of doing an IFE was. 

Mr. Papko noted it ranges from $2,000-4,000 depending on the size of the 
project. 

Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Motion: Dir. Hoff
o Second: Dir. Hansen
o Abstain: Dir. Anderson 
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously by all voting members. 

C. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2024-7 between the Duluth Airport Authority and Short 
Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. for the Construction Administration of Midfield Ramp – Phase 2.

Mr. Papko noted that the same services for Phase 5 in Resolution B are also needed for 
Midfield Ramp Phase 2. This also went through the IFE process and came in lower. Mr. 
Papko noted that there was a benefit in continuity of companies for these projects. 
Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Motion: Dir. Henderson
o Second: Dir. Crawford
o Abstain: Dir. Anderson 
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously by all voting members. 



D. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2024-9 between the Duluth Airport Authority and Short 
Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. for the Design of Taxiway A – Phase 6.

Mr. Papko noted that with the favorable bids received for Phase 5, there are funds to 
continue working on the design for Phase 6. Continuing with what has happened with 
previous phases, Phase 6 design will happen now, then will come back with 
construction bids to start construction of Phase 6 in Summer 2026. This resolution 
would allow for design to be covered by grants now and not have to cash flow the 
project. 
Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Motion: Dir. Hansen
o Second: Dir. Hoff
o Abstain: Dir. Anderson 
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously by all voting members. 

E. Resolution to Approve Amendment 1 to Work Order 2023 – 5 between the Duluth Airport 
Authority and Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. for the Design of North Business Development 
Hangar Construction Project at Duluth International Airport (DLH).

Ms. Kayser mentioned this is the resolution for Life Link hangar that was received in 
March 2023, but then had to go out for RFP. There has been inflation since then, so this 
is an amendment to the original work order in the amount of $4,700.
Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Motion: Dir. Hoff
o Second: Dir. Crawford
o Abstain: Dir. Anderson
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously by all voting members. 

F. Resolution to Approve License Agreement between the Duluth Airport Authority and the 
Duluth Aviation Institute.  

Ms. Kayser shared that Ms. Baker had brought the request from the Duluth Aviation 
Institute forward for naming rights of Sky Harbor Terminal previously and this is the 
agreement for that naming space. Ms. Kayser showed pictures of where the name 
would be added, including exterior signage on the lakeside of the terminal, above the 
door in the vestibule, and a plaque inside the terminal. The plaque will include 
information about Robert Gilruth. There is no term on the agreement, but all 
maintenance and other costs are the responsibility of the Duluth Aviation Institute for as 
long as they are in existence at the terminal. If they are not maintained, then the DAA 
could make the decision to remove the signs.
Dir. O’Brien entertained questions or a motion.
o Motion: Dir. Henderson
o Second: Dir. Anderson
o Abstain: None
o Result: This resolution was adopted unanimously. 

G. *May 2024 Financial Reports
H. *July 2024 Accounts Receivable 
I. *June 2024 Airline Statistics, Landline Statistics 



VIII. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS
A. Mr. Werner noted that Ms. Briana Johnson is in attendance today and will be joining the board 

next month. She went through the interview process last night with the city council and is 
waiting official appointment. He is looking forward to having her join the board next month. 

B. Dir. O’Brien expressed his congratulations to Ms. Delnay on her new position.

ADJOURN: The motion to adjourn was made by Dir. Henderson and seconded by Dir. Hansen. The 
meeting was adjourned at 9:23 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jenny Delnay
Administrative Coordinator

Approved: ____________________________________
DAA Executive Director



III. Cash Disbursements



















































Construction Newsletter
Duluth International Airport (DLH)

July 12, 2024

Taxiway A - Phase 3 Reconstruction

KGM has completed the following in the Phase 3A and Phase 3A-1 areas: subgrade
preparation, placement of geotextile fabric, placement of granular subbase material
(P-154), and placement of aggregate base material (P-209). KGM has also placed
the first layer of bituminous pavement (stabilized base layer) on the new Tower
Ramp Connector and along Taxiway A and Taxiway C north of Taxiway A up to the
Runway 9/27 Runway Safety Area (RSA). They continue to install drain tile, storm
pipes, and structures.

Next week, the contractor will continue to build the pavement section within RWY
9/27 RSA, placing drain tile, storm pipe, and structures.

Runway 9/27 is anticipated to be closed between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. on
Wednesday, July 17, and Thursday, July 18 (Tuesday night into Wednesday

and Wednesday night into Thursday).

Project Phasing Documents 

Phase 3 (A, A-1,B) [PDF]
Phase 3 (C, C-1) [PDF]

Anticipated Project Schedule - Subject to change

TWY A Phase 3A: May 21 - August 30
TWY A Phase 3A-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure) - Late July
TWY A Phase 3B (RWY 9/27 Closure) - Early August

Subscribe Past Issues Translate
IV. Correspondence

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3A-A-1-B.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3C-C-1.pdf
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


TWY C Phase 3C: September 1 - October 30 (est.)
TWY C Phase 3C-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure): Dates TBD

Runway 27 PAPI Replacement

The Runway 27 Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) replacement is anticipated
to begin following the completion of the ongoing FAA utility work. The PAPI will be
replaced in the same location as the existing system. This project will run
concurrently with Phase 3A; Runway 9/27 RSA work will occur during the planned
60-hour runway closure.

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


PLEASE NOTE
Dates are subject to change.

Airfield NOTAMs should be checked to confirm the current status of the airfield.

Project Contact Information

Mark Papko, Director of Operations - Airport Authority - mpapko@duluthairport.com
Adinda Van Espen, Project Manager - SEH - avanespen@sehinc.com

unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences 

Duluth International Airport
(218) 727-2968

daa@duluthairport.com

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

https://notams.aim.faa.gov/notamSearch/nsapp.html#/
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=Taxiway%20A%20Phase%201%20Construction%20Project
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=DLH%20Summer%20Construction
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&t=b&e=[UNIQID]&c=0f043669a6
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/profile?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&e=[UNIQID]&c=0f043669a6
mailto:daa@duluthairport.com
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Construction Newsletter
Duluth International Airport (DLH)

July 19, 2024

Taxiway A - Phase 3 Reconstruction

KGM focused on building up the pavement subsection of Taxiway C, between
Taxiway A and Runway 9/27.
Several night closures were implemented for Runway 9/27 to facilitate
construction within the Runway Safety Area (RSA)
Critical tasks completed this week:

Bituminous base layer paving
Aggregate base section placement
Subbase section installation
Placement of geotextile fabric
Soil preparation for the subgrade
Installation of drain tile
Excavation to the bottom of the new pavement section

Night work will continue from Friday night into Saturday morning to complete
the bituminous paving.
The next milestone is concrete paving! The concrete paving contractor will
begin preparations for concrete paving towards the end of next week.

Upcoming Runway 3/21 Closure

Runway 3/21 is scheduled to be closed on MONDAY, JULY 22. This
closure is necessary for setting up the concrete batch plant.

Upcoming Activities - Focuses for next week

Continuing work alongside Taxiway A

Subscribe Past Issues TranslateIV. - A. - ii

http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Grading in the green spaces
Taxiway shoulder preparation

Project Phasing Documents 

Phase 3 (A, A-1,B) [PDF]
Phase 3 (C, C-1) [PDF]

Anticipated Project Schedule - Subject to change

TWY A Phase 3A: May 21 - August 30
TWY A Phase 3A-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure) - Late July
TWY A Phase 3B (RWY 9/27 Closure) - Early August
TWY C Phase 3C: September 1 - October 30 (est.)
TWY C Phase 3C-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure): Dates TBD

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3A-A-1-B.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3C-C-1.pdf
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Runway 27 PAPI Replacement

The Runway 27 Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) replacement is anticipated
to begin following the completion of the ongoing FAA utility work. The PAPI will be
replaced in the same location as the existing system. This project will run
concurrently with Phase 3A; Runway 9/27 RSA work will occur during the planned
60-hour runway closure.

PLEASE NOTE
Dates are subject to change.

Airfield NOTAMs should be checked to confirm the current status of the airfield.

Project Contact Information

Mark Papko, Director of Operations - Airport Authority - mpapko@duluthairport.com
Adinda Van Espen, Project Manager - SEH - avanespen@sehinc.com

unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences 

Duluth International Airport
(218) 727-2968

daa@duluthairport.com

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

https://notams.aim.faa.gov/notamSearch/nsapp.html#/
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=Taxiway%20A%20Phase%201%20Construction%20Project
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=DLH%20Summer%20Construction
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&t=b&e=[UNIQID]&c=f7aac59300
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/profile?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&e=[UNIQID]&c=f7aac59300
mailto:daa@duluthairport.com
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Construction Newsletter
Duluth International Airport (DLH)

UPCOMING RUNWAY 9/27 CLOSURE

RUNWAY 9/27 WILL BE CLOSED FOR THE UPCOMING WEEKEND, STARTING
FRIDAY, 8/2, at 5:30 p.m., AND WILL REOPEN ON MONDAY, 8/5, AT 5:30 a.m.

TIMES NOTED ABOVE ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

Construction Documents

Phase 3 (A, A-1,B) [PDF]
Phase 3 (C, C-1) [PDF]

Anticipated Project Schedule - Subject to change

TWY A Phase 3A: May 21 - August 30
TWY A Phase 3B (RWY 9/27 Closure) - 8/2 to 8/5
TWY C Phase 3C: September 1 - October 30 (est.)
TWY C Phase 3C-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure): Dates TBD

Subscribe Past Issues Translate
IV. - A. - iii.

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3A-A-1-B.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3C-C-1.pdf
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Runway 27 PAPI Replacement

The Runway 27 Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) replacement is anticipated
to begin following the completion of the ongoing FAA utility work. The PAPI will be
replaced in the same location as the existing system. This project will run
concurrently with Phase 3A; Runway 9/27 RSA work will occur during the planned
60-hour runway closure.

PLEASE NOTE
Dates are subject to change.

Airfield NOTAMs should be checked to confirm the current status of the airfield.

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

https://notams.aim.faa.gov/notamSearch/nsapp.html#/
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Project Contact Information

Mark Papko, Director of Operations - Airport Authority - mpapko@duluthairport.com
Adinda Van Espen, Project Manager - SEH - avanespen@sehinc.com

unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences 

Duluth International Airport
(218) 727-2968

daa@duluthairport.com

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=Taxiway%20A%20Phase%201%20Construction%20Project
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=DLH%20Summer%20Construction
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&t=b&e=[UNIQID]&c=adbcf3360e
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/profile?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&e=[UNIQID]&c=adbcf3360e
mailto:daa@duluthairport.com
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


Construction Newsletter
Duluth International Airport (DLH)

August 1, 2024

Runway 9/27 Closure 
Runway 9/27 is scheduled to close at 5:30 PM tomorrow, Friday, Aug 2 and
reopen on Monday, Aug 5 at 5:30 AM. If the runway closure needs to be
extended due to weather, or unforeseen circumstances, this will be
communicated as soon as possible. There are several other pavement areas
scheduled to be closed this weekend. Please monitor NOTAMs regularly
throughout the weekend.

Taxiway A - Phase 3 Reconstruction
Shafer began placing concrete on TWY A, TWY C, and Tower Ramp Connector.
Paving of TWY C (inside the RWY 9/27 RSA) will continue this weekend during
extended runway closure. KGM continued to install storm sewer pipe and structures
and started placing aggregate base along the shoulders of TWY A. They also
continued to remove common material off site. 

Upcoming Activities - Focuses for next week

Storm sewer work
Taxiway edge lighting work, including installation of base cans
Taxiway shoulder preparation

Project Phasing Documents 

Phase 3 (A, A-1,B) [PDF]
Phase 3 (C, C-1) [PDF]

Anticipated Project Schedule - Subject to change

Subscribe Past Issues Translate
IV. - A. - iv.

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3A-A-1-B.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/DULAI-174216-Phase-3C-C-1.pdf
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


TWY A Phase 3A: May 21 - August 30
TWY A Phase 3A-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure) - Late July
TWY A Phase 3B (RWY 9/27 Closure) - Early August
TWY C Phase 3C: September 1 - October 30 (est.)
TWY C Phase 3C-1 (RWY 3/21 Closure): Dates TBD

Runway 27 PAPI Replacement

The Runway 27 Precision Approach Path Indicator (PAPI) replacement is anticipated
to begin following the completion of the ongoing FAA utility work. The PAPI will be
replaced in the same location as the existing system. This project will run

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


concurrently with Phase 3A; Runway 9/27 RSA work will occur during the planned
60-hour runway closure.

PLEASE NOTE
Dates are subject to change.

Airfield NOTAMs should be checked to confirm the current status of the airfield.

Project Contact Information

Mark Papko, Director of Operations - Airport Authority - mpapko@duluthairport.com
Adinda Van Espen, Project Manager - SEH - avanespen@sehinc.com

unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences 

Duluth International Airport
(218) 727-2968

daa@duluthairport.com

Subscribe Past Issues Translate

https://notams.aim.faa.gov/notamSearch/nsapp.html#/
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=Taxiway%20A%20Phase%201%20Construction%20Project
mailto:mpapko@duluthairport.com?subject=DLH%20Summer%20Construction
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&t=b&e=[UNIQID]&c=4353c9246a
https://duluthairport.us11.list-manage.com/profile?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3&e=[UNIQID]&c=4353c9246a
mailto:daa@duluthairport.com
http://eepurl.com/isCUg6
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/home/?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
https://us11.campaign-archive.com/feed?u=9cada8bf105551d779f595abd&id=b94e8390a3
javascript:;


IV. - B



IV. - C.

















IV. - D. 





IV. - E.





IV. - F.







IV. - G.





Hermantown Chamber of Commerce President and CEO Kim Parmeter presents Duluth
Airport Authority Executive Director Tom Werner with a plaque as Duluth Chamber of
Commerce VP Daniel Fanning (back) gives an applause during a ceremony on July 10 to
celebrate Sky Harbor Airport's new terminal on Park Point in Duluth. Brielle Bredsten /
Duluth Media Group

By Brielle Bredsten
July 14, 2024 at 12:06 PM

 Comments   Share   News reporting

DULUTH — Sky Harbor Airport’s new $2.66 million terminal is
now ready for takeoff.

BUSINESS

Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million
terminal
Funding came from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, in addition to state and
local dollars.

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 1/11

IV. - H.

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/brielle-bredsten
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/brielle-bredsten
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business


The modern facility located on Park Point was unveiled during a
ribbon-cutting event on Wednesday, July 10.

A ribbon-cutting ceremony was held on Wednesday, July 10 to celebrate Sky Harbor's new
terminal on Park Point in Duluth. Brielle Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

The amphibious air base accommodates both land and seaplane
traffic with under-wing camping and 24/7 fuel and pilot services.

New amenities include a pilot lounge, modern flight planning room
with up-to-date aeronautical information, vending options and
public outdoor patio areas. Currently showcased inside the new
facility is an exhibit by fiber artist and Park Point resident Natalija
Walbridge.

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 2/11



The new Sky Harbor Airport terminal on Park Point in Duluth features artwork by fiber artist
and Park Point resident Natalija Walbridge. Brielle Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

In addition to hosting an average of 13,500 flight operations each
year, the self-sustainable airport supports local search-and-rescue
efforts, as well as area law enforcement, and helps support vital
services and business needs of the community.

During the ceremony, U.S. Sen. Amy Klobuchar’s Regional
Outreach Director Rachel Loeffler-Kemp read a statement on her
behalf.

“Last year alone, this airport welcomed over 500 international
travelers and visitors here,” Loeffler-Kemp read from the
statement. “On average, every international traveler to the U.S.
spends more than $4,000.”

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 3/11



Information regarding Sky Harbor Airport was presented during a ribbon-cutting ceremony
to celebrate its new terminal on Wednesday, July 10. Brielle Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

A combination of federal, state and local funding was utilized to
bring the project to fruition, including $1.92 million from the FAA,
and $520,000 from the Minnesota Department of Transportation.
The FAA’s Airport Terminals Program funding was made available
through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act.

Orion DiFranco, the Northeast MN and Broadband Outreach
director for U.S. Sen. Tina Smith, said, “This terminal facility
upgrade is a perfect example of why Sen. Smith was so proud to
support the bipartisan infrastructure law, which is making billions
of dollars in much-needed, long overdue investments into
Minnesota's infrastructure, including right here at Sky Harbor
Airport.”

Duluth Mayor Roger Reinert praised Klobuchar and Smith, who he
said “led the charge” on the federal funding as local delegates.

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 4/11



Duluth Mayor Roger Reinert spoke during a ribbon-cutting ceremony on Wednesday, July 10
to celebrate Duluth Airport Authority's new Sky Harbor terminal on Park Point. Brielle
Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

Federal Aviation Administration representative Lindsey Terry said
that when the infrastructure
law(https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/guidebook/#:~:text=The
%20Bipartisan%20Infrastructure%20Law%20is,and%20the%20sa
fety%20of%20our) passed in 2021, $25 billion in funding became
available for airport infrastructure
nationwide(https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-
V2.pdf#page=93) .

When the Duluth Airport Authority’s Sky Harbor terminal
project(https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-
harbor-airport-plans-ascent-with-new-modern-facilities) was
selected from a pool of 658 applications for a total of $9 billion in
requests that year, it was the only general aviation airport selected
in the entire state, Terry said.

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 5/11

https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/guidebook/#:~:text=The%20Bipartisan%20Infrastructure%20Law%20is,and%20the%20safety%20of%20our
https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/guidebook/#:~:text=The%20Bipartisan%20Infrastructure%20Law%20is,and%20the%20safety%20of%20our
https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/guidebook/#:~:text=The%20Bipartisan%20Infrastructure%20Law%20is,and%20the%20safety%20of%20our
https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/guidebook/#:~:text=The%20Bipartisan%20Infrastructure%20Law%20is,and%20the%20safety%20of%20our
https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/guidebook/#:~:text=The%20Bipartisan%20Infrastructure%20Law%20is,and%20the%20safety%20of%20our
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-V2.pdf#page=93
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-V2.pdf#page=93
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-V2.pdf#page=93
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-V2.pdf#page=93
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-V2.pdf#page=93
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/BUILDING-A-BETTER-AMERICA-V2.pdf#page=93
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-plans-ascent-with-new-modern-facilities
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-plans-ascent-with-new-modern-facilities
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-plans-ascent-with-new-modern-facilities
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-plans-ascent-with-new-modern-facilities


The new terminal facility now meets modern aviation
requirements, flood plain requirements and ADA compliances.

Attendees converse following a ribbon-cutting ceremony on Wednesday, July 10 at Sky
Harbor Airport's new terminal. Brielle Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

A $1.4 million snow-removal equipment facility was also added to
the property to ensure the airfield pavement and walkways in and
around the airport remain operational during the winter.

St. Paul-based engineering firm Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. was
the construction manager, designer and engineer for the project,
which was completed in the spring.

Duluth Chamber of Commerce Vice President Daniel Fanning said
the Sky Harbor Airport generates $5 million in economic activity
each year, in addition to employing 50 people.

“This building alone generates over $200,000 in increased tax
growth for our community,” Fanning said.

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 6/11



Sky Harbor Airport is located at 5000 Minnesota Ave. on Park Point in Duluth. Brielle
Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

Hermantown Chamber of Commerce President and CEO Kim
Parmeter recognized the benefits that investments to regional
infrastructure have on Duluth’s surrounding communities.

“This airport will undoubtedly draw more visitors eager to
experience our local attractions, natural beauty and our unique
hospitality. Increased tourism, of course, translates to more
customers for local businesses, jobs for our residents, more
revenue for our community, which I'd like to think of as more
sponsors for our Little League teams. It’s a big ol’ cycle,” Parmeter
said.

Duluth Airport Authority Executive Director Tom Werner said,
“Through this new terminal, we hope to invite the public to learn
more about aviation, whether it be through a scenic air tour, a
program with the Duluth Aviation Institute, or one of the many
public events we hope to host in this new building.”

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 7/11



Visitors tour the new Sky Harbor Airport terminal on Park Point in Duluth on Wednesday,
July 10 following a ribbon-cutting ceremony. Brielle Bredsten / Duluth Media Group

In marketing the airport to the general aviation community, the
DAA aims to attract more cross-country and regional flights to the
tourist center of the city, Werner added.

“Since the pandemic, there's been a lot more interest in general
aviation, enabling folks to fly themselves, even if it's in a fractional
ownership or club setting so that they get out and enjoy aviation,”
Werner said. “We'd love to be your gateway here at Sky Harbor.”

20h ago

READ MORE

(https://w
ww.duluth
newstribun

Essentia East Market advanced practice providers
vote to
unionize(https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/healt
h/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-
providers-vote-to-unionize)

7/25/24, 8:45 AM Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal - Duluth News Tribune | News, weather, and sports from Duluth, Minnesota

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/business/sky-harbor-airport-unveils-new-2-66-million-terminal 8/11

https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/health/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-providers-vote-to-unionize
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/health/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-providers-vote-to-unionize
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/health/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-providers-vote-to-unionize
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/health/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-providers-vote-to-unionize
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/health/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-providers-vote-to-unionize
https://www.duluthnewstribune.com/health/essentia-east-market-advanced-practice-providers-vote-to-unionize


U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Aviation 
Administration 

Great Lakes Region 
2300 East Devon Ave. 
Des Plaines, IL 60018 

July 16, 2024 

Mr. Tom Werner 
Executive Director 
Duluth International Airport 
4701 Grinden Dr  
Duluth, MN 55811-1578 

Dear Mr. Werner: 

Annual Certification Inspection Closeout 

The annual certification inspection of Duluth International Airport was conducted on 6/26/2024. 
The inspection revealed the airport is being operated in compliance with 14 CFR Part 139, the 
Airport Certification Manual, and the Airport Operating Certificate. 

We commend you for the procedures you are using in the day-to-day operation of the airport. 
The appearance of the airport indicates they are effective. 

Thank you for your cooperation during the inspection, and please do not hesitate to call if you 
have questions regarding the operational safety of the airport. 

Sincerely, 

Tanvir Ahmed 
Airport Certification Safety Inspector - AGL 

IV. - I.



73°
Duluth, MN

ADVERTISEMENT

DULUTH, Minn. (Northern News Now) - Duluth International Airport leaders are urging passengers to check the status of their flights Friday after news of a
global IT outage.

As 9 a.m. Friday, DLH leaders have not seen any canceled flights but they have seen delays on both Delta and United Airlines.

“We encourage individuals to check the status of their flights and connections before arriving at the airport. If individuals have any concerns, they should
reach out to the airline directly for assistance,” DLH spokespeople wrote.

Meanwhile. the Minneapolis-St. Paul International Airport was experiencing a large number of delays and cancellations Friday morning.

DLH urges passengers to check flight status amid delays
due to global IT outage

Duluth International Airport (Northern News Now)
By Briggs LeSavage
Published: Jul. 19, 2024 at 9:23 AM CDT

 News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

IV. - J.

https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather/
https://legal.yahoo.com/us/en/yahoo/privacy/adinfo/index.html
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/authors/Briggs.LeSavageCBS/
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


This is a developing story. Check back for updates.

Click here to download the Northern News Now app or our Northern News Now First Alert weather app.

Copyright 2024 Northern News Now. All rights reserved.

ADVERTISEMENT

Blissy | Sponsored

Online Shopping Tools | Sponsored

Dermatologist Begs Patients to Throw Away This Household Item

YouTube & YouTube TV | Sponsored

Lock in the current price
Get NFL Sunday Ticket by 8/14 to lock in the current price

Sign up now

Amazon's Worst Nightmare: Thousands Canceling Prime for This Clever Hack (It's Unbelievable)

Abandoned Homes | Search Ads | Sponsored

Abandoned Houses In Duluth (Take A Look At Prices)

Penny Pincher | Sponsored

Minnesota: Big Changes Near Duluth Leaves Drivers Fuming
Read More

Discover

News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

https://www.northernnewsnow.com/page/how-to-stream-northern-news-now-for-free/
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkowojq2vKjtcEXMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=Cgwj0TtK8ZtGFG9KioPMPvKm1uA3U9oSxecq-28z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_QYjFZYxkZwnDpHjOdX40H2MtbIoQ0mVjWrAXwa8G3bu0xuc0mXWtkFGn0BP7RLOeV1R00pJR6CVDOQBV3UoKeefKxiPfs8Bad7eERzRDjvu30M3Vvc81Sq5Ror0UV5clCw7pNwZcv_o3haNCZP1c-7P6zdy4L-p7579pkbKKhlp3EHjXfHIRPqoXAjgMLmSmv_GpiNi4xc0WmmukmJ52_c9XeDCSRY78PknuL8pWOUCT6kzm3hQv-ZGHtLzNLsYPdqDmFyaBcCrYijmQJKOqM53Hejsybz85W6nOfSvPasJ37I5ih-Q5Aodm6AHXi6eXP8lgoRfsY8G7kZIzWLcHuqNmWtNxm3Bi8P2KhAYl5mk4gCUDKn7Pe7DT77uCbqPYflKFOi3x4qsAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOlj5s5WA6_SHA_IIG2JpZGRlci0xMTU2ODQxMjA3ODQxNjg0NzE1OLEJ39lsdeC1GqGACgSYCwHICwGqDQJVU7ATwIXmGNgTDdgUAdAVAZgWAfgWAYAXAbIXAhgCshgJEgKmahg3IgEA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfwrzBEB8DXRorZLrNms6JKZh4G8VxgWVvvm_-oT5Cs5r3ss5mWQajFw_RkFXnsGDrn1GL-kiE1-lT9TubYpHTFFGA8qnzX7Dv0jmPNbNZt7hj6RgB&sig=AOD64_1Djf6UWarFyLmSSu-5xItDoJ2qwg&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-BOfE5ZOomElYSv-6s6d4j9ku41Wghx83zvyMw6iGrxM_sPMNClRL1p4L-F2z7ee375ZOte5878R7AkqwsMmYG6gFgn_Q&dbm_d=AKAmf-BcywKBNI_3OqaLyuyHykE7KXJNwX8ibDStmDZc28fP5MpV8KsH9OyDJkJ-tpi6S44b5wfZbMoDZo3PMZsFGZuSGDFMUOpDfs7D3VNPL05J1qJvgm1LM2ubbE4JTh1RW3ZbjFZHnJ-6F77NMAZMf6QNQXFQP-pPUYrCVLuz-hZBs6Ys12E3C-6Ep0q8BrNur1SslyeiF4CehXlAPAlfXmZz5CDoAe2ZqYOc2SMt07veN0uNYxo_NSIMeCCRXkrx75eQGF-1rguqTCJ0A1yx_z82sF6MLQwrBIuNr82wkWPuMcMFyplJlsI7rjFhxZJlCRmA8sxIqh-TcQXlSagg5kcYr0VgHm0s5J-RQgrVw_b36ivcYEcJPpGTqVNB2itR1AmZibn33cKjcn1c9G4gtNOj9fJ_cghaQxz8Qvm0tPatM-O9yGf4AdCaD0cmYwt894BOMarr&dc_exteid=31795742201035368185550548721121154&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVoo3enkwpnSs8JIMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo6rq745LErIV4MLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko7YGJxvLEkazcATC7rlk
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8onsmjmK_-0aDqATC7rlk
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


IV. - K. 

















73°
Duluth, MN

THE NEW 2024
GLADIATOR

Bring toys along for the fun with available
gas towing  of 7,700 lbs. and Best‑in‑Class
Max 4x4 Payload  of 1,725 lbs.

2

3

4X4 TECHNOLOGY CAPABILITY

VEHICLE DETAILS

ADVERTISEMENT

DULUTH, Minn. (Northern News Now) - While airports across the country deal with continued flight cancellations following last week’s tech outage, it
hasn’t been the case at Duluth International Airport.

Duluth Airport leaders said they’ve experienced only minor complications. Tom Werner, executive director of the Duluth Airport Authority said although
they experienced some delays the day of, no flights were canceled.

“Thankfully no cancellations, and as the system has gotten back up and running, those delays minimize going forward; today, pretty normal,” said Werner.

Duluth International Airport experiencing minimal issues
following global tech outage

Overall, Werner said they’ve experienced fewer than 10 delays.

By Jason Van Horn
Published: Jul. 23, 2024 at 7:25 PM CDT

 News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

IV. - L.

https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather/
https://legal.yahoo.com/us/en/yahoo/privacy/adinfo/index.html
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/authors/jasonvanhorn/
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


Overall, Werner said they’ve experienced fewer than 10 delays. That’s a stark difference from Minneapolis-St. Paul International Airport, as it continues to
deal with flight cancellations and delays several days after outages brought major disruptions.

According to Flight Aware, there have been more than 100 cancellations and 50 delays at MSP this week with a majority of those flights from Delta.

Werner said the best thing travelers can do is keep in close contact with their airline, as they will have the most up-to-date and accurate information about
flights.

Click here to download the Northern News Now app or our Northern News Now First Alert weather app.

Copyright 2024 Northern News Now. All rights reserved.

ADVERTISEMENT

Online Shopping Tools | Sponsored

Coupon Code Finder | Sponsored

YouTube & YouTube TV | Sponsored

Lock in the current price
Sign up now and watch the most NFL games all in one place

Sign up now

Amazon's Worst Nightmare: Thousands Canceling Prime for This Clever Hack (It's Unbelievable)

Amazon's Worst Nightmare: Thousands Canceling Prime for This Clever Hack

Abandoned Homes | Search Ads | Sponsored

Abandoned Houses In Duluth (Take A Look At Prices)

Discover

Ad 


News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

https://mountain.com/relevantads
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/page/how-to-stream-northern-news-now-for-free/
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CtmlzT9K8ZvjWK5OaoPMP3__jmA_U9oSxebq728z6Ery1x4fmQxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSpAk_Q0IPZIv24QntffcljAZcIXlcBkLbVgOxs0JQh1c1ZUxlgYZl7zub_8ylOrCYsNXyYpOv80KN6WPuT-OIL0CGj46QxVngZ7k_Xjn-rdj88OxMCGhSoEhwWjdHfukLb2IcbqRk7_tAFnMIeS8_uJwp_DFUN5QyDXnYR9fZFkIi55WNX8yBQcQYbjtXzErq2Yby9_Yuc1_kjpbPJ3Z7JlrBcv_zBTXwjg2N-Ahp42D7nNMT7ulPeBVzCL8kYKSvnpnSrIyziVNpTKO_k8ZI9gy2ymPw5EJbeBS4fH0i1SVrAbTJlCeHlb_M5UcGu6iqO3gwtHEwkP4whNWoGVtvimhKNsdzikepM0ja6M0AAzJyK8yHch-n2Xu9StZEm3_85oAiJzSMpFKEhFMAEx9n64fIE4AQDiAXhyPOVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPmOOA6_SHA_IIDWJpZGRlci01NTE0NTKxCd_ZbHXgtRqhgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE8CF5hjYEw3YFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICpmoYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfakLF6673M_wbGtuij93uhabdUukeXTWV-6TS7ippJm2M3sfhY_pRZ4POACBzrl-OmW7nhEHaijhawa22rT9bjxt1mG7soRRHjhpLba08W-GeMRgB&sig=AOD64_0JZ3Bv3gK_tCBgBI_2qsN4p7SSgQ&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-AfiVuv_FJLiznrj-GyupjY9YYUxeD4ifD36_Lh9JaNZC_Z9qyuETifqXwPshgsU4THmxSUWs1lwE1qPFLIcdzi1dF_UQ&dbm_d=AKAmf-BIKzk_QSHunIbiwHJ02pqlbf8jqYrLI0BT1QAmFjlpmLuOYpjIiAe1zc9fwixSO6lVKig5jVBXK-T4LKEItdRKURCwvaLLF9Wr1wndld1kFN_YuAbypT6rkLIV8fUwEnryHUK5T5mYUdg5hktuhL1eINmZ2gM7ZckN6ezgg3wumUf3BUjXCGSOxQwNEB14Qo3h-xGkAFHyF7z6BquCClAdmFfTGySkXfavI-edgn3_yy4nSwdowy0gaU4vXAoYTR6ZKpKMcTETUxaKRKu_9nHOgvHkNvo7ditkB52MBFrxjzo1hBrV-4woh4J1cBRVFgEnSGJ-KxEaNS-0g2YcsGFm3U_zad2U-fpPuyX11Esan11lhSmALa64U789VOiitIvbZsEGxgudq9xegOOlB0cn0-mMZLqUnWo9HviSkGWyhr74MNC9u6UGx6xKX3h01YueKmO5VZL7ouoniAeOWlm6hK5WEw&dc_exteid=31795742224440006770489293223055020&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/learn/nflsundayticket/?utm_campaign=ytnflst_dr_nflst_kickoff_lockin_q3_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooxYfOiuu75NwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo4bvrvrzn3_ZfMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIowtmGkeT7gKwQMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://topsearchesnow.com/index.php?rgid=1173541&gclid=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk&publisher=graytv-kbjr6#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD0oVko4Lu0-fyE-KvPATC7rlk
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://popup.taboola.com/en
https://popup.taboola.com/en
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


73°
Duluth, MN

ADVERTISEMENT

Rice Lake, Minn. (Northern News Now) - The $45.5 million roadway reconstruction of Rice Lake Road aims to improve traffic flow, the local economy and
quality of life in and around the City of Rice Lake.

Pedestrian and bike improvements, roundabout intersections are just a couple components of the Rice Lake Road Corridor Project.

“Anytime a community leverages its infrastructure, opportunity is created, job creation, increased tax base, and I have no doubt this project will do
something very similar to the city of Rice Lake,” said Tom Werner, Executive Director for the Duluth Airport Authority.

The airport is one of many businesses and entities near this stretch of road with a vested interest in these improvements.

Reconstruction of Rice Lake Road to boost city’s growth

Pedestrian and bike improvements, roundabout intersections, and regional mobility implications are just a few of the many components the corridor.

By Mikayla Rentsch
Published: Jul. 25, 2024 at 11:01 PM CDT

ADVERTISEMENT

 News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

IV. - M.

https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather/
https://streamguys.deliveryengine.adswizz.com/www/delivery/ck.php?us_privacy=&oaparams=3___adData=2__report%3Dcategory%3DIAB13-6+-+Insurance%2CIAB13-6__domain%3Dwww.ucare.org%5Etargeted-publisher-info%3D1121__streamguys%5Ebilling%3Dstreamguys_A27%2Cstreamguys_S1__197052__USD__0.00000000__false%5EtraceId%3D1723650649968509.1615179023.69.adswizz%5ESSP%2Fi%3Dstreamguys__cid%3D1__cd%3D3__zone_id%3D4946__ri%3Dstreamguys__cf%3D0.00000000__sf%3D0.00000000__mof%3D0.00000000__np%3D0.00000000__gp%3D0.00000000__c%3DUSD__sff%3D0.00000000__sfc%3DUSD__bcf%3D0.00000000__bsf%3D0.00000000__bmof%3D0.00000000__bnp%3D0.00000000__bgp%3D0.00000000__bc%3DUSD__bsff%3D0.00000000__bsfc%3DUSD__bid%3Dfd72174a-5a54-11ef-84f7-067fe106101f__sid%3D1__at%3D1%5EAS%2Fi%3Dstreamguys__ad_id%3D197052__zone_id%3D4946__view_key%3D1723650654764__duration%3D0__af%3D0.00000000__tf%3D0.00000000__sff%3D0.00035000__np%3D0.00000000__gp%3D0.00000000__c%3DUSD__baf%3D0.00000000__btf%3D0.00000000__sff%3D0.00035000__bnp%3D0.00000000__bgp%3D0.00000000__bc%3DUSD__at%3D1__o_id%3D0__c_id%3D89166%5Epchain%3D52ded3ee71b94c84%3DMinnesota%2BPublic%2BRadio___aw_0_pub.name=Minnesota+Public+Radio___aw_0_cnt.visibility=clear___aw_0_ais.delivery=unclassified___source=___tracking=only___aw_0_azn.pname=%5B%22Second+Screen%22%5D___aw_0_pub.id=Minnesota+Public+Radio___aw_0_azn.brandDomain=www.adswizz.com___aw_0_awz.a=3544___aw_0_req.is3pSsp=true___aw_0_req.3pSspDomain=beeswax.com___aw_0_pub.domain=adswizz.com___user_agent=Mozilla%2F5.0+%28Windows+NT+10.0%3B+Win64%3B+x64%29+AppleWebKit%2F537.36+%28KHTML%2C+like+Gecko%29+Chrome%2F127.0.0.0+Safari%2F537.36___aw_0_req.adId=197052___traceId=1723650649968509.1615179023.69.adswizz___aw_0_req.forced=true___aw_0_awz.xpaid=96db4a7e-7d94-4312-8e7f-ea179b93d8de___aw_0_azn.brandName=Minnesota+Public+Radio___ck=https%3A%2F%2Fus-west-2.event.prod.bidr.io%2Flog%2Fclk%2Fie%3Fai%3DChEIj9qWggYQRRj9ntWF6_SHAxITCgdhZHN3aXp6EAIY0JMCILeVAhoCaWU4mJkJQE9IAVICaWVgAHoyCgwIAxABEAQQAxACEAYSBAgBEAESBAgEEAESBAgDEAESBAgGEAESBAgCEAESBAgFEAE%3D%26audit_flag_wp%3D%24%7BAUCTION_PRICE%7D%26dest%3D___sessionId=13e48f281cca17712412f264ffc6f2___aw_0_awz.g=f___aw_0_req.gdpr=0___aw_0_pub.name.hashed=false___aw_0_1st.listenerid=AACTrk7MGNYAABRiTt2QEg___listenerId=AACTrk7MGNYAABRiTt2QEg___aw_0_ivt.result=unknown___cbs=8112475___aw_0_azn.zposition=%5B%22undefined%22%5D___us_privacy=___externalClickUrl=https://us-west-2.event.prod.bidr.io/log/clk/ie?ai=ChEIj9qWggYQRRj9ntWF6_SHAxITCgdhZHN3aXp6EAIY0JMCILeVAhoCaWU4mJkJQE9IAVICaWVgAHoyCgwIAxABEAQQAxACEAYSBAgBEAESBAgEEAESBAgDEAESBAgGEAESBAgCEAESBAgFEAE=___audit_flag_wp=${AUCTION_PRICE}___dest=
https://streamguys.deliveryengine.adswizz.com/www/delivery/ck.php?us_privacy=&oaparams=3___adData=2__report%3Dcategory%3DIAB13-6+-+Insurance%2CIAB13-6__domain%3Dwww.ucare.org%5Etargeted-publisher-info%3D1121__streamguys%5Ebilling%3Dstreamguys_A27%2Cstreamguys_S1__197052__USD__0.00000000__false%5EtraceId%3D1723650649968509.1615179023.69.adswizz%5ESSP%2Fi%3Dstreamguys__cid%3D1__cd%3D3__zone_id%3D4946__ri%3Dstreamguys__cf%3D0.00000000__sf%3D0.00000000__mof%3D0.00000000__np%3D0.00000000__gp%3D0.00000000__c%3DUSD__sff%3D0.00000000__sfc%3DUSD__bcf%3D0.00000000__bsf%3D0.00000000__bmof%3D0.00000000__bnp%3D0.00000000__bgp%3D0.00000000__bc%3DUSD__bsff%3D0.00000000__bsfc%3DUSD__bid%3Dfd72174a-5a54-11ef-84f7-067fe106101f__sid%3D1__at%3D1%5EAS%2Fi%3Dstreamguys__ad_id%3D197052__zone_id%3D4946__view_key%3D1723650654764__duration%3D0__af%3D0.00000000__tf%3D0.00000000__sff%3D0.00035000__np%3D0.00000000__gp%3D0.00000000__c%3DUSD__baf%3D0.00000000__btf%3D0.00000000__sff%3D0.00035000__bnp%3D0.00000000__bgp%3D0.00000000__bc%3DUSD__at%3D1__o_id%3D0__c_id%3D89166%5Epchain%3D52ded3ee71b94c84%3DMinnesota%2BPublic%2BRadio___aw_0_pub.name=Minnesota+Public+Radio___aw_0_cnt.visibility=clear___aw_0_ais.delivery=unclassified___source=___tracking=only___aw_0_azn.pname=%5B%22Second+Screen%22%5D___aw_0_pub.id=Minnesota+Public+Radio___aw_0_azn.brandDomain=www.adswizz.com___aw_0_awz.a=3544___aw_0_req.is3pSsp=true___aw_0_req.3pSspDomain=beeswax.com___aw_0_pub.domain=adswizz.com___user_agent=Mozilla%2F5.0+%28Windows+NT+10.0%3B+Win64%3B+x64%29+AppleWebKit%2F537.36+%28KHTML%2C+like+Gecko%29+Chrome%2F127.0.0.0+Safari%2F537.36___aw_0_req.adId=197052___traceId=1723650649968509.1615179023.69.adswizz___aw_0_req.forced=true___aw_0_awz.xpaid=96db4a7e-7d94-4312-8e7f-ea179b93d8de___aw_0_azn.brandName=Minnesota+Public+Radio___ck=https%3A%2F%2Fus-west-2.event.prod.bidr.io%2Flog%2Fclk%2Fie%3Fai%3DChEIj9qWggYQRRj9ntWF6_SHAxITCgdhZHN3aXp6EAIY0JMCILeVAhoCaWU4mJkJQE9IAVICaWVgAHoyCgwIAxABEAQQAxACEAYSBAgBEAESBAgEEAESBAgDEAESBAgGEAESBAgCEAESBAgFEAE%3D%26audit_flag_wp%3D%24%7BAUCTION_PRICE%7D%26dest%3D___sessionId=13e48f281cca17712412f264ffc6f2___aw_0_awz.g=f___aw_0_req.gdpr=0___aw_0_pub.name.hashed=false___aw_0_1st.listenerid=AACTrk7MGNYAABRiTt2QEg___listenerId=AACTrk7MGNYAABRiTt2QEg___aw_0_ivt.result=unknown___cbs=8112475___aw_0_azn.zposition=%5B%22undefined%22%5D___us_privacy=___externalClickUrl=https://us-west-2.event.prod.bidr.io/log/clk/ie?ai=ChEIj9qWggYQRRj9ntWF6_SHAxITCgdhZHN3aXp6EAIY0JMCILeVAhoCaWU4mJkJQE9IAVICaWVgAHoyCgwIAxABEAQQAxACEAYSBAgBEAESBAgEEAESBAgDEAESBAgGEAESBAgCEAESBAgFEAE=___audit_flag_wp=${AUCTION_PRICE}___dest=
https://ad.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsv_MOc4hinY_3g1YA6chsfNLPP1S5ZtTYIPw4UwRltNqKU8cwFUV3Lzt6CB_LvGg3wQnSAyjSxJyh3AaqQcEBU_kbkGp8Z0sZej6VL6AE4TfqmG9HXcMf2oatEiZjXXLX8n1Mx-ApEmDobg-aANchdWVHWEOKA4JIHfaTgREG1qtHjxs7PazFn0xiC6t7fq3z0EFiDzn5XnfmRHZpHatJhpXVztA2rFerEks96vRu4HC6CstqdIYq79jGJf38B9aikVap7S7d_wInygrBPKlgMSA2NYN5k05_VqvQhs8QzewgNaQFMptXFsYhzB6O9DksZiRqHSv3o46rCeJAcr6aoZm_TlzIEOF0eZxOTBZxbcvKBFjatmP5MYyNOSVXWFkPrnBWyvlnx-RxgrO6wF4BcWy7qpPEnN9cAELDlZJUA_7rs82AAvB8aH34JA74DMAHy3omupx_bMgvgMhcW1sDCnVDmskezVYKDa4No1tAvUi0In1WDMU99t87zIzwhRpfLdcQLXTu-TUJfEvYgetYC9jghSLcLOYKvTuM1a1JKzXR0gtLqrKIalDYVPw9er0VPY3yBHHZZ0Gpn8azq-N3nnQvlRhgBp_1wjGePYfJv94R2506BnrB2nPWufDt3_27JUrzHl_QdC2EXqa4VQiOfG1Qjqk9O8zEh1hYEOY-fJctKWeZ06tAXu7LGALlJQHwQ3pXFH86hl2DpfhjR2buf_QM5vtvMrsacG6TnRPtpCHdHsY8g44suYZ-M54iBDIleOh422OxtaS8IrEpQ2A1CW80labfvtQB_veIzWz7sRHyoMihpD0jP3Ppwnlkk3GcHSsKUwkeVNhhXEAmkcJQr8VShi_dxSUoNIWENNLS0jbtWd1kc1YC9EIW0WreeaUdTissyNRf3gJTXyiuPZxLdKNP6n8MuL0_kyV7VvYp_WpTUkaPrLYPFBgKKUUzM8ph0TXlYIGObUHIRryJkdJMsoPtbjMvrmNNSfsj-ktc0XsF_dyVkkJeMG3IQxf3i5kOaPm6yWvDqZRVjCQHFBFqN3oD-MiskvHlyG_aAIAK1ZBfpjj96MXXiEIXjZtgXxvtutMX97RsMCr5bOrQdtv9EGnY6H-v2r891vuX2RI0uXUhbw7o-N-TJtCIQ31FXxFyK97nJGBE4mSWw0gaw6r3pdk6B1nqxdOTiX5h6PwCz9QKYB7MGFHJtlSBCDW2IRUkO3qKNegm6E19bhRTeZxcgRgvaCItvf7Z8Bkjq4ho0mdXXQDpHeE5ElMJpn7PPhktHJp0qxOqeLOTC27p_fFS7FfM8q9iNp4Smz3V4Q0k2Z-6hekw3RbOCtgRORnbF2j9JRZxE6jCyiBSR52TNceb94ChVyWH6kViHIxJmM8SUHiiyG-_g8VO3ZLqqnKHBsl5zeDbOPB2CK5oThwSJoM9UW060rkISoSDK2DWhncyuFrW69FwiE15TLoBuB2Hfw1x-Oivnc0W6sMextu1WMlaVlrnJEFYlmi4uLLutsZJhYc6fVkk6PUFfYcnEj96ohTNsetaInB5TKP9_naAysqk8StBfFBQJp9ff1cslaWl3XOl2HxJ-XCqA-8Usf6BkyRSQ514eW5psiT8ZP-XfD1Qn5zEIEE8jKbbvZhg&sai=AMfl-YQS0fwaDOmHcQe6I-0lZ426TFobTXPv8JSCK0lZShLKyfukE5tiQhm2exvbgjF4esIOt4VyKtLm3bmirdZdM1b6bhu9INoQLUpc8NtOUBgdM9Y1-o1HWY44NO9ddFBHBQGheRbYtXHbBIl_rXNFXX8RiTsUS35ku1toRYvoMIvv9q8p7lupd_rxQKZvupwBuCwyBUhQNic7JNKkgw0z1jpZsIlMoT9r_18JTOw&sig=Cg0ArKJSzA4d8wQZYuix&cry=1&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&crd=aHR0cHM6Ly9hbWVyaWNhbmV4cHJlc3MuY29t&urlfix=1&adurl=https://www.americanexpress.com/en-us/business/blueprint/business-line-of-credit/%3Futm_source%3DDB%26utm_campaign%3DLOC%26utm_medium%3DDB%26refid%3Damex_media_LOC_DB_PRO_1P_PRKSUGSABAXXX_LFUN03%7C%7Bgclid%7D
https://ad.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsv_MOc4hinY_3g1YA6chsfNLPP1S5ZtTYIPw4UwRltNqKU8cwFUV3Lzt6CB_LvGg3wQnSAyjSxJyh3AaqQcEBU_kbkGp8Z0sZej6VL6AE4TfqmG9HXcMf2oatEiZjXXLX8n1Mx-ApEmDobg-aANchdWVHWEOKA4JIHfaTgREG1qtHjxs7PazFn0xiC6t7fq3z0EFiDzn5XnfmRHZpHatJhpXVztA2rFerEks96vRu4HC6CstqdIYq79jGJf38B9aikVap7S7d_wInygrBPKlgMSA2NYN5k05_VqvQhs8QzewgNaQFMptXFsYhzB6O9DksZiRqHSv3o46rCeJAcr6aoZm_TlzIEOF0eZxOTBZxbcvKBFjatmP5MYyNOSVXWFkPrnBWyvlnx-RxgrO6wF4BcWy7qpPEnN9cAELDlZJUA_7rs82AAvB8aH34JA74DMAHy3omupx_bMgvgMhcW1sDCnVDmskezVYKDa4No1tAvUi0In1WDMU99t87zIzwhRpfLdcQLXTu-TUJfEvYgetYC9jghSLcLOYKvTuM1a1JKzXR0gtLqrKIalDYVPw9er0VPY3yBHHZZ0Gpn8azq-N3nnQvlRhgBp_1wjGePYfJv94R2506BnrB2nPWufDt3_27JUrzHl_QdC2EXqa4VQiOfG1Qjqk9O8zEh1hYEOY-fJctKWeZ06tAXu7LGALlJQHwQ3pXFH86hl2DpfhjR2buf_QM5vtvMrsacG6TnRPtpCHdHsY8g44suYZ-M54iBDIleOh422OxtaS8IrEpQ2A1CW80labfvtQB_veIzWz7sRHyoMihpD0jP3Ppwnlkk3GcHSsKUwkeVNhhXEAmkcJQr8VShi_dxSUoNIWENNLS0jbtWd1kc1YC9EIW0WreeaUdTissyNRf3gJTXyiuPZxLdKNP6n8MuL0_kyV7VvYp_WpTUkaPrLYPFBgKKUUzM8ph0TXlYIGObUHIRryJkdJMsoPtbjMvrmNNSfsj-ktc0XsF_dyVkkJeMG3IQxf3i5kOaPm6yWvDqZRVjCQHFBFqN3oD-MiskvHlyG_aAIAK1ZBfpjj96MXXiEIXjZtgXxvtutMX97RsMCr5bOrQdtv9EGnY6H-v2r891vuX2RI0uXUhbw7o-N-TJtCIQ31FXxFyK97nJGBE4mSWw0gaw6r3pdk6B1nqxdOTiX5h6PwCz9QKYB7MGFHJtlSBCDW2IRUkO3qKNegm6E19bhRTeZxcgRgvaCItvf7Z8Bkjq4ho0mdXXQDpHeE5ElMJpn7PPhktHJp0qxOqeLOTC27p_fFS7FfM8q9iNp4Smz3V4Q0k2Z-6hekw3RbOCtgRORnbF2j9JRZxE6jCyiBSR52TNceb94ChVyWH6kViHIxJmM8SUHiiyG-_g8VO3ZLqqnKHBsl5zeDbOPB2CK5oThwSJoM9UW060rkISoSDK2DWhncyuFrW69FwiE15TLoBuB2Hfw1x-Oivnc0W6sMextu1WMlaVlrnJEFYlmi4uLLutsZJhYc6fVkk6PUFfYcnEj96ohTNsetaInB5TKP9_naAysqk8StBfFBQJp9ff1cslaWl3XOl2HxJ-XCqA-8Usf6BkyRSQ514eW5psiT8ZP-XfD1Qn5zEIEE8jKbbvZhg&sai=AMfl-YQS0fwaDOmHcQe6I-0lZ426TFobTXPv8JSCK0lZShLKyfukE5tiQhm2exvbgjF4esIOt4VyKtLm3bmirdZdM1b6bhu9INoQLUpc8NtOUBgdM9Y1-o1HWY44NO9ddFBHBQGheRbYtXHbBIl_rXNFXX8RiTsUS35ku1toRYvoMIvv9q8p7lupd_rxQKZvupwBuCwyBUhQNic7JNKkgw0z1jpZsIlMoT9r_18JTOw&sig=Cg0ArKJSzA4d8wQZYuix&cry=1&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&crd=aHR0cHM6Ly9hbWVyaWNhbmV4cHJlc3MuY29t&urlfix=1&adurl=https://www.americanexpress.com/en-us/business/blueprint/business-line-of-credit/%3Futm_source%3DDB%26utm_campaign%3DLOC%26utm_medium%3DDB%26refid%3Damex_media_LOC_DB_PRO_1P_PRKSUGSABAXXX_LFUN03%7C%7Bgclid%7D
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/authors/MikaylaRentsch/
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


Werner said when the project is complete it will lead to both population and commercial growth, with plans for new housing going up alongside Rice Lake
Road.

“Increase our population, yes, but it’s not just any population. It’s that working-class population that right now they need good homes,” said Rice Lake
Mayor Suzanne Herstad.

Housing is one of the many challenges the City of Rice Lake faces. Herstad said jobs come where houses are supplied.

“That’s the shortage in our area that we are hoping to address and we’re hoping to put it right there along that commercial corridor,” said Herstad.

The planned corridor is a key commuter and truck route for the Duluth area, connecting to communities of the East Iron Range.

“We have about 163 acres, either on Rice Lake Road or on Stebner, that we hope to also capitalize on some of the new energy around here for commercial
development or perhaps industrial development,” said Werner.

He said this is a larger community opportunity, and it’s an incredibly important first step in improving the quality of life, whether it’s easing traffic concerns
or expanding the economic base.

Right now, the project is in the design process. Construction is anticipated to begin in 2028.

Click here to download the Northern News Now app or our Northern News Now First Alert weather app.

Copyright 2024 Northern News Now. All rights reserved.

Blissy | Sponsored

Dermatologist Begs Patients to Throw Away This Household Item

YouTube TV | Sponsored

College Football is back
Watch College Football all season long on a variety of networks

Explore plans

YouTube TV | Sponsored

Watch WNBA games live
Stay locked into the action all season long with YouTube TV

Sign up now

people-today.com | Sponsored

Coupon Code Finder | Sponsored

Man Stumbles Upon Kittens In Barn. When Vet Arrives, He Says, "These Are Not Kittens"

Amazon's Worst Nightmare: Thousands Canceling Prime for This Clever Hack

Penny Pincher | Sponsored

Minnesota: Big Changes Near Duluth Leaves Drivers Fuming
Read More

ADVERTISEMENT

News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

https://www.northernnewsnow.com/page/how-to-stream-northern-news-now-for-free/
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://info.blissy.com/hiding-in-pillowcase?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=Desktop_6697327&utm_term=1464123_graytv-kbjr6&affId=2&c1=taboola&c2=Desktop_6697327&c3=6697327&c5=1464123&nb_platform=taboola&nb_sid=1464123&nb_cid=6697327&nb_ciid=3952270559&nb_device=Desktop&nb_cpc={cpc}&aff_sub=6697327&aff_sub2=Desktop&aff_sub3=3952270559&aff_sub4=1464123&aff_sub5={cpc}&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCylUkoou-uspH78IJoMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CXCv9V9K8Zo65O4broPwPg8WX0A3tqY-oeZLI97WUE_m55rHkPxABIMuJ1iNgyYaAgJSklBWgAffKjMgDyAEGqAMBqgSqAk_Q6y6XiqZPySppr_7XKjculFZyv7NK92SwA0ouP7P7yQkZpVl4ehbB_oEqx2vpYWYtVoyj_HGiVzNfK3mcmdMl1xQsymIEPwgCEojCkcOD4O6zGWB2DGY-e2ryoPKlj2hrG3D2Rh1nMPkQob4JiNc9iEm2GB15pqMcBlNK3aGyyQn6cRcURUidDpI8lB-meLLm80Ar08DIspbbzQL2i6QC6p4FS7bt7U16bDZAYVgd432d8Yvb9K9LOFPavavTD3fZMbH_s7kvqpH9FqkrbOPthf_L079xxcwPn2O1hy5XT8KUUf88hicfHwwZawWpcpRiL7GanG3osvmvGfuLnG_npiuqRbEMAIZklpqTmUO7S3vJ29-_Ys9KeFqFCmMUpVtJKnlYNLXRZr3ABLfyiOLyBOAEA4gFhaT1lVCQBgGgBjeAB_G08zeoB9m2sQKoB9XJG6gHpr4bqAeOzhuoB5PYG6gH7paxAqgH_p6xAqgHr76xAqgHlcWxAqgH89EbqAeW2BuoB6qbsQKoB4OtsQKoB-C9sQKoB_-esQKoB9-fsQKoB_jCsQKoB_vCsQLYBwHSCCQIgGEQARhfMgKKAjoJgECAwICAgKAoSL39wTpYiJDbhOv0hwPyCA1iaWRkZXItNTUxNDUysQm9hlLJVY7BS4AKBJgLAcgLAaoNAlVTsBOf3fkY2BMN2BQB0BUBmBYB-BYBgBcBshcCGAKyGAkSAsZSGDciAQA&num=1&cid=CAQSVwDpaXnfhLpB5355J8wIkdy22QULRNY7O8FWb5DVp0tVwHk3ESdEmveIbPJRHD_MIEAGCJg7EKl8CPpXq1bxlIsWIBN8XgRd309XfZbbGYn4p1YXJsfG_xgB&sig=AOD64_1DOHRCnfAFP0ci9jnd86MO-xPHhw&client=ca-pub-6362111942204036&dbm_c=AKAmf-CQPNQC2S1MCDkvZOaI7UC-THV65GMyyvh1KCarF8LlrnZf89NbN2fsOJ7mttm3mq4jeqmBl4lUhmyDQ2g9WYQMxprFUg&dbm_d=AKAmf-A9UolJlDzg_T9QFZh5PFCNC9nqlpblkXbOHY7ZFarNzAJYfLd-L3jSk8BNaDG_n824ikQGq1eSAy8ocpDEitl0nYvaRlJFsfLrpKg5sw7lE6L4zG5Q6TVu8rPReoYJtNDKFDjoq8j4F2h5R7MO_r6YfnoSe3XuHBfu5cd9aExrg7iAHhEU61I7ncmDd0RkboJ23X42XJ7-cBe1XPjdu8fZJ3MLQBmX-L3C3brCWFk3vao1nd5_QhSl69-h8dWX9hhcBZjR2MuWHaZ-3a9lES9PMEp95b4p7k5xrzNU-PcKmUgAUC18yCzFI8jB5JKdhyC_k_DArMxMMyhmkYI9A3cmSRZjvmDKokjosU8WtOh396kVDtEhixQpXy9Y8okpiPOISL9-287OAd55WUkBVod7xsVgmnVD6Sa0_VbU79iWcY9Zgzc&dc_exteid=31795742376500871682710238065012597&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_dr_cfb_evg_fy_2024&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCpkVooyJD_nZ203dreATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CjKvHV9K8ZqG9O_KmoPwPzP7nce2pj6h5652Er_kS-bnmseQ_EAEgur7wFmDJhoCAlKSUFaAB98qMyAPIAQaoAwGqBKoCT9AfSr8p4IJuYXXNAaYgchvZdQA4HGClbHPMlTAyfI33Wto6MIOEap73OwpI96eDGby0axtnZ7PeQwnLOcyG9LY1qcFBs_tp-ra_U1i8c1tfcrZH6GkbYuGqsqU9ee5BwHridNpostx80I1bez-bIYw_SxgAEqrgaeec4RQzpLH-eDqc41p6uEbegq4gE9KOERHx-owpb0dtVNPZUB-zXuCzs6Zqmee_IyznhDlUBCvcve03zE0p-VsX5kNwFsZdnU3CYE2kPlXg3J5Z9p0ZSabR2Soz1TVSQ74ucisyDVmPpWfew4biiAUs9sBQuGtebKlAwcAlSaegRK7fo4Nm4vJmzkaSpzFgTjv6wVKiyh6I12iaTwTPpkbbH6PIBPFXDQuzxVPigjvGHcAEt_KI4vIE4AQDiAWFpPWVUJAGAaAGN4AH8bTzN6gH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF8yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOljPoduE6_SHA_IIH2JpZGRlci14YXBpOjE1MTI2Njp5dUpqbVlnZG95V2OxCVCkG6uefX8UgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE5_d-RjYEw2IFAHYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICxlIYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSbgDpaXnfSknyqBiCrDdKvZ6s8tjG-iMz4IWb38T-JdL-0mfGIOepIIZahbjR4dZYa1ZUfVoClf-OOgAzu8NJe4TNIpmuRSjzjO5c0x_aFUqGNCSJ3_1c2TCIP5kZ7WXOgBlm--fsTWX4xaAMOHfJGAE&sig=AOD64_0zn2pvqffYqUTHNmbLH4NBU3sgZQ&client=ca-pub-6579838053286784&dbm_c=AKAmf-A2e7PajqCKePagbjZvL3PllxVf84oDr3Ddg51mU65fETOfHqGUTDu8W7-xAyvfx0RqE0Onw3hGwQdS-nlCK9xVeSibAA&dbm_d=AKAmf-Bff4UB39H0Ts5B9njyVC_rwh4Jt1V9rbfpjgSw4iu1_gcVvuxJYWChUxwGK083L3i8RC3ahxmFqqBeFSfYFY-gQ9WSSXecWVRlbyxCwoCJX6Oy6gQTboajuvqEypZK1Nl4qr5AeUIyrYILRCmk4Dpzh5DhQj0qf0Fh6yumuahUfCtbxPgYdF5LTR5GQRKffahcIYkdJmUA8aEyOLHVlg7me3-3K9ZEc_vMk9YiJg_Y3oL7ddq9x5paf8sJiog-eNlr_DqEkxH9wOKOahXljTYsqju3ZGTkFxZEUZ7Mrd2RXzA3eVWdB4HC-C6nsoH1xHtOEpteBNtbDPQOdfGLygc1CBLNCWYImgT9Ew_wuzL3mkMI8mEglaQtqejzCI9ziIsU9IfuKCcSjVD9Jsg5DUD6CLj1eZ6hzSH1UHXOpHBfTC4KYxg&dc_exteid=31795742376316754730152191259365739&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://tv.youtube.com/welcome/?utm_campaign=ytv_wnba_finals_q4_2023&utm_source=paid_media&utm_medium=dv360&utm_content=imgs&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCf70so8r-qusiJgKD6ATC7rlk
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://www.people-today.com/en/44343?utm_source=taboola&utm_campaign=41726767&utm_content=3990173053&utm_medium=graytv-kbjr6&utm_cost=rYGmoe1epLjzHG2iwLUWChVvUPfry7k2QghMG24i30s=&utm_mb=xss&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCDkVootv319KS_zvlwMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIokr3Tm5v4ke1GMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8o_-W2ppPo-OmZATC7rlk
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


July 29, 2024 

The Honorable Joseph R. Biden 
President of the United States 
The White House 
1600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW 
Washington, DC 20500 

Dear Mr. President: 

As members of the Minnesota delegation, we write in support of the Duluth International 
Airport’s (DLH) application for federal funding to rebuild its Air Traffic Control Tower. DLH is 
pursuing funding through the Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA) Airport Terminal 
Program (ATP), made available by Public Law 117-58. 

The DLH provides vital service to the region. Commercial, cargo, and medical service flights all 
utilize the airport. The DLH is home to Cirrus Aircraft, one of the largest manufacturers of piston 
aircraft in the world, and the 148th Fighter Wing of the Minnesota Air National Guard, making 
the airport crucial to our economic and national security. The airport supports over 6,000 jobs 
and contributes roughly $760 million annually to the economy.  

However, the existing tower is 70 years old, making it the third oldest air traffic control tower in 
the country. It does not meet current FAA line-of-sight requirements, and it is deteriorating and 
in need of significant repairs. To sustain the growth of air commerce in this region of our state, a 
new air traffic control facility is necessary for enhanced safety and viability. 

As a locally-owned air traffic facility staffed by FAA Controllers, the control tower at the DLH 
has previously not qualified for federal funding. The FAA’s ATP program has presented a 
unique five-year opportunity to compete for funding. While we are pleased that the Department 
of Transportation awarded $10 million for this project earlier this year, the project still requires 
significant additional federal funding in order to be completed. 

For these reasons, we ask that you prioritize funding for the Duluth Air Traffic Control Tower in 
the final two rounds of funding through the ATP program. 

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

Sincerely,

____________________________________ 
Amy Klobuchar 
United States Senator 

____________________________________ 
Pete Stauber 
Member of Congress 

IV. - N.



 
 
___________________________________ 
Tina Smith 
United States Senator 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Betty McCollum 
Member of Congress 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Angie Craig 
Member of Congress 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Ilhan Omar 
Member of Congress 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
____________________________________
Tom Emmer 
Member of Congress 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________
Michelle Fischbach 
Member of Congress 
 
 
 
____________________________________
Brad Finstad 
Member of Congress 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Dean Phillips 
Member of Congress 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 



CHICAGO PARENT 

CHICAGO PARENT 

I THINGS TO DO I I TRAVEL I 

Explore the Great Outdoors with Kids in Duluth, Minnesota 
•• By Cortney Fries July 29, 2024 

Looking for more things to do? Get the latest info in our weekly Let's Go newsletter ! 

SUBSCRIBE 

Photo credit: Cortney Fries 

Duluth is located in northeastern Minnesota, at the western tip of Lake Superior. Known as an outdoorsy destination, I've long wanted to 

visit for hiking. My 13-year-old daughter was excited about the paddle boarding and alpine slide. 

The people of Duluth are genuinely nice and easily make you feel at home. I didn't realize how hilly of a city Duluth is. In fact, some have 

called Duluth the San Francisco of the Midwest for its inclined streets and water views. The food was impressive, which is saying a lot 

seeing how spoiled we are in Chicago. Read on for more reasons to visit Duluth with your family. 

IV. - O.



CHICAGO PARENT 
"""'"'-'VVI JJ 1.111'-' '-'-'M'-1.11.IVIIQI 1.1'-I.IVll.1'-J 

Photo credit: Cortney Fries 

With the world's farthest inland port accessible to ocean ships, Duluth's iconic landmark is the Aerial Lift Bridge. Watch the bridge go up 

and down to accommodate huge cargo ships. If you have a family member big or small that's into seeing the ships, check the shii;ii;iing 

schedule for vessel arrivals. 

My daughter and I took a Sunset Paddle Tour with Zenith Adventure. Two enthusiastic guides shepherded us around the harbor by the Blue 

Bridge, near the William A. Irvin and Sundew ships and the Aerial Lift Bridge. As the sun set, the sky turned the most spectacular orange. 

~Qirit Mountain's Adventure Park is open in the summers and not far from downtown. My daughter and I gleefully glided down the alpine 

slide 11 times between the two of us. Spirit Mountain also offers a seated zipline,jumping pillow like what you find at pumpkin patches, a 

scenic chairlift, mountain biking, mini golf and disc golf. In the winter, you can ski, snowboard and tube. 

Hiking is my jam and there are over 200 miles of trails in Duluth. I was surprised by how close to downtown the Chester Creek Trail is. Hike 

from Chester Park Playground along the creek for serene nature scenes and sounds. Several families were dipping their feet in the creek 

and lounging on rocks near waterfalls. 



CHICAGO PARENT 

Close 

Photo credit: Cortney Fries 

Park Point Beach boasts the longest freshwater sandbar in the world. July and August are the warmest months in Duluth, with high 

temperatures in the mid-70s, so take advantage of beach time then. My daughter and I visited the Park Point Art Fair at the end of June. 

This annual event draws artists from across the Midwest and beyond to sell paintings, photography, ceramics, sculpture and more. My 

daughter's favorite part was the food. She scooped up some banana bread and homemade caramels. 

There are numerous options for lakefront strolling in Duluth. My daughter and I literally stopped to smell the roses at Leif Erickson Park 

and Rose Garden. The Lakewalk/Canal Park and Enger Park are also great options for fresh air exercise and sightseeing. 

William A. Irvin is a historic vessel in Canal Park that you can tour. If you're into scary stuff, I hear they put on a frighteningly good haunted 

tour in October. If you're into all things maritime, the Lake Sur2erior Maritime Visitor Center will be of interest to you. It's free to visit, so 

pop in as you explore the area. Learn about freshwater ecosystems at the Great Lakes Aguarium, where they have North America's largest 

sturgeon touchpool. 

The Glensheen Mansion is a historic estate where you can take a self-guided tour. My daughter appreciated the history while I enjoyed the 

beautiful grounds. Duluth Art Institute is free to visit for visual art inspiration. Buy indigenous foods like wild rice and arts like stationary 

and jewelry from the Indigenous First ShoQ, which is focused on advancing Native American artists. 

Where to stay 
We stayed at Pier B Resort and highly recommend it. Located on Lake Superior with views of the Aerial Lift Bridge, Pier B also boasts an 

outdoor hot tub, sport courts, fire pits with nightly s'mores, an indoor pool and fitness center. Silos serves breakfast, lunch and dinner in the 

restaurant, on the outdoor patio or roomside. We enjoyed the creme brulee oatmeal and Minnesota rice with carrots, mushrooms and 

poached egg. 



CHICAGO PARENT 
I VV'-41 I.lie.II. J VVVI I.II I.I c.lY'-1111f, IVI 

Photo credit: Cortney Fries 

Duluth is brimming with local restaurants that serve farm-to-table, lake-to-table, and interesting options to please various palates. Duluth 

Grill is a funky diner that dishes up fresh, local and organic ingredients. When I found out the BiBimBap was featured on Food Network, I 

had have it. My daughter opted for a smoothie bowl topped with fresh fruit. At Sara's Table Chester Creek is a cozy coffee shop that serves 

healthy, made-from-scratch dishes. Those looking for gluten-free treats will rejoice over their specialty cupcakes. 

My teen and I both got a kick out of the witchy vibe at Ritual Salad. The Pagan owner was very pleasant to talk to and we perused tarot 

cards and candles as we waited for our salads. My baked potato soup was warm and comforting. You simply can't visit Duluth without 

indulging at Love Creame[Y.. This woman-owned artisan ice cream shop serves up dairy and vegan delights that will have you drooling. My 

daughter and I opted for the ice cream flight of 6 mini scoops including salted chocolate peanut butter, honey lavender, salted caramel crack 

cookie, mint chocolate chip, lemon bar and s'mores. Ice cream is my daughter's love language and she said Love Creamery's is some of the 

best ever. 

I had a fancy riff on fish and chips at Lake Ave Restaurant & Bar. Pizza Luce impressed us with their bakery-made gluten-free crust and 

specialty pizzas. Elote pizza with Tajin sweet corn, smoked bacon and jalapenos is like a street corn festival in your mouth. If we're judging 

by the empty bowl, I'd say my daughter thoroughly enjoyed Pizza Luce's tangy key lime custard. 

We were dying to go to Juice Pharm for their acai bowls. The Big Kahuna Bowl is creamy frozen coconut topped with chia seed pudding, 

bananas and peanut butter. I had the best airport salad of my life at the tiny Duluth airport. And I've eaten a lot of airport salads in the past 

ten plus years of travel writing. Arrowhead Tai::1 House grilled up fresh, warm chicken for my California Chicken Cobb Salad and sent me on 

my way with a full, happy belly. Cheers to Duluth! 

Jenny Delnay
Highlight



73°
Duluth, MN

THE 2024

Put exhilarating memories into motion
with 510 horsepower from the standard

3.0L Hurricane Twin-Turbo engine¹

LUXURY TECHNOLOGY CAPABILITY

Vehicle Details

ADVERTISEMENT

HIBBING, Minn. (Northern News Now) - A local organization that offers flight training in Duluth made its way up to the Range Regional Airport Saturday.

Ascent Aviation and Lake Superior Helicopters partnered with the Range Regional Airport to give aspiring aviators a glimpse of the air up there.

The Discovery Flights can count as flight hours for students as they work toward an aviation career.

However, right now pilots are harder to find than one would think.

Discovery Flights takes off over the Iron Range

Ascent Aviation and Lake Superior Helicopters partnered with the Range Regional Airport to give aspiring aviators a glimpse of the air up there.

By Jeffrey McClure
Published: Aug. 10, 2024 at 11:19 PM CDT

ADVERTISEMENT

 News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

IV. - P.

https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather/
https://legal.yahoo.com/us/en/yahoo/privacy/adinfo/index.html
https://www.rangeregionalairport.com/
https://www.ascentaviation.com/
https://www.lakesuperiorhelicopters.com/
https://www.rangeregionalairport.com/
https://www.lakesuperiorhelicopters.com/helicopter-flight-trainingminnesota/first-helicopter-flight-training-lesson
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/authors/jeffrey.mcclure%40gray.tv/
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


“We have a pilot shortage right now. We desperately need more pilots. So many people I think have the impression that aviation is somehow intrinsically
unsafe or dangerous.” said Andrew Post a flight instructor at Lake Superior Helicopters.

Post moved to Duluth from California and hopes the Discovery Flights can inspire more of the youth to think about an aviation career like him.

“I looked into different schools and then I went to one and took a Discovery Flight there. I was absolutely hooked. I said ‘This is for me, this is what I want
to do’.” said Post. “I never would’ve known that had I not gotten a chance to actually be in one.”

Aviators had the choice of flying in either the Cirrus SR-22 airplane or the Robinson R-44 Raven 1 helicopter.

“We take students who have never obviously touched a helicopter (or plane) before and we train them all the way up through their flight certificate so they
can become instructors and start building hours to start an aviation career.”

Before each flight, a quick debrief is important for everyone especially those new to it.

“We would sit down and talk about a few things on the ground first. Basic aerodynamics, safety tips, the basic controls of the helicopter, and then we’d get
in and go fly.”

For Post, it’s important to give back to the aviation community that got him started.

“Knowing that I was once in their shoes. That I was the person getting the discovery flight and deciding that I wanted to do this.”

“Getting to take people up inside a helicopter and just seeing the look of joy on their faces as they discover what flight is really like is probably the most
rewarding thing about my job,” said Post.

Saturday’s event on the Range was a one-day opportunity but both organizations operate out of Duluth and booking a Discovery Flight can be done
online.

For more information on Discovery Flights click here.

Click here to download the Northern News Now app or our Northern News Now First Alert weather app.

Copyright 2024 Northern News Now. All rights reserved.

Online Shopping Tools | Sponsored

Coupon Code Finder | Sponsored

Amazon's Worst Nightmare: Thousands Canceling Prime for This Clever Hack (It's Unbelievable)

Citi | Sponsored

The Citi Rewards+® Card
Enjoy a low intro APR on balance transfers & purchases for 15 months.

Learn more

Amazon's Worst Nightmare: Thousands Canceling Prime for This Clever Hack

Penny Pincher | Sponsored

Minnesota: Big Changes Near Duluth Leaves Drivers Fuming
Read More

News Livestream Weather Politics Northern Life 

https://ad.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuHC5ixL_1TgYd_gHZDJn4ieAHPaE_o5wGDLsACDPdNkaKrBR6broEaf1WWNvuWgkXHXVF91Ptkd1SzLiGCW2zBBNZVGHssoOv3z_ieRRBTWXf0c1QTsNWQ8GdyiVjb8HPN1U_JjbqV8z2WSVNypGPxthgWdWI_PcABV-q9-c51CLqUKOINLhGUyv0e2xxrQ-hDa2NF3fE4X9I_fWT5TKRfyww&sai=AMfl-YRjIq3iIBnmniufzcLah9tmOnFevV1qyGGKmm89z4WZzQmvjf0zWh5ojb_QldfBvBPDBZWbwFB1XF9wpqJuA4tnqZramjxnKC4HuA&sig=Cg0ArKJSzLmP2wd-hk5l&cry=1&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&crd=aHR0cHM6Ly93YWxtYXJ0LmNvbQ&urlfix=1&adurl=https://azinsight.adsrvr.org/track/clk%3Fimp%3D44a335c5-eded-445d-aa6d-218ca2d70a3f%26ag%3Dlxs4khw%26sfe%3D18f45359%26sig%3DXvLKt1IG6_1WHNf2kRpd_K4Kt0z_RRnnRY-ZU0aOtkk.%26crid%3Dqasvxoul%26cf%3D7115870%26fq%3D0%26t%3D2%26td_s%3Dwww.northernnewsnow.com%26rcats%3D7sp%26mste%3D%26mfld%3D4%26mssi%3D%26mfsi%3D%26sv%3Dpubmatic%26uhow%3D82%26agsa%3D%26wp%3D1.684193%26rgz%3D55811%26dt%3DPC%26osf%3DWindows%26os%3DWindows10%26br%3DChrome%26svpid%3D161733%26rlangs%3Den%26mlang%3D%26did%3D%26rcxt%3DOther%26tmpc%3D19.689999999999998%26vrtd%3D%26osi%3D%26osv%3D%26daid%3D%26dnr%3D0%26vpb%3D%26c%3D1~KLUv_SNa1XJF6yUEABNGFv7ntUjRVd9vXdJqro_oqm-mbdYlV-sjFPw97N9xhdjowioPMiQdweOwIABK8Y8p130s2F5ZDq-R5hDLMFYPi-3Ea52I5_qtsynbhj064Jg-eNgqtCr2G9LHDfwdeYw6sEA7gCnQUhvgpaSEhtSWGeeHTAd5gjheKs3LJ1ohg0uyAg..%26dur%3D1~KLUv_WMFoCgk_QAtBADjBRQqTKX0WV5fu45CursNcY8U6p0p3DFrm7lmySVV4LDJpBpKHnkI6HKBRd4TLgnKAo0BEmiC6SQkDfWaqIjgYA833sYtqQKHrZMbibumMu0AARH8xEODFbvKNlLYJSEiry5MHPsSamTVvsqEdp2kX-piaKFmlIhEfkSVD6O2bX98mpQe%26durs%3DUnAPgZ%26crrelr%3D%26npt%3D%26bdc%3D22%26idl%3DXY3007zDw-mL6OBziWjvT1EXJ6Z3dX8HM6K3aDUXmsqB92bWE%26testid%3D%257Cfcaw%257Ciavc1%2520%26adpt%3Dpubo%26fpa%3D341%26pcm%3D3%26ict%3DUnknown%26said%3DB833873D-3B1A-4CD7-9DB6-9BA6FD4AEA32B%26auct%3D1%26tail%3D1%26r%3Dhttps://www.walmart.com/browse/hostess-core/0/0/%253F_refineresult%253Dtrue%2526_be_shelf_id%253D5944913%2526search_sort%253D100%2526facet%253Dshelf_id:5944913
https://ad.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuHC5ixL_1TgYd_gHZDJn4ieAHPaE_o5wGDLsACDPdNkaKrBR6broEaf1WWNvuWgkXHXVF91Ptkd1SzLiGCW2zBBNZVGHssoOv3z_ieRRBTWXf0c1QTsNWQ8GdyiVjb8HPN1U_JjbqV8z2WSVNypGPxthgWdWI_PcABV-q9-c51CLqUKOINLhGUyv0e2xxrQ-hDa2NF3fE4X9I_fWT5TKRfyww&sai=AMfl-YRjIq3iIBnmniufzcLah9tmOnFevV1qyGGKmm89z4WZzQmvjf0zWh5ojb_QldfBvBPDBZWbwFB1XF9wpqJuA4tnqZramjxnKC4HuA&sig=Cg0ArKJSzLmP2wd-hk5l&cry=1&fbs_aeid=%5Bgw_fbsaeid%5D&crd=aHR0cHM6Ly93YWxtYXJ0LmNvbQ&urlfix=1&adurl=https://azinsight.adsrvr.org/track/clk%3Fimp%3D44a335c5-eded-445d-aa6d-218ca2d70a3f%26ag%3Dlxs4khw%26sfe%3D18f45359%26sig%3DXvLKt1IG6_1WHNf2kRpd_K4Kt0z_RRnnRY-ZU0aOtkk.%26crid%3Dqasvxoul%26cf%3D7115870%26fq%3D0%26t%3D2%26td_s%3Dwww.northernnewsnow.com%26rcats%3D7sp%26mste%3D%26mfld%3D4%26mssi%3D%26mfsi%3D%26sv%3Dpubmatic%26uhow%3D82%26agsa%3D%26wp%3D1.684193%26rgz%3D55811%26dt%3DPC%26osf%3DWindows%26os%3DWindows10%26br%3DChrome%26svpid%3D161733%26rlangs%3Den%26mlang%3D%26did%3D%26rcxt%3DOther%26tmpc%3D19.689999999999998%26vrtd%3D%26osi%3D%26osv%3D%26daid%3D%26dnr%3D0%26vpb%3D%26c%3D1~KLUv_SNa1XJF6yUEABNGFv7ntUjRVd9vXdJqro_oqm-mbdYlV-sjFPw97N9xhdjowioPMiQdweOwIABK8Y8p130s2F5ZDq-R5hDLMFYPi-3Ea52I5_qtsynbhj064Jg-eNgqtCr2G9LHDfwdeYw6sEA7gCnQUhvgpaSEhtSWGeeHTAd5gjheKs3LJ1ohg0uyAg..%26dur%3D1~KLUv_WMFoCgk_QAtBADjBRQqTKX0WV5fu45CursNcY8U6p0p3DFrm7lmySVV4LDJpBpKHnkI6HKBRd4TLgnKAo0BEmiC6SQkDfWaqIjgYA833sYtqQKHrZMbibumMu0AARH8xEODFbvKNlLYJSEiry5MHPsSamTVvsqEdp2kX-piaKFmlIhEfkSVD6O2bX98mpQe%26durs%3DUnAPgZ%26crrelr%3D%26npt%3D%26bdc%3D22%26idl%3DXY3007zDw-mL6OBziWjvT1EXJ6Z3dX8HM6K3aDUXmsqB92bWE%26testid%3D%257Cfcaw%257Ciavc1%2520%26adpt%3Dpubo%26fpa%3D341%26pcm%3D3%26ict%3DUnknown%26said%3DB833873D-3B1A-4CD7-9DB6-9BA6FD4AEA32B%26auct%3D1%26tail%3D1%26r%3Dhttps://www.walmart.com/browse/hostess-core/0/0/%253F_refineresult%253Dtrue%2526_be_shelf_id%253D5944913%2526search_sort%253D100%2526facet%253Dshelf_id:5944913
https://www.lakesuperiorhelicopters.com/helicopter-flight-trainingminnesota/first-helicopter-flight-training-lesson
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/page/how-to-stream-northern-news-now-for-free/
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12457?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ&campaign=37664992&creative=3970266811&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySD-_lMo8ffg9dyyi8R5MLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/dbm/clk?sa=L&ai=CN62HUNK8ZvSuMviImtUPqMHhoAWT5My8eYaC4vSHEqzh8s6mKBABIKHHp0lgyYaAgJSklBWgAcnag50DyAEGqAMBqgSyAk_QtwnrmxDgk9v_vSbkbVXjUL6EC3N2-hBMakdPlAbtjqtqXXf2V_sRpLoGCCZZ1h8U718zQDDNKohDoZhfehLIBaoXPDI76PBoL8Fb7dYlnvwiG1yLEPmCt0wx8WhRChxgLFJXShYVHSOUsFpJy8ngyIwUAXvuinV4gwIK_Q_W8z1FHDYDe8ezdvjRo-AjvgdTJ4VXu8QRF-OuaJsvTtc6vy9GiKzZrxiyrOopCPVG_eLnLNMpE1h85VVHH1JD7AFtirTizMB7GC1aUy0Y9DUD3unniJKe9w15K4LPZ8sQEiSmQ2KVFC0Al7tz4h_hp_ylp4viLADjXUzvTpiPtzZXLh3MEzHAUpMjNXeoxZ3KpXTZZMbBwRuOmi9ySDHGxpUP3N7aoICEiSytXOumNYmoqcAE6cLH5bwD4AQDiAXkk6GJLpAGAaAGN4AHn6X8YqgH2baxAqgH1ckbqAemvhuoB47OG6gHk9gbqAfulrECqAf-nrECqAevvrECqAeVxbECqAfz0RuoB5bYG6gHqpuxAqgHg62xAqgH4L2xAqgH_56xAqgH35-xAqgH-MKxAqgH-8KxAtgHAdIIJAiAYRABGF0yAooCOgmAQIDAgICAoChIvf3BOli596aB6_SHA_IIEGJpZGRlci00NTU1OTg2NDOxCRnJ8-sYE-RZgAoEmAsByAsBqg0CVVOwE_GQ7BjQEwDYEwOIFALYFAHQFQGYFgH4FgGAFwGyFwIYArIYCRICwlwYNyIBAA&num=1&cid=CAQSKQDpaXnfSoo0kuWXef1iFLgbHEtZprUXCfYe-IZ4je59IFcFkZv5UMiSGAE&sig=AOD64_1_4dkEp2q8AGcDqxiyqG2Ck88zDQ&client=ca-pub-7398773146227056&dbm_c=AKAmf-B1llgZ0tGk8Ca1bjpS9Bqm2wmXUv2EHLGGzoNC9SSCdaR00YzX_qTeUbzEaignI7nxPCHtRllAhH0i88cK25QcqGARhA&dbm_d=AKAmf-DTlg7mjmWT0jM2uRoPle6O_JompVtGWCi36StyHxeVfV7iPv6OSC314vqVQEHd13kn9cGAHmzCQ4bkrIyjQt3B4id1Fsmp-jmy4HMi9gaD-nYZq4D20uC_yu4PmKKcM6LXGhZwdRmP8uZ2rQksJ6IhsKZ-Cru8q2k5SUg81uG-LDLlJTAknvO9FsEUGFMLHbtTeAb9Kq3amUiVMw0PnUtrPttzeGViiMsBk7mxH2cx1TMKlMJc6f14lGw06-PBzKUlowwo4AklyWJckenaxGH_XeXIN2WHGnvtyMYZfmjbmrgvfYKY9wsDRgb2mIeXRDuOEjwGlvEloqfoiIkSCZQF1VRx7seWLZlzaZqbtYwTIfNcOkDywO6Fj7Pq3q9U-MEv5UUVlHhs28h1MLiJtCVeM7AMshaW8ItEh-qCOeEy172zcOg&dc_exteid=31795742245488184209828414302419177&dc_pubid=4&adurl=https://www.citi.com/usc/LPACA/Citi/Rewards/RewardsPlus/display/index.html?cmp=bac_acquire_2204_CARDS_PF_REW_DV360_PRO_NAT&utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySDgo00o8fWD9MXCsss-MLuuWQ
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://cos-rd.com/18/12909?postback=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk&campaign=37886992&creative=3936191301&publisher=graytv-kbjr6&source=northernnewsnow.com&popup=1&uxid=tb&ec=0&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCW1mIozK_03rbvwJy0ATC7rlk
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%202:
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://trk.pennypincher.com/ac2b1cf6-ee4d-4e7a-b3ae-e15226b6f584?ad_site_name=graytv-kbjr6&ad_site_id=1464123&title=Minnesota%3A+Big+Changes+Near+Duluth+Leaves+Drivers+Fuming&platform=Desktop&cid=41664601&aid=3977925642&thumbnail=http%3A%2F%2Fcdn.taboola.com%2Flibtrc%2Fstatic%2Fthumbnails%2Fbab460b23fcc3a74b5832d88d57b3a15.jpg&ad_click_id=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ&tblci=GiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ#tblciGiAn3u3LdV4ojKqKwTwoqzOPMM73EmKh0l4cu8bJXizNySCy_E8ostzOhp3x8u9NMLuuWQ
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=graytv-kbjr6&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbs-feed-01-b:Below%20Article%20Thumbnails%20New%20|%20Card%204:
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/news
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/livestream
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/weather
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/politics
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/community/northern-life
https://www.northernnewsnow.com/


Resolution to Approve the Updated 2024 Rates and Charges Schedule for 
DLH 

Executive Summary 

Terms:  
• Calendar year of 2024, effective August 20th, 2024.

Overview: 
• At least annually DAA staff reviews the referenced Rates and Charges Schedule to

recommend rate adjustments where necessary and additional rates to be added.

• The rates and charges needed to be updated to better reflect updates made in the re-
stated FBO agreement.

• 2025 rates and charges will come in front of the board in draft form in October and for
approval in November.

Summary of Changes: 
• Added disclaimer next to the transient landing fee to change the category title and rate

effective January 1, 2025.

• Added aircraft definitions to align with FBO contract.

VII. New Business



Passenger Terminal Fees Airline Leased Premises $25.67
(Per Square Foot) $43.58

Aircraft Landing Fee $2.31
(Per 1,000 lbs MGLW) $2.89

$1.07

Terminal Per Use Fee $707.81

Aircraft Definitions

$75.00

$175.00

$275.00

US Customs Facility (GAF) $0.00

Per Night 

Category by MGLW (lbs.) (24 hour period) Per Month (Calendar)

12,499 & Under $17.00 $138.00

12,500 - 49,999 $72.00 $580.00

50,000 - 99,999 $144.00 $1,150.00

100,000 & Over $295.00 $2,355.00

Fuel Flowage Fee FBO Charged In-to Plane Fee $0.045

(Fee Per Gallon) FBO Charged Aviation, Heating & Auto Fuel Fee $0.09

Fee Per Gallon - Other Airport Operator Set by Operator Agreement

Per Month (Calendar)

Per calendar month preferential use cargo ramp fee $1,695.00 

Passenger Facility Charge (PFC)

Hangar Type Per Month (Calendar)

West T-Hangars* $215.00

East T-Hangars* $215.00

East Ranch Hangars* $275.00

4825 Airport Rd. Ranch Hangars (12ft high door)* $675.00

4825 Airport Rd. Ranch Hangars (14ft high door)* $700.00

Other Set by Lease Agreement

Rental Car Ready Return & 

Overflow Fees (Per Each Space)

Surface Ramp

(Tax Not Included) Per Month, Per Space Fee 18.63 18.63

Parking Lot Fees Surface Ramp

(Includes Tax) 0-1 Hour $3.00 $5.00

1-2 Hours $5.00 $7.00

2-6 Hours $9.00 $10.00

6-24 Hours (Daily) $13.00 $15.00

Weekly $78.00 $90.00

Additional Drive-off Fee $125.00 $125.00

Parking Permits Monthly Annual

(Includes Tax) Corporate Surface Permit (Annual) $1,378.00

Corporate Garage Permit (Annual) $2,279.00

Airport Employee Tenant Permit (Annual)* $96.00

Airline Crew Overnight Permit (Monthly or Annual) $51.00 $612.00

Tenant Commercial Parking Agreement (Monthly or Annual) $250.00 $3,000.00

Commercial Vehicle Taxi/Limo/Hotel Shuttle Permit (Annual) $200.00 Per Each Vehicle

Fees & Permits Passenger Shuttle Service Permit - Reqs. Operator Agreement (Annual) $500.00 Per Each Vehicle

(Includes Tax) Transportation Network Company Permit (Annual) $1,500.00 Per Company

Transportation Network Company Per Trip Fee $1.50 Per Pick- Up & Drop Off

Airport Employee Parking Violation TBD

Commercial Vehicle Violation $100.00

Signatory: Aircraft covered by an Airline Use and Lease Agreement with the DAA or by an agreement with the DAA containing terms and conditions similar 

with those contained in such an agreement. 

Non-Signatory: Aircraft using the Airport facilities that are not covered by an Airline Use and Lease Agreement with the DAA and not covered by an agreement 

with the DAA containing terms and conditions similar with those contained in such an agreement; diverted Airline aircraft not using the Airport Terminal; and 

commercial air carrier aircraft making regularly scheduled flights to the Airport. Any Non-Signatory aircraft utilizing the terminal must be reported by the 

ground handler.

Ground & Commercial Vehicle 

Violations

Preferential Use Cargo Ramp Fee 

Per Aircraft

$4.50 Per enplaned commercial passenger, Per FAA Approved PFC Application

DAA Owned Hangar Rental Rates 

(Per Each)
*$50 Discount if paid in full by January 

31 of lease year.

Non-Terminal (FBO) 

International Arrivals Facility Fee

*DAA Employees and DAA Directors are 

exempt for airport business

Non-Terminal FBO & DAA Ad 

Hoc Charged Aircraft Parking 
(Per 1,000 lbs MGLW) 

Non-Signatory Carriers (125% more)

Non-Signatory Carriers & Charters

Terminal International Arrivals 

Facility Per Use Fee 

Less than 50,000 lbs. MGLW

50,001-175,000 lbs. MGLW

175,001 lbs. MGLW and above

Exemptions: Aircraft operated or chartered by the United States Federal Government or State of Minnesota and non-revenue generating aircraft under 12,500 

lbs MGLW are exempt

Transient (Will be adjusted to "All Other Aircraft" at the non-sig rate as of 01/01/2025)

Signatory Carrier

2024 Rates and Charges Schedule

Effective January 1, 2024 - Adopted November 21st, 2023, Updated January 16, 2024 & August 20, 2024

Non-Airline Terminal Tenant Rate

1 8/13/2024, 12:45 PM



2024 Rates and Charges Schedule

Effective January 1, 2024 - Adopted November 21st, 2023, Updated January 16, 2024 & August 20, 2024
Business Services Club Pass
(Sponsorship Agreement Passes will not 

be charged) Per Pass Fee to Access Business Services Club Room $150 per pass

Room/Space 0-4 Hours 4-8 Hours

1st Floor Baggage Claim - Wall Up $300.00 Per Agreement

2nd Floor Secure Business Club Conference Room $40.00 $80.00

2nd Floor Mezzanine $250.00 $350.00

2nd Floor Conference Room - Room 250 $100.00 $150.00

3rd Floor Conference Room - Amatuzio A $150.00 $200.00

3rd Floor Conference Room - Amatuzio B or C $100.00 $200.00

3rd Floor Conference Room - Amatuzio A+B $175.00 $250.00

3rd Floor Conference Room - Amatuzio B+C $175.00 $250.00

3rd Floor Conference Room - Amatuzio A+B+C $200.00 $300.00

Fiber Internet Internet Speed Per Month (Calendar)

100 MB Fiber Internet with 1 static IP address $120.00

200 MB Fiber Internet with 1 static IP address $180.00

Each Additional Static IP Address $24.95

Badging Fees SIDA & Sterile Badge $200.00

AOA Badge $125.00

Landside Badge $65.00

Incomplete $100.00

SIDA & Sterile Renewal $115.00

AOA Renewal $65.00

Renewal > 30 Days Past Expiration (SIDA, AOA, Sterile) $125.00

Lost or Non-Returned Badge $125.00

Badge Handling Fee (ex: company change, access change, etc.) $65.00

Construction Badge Handling Fee $50.00

Airport Car Rental Customer 

Facility Charge (CFC)

$4.00Rental Car Transaction Per Day Charge

(Contract required. Higher speeds 

available upon request with pricing 

established per contract)

Conference Room/Space Rates & 

Fees

(DAA Employees, ARFF, CBP, Duluth PD 

and Fire & 148th Badges are exempt)

(All fees to be paid regardless of 

whether badge is issued)

(20% Discount for Airport Terminal 

Tenants)

2 8/13/2024, 12:45 PM



Resolution to Approve the Updated 2024 Rates and Charges Schedule for 
DYT 

Executive Summary 

Terms:  
• Calendar year of 2024

Overview: 
• At least annually DAA staff reviews the referenced Rates and Charges Addendum to

recommend rate adjustments where necessary and additional rates to be added.

• The maintenance operator at DYT will no longer be leasing property for float storage
therefore the DAA will be charging people for this space.

Summary of Changes: 

• Fees for float storage were established and added to the rates and charges schedule for
your approval.

IV. - B.



Fuel Price

Fuel Discounts Sky Harbor Tenant with lease agreement or Commercial Operator Agreement $0.25 Per Gallon
Discounts may not be stacked

Tenant Discount requires fuel card

Tie-down Per Night (1-6 nights) $10.00 Per Night

Per Week (1-3 weeks) $30.00 Per Week

Per Month $90.00 Per Month

Six Month Season (Must be paid in advance) $450.00 Per Six Month Season

Aircraft Parking Rules Aircraft parking spaces are non-reservable and shall be occupied on a first come, first served basis.

Hangar 1 Aircraft Storage Fee Per hangar space $275.00 Per Month

Utility surcharge will be charged during winter months.

Float Storage Monthly Float Storage $20 Per Month

Seasonal / Winter Only $100 Per Winter Season

Annual / 12-Month $180 Per 12-Months

Contact the Sky Harbor Airport manager for details. Float storage location determine by airport manager.

Overnight Vehicle Parking Per Vehicle $5 Per Night

Spaces are limited. Parking space to be determined by the manager and must be for aviation related purposes.

Land Lease Price per agreement with Duluth Airport Authority

Operator Agreements

Payment Options & Instructions

https://skyharbor.duluthairport.com/plan-your-stay/tie-down-payment/

3. Monthly invoicing from the Duluth Airport Authority (weekly, monthly and seasonal parking)

*All invoiced aircraft parking fees shall be paid within thirty (30) days of invoice date

Contacts for Questions Airport Manager - Tristan Durfee 218-733-0078 tdurfee@duluthairport.com

Additional Information
1. Scanning the QR code available on this document or in the airport terminal building – Direct payment

2.On the Duluth Airport Authority website Sky Harbor page – Direct payment

Make checks payable to Duluth Airport Authority, 4701 Grinden Drive, Duluth, MN 55811

2024 Rates & Charges

Effective January 1st, 2024 -  Adopted November 21, 2023 & Updated August 20, 2024

To be determined by airport manager and published on the Duluth Sky Harbor website, ForeFlight, SkyVector, AirNav, GlobalAir and 100LL.com.

All individuals or businesses providing sales, service or commercial operations out of Sky Harbor must have an agreement with the Duluth Airport 

Authority.

A. No person shall park, store, tie down or leave an aircraft on any area of the airport other than designated parking spaces or those designated by 
the Airport Manager.

B. The pilot and owner of an aircraft are solely responsible for parking and tying down their aircraft and shall properly sec ure their aircraft while it is 
parked or stored on the airport.  Pilots and owners of aircraft are solely responsible for securing aircraft in a manner necessary to avoid damage to 
other aircraft or buildings on the airport in the event of wind or other severe weather conditions. The pilot and owner of an aircraft shall be held
responsible and liable for any damage or loss whatsoever resulting from failure to comply with this rule.

C. With respect to aircraft parking, tie-down and storage, the Airport Manager is authorized to control and direct activities that the Airport Manager 
determines concern the health, welfare and safety of Sky Harbor, its tenants, and users.

All invoiced aircraft parking fees shall be paid within thirty (30) days of invoice date.
In the event that aircraft parking fees are not paid within thirty (30) days of invoice date and such failure to pay continue s for a period exceeding 
ninety (90) days after invoice date, the aircraft owner shall be in default.  Upon default, the Duluth Airport Authority may exercise any one or more 
of the following remedies (in its sole discretion): (i) utilize a collections agency and/or an attorney to recover said amoun t, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, court costs, and collection costs, (ii) enter the premises where the aircraft is located and take immediate possession of and remove 
(or disable in place) the aircraft by self-help, summary proceedings or otherwise without liability; and (iii) eject and trespass the aircraft pilot and 
owner from Sky Harbor.

1 8/13/2024, 1:38 PM

mailto:tdurfee@duluthairport.com


Duluth Airport Authority 
Monaco Air Duluth, LLC 

Operator Agreement 
Amended and Restated 

Term: 

• Remains unchanged

Agreement Overview: 

• Agreement was restated to incorporate 14 amendments.

• Outdated language that was no longer relevant was removed.

• A lease boundary survey was completed to update the leased premises exhibit
and to establish proper square footage rent amounts.

• Market Rent Study language was added to start in 2027 to establish land lease
rates.

• Hangar 106 was removed from the leased premises and is included in another
space lease agreement.

• A Non-Exclusive Ground Service Equipment Parking Area was created.

• Language was revised to clear up confusion from previous agreement.

• Overnight aircraft parking/tiedown fees concession amount was increased to
75%.

• FAA Mandatory contract provisions were added as Exhibit A.

Why were the changes in key terms needed/wanted? 

• Monaco Air Duluth, LLC is going to be sold and DAA requested to incorporate
the 14 amendments to make it an easier to read and interpret contract.

• There were outdated terms that needed to be removed that would not apply to
new owner of FBO.

• Lease boundaries were not clear and needed to be updated to reflect actual
square footage leased.

VII. - C.



Page 1 of 23 

MONACO AIR DULUTH, LLC 
Operator Agreement 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

THIS AGREEMENT, made in the City of Duluth, State of Minnesota, this 1st day of 
November 2005, between the following parties:  DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY, 
operating under Minnesota Laws 1969, Chapter 577, hereinafter called “Authority”, and 
MONACO AIR DULUTH, LLC (a Delaware Limited Liability Corporation), hereinafter 
referred to as “Operator” in response to the following:  

I. The Authority is the operator of the Duluth International Airport, located in the City
of Duluth, State of Minnesota.

II. Operator desires to operate as a Full-Service Fixed Base Operator on said Airport.

III. Authority and Operator previously entered into that certain Operator Agreement
dated November 1, 2005 (“Original Agreement”) and as amended by the following
(a) Amendment #1 dated July 24, 2006; (b) Amendment #2 dated May 1, 2007; (c)
Amendment #3 dated December 16, 2008; (d) Amendment #4 dated September
10, 2010; (e) Amendment #5 dated March 26, 2012; (f) Amendment #6 dated May
15, 2012; (g) Amendment #7 dated February 19, 2013; (h) Amendment #8 dated
February 21, 2013; (i) Amendment #9 dated June 7, 2013; (j) Amendment #10
dated October 21, 2014; (k) Amendment #11 dated June 23, 2015; (l) Amendment
#12 dated May 16, 2017; (m) Amendment #13, dated February 16, 2022; and (n)
Amendment #14 dated March 19, 2024 (the Original Agreement and the
Amendments identified in parts (a) through (n) (“Amendments”).

IV. The Original Agreement and Amendments were in effect from the commencement
date of the Term until the September 1, 2024 Effective Date of this Amended and
Restated Operator Agreement.

V. Authority and Operator hereby amend and restate the Original Agreement to read
as set forth in this Amended and Restated Operator Agreement. Any reference to
the Operator Agreement dated November 1, 2005 or any of the Amendments shall
mean this Amended and Restated Operator Agreement.

VI. The terms and provisions of this Amended and Restated Operator Agreement
supersede and replace the terms and provisions of the Original Agreement and all
amendments to the Original Agreement.

The Original Agreement and the amendments thereto are hereby restated and amended 
to read as follows: 

SECTION 1 
DEFINITIONS 

The following terms, as used in this Operator Agreement, shall have the meanings as 
ascribed to them hereunder. 

A. Airport: shall mean the Duluth International Airport located in the City of Duluth, County
of St. Louis, State of Minnesota.



Page 2 of 23 

B. Consent or Approval of Authority and of Executive Director: where this Agreement
calls for the consent or approval if the Authority, the same shall be in the form of a
resolution approved by the Authority as provided by law; where the consent or
approval of the Executive Director is required, the same shall be evidenced by written
document dated and signed by him or by a person designated by him to sign such
document.

C. Facility: Unless as otherwise set forth herein, “facility” shall mean the land and
buildings leased to Operator and any current or future buildings owned by Operator
on leased parcels of land as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto.

SECTION 2 
OPERATIONS AT THE AIRPORT 

Operator may provide or cause to be provided Full Service Fixed Base Operator facilities 
and services at the Airport, including but not limited to: 

A. Operate for the Authority the tie-down facilities on the Airport as hereinafter set
forth.

B. Hangar storage space for aircraft.

C. Maintenance, repair and servicing of aircraft, aircraft engines and parts.

D. Aircraft parking, tie-down services, fuel sales, and customer services shall be
provided by uniformed employees of Operator whose duties will not prevent
them from providing such sales and services on an immediate basis during
those hours necessary to adequately meet public demand for such services.
This service shall be provided a minimum of 16 (sixteen) hours per day, seven
(7) days per week including holidays with a thirty (30) minute response call out
service after normal business hours.

E. Flight instruction.

F. Air taxi service.

G. Aircraft rental.

H. Sale of parts and accessories for use upon aircraft and other aviation-related
sales.

I. Control ground traffic and aircraft parking on Operator’s Leased Premises.

J. Flying for charter or hire.

K. Aircraft and float sales.

L. Catering services.

M. Operate vending machines located at Operator’s facilities.



Page 3 of 23 

N. Oversight activities, including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Be present on the premises of the Airport during hours of operation.

2. Observe the grounds, fixtures, equipment, and buildings of the airport for
any hazards, deterioration, problems, damage, and report same to
Authority staff.

3. Observe people and activities on and around the airport and report to
Authority staff any illegal, suspicious, unsafe, inappropriate, unauthorized,
unwanted people or activities.  Call police or fire department when
necessary.  Document and notify Authority of any problems or
emergencies.

4. Advise airport users of proper procedures and use of premises and
equipment.

5. Facilitate communications between users, the public and Authority.

O. Aircraft Deicing Services.

P. Scheduled Airline Ticketing, Baggage and Ground-handling Services.

Q. Ground-handling Services for all other aircraft to include but not limited to
Charters, Cargo, and General Aviation.

In the event that Operator desires to operate a service not specifically heretofore set forth, 
it shall make timely request of the Executive Director which the Director shall promptly 
consider.  The parties agree to negotiate with respect to such additional activities by 
Operator and the Authority agrees not to unreasonably withhold its permission and 
consent for such additional uses. 

Rules and Standards 
It is acknowledged between the parties that the Authority, in its legislative capacity, has 
promulgated a set of “Rules and Standards” dated June 2014, which constitute minimum 
standards for operators wishing to engage in aeronautical business on the Airport. 
Operator agrees to conduct its aeronautical business at the Airport in conformance with 
the minimum standards set forth and furthermore acknowledges that the Authority may, 
at any time and at its sole discretion, amend, change or modify said “Minimum Standards” 
as existing or as subsequently amended and that such action is within the legislative 
discretion of the Authority.  However, Authority hereby agrees to give ten (10) days notice 
and opportunity to be heard to Operator prior to any amendment to said Rules & 
Standards; and Authority agrees that it will not modify said Rules & Standards in such a 
manner as to cause a substantial deleterious effect on Operator’s business activities at 
the Airport unless such a change is reasonably necessary to serve the needs of the 
Authority, the aeronautical users of the Airport or the general public.  In the event Authority 
approves any said amendment, the parties hereto agree that said amendment shall be 
applicable as a minimum standard to Operator’s operations at the Airport as well as any 
other Operator providing aeronautical services at the Airport. 



Page 4 of 23 

SECTION 3 
USE OF FACILITIES 

Authority does hereby grant to Operator the equal use of all public facilities controlled by 
the Authority at the Airport, including, but not limited to runways, taxiways, ramps, 
navigational aids, International Arrivals Building and roads.   

SECTION 4 
FEES, TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES 

A. Ground & Building Lease:  The Authority does hereby lease to Operator and Operator
does hereby hire and take from Authority those parcels of land and buildings situated
at the Airport as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof.  For the
use of the land and buildings leased to Operator as shown on Exhibit B, Operator
agrees to pay to Authority a monthly base rent of $4,573.06 per month which includes
the Non-Exclusive Ground Service Equipment Parking Area fee of two hundred and
seventy-five dollars ($275.00) per month due on or before the first (1st) day of each
month beginning on the Effective Date.

a. Leased Areas and Annual Rental Rates Per Square Foot
i. Parcel A, 18,979 square feet, $.2588
ii. Parcel B, 115,770 square feet, $.1863
iii. Parcel C, 134,713 square feet, $.1863

1. Alert Hangar 13/14 and 11/12 Leases: Beginning on April 1, 2012, the Authority
does hereby lease to Operator and Operator does hereby take from the Authority
that land situated at the Airport under Alert Hangar 13/14 as shown on Exhibit B
attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Alert Hangar 13/14 Leased
Premises”).  For the use of the Alert Hangar 13/14 Leased Premises, Operator
agrees to pay to Authority a monthly base rent of $150.94, or $.192 per square
foot based on 9,434 square feet (106 feet wide by 89 feet deep), on or before the
1st day of each month beginning April 1, 2012.  The lease rate shall be adjusted as
provided for in Section 4.B of the Agreement beginning on November 1, 2012 and
annually thereafter until June 23, 2015.  Until June 23, 2015, the Operator, upon
documentation of marketing services to attract additional corporate, charter and
military traffic to the Airport, shall receive from Authority an annual credit to be
applied against each October’s lease invoice in the amount of the difference
between the current square footage rate being paid by Operator for properties
shown on Exhibit B and the per square footage rate of the Alert Hangar 13/14
Leased Premises.  The annual credit shall expire on June 22, 2015.  Beginning
June 23, 2015, Operator agrees to pay to Authority a monthly base rent of $157.23,
or $.20 per square foot (rent shall be prorated for the month of June, 2015.).  This
lease rate shall be adjusted as provided for in Section 4.b of the Agreement
beginning on November 1, 2015 and annually thereafter for the term of the
Operator Agreement.

2. Alert Hangar 11/12 Leased Premises. Beginning on June 23, 2015, the Authority
does hereby lease to Operator and Operator does hereby take from the Authority
that land situated at the Airport under Alert Hangar 11/12 as shown on Exhibit B
attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Alert Hangar 11/12 Leased
Premises”).  For the use of the Alert Hangar 11/12 Leased Premises, beginning on



Page 5 of 23 

June 23, 2015, Operator agrees to pay to Authority a monthly base rent of $ 
157.87, or $.20 per square foot based on 9,472 square feet, on or before the 1st 
day of each month (rent shall be prorated for the month of June 2015).  The lease 
rate shall be adjusted as provided for in Section 4.B of the Agreement beginning 
on November 1, 2015, and annually thereafter for the term of the Operator 
Agreement.   

3. Non-Exclusive Ground Service Equipment Parking Fee. Beginning on the Effective
Date, the Authority does hereby allow Operator to park Operator’s ground service
equipment on Airport property as shown on Exhibit B as “Non-Exclusive Ground
Service Equipment Parking Area” for a fee of two hundred and seventy-five dollars
($275.00) per month. The Non-Exclusive Ground Service Equipment Parking area
may be amended from time to time with the approval of the Executive Director.

B. Rent Adjustments:

a. Consumer Price Index (CPI): On November 1, 2006, and annually
thereafter for the term of this Agreement and any extension thereof, the
payments to be made by Operator to Authority as provided for in Section 4
above shall be increased over those of the previous year’s payments
calculated by multiplying the previous year’s payments by the increase in
the Consumer Price Index, U.S. City Average, most recently published by
the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics of the previous year.

b. Market Rent: Annual rental rate shall be increased to market value based
on the findings of a market rent study of Airport property, conducted by the
Authority at Authority’s expense, to be conducted no more frequently than
once every five years commencing no sooner than January 1, 2027.
Adjusted rental rates shall become effective the next calendar month
following Authority notifying Operator in writing of the results of the market
rent study.

C. FBO Airport Service Fees: It is agreed by and between the parties that it is the sole
prerogative of the Authority to set the FBO Airport Service Fees for the use of the
Airport by all, or various, classes of aviation users. Annually the Authority will adopt
and publish FBO Airport Service Fees in a Rates and Charges Schedule after
conferring with Operator.

D. Authority Concession Fees: Operator agrees to collect FBO Airport Service Fees
contained in the Rates and Charges Schedule and remit the appropriate portion
thereof to the Authority.  The Authority Concession Fees are a portion of the sale
collected for each item listed in Section 4.E.

E. FBO Airport Service Fees and Authority Concession Fees Collection:

a. Overnight Aircraft Parking: Authority will charge and collect Overnight
Aircraft Parking Fees for all aircraft parking on the terminal ramp and the
cargo ramp.  Operator will charge and collect Overnight Aircraft parking
fees for all aircraft Operator services on all other ramps on Airport property
unless Authority informs Operator that Authority will be charging and
collecting those fees for specific aircraft parking on one of those ramps.



Page 6 of 23 

b. Landing Fees: Authority will charge and collect Landing Fees for Signatory
and Non-Signatory airlines (defined in the Rates and Charges Schedule)
using the terminal, cargo operators, and other tenants who have an
agreement with the Authority.  Operator will charge and collect landing fees
for all other aircraft.

The following are percentages of Gross Sales which are defined as Authority 
Concession Fees: 

1. Rental/Storage Hangar Fees 2.5% 

2. Equipment Rental & Catering  (not to include catering by the food/beverage
Concessionaire located in the Terminal) 2.5% 

3. Overnight Aircraft Tie Down/Parking Fees 75% 

4. Aircraft Maintenance, Oil, Liquids
(not to include deicing or deicing fluid) 2.5% 

5. Aircraft Parts 1% 

6. Flight Training 2.5% 

7. FBO Charter Service & Aircraft Rental 1% 

8. Aircraft Deicing Services 1% 

9. Aircraft Deicing Liquid 1% 

10. Landing Fees 80% 

F. Gross Sales Defined: The term “Gross Sales”, for the purposes of this Agreement,
shall include all monies paid or payable to the Operator for sales made and for services
rendered at the Airport pursuant to this Agreement except from the sale of aviation,
heating, and vehicle fuel; provided, however, that any sales taxes or similar taxes
imposed by law which are separately stated and paid by the consumer or customer
and which are directly payable to the Taxing Authority by Operator shall be excluded
therefrom.

G. Parking and Tie-Down Facilities: Operator shall operate parking and tie down facilities
which are owned by Authority. 

H. Payment Dates: All payments of the monthly consideration referred to in Section 4
shall be due and payable on the first (1st) day and deemed late on the fifth (5th) day of
each month of this Agreement.  The preceding month’s Authority Concession fees
referred to in Section 4, C and D that Operator collects shall be due and payable to
Authority by the twentieth (20th) day of the month.  All other payments required by this
Agreement shall be due and payable immediately upon being billed to Operator by
Authority.



Page 7 of 23 

I. Books and Records: Operator agrees to keep and maintain a complete set of financial
books and records, kept according to accepted accounting practices, at a location
which he shall designate within the City of Duluth.  Operator agrees to keep said books
and records available to the Authority and its representatives for inspection and review
during normal business hours and to give the Authority written notice of the location of
said books and records as provided for in Section 23 of this Agreement.

J. Monthly Statements: Operator agrees to furnish to Authority a monthly statement in a
form acceptable to Authority setting forth a summary of Operator’s transactions
covered by this Agreement, which statement shall be delivered to Authority no later
than the twentieth (20th) day of the month following the month in which the gross sales,
as defined in Section 4.F, arose.  The statement shall include records of total fuel
gallons pumped for all Operator fuel flowage and categorize the total revenue for all
business activities performed by Operator.

SECTION 5 
TERM 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on November 1, 2005, and terminate on 
October 31, 2075, unless sooner or later terminated as herein provided.   

On and after the expiration of the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, it shall 
be continued on a month-to-month basis until a new Agreement is reached, subject to the 
right of either party to terminate it without cause upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the 
other party.   

SECTION 6 
OPERATOR’S OBLIGATIONS 

A. Diligent Operation:  Operator covenants and agrees that it shall be diligent in the
prosecution of its business, including the activities listed in Section 2 on the Airport
and do all things reasonably and necessary and advisable to serve the public
adequately and fairly in all fields of aviation activities engaged in by the Operator, and
to conduct its business in such a manner as will not reflect discredit upon the Authority
or cause Authority loss or damages and will furnish prompt and efficient service as
shall be adequate to meet the demands for aviation activities at the Airport.  Operator
further agrees to use its best efforts to maintain an adequate supply of parts, aviation
fuel and any other product which they customarily sell to the public present at all times
at the Airport.

B. Airfield Operation Service:  Operator shall provide all labor and parts, except as set
forth below, for operational services to its facilities, including, but not limited to the
following: all maintenance on its facilities; facility light bulb replacement; facility snow
removal, including fuel farm, facility ramps ten feet out from buildings, facility parking
areas, facility t-hangar taxi-lane, and facility walkways; trash and debris collection and
removal; grass mowing; maintenance, and overall facility supervision.

C. Maintenance of Structures and Facilities: Operator agrees to keep the Leased
Premises and any Authority premises operated by Operator in a clean, neat and
orderly condition, in compliance with all laws and codes applicable to such premise,
and to provide at its cost all heat and utilities necessary for the operation of the leased



Page 8 of 23 

premises except for the main terminal charter office. Operator agrees to perform all 
janitorial services and all maintenance of any kind, including structural maintenance, 
on any structure or portion thereof owned by it.  Operator further agrees to perform all 
janitorial services and maintenance on any structure or portion thereof leased from or 
operated for Authority, but shall not be responsible for major or structural maintenance 
over $1,000 on any such structure or portion thereof unless the need for the same 
shall have been caused negligently or intentionally by Operator, its employees or sub-
lessees, in which event Operator shall be responsible for all major or structural 
maintenance necessitated thereby.  Operator further agrees to make no attachment 
to, change of, or redecoration or modification of the said premises without the prior 
written consent of the Authority.  In the event that Operator shall fail to so maintain any 
portion of said premises as stated above, Authority shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to itself perform or have performed said maintenance and to charge 
Operator therefor, which charge Operator shall be obliged to promptly pay. 

D. Fair and Nondiscriminatory Services: Operator, in the conduct of its authorized
aeronautical activities on the Airport, shall furnish good, prompt and efficient service
adequate to meet the demands for its services at the Airport, and shall furnish such
service on a fair, equal and not unjustly discriminatory basis to all users thereof, and
shall charge fair, reasonable, and not unjustly discriminatory prices for each such unit
of sale or service; provided, however, that Operator shall be allowed to make
reasonable and nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates, or similar types or price
reductions to volume purchasers.

E. Operator to Furnish All Services: Operator agrees that it will itself either provide or
furnish all services which this contract gives it the right to provide, or will cause these
services to be furnished by independent contractors.  In the event said services, or
any of them, are supplied by independent contractors, Operator shall not be relieved
of its responsibilities hereunder for the prosecution of its business, the collection of
user fees, as hereinafter provided, in the field or commercial activities, and Operator’s
obligation to prosecute said business and provide said services shall continue for the
term of this Agreement, or any extension hereof, and it shall not be relieved of any
liability thereof because it may provide any of said services through arrangements with
independent contractors.

F. Failure to Provide All Services: In the event Operator fails to provide any of the
services, including collection of user fees, or to otherwise fulfill its obligations pursuant
to this Agreement, Operator shall be obligated to give the Executive Director notice of
said failure within three (3) days thereof.  At any time Authority may give Operator
written notice of demand for performance of any obligation of Operator under this
Agreement not then being fulfilled.  Thereafter, Operator shall have thirty (30) days
within which to arrange for the providing of such services or the performance of said
business activities, and failure of the Operator to cure any of said default in its
performance may be grounds for termination of this Agreement by the Authority;
provided, however, that is within said thirty (30) day period Operator can demonstrate
and establish to the Authority’s satisfaction that said service or business activity does
not have a significant need or that it has become outmoded or cannot be economically
carried on, the parties agree to modify this Agreement by removing the requirement
on Operator’s part to provide such service or to carry on such business activity.  If for
any reason beyond the control of the Operator (including, without in any manner
limiting the generality of the foregoing, war, strikes, riots, civil commotions and the like)



Page 9 of 23 

the Operator shall fail to properly any services, such failure shall not operate as a 
breach of this lease or render the Operator liable in damages. 

G. Authority’s Fire Insurance: Operator covenants that it will not do or permit to be done
any act which: 
1. will invalidate or be in conflict with any fire insurance policies covering the Airport

or any part thereof or upon the contents of any building thereof; or

2. will increase the rate of any fire insurance on the Airport or any part thereof or upon
the contents of any building thereof; or

3. In the opinion of the Authority, will constitute a hazardous condition so as to
increase the risks normally attendant upon the operations contemplated by this
Agreement.

If, by reason of Operator’s failure to comply with the provisions of this section, any fire 
insurance rate on the Airport or any part thereof or upon the contents of any building 
thereof, at any time, be higher than it otherwise would be, then the Operator shall, 
upon demand, reimburse the Authority for that part of all fire insurance premiums paid 
or payable by the Authority which shall have been charged because of such violation 
by the Operator. 

H. Airport Promotion: Operator agrees to use its best efforts to actively promote the
Airport and its utilization by members of the flying public.  Not to limit the generality of
the foregoing, Operator’s promotion may include, but not be limited to, advertising with
aviation trade magazines, newspapers, radio, television, and promotion of seaplane
facilities through pilot and trade organizations.

SECTION 7 
AUTHORITY’S OBLIGATIONS 

The Authority shall properly maintain, operate and manage the Airport at all times in a safe 
manner consistent with the generally accepted good practices in the State of Minnesota 
for airports of similar size and character.  If for any reason beyond the control of the 
Authority (including, without in any manner limiting the generality of the foregoing, war, 
strikes, riots, civil commotions, government actions and the like) the Authority shall fail to 
properly maintain, operate and manage said Airport, such failure shall not operate as a 
breach of this lease or render the Authority liable in damages.    

SECTION 8 
FUTURE CONSTRUCTION 

A. Approval Required: In the event that Operator wishes to make any modifications or
improvements on the Airport, he shall present his request to the Authority in writing
together with design development or construction drawings showing all details of said
improvement.  No improvement shall be made in or on the Airport without the proper
approval of the Authority and then only in conformance with the approved plans and
this Section 8.  No improvement shall qualify for capital investment for the purpose of



Page 10 of 23 

extending this Agreement’s term unless Operator’s request is approved by Executive 
Director. 

B. Construction Standards and Approvals: All work done by Operator, or under his
direction, shall conform to all applicable regulations, building codes and health
standards, as well as the following requirements:
1. All construction shall meet the requirement of Type I (fire-resistant) construction

as set forth in the Minnesota State Building Code (current edition) and the building
standards for the Airport, where relevant.

2. Complete contract drawings and specifications on all work, including alterations,
additions or replacements, must be submitted for and receive approval of the
Authority.

3. All work must be done by competent contractors in the time and manner approved
by the Authority.  Operator shall comply with the indemnity and insurance and bond
requirements of this Agreement.

4. An authorized representative of Operator shall be available at all reasonable times
at the site to coordinate the work of the improvements.

C. Construction Bonds and Insurance

1. Bonds: During the term of this Agreement, when any modifications or
improvements are constructed, installed or renovated, Operator shall procure and
furnish to Authority a contractor’s bond or bonds written by a company or
companies authorized to write such bonds in the State of Minnesota and who are
acceptable to the Authority, in an amount not less than the cost of such
construction, installation or renovation, for the use obligee, Operator and the
Authority and all persons doing work or furnishing skills, tools, machinery,
materials, insurance premiums, equipment or supplies incident to such
construction, installation or renovation, such bond or bonds to be conditioned for
payment of claims as required and in full compliance with Minnesota Statutes
Section 574.26.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, for any construction,
installation or renovation, and before the commencement of work thereon,
Operator shall furnish to Authority performance bonds, written by similarly qualified
companies, covering all work to be performed thereunder guaranteeing the
performance of all such work.

2. Contractor’s Public Liability and Property Insurance: Before commencing any
improvement, work or equipment installation on the Airport, Operator shall require
all contractors and subcontractors to procure and maintain insurance during the
life of such contracts, protecting both the Authority and the Operator as follows:

a. Workers’ Compensation Insurance at the statutory limit.

b. Contractors’ Comprehensive Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance.

c. Contractors’ Automobile Liability and Property Damage Insurance, including
automobile and non-ownership and hired cars.



Page 11 of 23 

d. Owners’ Protective Public Liability and Protective Property Damage Insurance.

e. Builders’ Risk Insurance (fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious
mischief, including sprinkler leakage.)

Amounts shall be not less than One Million Dollars ($1,500,000.00) for injuries, 
including accidental death to any one person, and subject to same limit for each 
person, and in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,500,000.00) on 
account of any one accident, and property damage in an amount not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,500,000.00) for any one incident with a One Million Dollars 
($1,500,000.00) aggregate for the policy.  Insurance, as provided, shall be kept 
intact and in force throughout the term of construction work and equipment 
installation on the lease premises.  Such insurance shall be subject to the approval 
of the Authority and copies furnished to the Authority prior to the commencement 
of construction.  Amounts and coverages may be updated or substitutes approved 
by the City Attorney. 

SECTION 9 
INDEMNITY, INSURANCE AND WAIVER OF CLAIMS 

A. Defense and Indemnity: Operator agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the
Authority, the City of Duluth, and their employees from and against all claims, suits,
liability, judgements, costs, damages and expenses which may accrue against it, be
charged to, or recovered from Authority, the City of Duluth, or their employees by
reason of or on account of any personal injuries or property damage arising from
Operator’s use or occupancy of, or operations at the Airport, and on ten (10) days’
written notice from Authority, the Operator will appear and defend all claims and
lawsuits against the Authority growing out of any such injury or damage.

B. Insurance: Operator shall carry commercial general liability insurance and aircraft
liability insurance on each aircraft owned and/or operated by Operator or any permitted
sub-lessee at the Airport.  The Operator shall carry hangar-keepers liability insurance
on all buildings capable of housing aircraft.  The Operator or any sub-lessee shall carry
workers’ compensation insurance on all of its employees employed on the Leased
Premises as required by law.  Operator may request the Authority to approve
alternative types of insurance providing at least equal protection.  All such insurance
shall be in at least the following amounts and shall be in a form acceptable to the
Authority and shall provide for ten (10) days’ written notice to the City and the Authority
of any cancellation or modification thereof.  The City of Duluth and Authority shall be
made an additional insured on Operator’s CGL liability policy, which must provide
coverage for claims arising out of the Operator’s operation at the Duluth International
Airport.  The 2004 edition of ISO Additional Insured Endorsement CG 20 10 is not
acceptable.  If an ISO endorsement is used, it must be a pre-2004 edition.  The
endorsement should state that the additional insured, City of Duluth and Authority, is
covered for claims arising out of the operation of Operators.  Language that the
additional insured is covered for damages caused in whole or part by Operator is not
acceptable.  Certified copies thereof or appropriate certificates of insurance evidencing
the existence thereof shall be delivered to the Authority.  The Authority reserves the
right and Operator agrees to revisions upward or downward in the minimum insurance
requirements hereinafter set forth, provided, that any such revisions shall be



Page 12 of 23 

reasonable and non-discriminatory as with respect to any other tenants of the 
Authority. 

1. Comprehensive general liability or owners, landlords and tenants bodily injury
and property damage liability insurance, including complete operations and
contractual obligation coverage in the limits of at least two million dollars
($2,000,000).

2. Aircraft bodily injury liability insurance for bodily injury and property damage
liability limit no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).

3. Aircraft passenger liability insurance of limits no less than One Hundred
Thousand dollars ($100,000) for each passenger seat.

4. Hangar-keepers liability insurance in limits of at least One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) provided, however, that Operator agrees that, prior to housing
any airplanes in any hangars covered by this insurance requirement which
individually or in aggregate would exceed the insurance limits hereinbefore set
down, that it will secure insurance coverage in an amount at least adequate to
cover the value of said airplanes, both singly and in aggregate.

5. Products Liability and Completed Operations insurance in the amount of at
least two million dollars ($2,000,000).

6. Standard Minnesota workers’ compensation coverage.

C. Insurance Not Limitation: It is understood that the specified amounts of insurance
stated in this Section shall in no way limit the liability of Operator under this Section.

D. Waiver of Claims: Operator waives all claims or causes of action against the Authority,
its officers, agents or employees for any failure of the Authority to properly maintain,
operate and manage the Airport at all times in a safe manner resulting from any reason
or cause beyond the control of the Authority, including, but without the generality of
the foregoing: war, strikes riots, civil commotion and similar causes.

E. Environmental Testing: At the request and expense of Authority environmental testing
shall be completed to test for the release or threatened release of any petroleum-
based substance or product, or any volatile organic compound, or any substance
classified as a pollutant, contaminant, toxic substance, solid waste or a "hazardous
waste" by either the Environmental Protection Agency of the Government of the United
States or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. The results of any environmental
testing will be provided to the then Operator.

F. Environmental Liability: In addition to the general indemnity stated above, and as part
of it, it is specifically agreed between the parties that Operator shall be responsible in
all respects for Operator's use of or Operator's generation of or release or threatened
release of any petroleum based substance or product, or any volatile organic
compound, or any substance classified as a pollutant, contaminant, toxic substance,
solid waste or a "hazardous waste" by either the Environmental Protection Agency of
the Government of the United States or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.
Operator shall specifically be responsible for the disposition of all such waste or



Page 13 of 23 

substances and for the environmental response activities and response costs, 
monitoring or cleanup of any environmental condition deemed by those agencies or 
either of them to require environmental response, monitoring or cleanup activities of 
any kind which arises out of Operator's use of or Operator's generation of such 
substances in its operations at the Airport, and Operator specifically agrees that the 
obligations of Section 9 above shall apply specifically to any costs or obligations of the 
Authority or City of Duluth arising out of any such disposition or cleanup. 

G. Attorneys’ Fees: In the event Authority shall prevail in any action or suit or proceeding
brought by Authority to collect rents due or to become due hereunder or any portion
thereof or to take possession of the Airport or to enforce compliance with this
Agreement or for the failure to observe any of the covenants of this Agreement,
Operator agrees to pay Authority such sums as the court may adjudge reasonable as
attorneys’ fees and costs to be allowed in such action, suit or proceeding.

H. Alert Hangar Property Insurance:  Operator agrees to insure the Alert Hangar 13/14
and 11/12 structures to the full replacement value thereof against risk of direct physical
loss, except that such insurance may provide for a deductible amount not to exceed
$25,000 per occurrence.  Authority shall be named as an additional insured as its
interest may appear.

I. Alert Hangar Liability:  Each party shall carry commercial general liability insurance
and shall pay the deductible for losses caused by the intentional or negligent acts or
omissions of that party or its agents or employees.

SECTION 10 
LAWS, ORDINANCES, RULES AND NON-DISCRIMINATION 

A. Laws, Ordinances and Rules: The Operator shall comply with all laws of the United
States and the State of Minnesota, the ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of the
United States and the State of Minnesota, or of any agency, department or
governmental subdivision of any of the above, or of the Authority relating to Operator’s
activities at the Airport, including but not related to Operator’s activities at the Airport,
including but not limited to the Airport Security Plan, Airport Certification Manual, and
Airport Emergency Plan on file in the office of the Executive Director of the Duluth
Airport Authority located at Duluth International Airport.

B. Subordination: This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing
or future Agreement between the Authority and the United States of America or the
State of Minnesota relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the
execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the
expenditure of Federal or State funds for the development of the Airport, or to any
security requirements of State or Federal Government, including temporary security
procedures or instructions.

C. Non-discrimination: Operator shall comply with the Mandatory Federal Aviation Civil
Rights Provisions contained in Exhibit A, replacing the following words in the exhibit:

• Contractor” with “Operator”

• “subcontractor” with “contractor”

• “contract” with “agreement”



Page 14 of 23 

• “subcontract” with “contract”

• “Sponsor” with “Authority”

• “solicitation” with “agreement”

SECTION 11 
AUTHORITY’S RIGHTS UPON DEFAULT 

A. Authority’s Rights: If at any time Operator shall be in default, as defined in this Section,
with regard to the requirements of this Agreement, it shall be lawful for the Authority,
and the Authority may at any time thereafter:

1. Immediately, or at any time thereafter without further notice to Operator, to re-enter
into or upon the Airport or any part thereof and take possession of the same fully
and absolutely without such re-entry working a forfeiture of the charges to be paid
and of the covenants, terms and conditions to be performed by Operator for the
full term of this Agreement, and in the event of such re-entry, the Authority may
proceed with the collection of charges to be paid under this Agreement or to
recover properly measured damages; or

2. Authority may at its election terminate this Agreement upon written notice in the
manner hereinafter provided and re-enter upon said premises as of its former
estate therein, and the Operator covenants in case of such termination to
indemnify the Authority against all loss of rents and expense which the Authority
has suffered or paid by reason of such termination, during the residue of the term;
or

3. The Authority shall further have all other rights and remedies including injunctive
relief, ejectment or summary proceedings for unlawful detainer, and any or all legal
remedies, actions and proceeding and all such remedies shall be cumulative.

B. Default Defined: For the purposes of this Section only, ‘default” shall be defined when
any of the following circumstances exist:

1. If the Operator has failed to pay rent, fees, taxes or other charges when due
hereunder and such failure to pay shall continue for ten (10) days after notice in
writing in the manner hereinafter provided for.

2. If the Operator fails in the observance or performance of any of the terms,
covenants and conditions of this Agreement and such failure shall continue for
sixty (60) days, or the Operator shall have failed to commence the rectification of
such failure within sixty (60) days and to diligently prosecute the same where the
same cannot be completed within sixty (60) days, or

3. If a petition to reorganize the Operator or for its arrangement of its unsecured debts
shall be filed, or

4. If the Operator shall be adjudicated bankrupt, or

5. If a receiver or trustee of the Operator’s property shall be appointed by any court,
or

6. If the Operator shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or



Page 15 of 23 

7. If all of the interest of the Operator in its property shall be taken by garnishment,
attachment, execution or other process of law, or

8. If the leased premises shall be deserted or vacated.

C. Automatic Termination: Additionally, should Operator fail to make any payment
required by this Agreement within (60) days of the date upon which it is due, this
Agreement shall automatically terminate and Operator shall immediately cease
operations on the Airport.

SECTION 12 
TERMINATION BY OPERATOR 

A. Termination: Operator may terminate this Agreement prior to the end of its term, or
any extension thereof, for the following reasons:

1. Failure of Authority to substantially perform its obligations hereunder, if such failure
shall continue for sixty days (60) days after Operator has given Authority written
notice or the Authority shall fail to commence the rectification of such failure within
sixty (days) after such notice and to diligently prosecute the same where the same
cannot be completed within sixty (60) days.

2. If the Authority shall commit any act or engage in any activity that prevents the
Operator from conducting its business as provided under the terms of this
Agreement for a period of sixty (60) days without the consent of Operator and after
Operator has given notice to the Authority as provided for herein.

B. This Agreement shall terminate if Authority or City of Duluth ceases Airport operations
at Duluth International airport, or if any act of the government of the United States,
State of Minnesota, or City of Duluth, war, natural disaster, civil unrest, or like cause
of a third party makes continued operations impossible or no longer feasible.

SECTION 13 
WAIVER OF BREACH 

The waiver by the Authority or the Operator of any breach of any term, covenant or 
condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach 
of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. 

SECTION 14 
REAL PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION 

Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Operator's authority to use the 
premises, rights, facilities and equipment herein granted shall cease; and Operator shall, 
upon termination or expiration, promptly and in good condition surrender the same to 
Authority except as set forth below.  In the event that Operator has in any way changed, 
altered or modified the premises demised herein, Operator covenants to return the same 
to the condition they were in at the time of the signing of this Agreement or, in the 
alternative, to pay Authority for the cost of returning them to said condition.  Upon 
termination, any improvements, which have become part of the realty shall become the 
property of the Authority, and the same, together with the premises covered by this 
Agreement, shall be immediately returned to the control of the Authority.  Any 



Page 16 of 23 

improvements not part of the realty shall be removed therefrom within fifteen (15) days 
after the termination of this Agreement or the same shall be deemed to have been 
abandoned to the Authority and the right of Operator to possession thereof shall cease. 

SECTION 15 
ASSIGNMENTS 

The Operator shall not assign or transfer this Agreement, in whole or in part, in any 
manner, nor any interest therein, nor permit the foregoing agreement to become 
transferred by operation of law or otherwise, nor do or suffer any acts to be done whereby 
the same may be or become assigned in whole or in part, unless the written consent of 
Authority shall first be obtained in each and every case of assignment or transfer as shall 
from time to time occur or be desired. The Authority’s approval of such will not be 
unreasonably withheld.  It is expressly agreed by the parties that a change in ownership 
of the controlling share of stock in Operator, if any, shall be deemed to be an assignment 
hereunder.  It is expressly agreed by the Operator that in the event permission be granted 
by the Authority as herein provided, the assignee or transferee shall be required to assume 
and agree to perform the covenants of this Agreement and that notwithstanding any such 
subletting or assignment, the Operator shall be and remain liable for payments of all rents 
and the performance of all covenants and conditions for the full term of this Agreement. 

SECTION 16 
ERECTION OF SIGNS – DECORATIONS 

The Operator shall be allowed to erect suitable advertising signs on the Airport to advertise 
its business, but the form, size and method of installation of any such signs shall be subject 
to the approval of the Executive Director of the Authority.  Decorations, graphics, outdoor 
advertising, paint schemes, promotional structures, must comply with all regulations, be 
safe for aeronautic operations, and be approved in writing by the Executive Director. 

SECTION 17 
NON-EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS 

Operator shall have the right and privileges of engaging in and conducting a full service 
fixed base operation on the premises of the Airport under the terms and conditions as set 
forth herein; provided, however, that this Agreement shall not be construed in any manner 
to grant Operator or those claiming under it the exclusive right to the use of the premises 
and facilities of said Airport other than those premises and facilities of said Airport other 
than those premises leased exclusively to Operator hereunder.  The parties to this 
Agreement do not intend to create any rights in any third party beneficiary. 

SECTION 18 
GOVERNMENTAL COMMITMENTS 

Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the Authority from making such commitments 
as it desires to the Government of the United States or to the State of Minnesota in order 
to qualify for the expenditure of Federal or State funds at the Airport or related in any 
manner to the operation thereof, and this Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions 



Page 17 of 23 

of any existing or future agreement between or of the State of Minnesota relative to the 
operation or maintenance of the Airport. 

SECTION 19 
CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Authority and its agents shall use due care to treat confidentially all matters pertaining 
to Operator's business, except those things which of necessity must become part of the 
public record.  Each party is bound by Minnesota Data Practices Act. 

SECTION 20 
SEVERABILITY 

It is the intent of both parties hereto that the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
severable with respect to the effect of a declaration of invalidity by any court of competent 
jurisdiction of any provision of the Agreement or the application thereof. 

SECTION 21 
SECURITY INTEREST AND BOND 

A. Security Interest: Operator hereby grants to Authority a security interest in all goods,
chattels, fixtures and personal property belonging to Operator, which now are or may
hereafter be placed in the premises, to secure all rents due hereunder. In the event
that there exists any security interest in said property which is paramount and superior
to the security interest herein created, Authority may satisfy said paramount security
interest and all sums paid in satisfying said security interest will be considered
additional sums owed Authority by Operator hereunder.  Operator hereby
acknowledges receipt of a true, full and complete copy of this Agreement.  Authority,
in the event of a default by Operator of any covenant or condition herein contained,
may exercise, in addition to any rights and remedies herein granted, all the rights and
remedies of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code, or any other
applicable law; provided, however, that Authority shall not have the power to seize of
dispose of any of the property covered by the aforesaid security interest without
receiving authorization to do so from a court of appropriate jurisdiction under the laws
of the State of Minnesota.

B. Payment Bonds: To ensure the performance of its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement, Operator hereby agrees to have on file at all times with the Authority a
bond written by a company licensed to do so by the State of Minnesota in a form
approved by the Executive Director in an amount equal to the aggregate of the
guaranteed payments due to Authority from Operator in the then-existing contract year
guaranteeing said obligation.  In the event of the failure of Operator to fulfill any
obligation due to Authority under this Agreement, Authority shall have to right, but not
the obligation, of proceeding against the bond to fulfill such obligation; provided,
however, that nothing herein shall in any way negate or reduce the rights of Authority
under Article 11 of this Agreement.



Page 18 of 23 

SECTION 22 
MODIFICATION OF THE AGREEMENT 

Any terms of this Agreement may be changed upon the mutual consent of the Authority 
and the Operator, but to be valid any such changes must be in writing, dated and duly 
executed by the parties. 

SECTION 23 
NOTICES 

All notices to be given by Operator to the Authority shall be deemed to have been given 
by depositing written notice in the United States Mail addressed to Authority at the Duluth 
International Airport, 4701 Grinden Drive, Duluth, Minnesota, 55811.  All notices to be 
given by Authority to Operator shall be deemed to have been delivered by depositing the 
same in writing in the United State Mail addressed to Monaco Air Duluth, LLC, Attention: 
Donald P. Monaco, 4535 Airport Approach Road, Duluth, Minnesota, 55811. 

SECTION 24 
APPLICABLE LAW 

This Agreement, together with all of its Sections, terms and provisions, is made in the 
State of Minnesota and shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the 
State of Minnesota. 

SECTION 25 
OTHER TERMS 

A. Notwithstanding the requirements under Section 6(D) (Diligent Operation), the
Operator shall be obligated to provide only such services to the extent reasonably
specified by the Authority.  The Authority must provide reasonably specific notice
regarding the particular service required of the Operator pursuant to Section 6(E)
(Operator to Furnish All Services).  Any Airport promotion required under Section 6(H)
(Airport Promotion) shall be at the discretion of the Operator.

B. Notwithstanding Section 9 (Indemnity, Insurance and Waiver of Claims), the Operator
shall not be liable for indemnification to the extent that any damage or loss is directly
caused by the fault of the Airport.

C. Notwithstanding Section 7 (E) (Environmental Liability), the Operator shall not be
obligated to Authority for the cleanup or remediation of conditions on the Leased
Premises which existed prior to November 1, 2005.

SECTION 26 
COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed to be an original as against any Party whose signature appears thereon, but all 
of which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. Signatures to this 
Agreement transmitted by facsimile, by electronic mail in “portable document format” 
(“.pdf”), or by any other electronic means which preserves the original graphic and pictorial 



Page 19 of 23 

appearance of the Agreement, shall have the same effect as physical delivery of the paper 
document bearing the original signature. 

Dated: ________________________ 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY MONACO AIR DULUTH, LLC 

By:  _____________________________  By ___________________________  
 Its President      Donald P. Monaco, Its Owner 

By:  _____________________________  
 Its Secretary 



Page 20 of 23 

EXHIBIT A 

MANDATORY FEDERAL AVIATION 
GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 

In all its activities within the scope of its airport program, the Contractor agrees to comply 
with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders, and such rules as identified in Title VI List of 
Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities to ensure that no person shall, on the 
grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex 
(including sexual orientation and gender identity), age, or disability be excluded from 
participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance. 
This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

Specific Clause that is used for Lease Agreements or Transfer Agreements 
If the Contractor transfers its obligation to another, the transferee is obligated in the same 
manner as the Contractor. 
The above provision obligates the Contractor for the period during which the property is 
owned, used or possessed by the Contractor and the airport remains obligated to the 
Federal Aviation Administration. 

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) agrees to comply with 
the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted programs of the
Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964);

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of
1970, (42 USC § 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose
property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and
projects);

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27
(Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving
Federal Financial Assistance);

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 47123), as amended
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-259) (broadened the scope,
coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by
expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the
programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors,
whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC § 12101, et
seq) (prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public
entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public



Page 21 of 23 

accommodation, and certain testing entities) as implemented by U.S. Department 
of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations (ensures nondiscrimination
against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on
minority and low-income populations);

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited
English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination
includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure
compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP
persons have meaningful access to your programs [70 Fed. Reg. 74087 (2005)];

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you
from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC §
1681, et seq).

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: 
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The Contractor (hereinafter includes
consultants) will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination
Acts and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

2. Nondiscrimination:  The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it
during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national
origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex (including sexual
orientation and gender identity), age, or disability in the selection and retention
of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment.  The Contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities,
including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project,
or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and
Equipment:  In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation
made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract,
including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential
subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Contractor of the contractor’s
obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports:  The Contractor will provide all information and
reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant
thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of
information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Sponsor or the
Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions.  Where any
information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another
who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to



Page 22 of 23 

the Sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set 
forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a Contractor’s noncompliance
with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the Sponsor will impose
such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may
determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. Withholding payments to the Contractor under the contract until the
Contractor complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.
6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The Contractor will include the provisions of

paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the
Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto.  The Contractor will take
action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Sponsor or the
Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a
subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the Contractor may
request the Sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the
Sponsor.  In addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter
into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED 
UNDER THE AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar 
instruments entered into by the Sponsor pursuant to the provisions of the Airport 
Improvement Program grant assurances: 

A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself,
his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns,
as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the
case of deeds and leases add “as a covenant running with the land”] that:

1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise
operated on the property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit,
etc.) for a purpose for which a Federal Aviation Administration activity,
facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the
provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee,
permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in
compliance with all requirements imposed by the Nondiscrimination
Acts and Regulations listed in the  Title VI List of Pertinent
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities (as may be amended) such that
no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.

B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of
the above Nondiscrimination covenants, Authority will have the right to
terminate the (lease, license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and
repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the (lease,
license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.*

C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above
Nondiscrimination covenants, the Authority will have the right to enter or re-
enter the lands and facilities thereon, and the above-described lands and



Page 23 of 23 

facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property 
of the Authority and its assigns.* 

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a 
clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED 
UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar 
instruments/agreements entered into by Authority pursuant to the provisions of the 
Airport Improvement Program grant assurances. 

A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself,
his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as
a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the
case of deeds and leases add, “as a covenant running with the land”) that (1)
no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any
improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services
thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected
to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will
use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or
pursuant to the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities.

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any
of the above Non-discrimination covenants, Authority will have the right to
terminate the (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and
repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said
(license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or issued.*

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-
discrimination covenants, Authority will there upon revert to and vest in and
become the absolute property of Authority and its assigns. *

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a 
clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 USC §§ 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 USC §§ 1251-1387). The Contractor agrees to report any 
violation to the Authority immediately upon discovery. The Authority assumes 
responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal 
Aviation Administration. 
Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceed $150,000. 
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference 
the requirements of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full 
text.  The employer must provide a work environment that is free from recognized 
hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the employee. The employer 
retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor’s compliance 
with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 
CFR Part 1910).  The employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a 
referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration. 



N
 0

2°
12

'5
6"

 E
   

15
4.

67

N
 0

2°
21

'1
2"

 E
   

19
9.

47

S 87°59'19" E   257.60

S 
02

°1
0'

07
" W

   
20

2.
08

S 
02

°1
0'

55
" W

16
3.

58

N 87°49'53" W   188.11

N 88°10'45" W   188.09

N
 0

2°
14

'1
7"

 E
17

6.
03

N
 0

2°
10

'0
7"

 E
   

19
0.

36

S 87°59'19" E   424.88

S 
02

°3
6'

35
" W

12
2.

72

N 87°57'26" W   211.87

N
 0

2°
04

'3
7"

 E
89

.5
8

S 87°57'26" E   211.87

S 
02

°0
4'

37
" W

89
.5

8

L3

L4

L5

L6 C1

L7

L8L9

L10

L2

L1

L1
3

L14

L15

C2

N
 0

2°
10

'0
7"

 E
13

1.
50

N 87°53'09" W
118.91

L1
7

L1
1 S 

02
°1

0'
07

" W
12

1.
47

N 88°03'08" W   162.19

S 
02

°0
5'

06
" W

12
9.

67

L12

TOFA

TOFA

S 
02

°0
5'

06
" W

24
6.

55

L16

C3

110'

110'

55'55'

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

BEARING

N 88°10'45" W

N 02°08'05" E

N 87°47'04" W

S 88°24'41" E

N 88°11'15" W

S 87°40'55" E

N 87°49'53" W

S 02°10'07" W

N 02°10'07" E

N 87°51'55" W

N 02°08'05" E

S 88°10'45" E

N 02°10'07" E

S 87°35'27" E

N 87°48'01" W

N 88°10'45" W

S 02°04'37" W

DISTANCE

243.48

91.44

10.83

10.92

82.98

74.83

36.77

30.01

21.41

33.49

53.74

124.93

78.16

20.45

20.66

17.60

53.09

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

RADIUS

11.00

74.50

84.66

DELTA

048°10'17"

089°51'46"

011°59'25"

LENGTH

9.25

116.85

17.72

CH. S 82°13'25" E 17.68

7/2024; Project: DULAI 179520
Overall Lease Exhibit Map

Figure #1

Duluth, Minnesota
DLH - Duluth International Airport

DLH - Overall Monaco Lease Exhibit Map
X:

\A
E\

D
\D

U
LA

I\1
79

52
0\

9-
su

rv
ey

\9
2-

C
AD

\1
5-

dw
g\

D
U

LA
I1

79
52

0E
X2

.d
w

g

NE CORNER
LOT 9, BLOCK 4

NORTH LINE
LOT 9, BLOCK 4

MONACO LEASE PARCEL A
18,979 S.F.

MONACO LEASE PARCEL C
134,713 S.F.

MONACO LEASE PARCEL B
 115,770 S.F.

SURVEYED
BUILDING
LOCATION

P.O.B. - MONACO LEASE
PARCEL A

0 30 6015

Feet

Legend Source: St. Louis County

SET MAG NAIL OR 5/8 INCH
REBAR
FOUND IRON MONUMENT

P.O.B. - MONACO LEASE
PARCEL B P.O.B. - MONACO LEASE

PARCEL C

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 N

O
. 6

08

BUILDING FROM
AERIAL IMAGE

BUILDING FROM
AERIAL IMAGE

BUILDING FROM
AERIAL IMAGE

SURVEYED
BUILDING
LOCATION

SURVEYED
BUILDING
LOCATION

SURVEYED
BUILDING
LOCATION

NE CORNER LOT 4
NW CORNER LOT 5

OF BLOCK 1

NORTH LINE OF
LOT 4, BLOCK 1 NORTH LINE OF

LOT 5, BLOCK 1

1" = 5'

DETAIL A

N 88°10'45" W   17.60

S 
02

°0
5'

06
" W

  2
46

.5
5

S 
02

°0
5'

06
" W

   
12

9.
67

R - 84.66 Δ = 11°59'25" L = 17.72
CH BR = S 82°13'25" E CH L = 17.68

S 02°06'00" W
1.83

Notes
AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH IS FOR GENERAL
REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY
COORDINATE SYSTEM: ST. LOUIS COUNTY,
MINNESOTA - SOUTH ZONE

SEE DETAIL A

NORTH LINE OF AIRPORT
APPROACH ROAD AS DEDICATED

ON AIRPORT DIVISION

WESTERLY R/W LINE
AIRPORT APPROACH ROAD

NORTH LINE OF
LOT 5, BLOCK 1

EAST LINE OF
LOT 5, BLOCK 1

WEST LINE OF
LOT 6, BLOCK 1

C
EN

TE
R

 L
IN

E 
TA

XI
LA

N
E

41
'

51
'

39
'

40
'

LEASE BOUNDARY FOLLOWS
DIFFERENTIAL PAVEMENT JOINT

LEASE BOUNDARY FOLLOWS
DIFFERENTIAL PAVEMENT JOINT

(A
D

G
-II

)

EASTERLY LIMITS OF
LEASE PARCEL C

EASTERLY LIMITS OF
LEASE PARCEL C

ORIENTATION OF THIS BEARING SYSTEM IS
BASED ON THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 4 AND 5,
BLOCK 1, AIRPORT DIVISION TO HAVE AN
ASSIGNED BEARING OF N 88°10'45" W

Eq
ui

pm
en

t P
ar

ki
ng

 A
re

a
N

on
-E

xc
lu

si
ve

 G
ro

un
d 

Se
rv

ic
e

EXHIBIT B

Jana Kayser
Rectangle

Jana Kayser
Line

Jana Kayser
Line

Jana Kayser
Line

Jana Kayser
Line



Duluth Airport Authority 
Monaco Air Duluth 

Line Shack & Hangar 106 Space Lease 

Terms:  
• 3 Year Term

Background: 

• The Line Shack Office & Hangar 106 are DAA owned buildings that Monaco has
leased from the DAA.

• Hangar 106 was previously part of the Monaco Operator Agreement and the Line
Shack lease was a stand alone agreement.

• Due to the condition of the buildings, the DAA requested to remove Hangar 106
from Operator Agreement and combine the lease with the Line Shack Lease.

• Having both of these spaces on their own short term agreement provides the
DAA future flexibility.

Agreement Overview: 

• 180 square feet in Building 608- Line Shack

• 5,200 square feet of Hangar 106

• Lessee is responsible for all operating expenses, maintenance and repair.

VII. - D. 



Page 1 of 15 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
SPACE LEASE AGREEMENT 

MONACO AIR DULUTH 

The parties to this Agreement are the DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a governmental body organized 
and existing under Chapter 577 of the Laws of Minnesota, l969, hereinafter known as "Authority", and 
Monaco Air Duluth, LLC, located at 4535 Airport Approach Road, Duluth, MN 55811, hereinafter referred 
to as "Lessee". 

WHEREAS, The Authority is a public body created pursuant to Minnesota Laws 1969, Chapter 
577 and responsible for the operation of the Duluth International Airport located in and adjacent 
to the City of Duluth, Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, The Lessee desires to lease space at the Airport and the Authority agrees to allow 
the Lessee to lease space under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants and representations, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree for themselves and their 
successors and assigns as follows: 

SECTION 1 
DEFINITIONS 

The following terms, as used in this Lease Agreement, shall have the meanings as ascribed to them 
hereunder. 

A. Airport:  shall mean the Duluth International Airport located in and adjacent to the City of Duluth,
County of St. Louis, State of Minnesota.

B. City:  shall mean the City of Duluth, Minnesota.
C. Consent or Approval of Authority and of Executive Director:  where this Agreement calls for the

consent or approval of the Authority, the same shall be in the form of a resolution approved by the
Authority as provided by law; where the consent or approval of the Executive Director is required,
the same shall be evidenced by a written document signed by the Executive Director or authorized
designee.

D. Executive Director:  shall mean the Executive Director of the Authority, or designee.
E. Leased Premises:  shall refer to the Authority Owned Building 608 Line Shack and Authority Owned

Hangar 106 areas leased by Lessee as further described in Section 3A and as shown on Exhibit B.
F. Leasehold Improvements:  shall mean all items located on and within the Leased Premises provided

or purchased by Lessee, including items such as decorations, partitions, wiring, lighting and
plumbing fixtures, piping, finished ceilings, ventilation duct work, grills, floor and wall coverings,
heaters, cabinets, lockers, sinks, counters, chairs, other furniture, signs and other related
improvements.

SECTION 2 
TERM 

The Term of this Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2024 and shall remain in effect until 
midnight August 31, 2027.  In the event that the Term expires and a new agreement has not been 
executed, at the sole discretion and upon written consent of the Executive Director, this Agreement shall 
continue in effect on a month-to-month basis under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
subject to the adjustment of fees.  The Lessee will be allowed to hold over at the sole discretion and upon 



Page 2 of 15 

the written consent of the Executive Director, which consent may be withdrawn upon sixty (60) days’ 
written notice to Lessee. 

SECTION 3 
LEASED PREMISES 

A. Leased Premises:
a. Lessee is hereby granted use of approximately one hundred eighty (180) square feet of

Authority owned Building 608 area referred to as the “Line Shack”, to be used to support
the line service operations of Lessee. See Exhibit B attached hereto.

b. Lessee is hereby granted use of Authority owned Hangar 106 which consists of
approximately five thousand two hundred (5,200) square feet for aeronautical use to
support operations of Lessee.  See Exhibit B attached hereto.

B. The Right of Ingress: Lessee shall have reasonable access to the Leased Premises on a 24-hour-a-
day, seven-day-a-week basis.

SECTION 4 
PAYMENTS AND OTHER FEES 

Lessee hereby agrees to pay Authority for the rights and privileges granted hereunder as follows: 

A. Leased Premises:
a. For the rent of the Line Shack, a rental fee of four dollars ($4.00) per square foot per year

shall be paid to the Authority. Rent shall be sixty dollars ($60.00) dollars per month for the
Line Shack.  The first payment of rent in the amount of $60.00 shall be due and payable
September 30, 2024, and monthly thereafter during the term of this Agreement and any
extensions thereof.

b. For the rent of Hangar 106, a rental fee of $.861 per square foot per year shall be paid to
the Authority. Rent shall be three hundred seventy-two dollars and sixty-eight cents
($372.68) per month for Hangar 106.  The first payment of rent in the amount of $372.68
shall be due and payable September 30, 2024, and monthly thereafter during the term of
this Agreement and any extensions thereof.

B. Increased Payments: On September 1, 2025, and annually thereafter for the term of this Agreement
and any extension thereof, the payments to be made by Lessee to Authority as provided for in
Paragraph A above shall be increased over those of the previous year’s payments calculated by
multiplying the previous year’s payments by the increase in the Consumer Price Index, U.S. City
Average, most recently published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics of the previous year.

C. Refuse and Garbage: Lessee assumes all responsibility for the disposal of refuse and garbage
generated by its operations on the Leased Premises during the term of the Lease and agrees to pay
for all costs related thereto.

D. No Warranty: The Authority makes no representation that the Leased Premises is suitable for specific
uses, and Lessee accepts the Leased Premises in an "as is" condition without representations or
warranties of any kind. The Authority shall not be obligated to make any alterations or improvements
on or to the Leased Premises.

E. Operating Expenses, Maintenance, and Repair: All operating costs, maintenance, snow removal and
repair shall be the sole responsibility of the Lessee. Mechanical maintenance shall be coordinated
with the Authority to ensure the Authority is in compliance with all State and local building
requirements.

F. Utilities: The Lessee shall provide such heat and electricity as are reasonably necessary for Lessee's
operations at the sole cost to Lessee.

G. Fee for Failure to Maintain: In the event that Lessee fails to keep the Leased Premises in a neat,
clean, orderly and sanitary condition and the Executive Director has issued a written notice of such
deficiency and provided a reasonable cure period as determined solely by the Executive Director,



Page 3 of 15 

Authority may itself clean or cause to be cleaned those portions of the Leased Premises not so kept, 
and Lessee agrees to reimburse Authority for the direct and indirect costs incurred by Authority for 
the performance of said work plus a fifteen percent (15%) administrative fee, due and payable upon 
receipt. 

H. Fee for Repair and Replacement: Lessee shall promptly repair or replace any property of the Authority
lost, destroyed or damaged by its operations hereunder.  If Lessee fails to promptly repair or replace
such property following written notice by the Executive Director of such deficiency and a reasonable
cure period as determined solely by the Executive Director, Authority may repair or replace it and
Lessee agrees to reimburse for the direct and indirect costs incurred by Authority for such repair or
replacement plus a fifteen (15%) percent administrative fee, due and payable upon receipt.

I. Fee for Unpaid Licenses, Fees, Taxes, and Assessments:  Lessee hereby agrees to pay all licenses,
fees, taxes and assessments of any kind whatsoever which arise because of, or in the course of any
operations covered by this Agreement during the term hereof.  Should Lessee fail to pay such
amounts following written notice of such deficiency and a reasonable cure period as determined solely
by the Executive Director, it is expressly agreed that Authority may pay the same on behalf of Lessee,
and Lessee agrees to reimburse Authority for said amounts paid plus a fifteen percent (15%)
administrative fee due and payable upon receipt.

J. Late Payment:
If Lessee is delinquent for thirty (30) days or longer in paying any amounts owed to the Authority
under this Agreement, Lessee shall pay to the Authority a late payment charge assessed on the
delinquent amount at the Authority’s then-prevailing rate on delinquent accounts (the rate at the date
of execution of the Agreement is one and one-half percent (1½%) per month).  The late payment
charge shall accrue from the date the delinquent amount was due until paid.
The remedies provided by this Section are in addition to all other remedies the Authority may have
for a breach of this Agreement by Lessee, and nothing in this Section shall be deemed to be a waiver
by the Authority or prevent the Authority from asserting any other remedy.

K. Payment Obligations Unconditional:
The obligations of Lessee to pay any amounts due to Authority under this Lease Agreement in
accordance with the terms hereof shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any defense or
rights of set off, recoupment or counterclaim which may at any time be available against Authority.
Such payments shall be due without notice or demand therefor except as specifically provided for
herein notwithstanding the Lessee shall have the right to contest within thirty (30) days.

SECTION 5 
ACCESS BY AUTHORITY 

Upon 48 hours’ notice, the Authority shall have the right to enter and inspect the Leased Premises for 
the purpose of ascertaining the condition thereof or in order to make such repairs as may be required to 
be made by the Authority under the terms of this Agreement or as the Authority may deem necessary. 
The right of entry shall not be deemed to impose any greater obligation on the Authority to clean, maintain, 
repair or change the Leased Premises than is specifically provided in this Agreement.  The Authority may 
at any time in case of emergency enter the Leased Premises and do such acts as the Authority may 
deem proper in order to protect the Leased Premises. 

SECTION 6 
CONSTRUCTION AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 

A. In the event that Lessee wishes to make any Leasehold Improvements at the Airport, it shall present
its request to the Executive Director in writing together with design development or construction
drawings showing all details of said Leasehold Improvement.  No Leasehold Improvement shall be



Page 4 of 15 

made in the Leased Premises without the prior written approval of the Executive Director and then 
only in conformance with the approved plans and this Section. 

B. All work done by Lessee, or under its direction, shall conform to all applicable regulations, building
codes and health standards, as well as the following requirements:

1. All construction shall meet the requirement of Type I (fire resistant) construction as set
forth in the Minnesota State Building Code (current edition) and the building standards for
the Airport.

2. Complete contract drawings and specifications on all work, including alterations, additions
or replacements, must be submitted to and receive prior written approval of the Executive
Director.

3. All work must be done in the time and manner approved by the Executive Director and
coordinated with the Executive Director.  Lessee shall comply with the indemnity and
insurance and bond requirements of this Agreement.

4. An authorized representative of Lessee shall be available at all reasonable times at the
site to coordinate the work of the Leasehold Improvements.

C. Construction Bonds and Insurance
1. Bonds:  During the term of this Agreement, when any Leasehold Improvements are

constructed, installed or renovated, Lessee shall procure and furnish to the Executive
Director a bond or bonds written by a company or companies authorized to write such
bonds in the State of Minnesota and who are acceptable to the Executive Director, in an
amount not less than the cost of such construction, installation or renovation, for the use
of obligee, Lessee and the Authority and all persons doing work or furnishing skills, tools,
machinery, materials, insurance premiums, equipment or supplies incident to such
construction, installation or renovation, such bond or bonds to be conditioned for payment
of claims as required and in full compliance with Minnesota Statutes Section
574.26.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, for any construction, installation or
renovation of Leasehold Improvements, and before the commencement of work thereon,
Lessee shall furnish to Authority performance bonds, written by similarly qualified
companies, covering all work to be performed thereunder guaranteeing the performance
of all such work.

2. Public Liability and Property Insurance:  Before commencing any Leasehold Improvement
on the Leased Premises, Lessee shall itself or shall require all contractors and
subcontractors to procure and maintain insurance during the life of such contracts,
protecting both the Authority, the City of Duluth and the Lessee as follows:

a. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.
b. Contractors Comprehensive Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance.
c. Contractors Automobile Liability and Property Damage Insurance, including

automobile and non-ownership and hired cars.
d. Owners Protective Public Liability and Protective Property Damage Insurance.
e. Builders Risk Insurance (fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious

mischief, including sprinkler leakage).
Amounts shall not be less than One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) 
for injuries, including accidental death to any one person, and subject to same limit for 
each person, and in an amount not less than One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($1,500,000) for any one accident with a One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollar 
($1,500,000) aggregate for the policy.  Insurance, as above provided, shall be kept intact 
and in force throughout the term of construction work and equipment installation on the 
Leased Premises.  Such insurance shall be subject to the approval of the Executive 
Director and copies furnished to the Executive Director prior to the commencement of 
construction. 



Page 5 of 15 

D. Subsequent Leasehold Improvements:  Any changes in, additions to or deletions from existing or
later constructed Leasehold Improvements shall be subject to the prior approval of the Executive
Director and Executive Director may impose such conditions as it shall deem necessary to protect
the Authority and the integrity of all operations at the Airport, including, but not limited to, bonding and
insurance requirements.

SECTION 7 
INDEMNIFICATION 

A. Lessee shall indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend Authority and the City, their officials, agents
and employees, successors and assigns, individually or collectively, from and against any claim
including a claim for contribution or indemnity, action, loss, damage, injury, liability, and the cost and
expense of whatsoever kind or nature (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees,
disbursements, court costs, and expert fees) based upon injury to persons, including death, or
damage to tangible property, and any fines in any way arising from or based upon the violation of any
federal, state, or municipal laws, statutes, resolutions, or regulations, including rules or regulations of
the Authority now in effect or hereafter promulgated, by Lessee, its agents, employees, or successors
and assigns, arising out of, resulting from, in conjunction with or incident to Lessee’s negligence
during its operation of its business and/or performance of its obligations under this Agreement or use
and/or occupancy of the Leased Premises or of the Airport, and on ten (10) days’ written notice from
the Authority, the Lessee shall appear and defend all claims and lawsuits against the Authority and/or
the City growing out of any such injury or damage.

B. Environmental Liability: In addition to the general indemnity stated above, and as part of it, it is
specifically agreed between the parties that Lessee shall be responsible in all respects for Lessee's
use of, or Lessee's generation of, or release or threatened release of any petroleum based substance
or product, or any volatile organic compound, or any substance classified as a pollutant, contaminant,
toxic or dangerous substance, solid waste or a "hazardous waste" by either the United States
Environmental Protection Agency or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.  Lessee shall
specifically be responsible for the disposition of all such waste or substances and for the
environmental response activities and response costs, monitoring, or cleanup of any environmental
condition deemed by those agencies, or either of them, to require environmental response, monitoring
or cleanup activities of any kind whatsoever which arise out of Lessee’s use of, or generation of, such
substances in its operations at the Airport, and, Lessee specifically agrees that the obligations above
shall apply specifically to any cost or obligations of the Authority or City arising out of such response,
disposition and/or clean up.  The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration, termination or
early cancellation of this Agreement.  Lessee shall not be responsible for preexisting environmental
conditions or environmental conditions arising during the term of this Lease which are not caused by
Lessee.

C. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration, termination or early cancellation of this
Agreement.

SECTION 8 
INSURANCE 

A. Insurance:  Lessee shall carry and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement
the minimum amounts of insurance set forth below.  The Lessee shall carry workers' compensation
insurance on all of its employees employed on the Airport.  Lessee may request the Authority to
approve alternative types of insurance providing at least equal protection.  All such insurance shall
be in at least the following amounts and shall be in a form acceptable to the Authority and approved
by the City Attorney, shall name the Authority and the City of Duluth as additional insureds on each
liability policy and shall provide for thirty (30) days' written notice to the Authority of any cancellation
or modification thereof.  Certified copies thereof or appropriate certificates of insurance evidencing
the existence thereof shall be delivered to the Authority prior to the execution of this agreement.  The



Page 6 of 15 

Authority reserves the right and Lessee agrees to revisions upward or downward in the minimum 
insurance requirements hereinafter set forth.  All insurance required under this Agreement shall be 
taken out and maintained in responsible insurance companies organized under the laws of the states 
of the United States and licensed to do business in the State of Minnesota.  All insurance policies 
required below shall be primary and shall not require contribution from any coverage maintained by 
the Authority and/or the City. 

1. Commercial general liability insurance, including contractual, completed operations, premises
and operations and products liability coverage in an amount of not less than $1,500,000
combined single limit or $1,500,000 bodily injury per occurrence; $1,500,000 property damage
per occurrence and $1,500,000 in aggregate.

2. Owned, non-owned and hired vehicles in an amount not less than $1,500,000 combined single
limit or $1,500,000 bodily injury per occurrence; $1,500,000 per occurrence.

3. Aircraft Liability insurance from an admitted aviation insurance carrier in limits per each
occurrence of not less than $1,000,000 and Aircraft Passenger Liability insurance in limits of
not less than $100,000 for each passenger seat.

4. Worker’s Compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.

B. Insurance Primary.  All insurance policies required above shall be primary and shall not require
contribution from any coverage maintained by Authority and/or City.

C. Insurance Not Limitation:  It is understood that the specified amounts of insurance stated in this
paragraph shall in no way limit the liability of Lessee under this Section.

D. Disclaimer:  Authority does not represent or guarantee that these types or limits of coverage are
adequate to protect the Lessee’s interests and liabilities.  It shall be the obligation and responsibility
of Lessee to insure, as it deems prudent, its own personal property, against damage.  Authority does
not have insurance coverage for Lessee’s property and Authority expressly disclaims any and all
liability for any and all losses, damage and/or claims to vehicles and/or personal possessions of
Lessee.

SECTION 9 
FIRE INSURANCE 

A. Authority's Fire Insurance:
Lessee covenants that it will not do or permit to be done any act which:

1. Will invalidate or be in conflict with any fire insurance policies covering the Airports or any part
thereof or upon the contents of any building thereof; or

2. Will increase the rate of any fire insurance on the Airport or any part thereof or upon the
contents of any building thereof; or

3. In the opinion of the Authority, will constitute a hazardous condition so as to increase the risks
normally attendant upon the operations contemplated by this Agreement.

If, by any reason of the Lessee's failing to comply with the provisions of this section, any fire insurance 
rate on the Airport or any part thereof or upon the contents of any building thereof, at any time, be higher 
than it otherwise would be, then the Lessee shall upon demand, reimburse the Authority for that part of 
all fire insurance premiums paid or payable by the Authority which shall have been charged because of 
such violation by the Lessee. 



Page 7 of 15 

SECTION 10 
AUTHORITY'S RIGHTS UPON DEFAULT 

A. Rights Upon Default.  If at any time Lessee shall be in default, as defined in this Section, with regard
to the requirements of this Agreement, it shall be lawful for the Authority, and the Authority may:

1. Immediately, or at any time thereafter without further notice to Lessee, re-enter into or
upon the Leased Premises under this Agreement or any part thereof and take possession
of the same fully and absolutely without such re-entry representing a forfeiture of the
rentals, fees, and charges to be paid and of the covenants, terms and conditions to be
performed by Lessee for the full term of this Agreement, and in the event of such re-entry,
the Authority may proceed with the collection of rentals, fees, and charges to be paid under
this Agreement.

2. Authority may at its election terminate this Agreement upon written notice in the manner
hereinafter provided and re-enter upon said Leased Premises as of its former estate
therein, and the Lessee covenants in case of such termination to indemnify the Authority
against all loss of rentals, fees, and charges which the Authority has suffered or paid by
reason of such termination, during the remainder of the term of this Agreement.

3. The Authority shall further have all other rights and remedies at law or in equity including
injunctive relief, or summary proceedings for unlawful detainer, and any or all legal
remedies, actions and proceedings shall be deemed cumulative.

B. Default Defined.  "Default" shall be defined when any of the following circumstances exist:

1. If the Lessee has failed to pay rentals, fees, charges, or taxes when due hereunder and
such failure to pay shall continue for thirty (30) days.

2. Failure to provide and/or maintain the insurance coverages required herein.

3. Lessee shall permit any liens on the Leased Premises with the exception of assignments
approved pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or liens contested in accordance with
this Agreement.

4. If the Lessee fails in the observance or performance of any of the other terms, covenants
and conditions of this Agreement and such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after
Authority has given Lessee written notice, or the Lessee shall have failed to commence
the corrective action of such failure within thirty (30) days after such notice and to diligently
prosecute the same where the same cannot be completed within thirty (15) days.

5. If a petition to reorganize the Lessee or for its arrangement of its unsecured debts shall
be filed.

6. If the Lessee shall be adjudicated bankrupt.

7. If a receiver or trustee of the Lessee's property shall be appointed by any court.

8. If the Lessee shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

9. If all of the interest of the Lessee in its property shall be taken by garnishment, attachment,
execution or other process of law.



Page 8 of 15 

10. If the Lessee shall cease operations in the Leased Premises for a period of sixty (60) days
or more.

SECTION 11 
LESSEE'S TERMINATION RIGHTS 

Lessee shall have the right upon written notice to the Authority to terminate this Agreement upon the 
happening of one or more of the following events, if said event or events are then continuing: 

A. The issuance by any court of competent jurisdiction of an injunction, order or decree: (1)
preventing or restraining the use by Lessee of all or any substantial part of the Leased Premises
used and occupied by Lessee hereunder, or (2) preventing or restraining the use of all or a part
of the Airport for normal airport purposes which may be used by Lessee and which is necessary
for its operations on the Airport.

B. If Authority defaults in any of the terms, covenants or conditions under this Agreement and fails
to cure the default or make substantial progress with regard thereto within ninety (90) days
following receipt of written demand from Lessee to do so.

C. If all or a material part of the Leased Premises used and occupied by Lessee hereunder is
damaged or destroyed or all or a part of the Airport or Airport facilities which are necessary to the
operation of Lessee's business are damaged or destroyed or the use thereof disrupted for causes
beyond Lessee's control.

D. If, by reason of any action of any governmental authority, Lessee is unable to conduct its business
for a period of in excess of ninety (90) consecutive days in substantially the same manner or
substantially to the same extent as prior to such action.

E. Permanent abandonment of Airport for scheduled airline service.

SECTION 12 
SURRENDER OF POSSESSION 

Upon the termination of this Agreement, Lessee's authority to use the Leased Premises, rights, facilities 
and equipment herein granted shall cease and Lessee shall, upon expiration or termination, promptly 
and in good condition, normal wear and tear excepted, surrender the same to the Authority.  In the event 
that Lessee has in any way changed, altered or modified the Leased Premises demised herein, Lessee 
covenants to return the same to the condition they were in at the time of the occupancy under this 
Agreement, normal wear and tear excepted, or, in the alternative, to pay the Authority for the cost of 
returning them to said condition.  Upon termination, any improvements which have become part of the 
realty shall become the property of the Authority, and the same shall be immediately returned to the 
ownership and control of the Authority.  Any improvements not part of the realty shall be removed 
therefrom within ten (10) days after the termination of this Agreement or the same shall be deemed to 
have been abandoned to the Authority and the right of the Lessee to possession thereof shall cease.  

SECTION 13 
LIENS AND ASSIGNMENTS 

A. Liens: Lessee shall not create or permit any mortgage, encumbrance or lien or allow any
mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens to be filed or established or to remain against the Leased
Premises, or any part thereof, provided that if Lessee shall first notify the Executive Director of its
intention to do so and post such security as the Executive Director reasonably deems necessary,
Lessee may, in good faith, contest any such mechanics’ or other liens filed or established as long
as the Executive Director does not deem its interest or rights in this Agreement to be subject to
foreclosure by reason of such contest.

B. Assignment: Lessee shall not assign this Agreement unless the written consent of the Executive
Director shall first be obtained.  The Executive Director’s approval shall not be withheld if the
assignment or transfer is to the same party, who is assigned Lessee’s rights under the that certain



Page 9 of 15 

Operator Agreement dated November 1, 2005, as amended, between Authority and Lessee.  It is 
expressly agreed by the parties that a change in ownership of the controlling interest in Lessee 
shall be deemed to be an assignment as provided for in this Section 13.  It is expressly agreed 
by the Lessee that in the event of an assignment covered by this Section 13, the assignee shall 
be required to assume and agree to perform the covenants of this Agreement and Lessee shall 
have no further obligation or liability under this Agreement. 

SECTION 14 
SUBORDINATION 

This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future Agreement between the 
Authority and the United States of America or the State of Minnesota relative to the operation or 
maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent 
to the expenditure of Federal or State funds for the development of the Airport, or to any security 
requirements of State or Federal Government, including temporary security procedures or instructions.  

SECTION 15 
MODIFICATION 

Any of the terms of this Agreement may be changed upon the mutual consent of the Authority and the 
Lessee, but to be valid any such changes must be in writing, dated, and must be executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is determined to violate 
any local, state, or federal rule or regulation or is deemed to cause a violation of any rate covenants, the 
Agreement shall be modified upon consultation with Lessee to cause such violation to be compliant with 
such provision and an amendment will be executed on a timely basis to incorporate the required changes. 

SECTION 16 
NOTICES 

Any notice provided for in this Agreement or otherwise to the Authority shall be sent to: 
Duluth Airport Authority 
Executive Director  
Duluth International Airport 
470l Grinden Drive  
Duluth, Minnesota 558ll   

Any notice to the Lessee hereunder shall be sent to: 
Monaco Air Duluth, LLC 
Owner 
4535 Airport Approach Road 
Duluth, MN 55811 

SECTION 17 
APPLICABLE LAW 

This Agreement, together with all of its articles, terms and provision, is made in the State of Minnesota 
and shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Minnesota.  The appropriate 
venue and jurisdiction for any litigation hereunder shall be in a court located in St. Louis County, 
Minnesota.  However, litigation in the federal courts involving the parties shall be in the appropriate federal 
court within the State of Minnesota.  The parties to this Agreement waive any objections to the jurisdiction 
of these courts, whether based on convenience or otherwise. 



Page 10 of 15 

SECTION 18 
WAIVER OF BREACH 

The waiver by the Authority or the Lessee of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein 
contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, 
covenant or condition herein contained. 

SECTION 19 
SEVERABILITY 

In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in force and effect and shall be binding upon the parties to this Agreement.   

SECTION 20 
NONWAIVER OF LIABILITY 

Nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver by the Authority or the City of any statutory or common 
law defenses, immunities, or limits on liability.  The liability of the Authority and the City shall be governed 
by the provisions of the Minnesota Municipal Liability Tort Act, Minn. Stat. 466.04. 

SECTION 21 
ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS 

In the event Authority shall prevail in any action or suit or proceeding brought by Authority to collect rents 
due or to become due hereunder or any portion thereof or to take possession of the demised Leased 
Premises, or to enforce compliance with this Agreement or for the failure to observe any of the covenants 
of this Agreement, Lessee agrees to pay Authority such sums as the court may adjudge reasonable as 
attorneys' fees and costs to be allowed in such action, suit or proceedings. 

SECTION 22 
LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS AND NON-DISCRIMINATION 

A. Laws, Ordinances and Rules: The Lessee shall comply with all laws of the United States and the
State of Minnesota, the ordinances, rules, regulations and orders of the United States and the State
of Minnesota, or of any agency, department or governmental subdivision of any of the above, or of
the Authority relating to Lessee’s activities at the Airport, including but not related to Lessee’s
activities at the Airport, including but not limited to the Airport Security Plan, Airport Certification
Manual, and Airport Emergency Plan on file in the office of the Executive Director of the Duluth Airport
Authority located at Duluth International Airport.

B. Subordination: This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future
Agreement between the Authority and the United States of America or the State of Minnesota relative
to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required
as a condition precedent to the expenditure of Federal or State funds for the development of the
Airport, or to any security requirements of State or Federal Government, including temporary security
procedures or instructions.

C. Non-discrimination: Lessee shall comply with the Mandatory Federal Aviation Civil Rights Provisions
contained in Exhibit A, replacing the following words in the exhibit:

• Contractor” with “Lessee”

• “subcontractor” with “contractor”

• “contract” with “agreement”

• “subcontract” with “contract”

• “Sponsor” with “Authority”



Page 11 of 15 

• “solicitation” with “agreement”

SECTION 23 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including Exhibit A and Exhibit B constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior written and oral agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to the 
subject matter hereto.  There are no representations, warranties, or stipulations either oral or written not 
herein contained.   

SECTION 24 
COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original as against any Party whose signature appears thereon, but all of which together shall constitute 
but one and the same instrument. Signatures to this Agreement transmitted by facsimile, by electronic 
mail in “portable document format” (“.pdf”), or by any other electronic means which preserves the original 
graphic and pictorial appearance of the Agreement, shall have the same effect as physical delivery of the 
paper document bearing the original signature. 

Dated: _____________________________ 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY MONACO AIR DULUTH, LLC 

By: __________________________  By: 
 President  Donald P. Monaco, Owner 

By: __________________________  
 Secretary 



Page 12 of 15 

EXHIBIT A 

MANDATORY FEDERAL AVIATION 
GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 

In all its activities within the scope of its airport program, the Contractor agrees to comply with pertinent 
statutes, Executive Orders, and such rules as identified in Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination 
Acts and Authorities to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin 
(including limited English proficiency), creed, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), age, 
or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal 
assistance. 
This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

Specific Clause that is used for Lease Agreements or Transfer Agreements 

If the Contractor transfers its obligation to another, the transferee is obligated in the same manner as 
the Contractor. 
The above provision obligates the Contractor for the period during which the property is owned, used or 
possessed by the Contractor and the airport remains obligated to the Federal Aviation Administration. 

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC
§ 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired
because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27 (Nondiscrimination on the Basis of
Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance);

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits discrimination
on the basis of age);

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 47123), as amended (prohibits
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-259) (broadened the scope, coverage and
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs
or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients
and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC § 12101, et seq) (prohibit
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private
transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities) as
implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations
and Low-Income Populations (ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by



Page 13 of 15 

discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human 
health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations); 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination
because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take
reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs [70 Fed.
Reg. 74087 (2005)];

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC § 1681, et seq).

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: 
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The Contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will
comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may
be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part
of this contract.

2. Nondiscrimination:  The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited
English proficiency), creed, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), age, or
disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials
and leases of equipment.  The Contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment
practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of
49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In
all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work
to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Contractor of the
contractor’s obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on
the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports:  The Contractor will provide all information and reports required
by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to
its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be
determined by the Sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain
compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions.  Where any
information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or
refuses to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to the Sponsor or the Federal
Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain
the information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a Contractor’s noncompliance with the non-
discrimination provisions of this contract, the Sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as
it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not
limited to:

a. Withholding payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor
complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.
6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant
thereto.  The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as



Page 14 of 15 

the Sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the Contractor becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such 
direction, the Contractor may request the Sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the 
interests of the Sponsor.  In addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter 
into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER THE AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered 
into by the Sponsor pursuant to the provisions of the Airport Improvement Program grant assurances: 

A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs,
personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration
hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add “as a covenant
running with the land”] that:

1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the
property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a
Federal Aviation Administration activity, facility, or program is extended or for another
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee,
lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in
compliance with all requirements imposed by the Nondiscrimination Acts and
Regulations listed in the  Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and
Authorities (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color,
or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.

B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above
Nondiscrimination covenants, Authority will have the right to terminate the (lease, license,
permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold
the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.*

C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination
covenants, the Authority will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon,
and the above-described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become
the absolute property of the Authority and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED 
UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/agreements 
entered into by Authority pursuant to the provisions of the Airport Improvement Program grant 
assurances. 

A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs,
personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration
hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, “as a covenant
running with the land”) that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will
be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on,
over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of
race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee,



Page 15 of 15 

etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant 
to the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities. 

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above
Non-discrimination covenants, Authority will have the right to terminate the (license, permit,
etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon,
and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or
issued.*

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination
covenants, Authority will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property
of Authority and its assigns. *

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to 
the Clean Air Act (42 USC §§ 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended 
(33 USC §§ 1251-1387). The Contractor agrees to report any violation to the Authority immediately 
upon discovery. The Authority assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration. 
Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceed $150,000. 
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements 
of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  The employer must provide 
a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm 
to the employee. The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their 
subcontractor’s compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act 
of 1970 (29 CFR Part 1910).  The employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a 
referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration. 



Exhibit B

Line 
Shack

DAA Building 
# 608

DAA 
Building 

#106



Duluth Airport Authority 
TURO INC. 

Peer-To-Peer Car Sharing Agreement 

Term: 

• August 1, 2024-July 31, 2025

Agreement Overview: 

• Monthly Concession is 10% of Gross Revenue relating to any transaction in
which a Shared Vehicle Driver selects the Airport for delivery of a Shared
Vehicle.

• Reserved cars can be left in Airport Surface or Parking Ramp; there are not
designated parking spaces for TURO.

• All DLH parking lot fees apply.

• Commercial Vehicle Lane can be used as an Attended Vehicle Exchange
location.

Why were the changes in key terms needed/wanted? 

• DAA did not have an agreement with TURO and therefore did not capture
revenue from potential TURO operations at DLH.

VII. - E.



PEER-TO-PEER CAR SHARING AGREEMENT 
DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

By and Between 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

And 

TURO INC. 



Page 2 of 16 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY  
PEER-TO-PEER CAR SHARING AGREEMENT 

The parties to this Agreement are the DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a governmental body organized 
and existing under Chapter 577 of the Laws of Minnesota, l969, hereinafter known as "Authority", and 
Turo Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Operator” or “Turo”). 

WHEREAS, The Authority is a public body created pursuant to Minnesota Laws 1969, Chapter 
577 and responsible for the operation of the Duluth International Airport located in and adjacent 
to the City of Duluth, Minnesota (“Airport”); and 

WHEREAS Operator desires to access a designated area at the Airport to enable Peer-to-peer 
Vehicle Car sharing at the Airport and the Authority wishes to authorize such Peer-to-peer 
Vehicle Car Sharing at the Airport under the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and representations contained herein, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree for 
themselves and their successors and assigns as follows: 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the rents and mutual covenants, the parties agree: 

SECTION 1 
DEFINITIONS 

A. Airport means the Duluth International Airport and all of the area, buildings, facilities, and
improvements within the interior boundaries of such Airport as it now exists or as it may hereafter
be extended or enlarged and as depicted on a current Airport Layout Plan approved by the Federal
Aviation Administration.

B. Effective Date The date this Agreement is signed by both parties.
C. Designated Areas As defined in Section 3.
D. Parking Ramp The public parking buildings located at the Duluth International Airport 4701 Grinden

Drive Duluth, MN with a maximum height restriction of eight (8) feet.
E. Shared Vehicle Owner An individual or company that owns, leases, or otherwise has control over a

Shared Vehicle and uses Operator’s website, mobile application, or any other platform to perform a
Peer-to Peer Car Sharing of a Shared Vehicle.

F. Peer-to-Peer Car Sharing An arms-length, remote, web-based, or mobile transaction where a
Shared Vehicle Owner allows a third party to use the Shared Vehicle(s) for a fee. This includes, but
is not limited to, Reservations made through Operator's website, mobile application, or any other
platform that connects Shared Vehicle Owners with Airport Customers seeking to reserve the
Shared Vehicle(s), with the Shared Vehicle(s) being dropped off to the Airport Customer on Airport
Property.

G. Reservation An online electronic reservation completed for an Airport Customer in Operator's Peer-
to-Peer Car Sharing website, mobile application, or other platform that initiates a reservation for a
Vehicle between a Shared Vehicle Owner and an Airport Customer where the Shared Vehicle
Owner drops off the Vehicle to the Airport Customer.

H. Shared Vehicle A licensed motor vehicle with a maximum height of eight (8) feet, that has been
shared or is available to be shared from a Shared Vehicle Owner through a Turo controlled platform.
All Shared Vehicles operating at the Airport for curbside Shared Vehicle exchange shall contain a
sticker or other identification approved by the Authority that indicates it is a Shared Vehicle. All
Shared Vehicles parked at the Airport shall be securely locked at all times with keys hidden and out
of sight. Airport Customer will be granted access to the Shared Vehicle via software with remote



Page 3 of 16 

unlocking capability or use of a lock box. 

SECTION 2 
TERM 

Notwithstanding the date of this Agreement, the Term of this Agreement shall commence on August 1, 
2024 and shall remain in effect until midnight July 31, 2025.  During the Term, either party may terminate 
this Agreement without cause upon forty-five (45) days’ written notice to the other party.  In the event that 
the Term expires and a new agreement has not been executed, at the sole discretion and upon the prior 
written consent of the Executive Director, this Agreement shall continue in effect on a month-to-month 
basis under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement subject to the adjustment of fees.  The 
written consent of the Executive Director may be withdrawn upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Lessee. 

SECTION 3 
NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

A. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Authority hereby grants a revocable, non-exclusive
privilege to Turo to enable its Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Service for Owners to deliver vehicles at
the Airport.

B. Turo, Shared Vehicle Owners and Shared Vehicle Drivers shall use the Airport Terminal Surface
Parking Lot or Parking Ramp in the same manner as any other Airport customer, in which they will
drop off and pick up the Shared Vehicle in the Airport Terminal Surface Parking Lot or Parking Ramp
(Exhibit A) and be responsible for any applicable parking fees.

C. Turo, Shared Vehicle Owners, and Shared Vehicle Drivers may also conduct Owner and Driver
attended drop-offs and pick-ups of Shared Vehicles ("Attended Vehicle Exchanges") in the Terminal
Commercial Vehicle Lane (Exhibit B), which location shall be determined from time-to-time solely by
the Authority provided, however that (i) such Attended Vehicle Exchanges shall not exceed five (5)
minutes, and (ii) Turo, Shared Vehicle Owners and Shared Vehicle Drivers entire Attended Vehicle
Exchange takes place at the Commercial Vehicle Lane (Exhibit B). Vehicles left unattended in the
Terminal Commercial Vehicle Lance (Exhibit B), or any other unauthorized area may be ticketed
and/or towed by the Authority at any time.  Any vehicle towed or impounded shall be recovered by
the Shared Vehicle Owner at their sole cost.

D. The Authority reserves the right at its sole discretion to reassign the Designated Location (Exhibit B)
for Attended Vehicle Exchanges at the Airport, or to terminate all Designated locations for Attended
Vehicle Exchanges at the Airport at any time following thirty (30) days written notice to Turo, or
immediately if the Authority is compelled to for good reason due to security, repairs, construction, or
other good cause. The Authority will make reasonable efforts to accommodate a Designated Location
in another area, if possible.

E. Upon request, each Shared Vehicle Owner shall provide to Authority, including its Airport Police the
following information:

1. Valid Driver's license
2. Current Shared Vehicle registration and license
3. Shared Vehicle make and model
4. Current evidence of automobile insurance, in accordance with this Agreement
5. Electronic record of the Shared Vehicle reservation listing the Airport
6. Customer's name and the time scheduled for the Exchange of the Shared Vehicle
7. Location of Exchange for the Shared Vehicle.

F. Failure to accurately, and on a timely basis report vehicle activity at the Airport, shall subject Turo to
revocation of this Agreement as set forth herein.

H. Turo, Shared Vehicle Owners, and Shared Vehicle Drivers shall always comply with orders and
directives from the police, security, traffic/parking officers, and airport officials.

I. Without limiting any other provision herein, Turo shall not, and shall ensure that Shared Vehicle
Owners do not, without the Authority’s prior written consent: (a) conduct Shared Vehicle Exchanges



Page 4 of 16 

in any unauthorized locations at the Airport ; (b) cause or permit anything to be done, in or around 
the Designated Areas of the Airport, or bring or keep anything thereon, which would be reasonably 
likely to (i) increase, in any way, the rate of fire insurance on the Airport, (ii) create a nuisance, or (iii) 
obstruct or interfere with the rights of others on the Airport or injure or annoy them; (c) commit, or 
suffer to be committed, any waste upon the Designated Areas or the Airport; (d) use, or allow the 
Designated Areas to be used, for any improper, immoral, unlawful or reasonably objectionable 
purpose; (e) place any loads upon the floor, walls or ceiling which endanger the structure or obstruct 
the sidewalk, passageways, in front of, within or adjacent to the Designated Areas or the roadways; 
or (f) do, or permit to be done, anything, in any way, which would be reasonably likely to materially 
injure the reputation or image of the Authority or appearance of the Airport. 

J. Without limiting the generality of other provisions of this Agreement, the following activities are
prohibited by Shared Vehicle Owners:
1. Allowing operation of a Shared Vehicle on Airport roadways by a person who is neither a Shared

Vehicle Owner nor Airport Customer;
2. Exchanging Shared Vehicles in any location other than Designated Locations;
3. Failing to provide information, or providing false information, to Authority or airport officials;
4. Soliciting Passengers on Airport property;
5. Using or possessing any alcoholic beverage, illegal drug or narcotic while at the Airport;
6. Failing to operate a Shared Vehicle in a safe manner;
7. Failing to comply with posted speed limits and traffic control signs;
8. Conducting ground transportation operations at the Airport other than through the Peer-to-Peer

Vehicle Sharing Service;
9. Soliciting of any activity or behavior prohibited by the applicable laws, rules or regulations;
10. Delivering a Shared Vehicle which is not in a safe mechanical condition or which lacks mandatory

safety equipment;
11. Disconnecting any pollution control equipment;
12. Operating a Shared Vehicle at any time during which Shared Vehicle Owner's authority is

suspended or revoked;
13. Engaging in any criminal activity;
14. Recirculating on Airport roads;
15. Parking anywhere other than in the Designated Locations;
16. Possessing a weapon while at the airport;
17. Picking up an Airport Customer in any unauthorized locations at the Airport to transport them off-

Airport in connection with Exchange of a Shared Vehicle;
18. Leaving a Shared Vehicle unattended at the passenger pick-up/drop-off curb.

K. If any Shared Vehicle Owner, Shared Vehicle Driver, or any Turo agent or employee violates this
Agreement, the Authority shall contact Turo regarding a violation of the applicable provisions of this
Agreement. Notices of all fines and Suspensions, including any Suspension information from a
trespass warning issued by a law enforcement officer, shall be sent to Turo. All fines shall be
aggregated and paid by Turo on or before the 15th day of each month following notice of the violation.
Upon receiving a notice of the Suspension, Turo shall cause a Shared Vehicle Owner to immediately
cease to operate at the Airport.

1. First Offense - Shared Vehicle Owners conducting any Exchange in any unauthorized locations
at the Airport shall receive a verbal warning, by Turo. Shared Vehicle Owners engaging in
Solicitation shall be permanently suspended upon the first violation, and all other first-time
violators receive a verbal warning
2. Second Offense – Turo will administer a fine of $100.00.
3. Third Offense - Such Shared Vehicle Owner, Shared Vehicle Driver, or Turo agent or employee
shall no longer have a right of access to Airport property permanently and will no longer have
access to engage in Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Services on Airport property through the Peer-
to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Service platform.



Page 5 of 16 

4. If an offense is so serious in the opinion of the Authority, the Authority has the right to
immediately suspend or permanently revoke the right of Airport access that Shared Vehicle
Owner, Shared Vehicle Driver, or Turo agent or employee is granted under this Agreement. A
Shared Vehicle Owner issued a Suspension shall not be allowed to conduct any Shared Vehicle
Car-Sharing at the Airport during the term of the Suspension. Turo shall notify the suspended
Shared Vehicle Owner that he/she is not allowed to conduct any Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing at
the Airport and shall provide Authority with written notice when it has done so. By operating on
the Airport, Turo, and Shared Vehicle Owners affiliated with Turo shall be subject to applicable
laws, ordinances, rules and   regulations   including   any   penalties   in   connection therewith.
Authority shall have no obligation to Turo to take action against any other person or entity at the
Airport.

L. Turo agrees that all Shared Vehicles will be maintained in good operating order, mechanically safe,
in a clean, neat, and attractive condition, inside and out, free of exterior body damage. Any complaints
received by the Authority regarding the age, quality, safety, operating order, or condition of the vehicle
shall provide the Authority the ability to suspend or revoke that vehicle from being offered on the
Peer-to-Peer Vehicle Sharing Service platform.

M. Turo shall conduct “trust and safety” screening on all Shared Vehicle Owners that will engage in Peer-
to-Peer Vehicle Sharing transactions. If a Shared Vehicle Owner is flagged for potential fraudulent or
criminal activity, Turo shall conduct or have conducted a criminal background check and public
records search on such Shared Vehicle Owner, and shall lock such Shared Vehicle Owner’s account
and prevent such person from engaging in Vehicle Sharing transactions until such time the Shared
Vehicle Owner has successfully cleared the background check.

SECTION 4 
USE FEES 

A. Use Fee:  For the commercial use of the Airport, on the twentieth (20) day of each month, Turo shall
make a payment to Authority equal to ten percent (10%) of the Gross Revenue (as defined below)
relating to any transaction in which a Shared Vehicle Driver selects the Airport for delivery of a Shared
Vehicle (“Use Fee”), which Use Fee shall contribute in part to the operating cost of the Airport.

B. Audit: All books, records, and receipts of all business transacted upon and within the Airport will be
kept or maintained at a location consented to in writing by the Director and will be available for
inspection and examination during regular office hours by the Director or authorized representatives
of the Authority.  Such written consent may be revoked by the Director at any time.  For the purposes
of determining the accuracy of the required statements of gross revenue, the Director may authorize
the making of a spot test audit and base the findings for an entire period upon such audit, provided
that the audit shall include at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the total time of the period audited.
Lessee herein agrees to pay all reasonable expenses incurred by the Director and all other authorized
representatives of the Authority when such person or persons inspect, examine, or audit books,
records, or receipts of business transacted at the Airport at any location other than the Airport. In
addition, the Director shall have the right at any time during the Term of this Agreement to authorize
an audit of Lessee’s records pertaining to its business operations at the Airport.  Any such audit shall
be undertaken by the Authority’s Internal Audit Department or a reputable firm of independent
Certified Public Accountants satisfactory to the Authority.  The cost of such audit shall be borne by
the Authority, unless results of the audit reveal a discrepancy of more than five percent (5%) between
gross revenue reported in accordance with Article 4 of this agreement and gross revenue as
determined by the audit.  In case of a discrepancy of more than five percent (5%) in favor of the
Authority, the full cost of the audit shall be borne by Turo.

C. Activity Report: On the twentieth (20th) day of each month, Turo shall furnish a true and correct report
signed by an authorized representative of Turo to Authority emailed to ar@duluthairport.com,
detailing the following for the previous month:



Page 6 of 16 

a. The number of drop-offs and pick-ups of Shared Vehicles at the Airport per day that are arranged
or booked through Turo's platform.

b. The number of Shared Vehicles at the Airport per day arranged or booked through Turo's
platform.

c. The number of transactions at the Airport per day arranged or booked through Turo's platform.
d. The gross revenue per each such transaction.
e. The total gross revenue (as defined below) for the month; and
f. The number of Shared Vehicle Owners that, to the knowledge of Turo, operated at the Airport in

the previous month.
D. Gross Revenue: For purposes of this Agreement, the term “gross revenue” shall include:

a. Any income Turo and Shared Vehicle Owner receives under a Shared Vehicle agreement.
b. All time and mileage charges for Shared Vehicles in the Shared Vehicle agreement.
c. Any charges for insurance offered incidental to a Shared Vehicle agreement including but not

limited to accident and personal effects insurance.
d. The amount charged to Airport patrons in the Shared Vehicle agreement for the cost of furnishing

and/or replacing fuel provided by a Shared Vehicle Owner or Turo; an
e. All additional charges not expressly excluded under this provision, such as add-ons for GPS,

child carriers, ski or bicycle roof-top carriers, travel accessories or conveniences, and services
charges.

E. Deductions from Gross Revenue: The following shall be excluded from “gross revenue”:
a. The amount of any federal, state, local sales, or tourism tax separately stated on the Vehicle

Sharing agreement and collected from the Shared Vehicle Driver and remitted to the taxing
authority.

b. The amount of any sum received as insurance proceeds or a judicial judgment or settlement to
restore damage to automobiles or other property of Turo or Owners, or to restore a tangible loss,
theft, or conversion.

c. Amounts received as payment for and administration on behalf of Shared Vehicle Drivers and/or
Shared Vehicle Owners of red-light tickets, parking tickets, tolls, tows, and impound fees, or any
other fees that are separate from the Shared Vehicle Agreement.

d. Any amounts received for any cancellation fees; and
e. Any amounts received by Turo from Shared Vehicle Drivers which are fully passed through to

Shared Vehicle Owners such as post-trip reimbursements, smoking fees, etc. or any other
amounts received in which Turo does not retain any portion thereof.

f. Any discounts separately stated on the vehicle rental contract which are granted at the time the
rental transaction commences and are recorded and reported in separately documented
accounts from non-excludable discounts. Lessee forfeits exclusion of all discounts in the event
otherwise allowable discounts are commingled with any non-excludable amounts. No exclusion
shall be allowed for any amount retained by a third party as a financing discount which may apply
by reason of Lessee's acceptance of credit cards or other credit arrangements. No exclusion
shall be allowed for the portion of retroactive rebates, dividends or refunds to any Airport
Customer upon attainment of a specified volume of rentals attributable to revenue or as part of
any other marketing plan which does not list the discount on the vehicle rental contract at the
commencement of the rental transaction.

g. Taxes and Other Charges: Operator will pay all taxes, assessments, license fees, or other
charges that may be levied or assessed during the term of this Agreement upon or against any
leasehold interests, improvements, or associated equipment on the Designated Areas, or on
account of the transacting of business thereon by Operator, it being understood that Operator
retains the right to contest any taxes so levied or assessed. Taxes levied by reason of occupancy
hereunder shall be in addition to rent paid to Authority under this Agreement. Operator shall
obtain and pay for all permits, licenses, or other authorizations required by Authority of law in
connection with the operation of its business at said Airport.



Page 7 of 16 

h. Survival of Operator’s Duties and Authority’s Rights: The Operator’s duty to maintain books and
records and Authority’s rights under this Agreement to inspect and audit the books and records
of Operator shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Turo shall not intentionally divert, through direct or indirect means, any transactions with Airport 
customers to off-airport locations of Lessee or affiliates of Lessee without including the Gross Revenues 
of such transactions, in Lessee's reported Gross Revenues. Any such intentional diversion of Gross 
Revenues shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the Authority shall have the right to 
immediately terminate this Agreement upon determination by the Authority or its auditors that an 
intentional diversion exists or has occurred. 
Turo shall not modify its accounting treatment or rename or redefine services or products which under 
the terms of this Agreement would be subject to the Percentage Fee unless approved in writing by the 
Authority. 

SECTION 5 
ADVERTISING AND SIGNAGE 

Authority shall produce and install all signage within Operator’s Designated Parking Space Area at 
Operator’s expense. All such signage, including Operator’s corporate name sign, shall conform to 
Authority’s building and design signage standards. 

The right of the Operator to erect signs or to advertise its business at the Airport and within the Terminal 
shall in every case be subject to written approval by Executive Director, with respect to size, form, 
design, material and content. Signage shall be permanent in nature; no temporary promotional banners, 
advertising, or credit card applications on behalf of any entity other than Operator shall be permitted. 
Operator shall not place freestanding signage that is outside its Designated Areas. The cost of 
installation and operation of signs shall be borne by the Operator. No signage, banners, corporate logo, 
regulatory signage, or employee oriented or warning signs will be allowed without the prior written 
consent of Executive Director. 

Operator shall not advertise its business on the Airport premises outside its Designated Parking Area, 
except under a separate written Agreement with Authority or Authority’s Executive Director. 

SECTION 6 
COST OF PEER-TO-PEER VEHICLE SHARING OPERATIONS 

Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Agreement, Operator shall bear at its own expense all 
costs of operating its business, and shall pay in addition to the use fees, all other costs connected with 
the use of the Designated Areas, including but not limited to, maintenance, insurance, taxes, supplies 
and permit and license fees as required by law. 

SECTION 7 
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

A. Defense and Indemnity
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Operator shall indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend
Authority and the City of Duluth (the “City”), their officials, agents and employees, successors and
assigns, individually or collectively, (1) from and against any and all claims including a claim for
contribution or indemnity, demands, causes of action, loss, injury, liability, costs and expenses of
whatsoever kind or nature (including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, disbursements,
court costs, and expert fees) and damages for or related to injury to or death of persons or damage
to property, and (2) from and against any fines in any way arising from or based upon the violation
by Operator, its agents, employees, successors and assigns of any federal, state, or municipal
laws, statutes, resolutions, or regulations, including rules or regulations of the Authority now in



Page 8 of 16 

effect or hereafter promulgated; all arising out of, resulting from, in conjunction with or incident to 
any act or omission of Operator, its officials, agents or employees, successors or assigns, 
Operator’s/Operator’s  performance of obligations under this Agreement, or the use and/or 
occupancy of the Leased Premises or of the Airport by Operator, its officials, agents or employees, 
or successors or assigns, and on ten (10) days’ written notice from the Authority, the Operator 
shall appear and defend all claims and lawsuits against the Authority and/or the Authority growing 
out of any such injury or damage.  

B. Environmental Liability
In addition to the general indemnity stated above, and as part of it, it is specifically agreed between
the parties that Operator shall be responsible in all respects for the  use of or generation of or
release or threatened release of any petroleum based substance or product, or any volatile
organic compound, or any substance classified as a pollutant, contaminant, toxic substance, solid
waste or a "hazardous waste" by either the Environmental Protection Agency of the Government
of the United States or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency by Operator, its officials, agents
or employees, successors or assigns.  Operator shall specifically be responsible for the
disposition of all such waste or substances and for the environmental response activities and
costs, monitoring, or cleanup of any environmental condition deemed by those agencies or either
of them to require environmental response, monitoring or cleanup activities of any kind which
arises directly or indirectly out of the  use of or generation of such substances by Operator, its
officials, agents or employee, successors or assigns in its operations at the Airport; and Operator
specifically agrees that the obligations of Paragraph A above shall apply specifically to any costs
or obligations of Authority arising out of any such disposition, cleanup, or environmental response.

C. Survival
The provision of this Section shall survive the expiration, termination and early cancellation of this
agreement.

D. Insurance
Operator shall carry and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement the
minimum amounts of insurance set forth below.  The Operator shall carry workers' compensation
insurance on all of its employees employed on the Airport.  Operator may request the Authority
to approve alternative types of insurance providing at least equal protection.  All such insurance
shall be in at least the following amounts and shall be in a form acceptable to the Authority and
approved by the City Attorney, shall name the Authority and the City of Duluth as additional
insureds on each liability policy and shall provide for thirty (30) days' written notice to the Authority
of any cancellation or modification thereof.  Certified copies thereof or appropriate certificates of
insurance evidencing the existence thereof shall be delivered to the Authority prior to the
execution of this agreement.  The Authority reserves the right and Operator agrees to revisions
upward or downward in the minimum insurance requirements hereinafter set forth.  All insurance
required under this Agreement shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance
companies organized under the laws of the states of the United States and licensed to do
business in the State of Minnesota.  All insurance policies required below shall be primary and
shall not require contribution from any coverage maintained by the Authority and/or the City.

1. Commercial general liability insurance, including contractual, completed operations, premises
and operations and products liability coverage in an amount of not less than $1,500,000
combined single limit or $1,000,000 bodily injury per occurrence; $1,000,000 property damage
per occurrence and $1,000,000 in aggregate.

2. Owned, non-owned and hired vehicles in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single
limit or $1,000,000 bodily injury per occurrence; $1,000,000 per occurrence.



Page 9 of 16 

3. Worker’s Compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.

E. Insurance Primary: All insurance policies required above shall be primary and shall not require
contribution from any coverage maintained by Authority and/or City.

F. Insurance Not Limitation:  It is understood that the specified amounts of insurance stated in this
paragraph shall in no way limit the liability of Operator under this Section.

G. Disclaimer:  Authority does not represent or guarantee that these types or limits of coverage are
adequate to protect the Operator’s interests and liabilities.  It shall be the obligation and
responsibility of Operator to insure, as it deems prudent, its own personal property, against
damage.  Authority does not have insurance coverage for Operator’s property and Authority
expressly disclaims any and all liability for any and all losses, damage and/or claims to vehicles
and/or personal possessions of Operator.

SECTION 8 
LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS 

Turo shall comply in all material aspects with all Applicable Laws (as defined herein).  For purposes of 
this Agreement, the term “Applicable Laws” shall mean all present and future laws, ordinances, orders, 
directives, rules, codes, regulations and decrees of federal, state and municipal authorities and agencies 
and their respective agencies, departments, authorities and commissions (individually, “Governmental 
Authority” and collectively, “Governmental Authorities”) and all present and future grant assurances 
provided by Authority to any Governmental Authority in connection with Authority's Ownership or 
operation of the Airport and all other rules, regulations, policies and procedures of Authority, as the same 
may be amended, modified or updated from time to time.  For purposes of this Agreement, “Governmental 
Authorities” shall specifically include, without limitation, Authority, City of Duluth, the State of Minnesota, 
the United States Department of Transportation (“DOT”), the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) 
and/or the Transportation Security Administration (“TSA”). Turo shall comply and shall cause Shared 
Vehicle Owners to comply with such additional requirements as may be imposed from time to time by the 
Authority or by any government or agency having jurisdiction over the Airport. Turo agrees to cause all 
Shared Vehicle Owners that operate on Airport property to maintain their vehicles in a safe operating 
condition, properly muffled and producing no visible emissions. Turo shall not allow any Shared Vehicle 
Owner that operates as a Commercial Host (as defined by Turo's website) or as a Rental Vehicle 
Company (as defined by State of Minnesota Statutes), as may be amended from time to time) to operate 
at the Airport.  Turo and Shared Vehicle Owner shall comply with the civil rights provisions set forth in 
Exhibit C. 

SECTION 9 
DEFAULT 

Authority’s Rights Upon Default 
A. Rights Upon Default.  If at any time Operator shall be in default, as defined in this Section, with regard

to the requirements of this Agreement, it shall be lawful for the Authority, and the Authority may:

1. Immediately, or at any time thereafter without further notice to Operator, re-enter into or upon
the Leased Premises under this Agreement or any part thereof and take possession of the
same fully and absolutely without such re-entry representing a forfeiture of the rentals, fees,
and charges to be paid and of the covenants, terms and conditions to be performed by
Operator for the full term of this Agreement, and in the event of such re-entry, the Authority
may proceed with the collection of rentals, fees, and charges to be paid under this Agreement
or to recover properly measured damages.

2. Authority may at its election terminate this Agreement upon written notice in the manner
hereinafter provided and re-enter upon said Leased Premises as of its former estate therein,



Page 10 of 16 

and the Operator covenants in case of such termination to indemnify the Authority against all 
loss of rentals, fees, and charges which the Authority has suffered or paid by reason of such 
termination, during the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  

3. The Authority shall further have all other rights and remedies at law or in equity including
injunctive relief, or summary proceedings for unlawful detainer, and any or all legal remedies,
actions and proceedings shall be deemed cumulative.

B. Default Defined.  "Default" shall be defined when any of the following circumstances exist:

1. If the Operator has failed to pay rentals, fees, charges, or taxes when due hereunder and
such failure to pay shall continue for fifteen (l5) days.

2. Failure to provide and/or maintain the insurance coverages required herein.
3. Operator shall permit any liens on the Leased Premises with the exception of assignments

approved pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or liens contested in accordance with this
Agreement.

4. If the Operator fails in the observance or performance of any of the other terms, covenants
and conditions of this Agreement and such failure shall continue for fifteen (15) days after
Authority has given Operator written notice, or the Operator shall have failed to commence
the corrective action of such failure within fifteen (15) days after such notice and to diligently
prosecute the same where the same cannot be completed within fifteen (15) days.

5. If a petition to reorganize the Operator or for its arrangement of its unsecured debts shall be
filed.

6. If the Operator shall be adjudicated bankrupt.
7. If a receiver or trustee of the Operator's/Operator’s property shall be appointed by any court.
8. If the Operator shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.
9. If all of the interest of the Operator in its property shall be taken by garnishment, attachment,

execution or other process of law.
10. .

SECTION 10 
RIGHT OF ENTRY 

Authority, its officers, agents, and employees shall have the right, without limitation, throughout the term 
of this Agreement to enter upon the Designated Areas for any lawful purpose, including the purpose of 
determining whether Operator is complying with its obligations herein. 

Such entry by Authority shall not be deemed to excuse Operator’s performance of any promise, term, 
condition, or covenant required of it by this Agreement, and shall not be deemed to constitute waiver 
thereof by Authority. 

SECTION 11 
SUBLEASING OR ASSIGNMENT 

Operator shall not sublease, transfer, assign or allow any other person or entity operating rights under 
this Agreement without Authority’s prior written consent. This Agreement is binding on all legal 
representatives, successors or assigns. In no case shall Authority be obligated to consent to any 
sublease, transfer or assignment. 

SECTION 12 
NON-EXCLUSIVITY 

This agreement shall not be construed to be an exclusive agreement, and the Authority shall have the 
right to negotiate and execute substantially similar arrangements with any other individual, firm or 



Page 11 of 16 

corporation for engaging in similar activities within the Terminal/Airfield at the Airport.  The Authority shall 
not, however, during the term of this Agreement, grant to any other individual, firm or corporation, a similar 
concession/agreement upon terms or conditions materially more favorable than those herein granted to 
Operator. 

SECTION 13 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Consent or Approval of Authority and of Executive Director
Where an agreement calls for the consent or approval of the Authority, the same shall be in the form
of a resolution approved by the Authority as provided by law; where the consent or approval of the
Executive Director is required, the same shall be evidence by a written document signed by the
Executive Director or by a person designated by the Executive Director to sign such document.

B. Severability
If any term, condition, or provision of the Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, to any extent, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder thereof and
the application of such terms, provisions, and conditions to persons or circumstances other than
those as to whom it shall be held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and the
Agreement and all the terms, provisions, and conditions hereof shall, in all other respects, continue
to be effective and to be complied with to the full extent permitted by law.

C. Right to Amend
In the event the FAA, or its successors, or the TSA requires modifications or changes in this
Agreement as a condition precedent to the granting of funds for the improvement of the Airport,
Operator agrees to consent to such amendments, modifications, revisions, supplements, or
deletions of any of the terms, conditions, or requirements of this Agreement as may be reasonably
required to obtain such funds; provided, however, that in no event will Operator be required, pursuant
to this subsection, to agree to an increase in the rent or other charges.

D. Attorney’s Fees and Costs
In the event Authority shall prevail in any action or suit or proceeding brought by Authority to collect
rents due or to become due hereunder or any portion thereof or to take possession of the demised
Leased Premises, or to enforce compliance with this Agreement or for the failure to observe any of
the covenants of this Agreement, Operator agrees to pay Authority such sums as the court may
adjudge reasonable as attorneys' fees and costs to be allowed in such action, suit or proceedings.

E. Relationship of Parties
It is understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed as in
any way creating or establishing the relationship of co-partners hereto, or as constituting Operator
as the agent, representative or employee of AUTHORITY for any purpose or in any manner
whatsoever. Operator is to be and shall remain an independent Operator with respect to all services
performed under this Agreement.

F. Subordination to Agreements with the U.S. Government
This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future Agreement between
the Authority and the United States of America or the State of Minnesota relative to the operation or
maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition
precedent to the expenditure of Federal or State funds for the development of the Airport, or to any
security requirements of State or Federal Government, including temporary security procedures or
instructions.



Page 12 of 16 

This Agreement and all provisions hereof shall be subject to whatever right the United States 
Government now has or in the future may have to acquire affecting the control, operation, regulation 
and taking over of said Airport or the exclusive or non-exclusive use of the Airport by the United 
States during the time of war or national emergency. 

G. Force Majeure
If performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement is rendered impossible or is delayed by
reason of strikes, fire, flood, explosion, civil commotion, riot, insurrection, terrorism, or act of God,
then such performance shall be excused if impossible, or postponed for the period of such delay, if
delayed.

H. Modification
Any of the terms of this Agreement may be changed upon the mutual consent of the Authority and
the Operator, but to be valid any such changes must be in writing, dated, and must be executed with
the same formalities as this Agreement. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is
determined to violate any local, state, or federal rule or regulation or is deemed to cause a violation
of any rate covenants, the Agreement shall be modified upon consultation with Operator to cause
such violation to be compliant with such provision and an amendment will be executed on a timely
basis to incorporate the required changes.

I. Entire Agreement
This Agreement, including exhibits constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and
supersedes all prior written and oral agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to
the subject matter hereto.  There are no representations, warranties, or stipulations either oral or
written not herein contained.

J. Waiver
The waiver or breach by AUTHORITY or Operator of any term of this Agreement shall not be
deemed waiver of any subsequent breach of the same term or any other term of this Agreement.

K. Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be
an original as against any Party whose signature appears thereon, but all of which together shall
constitute but one and the same instrument. Signatures to this Agreement transmitted by facsimile,
by electronic mail in “portable document format” (“.pdf”), or by any other electronic means which
preserves the original graphic and pictorial appearance of the Agreement, shall have the same effect
as physical delivery of the paper document bearing the original signature.

L. Notices
Any notice or election herein requested or permitted to be given or served by either party hereto
upon the other, shall be deemed given on the date placed in the mail, correctly addressed, by United
States mail, postage prepaid, or on the date of personal delivery or confirmed facsimile (if, in the
case of a confirmed facsimile, a copy is contemporaneously mailed by first class mail, or delivered
to a messenger for prompt personal delivery). Notices and communications shall be addressed as
follows:

To AUTHORITY: 
Attn: Director of Business Development 
Duluth Airport Authority 
4701 Grinden Drive 



Page 13 of 16 

Duluth, MN 55811 

To Operator: 
Turo Inc. Attn: Airports 
111 Sutter Street, 12th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94104 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the day and date shown 
below. 

Date: ________________________ 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY TURO, INC. 

By: __________________________  By:___________________________ 
President 

By: __________________________  Title: _________________ 
Secretary 



Page 14 of 16 

 EXHIBIT C 

Mandatory Federal Contract Provisions 
GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 

Turo agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to 
ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability 
be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance. This 
provision binds Turo from the solicitation period through the completion of the contract. This provision is 
in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

TITLE VI SOLICITATION NOTICE 

The City of Duluth, Duluth Airport Authority, Duluth International Airport, in accordance with the provisions 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 USC §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, 
hereby notifies all bidders or offerors that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant 
to this advertisement, select disadvantaged business enterprises or will be afforded full and fair 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award. 

COMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS 

During the performance of this contract, Turo, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest, agrees 
as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations: Turo or (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the
Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to 
time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. Nondiscrimination: Turo, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of 
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. Turo will not participate 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, 
including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in 
Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21. 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by Turo for work to be performed under a 
subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor 
or supplier will be notified by Turo of Turo’s obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination 
Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

4. Information and Reports: Turo will provide all information and reports required by the Acts,
the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the 
Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts 
and Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of Turo is in the exclusive possession 
of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, Turo will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal 
Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 
information. 



Page 15 of 16 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of Turo’s noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the 
Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

a. Withholding payments to Turo under the contract until Turo complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: Turo will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in
every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 
Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto. Turo will take action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means 
of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if Turo becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, Turo 
may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor. In addition, 
Turo may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

TITLE VI LIST OF PERTINENT NONDISCRIMINATION 
ACTS AND AUTHORITIES 

During the performance of this contract, Turo, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest agrees 
to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

● Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

● 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

● The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42
USC § 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

● Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

● The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);

● Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

● The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms
“programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients,
subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or
not);

● Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on



Page 16 of 16 

the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation 
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC §§ 12131 – 
12189) as implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 
and 38; 

● The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

● Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

● Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title
VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to
your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

● Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq).



Terminal

Parking Ramp

Corporate Surface Parking

Airport Terminal 
Surface Parking

Airport Terminal Surface Parking

Permit Lot
Crew Parking

Passenger Drop Off

Cell Phone Lot

Commercial Lane

Parking Garage
Surface Parking Entrance

Grinden Drive

G
rin

d
e

n
 D

rive

Airport Road

H
ain

e
s R

o
ad

Exit

Exhibit A
Parking Map

General Traffic Flow

Parking Traffic

Permit & Corporate 
Surface Parking

Rental Car Return

Commercial Traffic

Corporate Garage 
Parking

TURO Parking

TURO Parking

TURO Parking



Terminal

Airport Parking Ramp

Corporate Surface Parking

Permit Lot
Crew Parking

Cell Phone Lot

Parking Garage
Surface Parking Entrance

Grinden Drive

G
rin

d
e

n
 D

rive

Airport Road

H
ain

e
s R

o
ad

Corporate Garage 
Entrance

Commercial Lane

Exit

Exhibit B
Attended Vehicle Exchange Area

General Traffic Flow

Parking Traffic

Permit & Corporate 
Surface Parking

Rental Car Return

Commercial Traffic

Corporate Garage 
Parking

Attended Vehicle Exchange Area -

Airport Terminal 
Surface Parking

Airport Terminal Surface Parking



Duluth Airport Authority 
Federal Aviation Administration 

Air Traffic Control Tower Standard Space Lease 

Terms: 

• October 1, 2024-September 30, 2034

Agreement Overview: 

• Annual rent increase of $58,617

• Water and radon testing requirement-water testing has been completed and
radon will be done in the winter.

• FAA accepted language from previous contract regarding the following:
o FAA responsible for janitorial of exclusive space
o FAA responsible for TRACON electricity

• Space is leased as is with no warranty to make modifications or alterations to
become compliant with current federal, state, or local standards due to the age of
the facility.

Why were the changes in key terms needed/wanted? 

• Previous agreement set to expire.

• FAA required new version of lease template

VII. - F. 



STANDARD SPACE LEASE 
Between 

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 
And 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 
LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

1. Preamble (09/2021) 6.1.1This Lease for real property is hereby entered into by and between Duluth
Airport Authority, hereinafter referred to as the Lessor and the United States of America, acting by
and through the Federal Aviation Administration, hereinafter referred to as the FAA.

2. Space Lease Definitions (07/2023) 6.1.1-3 For purposes of this document, the following definitions
apply;

Contract- refers to this legal instrument used to acquire an interest in real property for the direct
benefit or use by the FAA.  A lease is a contract for the acquisition of real property.  For purposes of
this document, the terms Contract and Lease are interchangeable.

Contractor- refers to the party(ies) awarded a direct procurement contract from the FAA and who
is(are) responsible for performance of contract requirements.  For purposes of this document, the
terms Contractor, Lessor and Offeror are interchangeable.

Government- refers to the United States of America acting by and through the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA).  For purposes of this document, the terms Government and FAA are
interchangeable.

Real Estate Contracting Officer (RECO) - refers to a trained and warranted official, who has the
authority to contract for real property on behalf of the FAA.  For purposes of this document, the
terms RECO and Contracting Officer (CO) are interchangeable.

ANSI/BOMA Office Area (ABOA) - refers to the area where a tenant normally houses personnel,
and/or furniture, for which a measurement is to be computed, as defined by the most current
American National Standards Institute/Building Owners and Managers Association (ANSI/BOMA)
publication.

Full Service Lease- refers to a lease structure where the rent covers all base rent, taxes, insurance,
management, utilities, janitorial and any other operating expenses for the property.

3. Succeeding Contract (09/2021) 6.1.2This contract succeeds DTFACN-15-L-00068 and all other
previous agreements between the parties for the property described in this document.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

2 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

4. Lease Witnesseth (09/2021) 6.1.3Witnesseth: The parties hereto, for the consideration hereinafter
mentioned, covenant and agree as follows:

5. Leased Space Description (07/2022) 6.1.4 The Lessor hereby leases to the Government the
following described premises; Approximately 9,769.5 square feet of administrative, technical, and
storage space in a building located at 4525 Airport Approach Road, Duluth, Minnesota, 55811.

As shown on Floor Plan, marked as Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The Lessor shall provide 18 reserved off-street parking spaces at no additional cost to the
Government. As shown on Parking Layout Plan, marked as Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and
made a part hereof. With respect to compliant accessible parking spaces, see the “Accessibility”
clause.

6. Purpose (09/2021) 6.1.5It is understood and agreed that the use of the herein described premises
shall be related to FAA’s activities in support of the National Airspace System (NAS).

7. Legal Authority (09/2021) 6.2.1This contract is entered into under the authority of 49 U.S.C.
106(l)(6) and (n), which authorizes the Administrator of the FAA to enter into contracts, acquisitions
of interests in real property, agreements, and other transactions on such terms and conditions as the
Administrator determines necessary.

8. Term (09/2021) 6.2.3 To have and to hold, for the term commencing on October 1, 2024 and
continuing through September 30, 2034 inclusive, provided that adequate appropriations are
available from year to year for the consideration herein.

9. Consideration (Standard Space) (09/2021) 6.2.4-1
A. Effective October 1, 2024, the Government shall pay annual rent in the amount of $214,929.00
for the premises, payable in monthly installments at the rate of $17,910.75.
B. Payment shall be made in arrears, without the submission of invoices or vouchers. Payments are
due on the first business day following the end of the payment period and are subject to available
appropriations. The payments shall be directly deposited in accordance with the “Payment by
Electronic Funds Transfer” clause in this contract. Payments shall be considered paid on the day an
electronic funds transfer is made.

C. Payment shall be made in full to: Duluth Airport Authority

10. Termination for Convenience (07/2023) 6.2.5-1The Government may terminate this contract at
any time, in whole or in part, if the Contracting Officer (CO) determines that a termination is in the
best interest of the Government. The CO shall terminate by delivering to the contractor a written
notice specifying the effective date of the termination. The termination notice shall be issued 30 days
before the effective termination date.
After termination, the Contractor may submit a final termination settlement proposal to the CO in the
form and with the certification prescribed by the CO. The proposal must include all documentation
necessary to validate the proposal.
The contractor must submit the proposal no later than one (1) year from the effective date of
termination unless the submission deadline is extended in writing by the CO upon written request of
the contractor within this one (1) year period. However, if the CO determines that the facts justify it,



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

3 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

a termination settlement proposal may be received and acted on after one (1) year or any extension. 
If the contractor fails to submit the proposal within the time allowed, the CO may determine, on the 
basis of information available, the amount, if any, due the contractor because of the termination and 
shall pay the amount so determined. 
After submission of final termination settlement proposal, the Contractor and the Contracting Officer 
may agree upon the whole or any part of the amount to be paid because of the termination.  
If the contractor and the CO fail to agree, the Government will pay the contractor the amounts 
determined by the CO as follows: 
1) The contract price for any unpaid rents;
2) The remaining principal balance of Tenant Improvement allowance as described in the clause
titled “Lessor’s Recovery of Tenant Improvement Allowance in the Event of Termination” within
this contract; and
3) Reasonable costs associated with termination.

If the termination is partial, the contractor may file a proposal with the CO for an equitable 
adjustment of the price(s) of the continued portion of the contract. If agreed upon, the CO may make 
the equitable adjustment. Any proposal by the contractor for an equitable adjustment under this 
clause must be requested within 90 days from the effective date of termination unless extended in 
writing by the CO. 

The contractor may file a claim with the Federal Aviation Administration Office of Dispute 
Resolution for Acquisition based on any determination made by the CO pursuant to this clause. 
Nothing in this clause will obligate the government to spend in excess of available appropriations. 

11. Termination for Default (09/2021) 6.2.5-2
A. Subject to the provision of notice of default to the Lessor, and the provision of reasonable
opportunity for the Lessor to cure the default, the following conditions constitute default by the
Lessor:
i. Prior to Acceptance of the Premises.  Failure by the Lessor to perform all obligations required for
acceptance of the space, to include, but are not limited to, all obligations included within the
statement of work and lease clauses, within the times specified, without such failure in performance
being affirmatively excused, in writing, by the RECO.
ii. After Acceptance of the Premises.  Failure by the Lessor to perform any service, or to make
progress in the work so as to endanger performance; the failure to make any item; or the failure to
satisfy any requirement of this Lease, without such failure being affirmatively excused, in writing,
by the RECO.
B. Grounds for Termination.  The Government may terminate the Lease, in whole or in part, if:
i. after given notice and reasonable opportunity to cure by the Government, the Lessor’s default
persists; or
ii. the Lessor fails to take such actions as necessary to prevent the recurrence of default conditions,
and such conditions substantially impair the Government’s use or occupancy of the Premises, as
determined by the Government.
C. The rights and remedies specified in this clause are in addition to all remedies to which the
Government may be entitled to as a matter of law.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

4 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

12. Excuse   (09/2021) 6.2.5-3
A. The Lessor will not be in default because of any failure to perform the requirements of this Lease
under its terms if the failure arises from causes beyond the control and without the fault or
negligence of the Lessor.
B. Permissible causes for excuse are:
i. acts of God (e.g., fires, floods, pandemics, epidemics, unusually severe weather, etc.),
ii. acts of the public enemy,
iii. acts of the Government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity,
iv. pandemic, epidemic, or quarantine restrictions,
v. strikes, and
vi. freight embargoes. In each instance, the failure to perform must be beyond the control and
without the fault or negligence of the Lessor.
C. Excuse will not be granted when:
i. the Lessor had actual or constructive knowledge prior to the Lease Award Date that he/she could
not perform in accordance with the requirements of the Lease contract;
ii. the conditions of the property prevent performance;
iii. the Lessor, its employees, agents or contractors, by error or omission, fails to perform; or
iv. the Lessor is unable to obtain sufficient financial resources to perform its obligations.
D. The RECO will ascertain the facts and extent of the failure. If the RECO determines that any
failure to perform is excusable, the RECO will revise the delivery schedule subject to the rights of
the Government under the default and termination clauses of this contract.

13. Binding Effect (09/2021) 6.2.6The provisions of this contract and the conditions herein shall be
binding upon, and for the benefit of, the parties and their successors and assigns.  In the event of any
sale or transfer of ownership of the property or any portion thereof, the Government will be deemed
to have attorned to any purchaser, successor, assign, or transferee.  The succeeding owner will be
deemed to have assumed all rights and obligations of the contractor under this contract establishing
direct privity of estate and contract between the Government and said succeeding owner, with the
same force, effect, and relative priority in time and right as if the contract had initially been entered
into between such succeeding owner and the Government.

14. Holdover (07/2023) 6.2.12If after the expiration of the Lease, the Government shall retain
possession of the premises, the Lease shall continue in full force and effect on a month-to-month
basis. Payment shall be made in accordance with the Consideration clause of the Lease at the rate
paid during the Lease term. This period shall continue until the Government shall have signed a new
lease with the Lessor, acquired the property in fee, or vacated the premises.

15. RE Clauses Incorporated by Reference (09/2021) 6.3.0This solicitation or contract, as applicable,
incorporates by reference the provisions or clauses listed below with the same force and effect as if
they were given in full text. Upon request, the RECO will make the full text available, or the full text
may be obtained via internet at https://fast.faa.gov/RPF_Real_Property_Clauses.cfm.

A. Officials Not To Benefit (09/2021) 6.3.0-2
B. Assignment of Claims (09/2021) 6.3.0-3
C. Contracting Officer's Representative (09/2021) 6.3.0-4
D. Contingent Fees (09/2021) 6.3.0-5
E. Anti-Kickback Procedures (09/2021) 6.3.0-6



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

5 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

F. Equal Opportunity  (09/2021) 6.3.0-7
G. Equal Opportunity for Veterans   (04/2022) 6.3.0-8
H. Equal Opportunity for Workers with Disabilities (04/2022) 6.3.0-9

16. Funding Responsibility for FAA Facilities (09/2021) 6.3.6The Contractor agrees that all
Contractor requested relocation(s), replacement(s), or modification(s) of any existing or future FAA
navigational aid or communication system(s) necessitated by Contractor improvements or changes
will be at the expense of the Contractor. In the event that the Contractor requested changes or
improvements interferes with the technical and/or operational characteristics of the FAA's facility,
the Contractor will immediately correct the interference issues at the Contractor’s expense. Any
FAA requested relocation, replacement, or modifications shall be at the FAA's expense. In the event
such relocations, replacements, or modifications are necessary due to causes not attributable to either
the Contractor or the FAA, funding responsibility shall be determined by mutual agreement between
the parties, and memorialized in a Supplemental Agreement.

17. Accessibility (09/2021) 6.3.7The building and the leased premises must be accessible to persons
with disabilities pursuant to the Architectural Barriers Act and Rehabilitation Act as detailed in the
Architectural Barriers Act Accessibility Standards (ABAAS) 41 CFR Parts 102-71, 102-72, et al,
and all applicable state and local accessibility laws and regulations. ABAAS is available at
www.access-board.gov.

Subject to the exception set forth herein, separate ABAAS compliant restroom facilities for men and
women must be provided on each floor where the Government leases space. Separate ABAAS
compliant restroom facilities must not be required if due to the age of the building, design layout, or
other structural requirements, it is technically infeasible to do so. In the event the Lessor determines
that it is technically infeasible to provide separate ABAAS compliant restroom facilities, the Lessor
must provide the basis for the determination of technical infeasibility in writing to the RECO,
together with all supporting documentation.

With respect to all restrooms, water closets, and urinals, they must not be visible when the exterior
door is open. Each restroom must contain toilet paper dispensers, soap dispensers, paper towel
dispensers, waste receptacles, a sanitary napkin dispenser, and receptacle for each toilet in the
women’s restroom, disposable toilet seat cover dispensers, a convenience outlet, and hot and cold
water. Two or more drinking fountains must be provided. One drinking fountain shall be a low unit
commonly called a wheelchair unit and one drinking fountain shall comply with standing persons'
requirements, unless sufficient space is not available to provide both a wheelchair unit and a unit for
standing persons. In such instance, and subject to the approval of the RECO, a single unit able to
accommodate both disabled and non-disabled persons must be provided.

In addition, compliant accessible parking spaces must be provided in accordance with the ABAAS
requirements as detailed in 42 U.S.C. 4151 and as set forth in the ABAAS Scoping Requirements.

18. Changes (07/2023) 6.3.8
A. The RECO may at any time, by written order via Supplemental Agreement, make changes within
the general scope of this Lease in any one or more of the following:
i. Work or services;



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

6 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

ii. Facilities or space layout;
iii. Amount of space/land;
iv. Any other change made within the scope of this lease.
B. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the Lessor’s cost or time required for
performance under this lease, the RECO will modify this Lease to provide one or more of the
following:
i. An equitable adjustment in the rental rate;
ii. A lump sum equitable adjustment;
iii. An equitable adjustment of the annual operating costs per rentable square foot; or
iv. An adjustment to the delivery date.
C. The Lessor must assert its right to an adjustment by written proposal under this clause within
thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the change order.  Lessor’s request must include all
documentation necessary to validate his/her right to an adjustment.
D. Nothing in this clause excuses the Lessor from proceeding with the change as directed.
E. Absent written supplemental agreement the Government is not liable to the Lessor under this
clause.

19. Failure in Performance (09/2021) 6.3.16In the event the Contractor fails to perform a service,
provide an item, or satisfy a requirement under this Contract, the Government may:
A. perform the service, provide the item, or satisfy the requirement itself, and abate the rent by its
actual costs (including administrative costs) incurred in doing so,
B. not correct the Contractor’s performance and abate the rent by an amount reasonably calculated to
approximate the decreased value of the Contract arising from the Contractor’s failure to perform, or
C. pursue termination of the contract under the “Termination” clause(s) in this Contract.

20. No Waiver (09/2021) 6.3.17No failure by the Government to insist upon strict performance of any
provision of this Contract or failure to exercise any right, or remedy consequent to a breach thereof,
will constitute a waiver of any such breach in the future.

21. Non-Restoration (09/2021) 6.3.18It is hereby agreed between the parties that, upon termination of
its occupancy, including any holdover period, the Government shall have no obligation to restore
and/or rehabilitate, either wholly or partially, the property that is the subject of this contract. It is
further agreed that the Government may abandon in place any or all of the structures and equipment
installed in or located upon said property by the Government during its tenure. Such abandoned
equipment shall become the property of the contractor.

22. Quiet Enjoyment (09/2021) 6.3.25The Contractor warrants that they have good and valid title to the
premises, and rights of ingress and egress, and warrants and covenants to defend the Government’s
use and enjoyment of said premises against third party claims.

23. Damage by Fire or Other Casualty or Environmental Hazards (09/2021) 6.3.26 If the premises
is partially or totally destroyed or damaged by fire or other casualty or if environmentally hazardous
conditions are found to exist so that the premises is untenantable as determined by the Government,
the Government may agree to allow restoration/reconstruction, or may elect to terminate the
contract, in whole or in part, immediately by giving written notice to the contractor and no further
rental will be due.  The Government shall have no duty to pay rent while the premises are
unoccupied.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

7 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

24. Interference (09/2021) 6.3.28In the event that FAA operations interfere with the Contractor’s
facility, the Contractor must immediately notify the RECO.  The FAA will begin assessment of
interference immediately upon notification.
If the Contractor or its facility interferes with the FAA’s equipment and the Contractor either knows
of, or is notified by the FAA, of the interference, the Contractor will immediately remediate the
interference at its own cost.
Notification under this clause must include the following information, if known:
A. type of interference,
B. the commencement date of the interference, and
C. the root cause of the interference.

25. Alterations (09/2021) 6.3.29The Government shall have the right during the term of this Lease,
including any extensions thereof, to make alterations, attach fixtures, and erect structures or signs in
or upon the premises hereby leased, which fixtures, alterations or structures so placed in, on, upon,
or attached to the said premises shall be and remain the property of the Government and may be
removed or otherwise disposed of by the Government. The parties hereto mutually agree and
understand, that no restoration rights shall accrue to the Lessor for any alterations or removal of
alterations to the leased premises under this Lease, and that the Government shall have the option of
abandoning alterations in place, when terminating the Lease, at no additional cost.

26. Hold Harmless (01/2024) 6.3.30 In accordance with and subject to the conditions, limitations and
exceptions set forth in the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. Ch. 171,  the Government will be
liable to persons damaged by any personal injury, death or injury to or loss of property, which is
caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission of an employee of the Government while acting
within the scope of his office or employment under circumstances where a private person would be
liable in accordance with the law of the place where the act or omission occurred. The foregoing
shall not be deemed to extend the Government's liability beyond that existing under the Act at the
time of such act or omission or to preclude the Government from using any defense available in law
or equity.

27. Compliance with Applicable Laws (09/2021) 6.3.31 The Lessor shall comply with all federal, state
and local laws applicable to the Lessor as owner or Lessor, or both, of building or premises,
including, without limitation, laws applicable to the construction, ownership, alteration or operation
of both or either thereof, and will obtain all necessary permits, licenses and similar items at Lessor’s
expense. This Lease shall be governed by federal law.
The Government will comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to and enforceable
against it as a tenant under this lease, provided that nothing in this lease shall be construed as a
waiver of the sovereign immunity of the Government.

28. Examination of Records (09/2021) 6.3.32The Comptroller General of the United States, the
Administrator of FAA or a duly authorized representative of either shall, until three (3) years after
final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Lessor’s
directly pertinent books, documents, paper, or other records involving transactions related to this
contract.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

8 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

29. Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment (09/2021) 6.3.33
A. The Government agrees, in consideration of the warranties and conditions set forth in this clause,
that this contract is subject and subordinate to any and all recorded mortgages, deeds of trust and
other liens now or hereafter existing or imposed upon the premises, and to any renewal, modification
or extension thereof. It is the intention of the parties that this provision shall be self-operative and
that no further instrument shall be required to effect the present or subsequent subordination of this
contract. Based on a written demand received by the RECO, the Government will review and, if
acceptable,  execute such instruments as the contractor may reasonably request to evidence further
the subordination of this contract to any existing or future mortgage, deed of trust or other security
interest pertaining to the premises, and to any water, sewer or access easement necessary or desirable
to serve the premises or adjoining property owned in whole or in part by the contractor if such
easement does not interfere with the full enjoyment of any right granted the Government under this
contract.
B. No such subordination, to either existing or future mortgages, deeds of trust or other lien or
security instrument shall operate to affect adversely any right of the Government under this contract
so long as the Government is not in default under this contract.  Contractor will include in any future
mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument to which this contract becomes subordinate, or
in a separate non-disturbance agreement, a provision to the foregoing effect. Contractor warrants that
the holders of all notes or other obligations secured by existing mortgages, deeds of trust or other
security instruments have consented to the provisions of this clause, and agrees to provide true
copies of all such consents to the RECO promptly upon demand.
C. In the event of any sale of the premises or any portion thereof by foreclosure of the lien of any
such mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument, or the giving of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure, the Government will be deemed to have attorned to any purchaser, purchasers,
transferee or transferees of the premises or any portion thereof and its or their successors and
assigns, and any such purchasers and transferees will be deemed to have assumed all obligations of
the contractor under this contract, so as to establish direct privity of estate and contract between
Government and such purchasers or transferees, with the same force, effect and relative priority in
time and right as if the contract had initially been entered into between such purchasers or
transferees and the Government; provided, further, that the RECO and such purchasers or transferees
shall, with reasonable promptness following any such sale or deed delivery in lieu of foreclosure,
execute all such revisions to this contract, or other writings, as shall be necessary to document the
foregoing relationship.
D. None of the foregoing provisions may be deemed or construed to imply a waiver of the
Government's rights as a sovereign.

30. Change of Ownership/Novation (07/2023) 6.3.34-1
A. If during the term of the Lease, title to the Property is transferred or the Lessor changes its legal
name, the Lessor shall notify the Government within five days of the transfer of title/change of
name.
B. The Government and the Lessor must execute a Supplemental Agreement acknowledging the
transfer of title or name change.
C. If title to the Property is transferred, the Government, the original Lessor (Transferor), and the
new owner or assignee (Transferee) shall execute a Novation Agreement providing for the transfer
of Transferor's rights and obligations under the Lease to the Transferee. When executed on behalf of



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

9 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

the Government, a Novation Agreement will be made part of the Lease via Supplemental 
Agreement.  
D. The RECO may request additional information (e.g., copy of the deed, bill of sale, certificate of
merger, contract, court decree, articles of incorporation, operation agreement, partnership certificate
of good standing, etc.) from the Transferor or Transferee to verify the parties' representations
regarding the transfer.
E. If the RECO determines that recognizing the Transferee as the Lessor will not be in the
Government's interest, the Transferor shall remain fully liable to the Government for the Transferee's
performance of obligations under the Lease, notwithstanding the transfer. Under no condition shall
the Government be obligated to release the Transferor of obligations prior to (a) the rent
commencement date; and (b) any amounts due and owing to the Government under the Lease that
have been paid in full or completely set off against the rental payments due under the Lease.
F. As a condition for being recognized as the Lessor and entitlement to receiving rent, the Transferee
must register in the System for Award Management (SAM) for purposes of “All Awards”, and
complete all required representations and certifications within SAM and the “Representation
Regarding Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment” in this
contract.
G. If title to the Property is transferred, rent shall continue to be paid to the original Lessor, subject
to the Government's rights as provided for in this Lease. The Government's obligation to pay rent to
the Transferee shall commence on the effective date of the Supplemental Agreement incorporating
the Novation Agreement. The Supplemental Agreement will not be issued until the Government has
received all information reasonably required by the RECO, the Government has determined that
recognizing the Transferee as the Lessor is in the Government's interest (which determination will be
prompt and not unreasonably withheld), and the Transferee has met all conditions specified in sub-
paragraph F.

31. Sublease  (09/2021) 6.3.35The Government reserves the right to sublease the space covered under
this Lease to another agency or private party. In subleasing this space to another party, the
Government is not relieved from its responsibilities under the terms of this Lease unless otherwise
agreed upon with the Lessor.

32. Integrated Agreement   (09/2021) 6.3.36This Contract, upon execution, contains the entire
agreement of the parties, and no prior written or oral agreement, express or implied shall be
admissible to contradict the provisions of this Contract.

33. Unauthorized Negotiating   (09/2021) 6.3.37In no event shall the Contractor enter into negotiations
concerning the premises with anyone other than the RECO or his/her designee.

34. Inspection of Leased Premises (09/2021) 6.3.38To ensure a safe and healthy work environment for
government employees, agents, and assigns, and to ensure the Contractor’s performance under this
contract, the Government at all times and places during the term of the contract has the right to:
A. inspect the leased premises and all other areas of the building to which access is necessary,
B. test all performance requirements under the contract, and
C. perform any necessary sampling and evaluation to ensure contract compliance.
If inspection reveals a contractual non-conformance, then the Government may require the
Contractor to perform in accordance with the contract requirements at no increase in contract amount



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

10 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

or the Government, in its sole discretion, may perform the work itself in accordance with the 
“Failure in Performance” clause of this Contract. 

The presence or absence of a government inspection does not relieve the Contractor from any 
contract requirement, nor is the inspector authorized to change any term or condition of the contract 
without the RECO’s written authorization.   

35. Contract Disputes (09/2021) 6.3.39
A. All contract disputes arising under or related to this contract shall be resolved through the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA) dispute resolution system at the Office of Dispute Resolution for
Acquisition (ODRA) and shall be governed by the procedures set forth in 14 C.F.R. Parts 14 and 17,
which are hereby incorporated by reference. Judicial review, where available, will be in accordance
with 49 U.S.C. 46110 and shall apply only to final agency decisions. A contractor may seek review
of a final FAA decision only after its administrative remedies have been exhausted.
B. The filing of a contract dispute with the ODRA may be accomplished by mail, overnight delivery,
hand delivery, or by facsimile, or if permitted by Order of the ODRA, by electronic filing. A
contract dispute is considered to be filed on the date it is received by the ODRA during normal
business hours. The ODRA's normal business hours are from 8:30 am to 5:00 pm Eastern Time.
C. Contract disputes are to be in writing and shall contain:
i. The contractor's name, address, telephone and fax numbers and the name, address, telephone and
fax numbers of the contractor's legal representative(s) (if any) for the contract dispute;
ii. The contract number and the name of the Contracting Officer;
iii. A detailed chronological statement of the facts and of the legal grounds for the contractor's
positions regarding each element or count of the contract dispute (i.e., broken down by individual
claim item), citing to relevant contract provisions and documents and attaching copies of those
provisions and documents;
iv. All information establishing that the contract dispute was timely filed;
v. A request for a specific remedy, and if a monetary remedy is requested, a sum certain must be
specified and pertinent cost information and documentation (e.g., invoices and terminated checks)
attached, broken down by individual claim item and summarized; and
vi. The signature of a duly authorized representative of the initiating party
D. Contract disputes shall be filed at the following address:
i. For filing by hand delivery, courier or other form of in-person delivery:

Office of Dispute Resolution for Acquisition 
Federal Aviation Administration 
600 Independence Avenue SW., Room 2W100 
Washington, DC 20591; or 

For filing by U.S. Mail: 

Office of Dispute Resolution for Acquisition 
Federal Aviation Administration 
800 Independence Avenue SW 
Washington, DC 20591 
[Attention: AGC-70, Wilbur Wright Bldg. Room 2W100]; or 



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

11 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Telephone: (202) 267-3290 
Facsimile: (202) 267-3720 
Alternate Facsimile: (202) 267-1293; or 

ii. Other address as specified in 14 CFR Part 17.
E. A contract dispute against the FAA shall be filed with the ODRA within two (2) years of the
accrual of the contract claim involved. A contract dispute by the FAA against a contractor
(excluding contract disputes alleging warranty issues, fraud or latent defects) likewise shall be filed
within two (2) years after the accrual of the contract claim. If an underlying contract entered into
prior to the effective date of this part provides for time limitations for filing of contract disputes with
the ODRA which differ from the aforesaid two (2) year period, the limitation periods in the contract
shall control over the limitation period of this section. In no event will either party be permitted to
file with the ODRA a contract dispute seeking an equitable adjustment or other damages after the
contractor has accepted final contract payment, with the exception of FAA claims related to
warranty issues, gross mistakes amounting to fraud or latent defects. FAA claims against the
contractor based on warranty issues must be filed within the time specified under applicable contract
warranty provisions. Any FAA claims against the contractor based on gross mistakes amounting to
fraud or latent defects shall be filed with the ODRA within two (2) years of the date on which the
FAA knew or should have known of the presence of the fraud or latent defect.
F. A party shall serve a copy of the contract dispute upon the other party, by means reasonably
calculated to be received on the same day as the filing is to be received by the ODRA.
G. After filing the contract dispute, the contractor should seek informal resolution with the
Contracting Officer.
H. The FAA requires continued performance with respect to contract disputes arising under this
contract, in accordance with the provisions of the contract, pending a final FAA decision.
I. The FAA will pay interest on the amount found due and unpaid from (1) the date the Contracting
Officer receives the contract dispute, or (2) the date payment otherwise would be due, if that date is
later, until the date of payment. Simple interest on contract disputes shall be paid at the rate fixed by
the Secretary of the Treasury that is applicable on the date the Contracting Officer receives the
contract dispute and then at the rate applicable for each 6-month period as fixed by the Treasury
Secretary until payment is made. Interest will not accrue for more than one year.
J. Additional information and guidance about the ODRA dispute resolution process for contract
disputes can be found on the ODRA website at http://www.faa.gov.

36. Organizational Conflict of Interest (01/2023) 6.3.47
A. The offeror or Contractor warrants that, to the best of the Contractor's knowledge and belief, there
are no relevant facts or circumstances which could give rise to an organizational conflict of interest
(OCI), as defined in the FAA Acquisition Management System, "Organizational Conflicts of Interest
(T3.1.7)", or that the Contractor has disclosed all such relevant information.

B. The offeror or Contractor agrees that if an actual or potential OCI is discovered after award, the
Contractor must make a full disclosure in writing to the Contracting Officer.  The disclosure must
include a mitigation plan describing actions the Contractor has taken or proposes to take to avoid,



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

12 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

mitigate, or neutralize the actual or potential conflict.  Changes in the Contractor’s relationships due 
to mergers, consolidations or any unanticipated circumstances may create an unacceptable 
organizational conflict of interest which may necessitate disclosure. 

C. The FAA reserves the right to review and audit OCI mitigation plans as needed after award, and
to reject mitigation plans if the OCI, in the opinion of the Contracting Officer, cannot be avoided, or
mitigated.

D. The C0ntracting Officer may terminate this contract for convenience in whole or in part, if it
deems such termination necessary to avoid an OCI.  If the Contractor was aware of a potential OCI
prior to award or discovered an actual or potential conflict after award and did not disclose or
misrepresented relevant information to the Contracting Officer, the Government may terminate this
contract for default, debar the Contractor from government contracting, or pursue such other
remedies as may be permitted by law or this contract.

E. The Contractor further agrees to insert provisions which must conform substantially to the
language of this clause including this paragraph (d) in any subcontract or consultant agreement
hereunder.

37. System for Award Management – Real Property (04/2022) 6.4.1-1
(a) Definitions. As used in this clause:
“Registered in the SAM database” means that the Contractor has entered all mandatory information,
including the Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) or the Electronic Funds Transfer indicator, into the
SAM database.
“System for Award Management (SAM) Database” means the primary Government repository for
Contractor information required for the conduct of business with the Government.
“Unique Entity Identifier (UEI)” (also known as the Unique Entity ID) means a number or other
identifier used to identify a specific commercial, nonprofit, or Government entity.  See
www.sam.gov for the designated entity for establishing Unique Entity Identifiers.
“Electronic Funds Transfer indicator” means a 4-characher suffix to the Unique Entity Identifier.
This 4-character suffix may be assigned at the discretion of the business concern to establish
additional SAM records for identifying alternative Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) accounts for the
same parent concern.
“Contractor” is synonymous with “Offeror” “Lessor” or “Grantor” for real property leases,
easements, or other contracts.

(b)(1) By submission of an offer, the Contractor acknowledges the requirement that 
 a prospective awardee will be registered in the SAM database prior to award, during performance, 
and through final payment of any contract. 
(2) The Contractor must enter, in the space below, the contractor’s UEI that identifies the
Contractor’s name and address exactly as stated in the offer. The UEI will be used by the RECO to
verify that the Contractor is registered in the SAM database.
UEI: C93LN8QH7WY7
(c) If the Contractor does not have a UEI, it should contact www.sam.gov directly to obtain one.
The Contractor should be prepared to provide the following information:
(1) Company* legal business name.

http://www.sam/
http://www.sam/
http://formati/


FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

13 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(2) Tradestyle, doing business, or other name by which your entity is commonly recognized.
(3) Company Physical Street Address, City, State, and Zip Code.
(4) Company Mailing Address, City, State and Zip Code (if separate from physical).
(5) Company Telephone Number.
(6) Date the company was started.
(7) Number of employees at your location.
(8) Chief executive officer/key manager.
(9) Line of business (industry).
(10) Company Headquarters name and address (reporting relationship within your entity).

* Individual (non-corporate) lessors/grantors of real property that are not normally in the business of
leasing real property should consider leasing to the Government as a separate business (usually a
sole proprietorship) then provide the pertinent ownership information as a sole proprietor when
providing this information to www.sam.gov.

(d) If the offeror does not become registered in the SAM database in the time prescribed by the
RECO, the RECO may proceed to award to the next otherwise successful registered offeror.

© Processing time should be taken into consideration when registering. Offerors who are not 
registered should consider applying for registration immediately upon receipt of the solicitation. 

(f) The Contractor is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the data within the SAM
database, and for any liability resulting from the Government’s reliance on inaccurate or incomplete
data. To remain registered in the SAM database after initial registration, the Contractor is required to
review and update, on an annual basis from the date of initial registration or subsequent updates, its
information in the SAM database to ensure it is current, accurate and complete. Updating
information in the SAM does not alter the terms and conditions of this contract and is not a substitute
for a properly executed contractual document.

(g)(1)(i)If a Contractor has legally changed its business name, “doing business as” name, or division 
name (whichever is shown on the contract), or has transferred the assets used in performing the 
contract, but has not completed the necessary requirements regarding novation and change-of-name 
agreements in AMS Procurement Guidance, the Contractor must provide the responsible RECO a 
minimum of one business day's written notification of its intention to: 

(A) Change the name in the SAM database;
(B) Comply with the requirements of AMS regarding novation and change-of-name agreements; and
(C) Agree in writing to the timeline and procedures specified by the RECO. The Contractor must
provide the RECO notification and sufficient documentation to support the legally changed name
and then execute the appropriate supplemental agreement provided by the RECO to document the
name change.

(ii) If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of paragraph (g)(1)(i) of this clause, or
fails to perform the agreement at paragraph (g)(1)(i)(C) of this clause, and, in the absence of a

http://www.sam/


FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

14 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

properly executed novation or change-of-name agreement/supplemental agreement, the SAM 
information that shows the Contractor to be other than the Contractor indicated in the contract will 
be considered to be incorrect information within the meaning of the "Suspension of Payment" 
paragraph of the Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer- System for Award Management clause of 
this contract. 

(2) The Contractor must not change the name or address for EFT payments or manual payments, as
appropriate, in the SAM record to reflect an assignee for the purpose of assignment of claims.
Assignees must be separately registered in the SAM database. Information provided to the
Contractor's SAM record that indicates payments, including those made by EFT, to an ultimate
recipient other than that Contractor will be considered to be incorrect information within the
meaning of the "Suspension of payment" paragraph of the Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer-
System for Award Management clause of this contract.
(h) Contractors may obtain information on registration and annual confirmation requirements via the
internet at http://www.sam.gov or by calling 866-606-8220.

38. Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer- System for Award Management (09/2021) 6.4.2-1
A. Method of payment.
i. Unless waived by the RECO, all payments by the Government under this contract will be made by
electronic funds transfer (EFT), except as provided in paragraph (A)(ii) of this clause. As used in this
clause, the term "EFT" refers to the funds transfer and may also include the payment information
transfer.
ii. In the event the Government is unable to release one or more payments by EFT, the Contractor
agrees to either:
a. Accept payment by check or some other mutually agreeable method of payment; or
b. Request the Government to extend the payment due date until such time as the Government can
make payment by EFT (but see paragraph (D) of this clause).
B. Contractor's EFT information. The Government will make payment to the Contractor using the
EFT information contained in the System for Award Management (SAM) database. In the event that
the EFT information changes, the Contractor must be responsible for providing the updated
information to the SAM database.
C. Mechanisms for EFT payment. The Government may make payment by EFT through either the
Automated Clearing House (ACH) network, subject to the rules of the National Automated Clearing
House Association, or the Fedwire Transfer System. The rules governing Federal payments through
the ACH are contained in 31 CFR Part 210.
D. Suspension of payment. If the Contractor's EFT information in the SAM database is incorrect,
then the Government need not make payment to the Contractor under this contract until correct EFT
information is entered into the SAM database; and any invoice or contract financing request will be
deemed not to be a proper invoice for the purpose of prompt payment under this contract. The
prompt payment terms of the contract regarding notice of an improper invoice and delays in accrual
of interest penalties apply.
E. Liability for uncompleted or erroneous transfers.
i. If an uncompleted or erroneous transfer occurs because the Government used the Contractor's EFT
information incorrectly, the Government remains responsible for
a. Making a correct payment;
b. Paying any prompt payment penalty due; and



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

15 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

c. Recovering any erroneously directed funds.

ii. If an uncompleted or erroneous transfer occurs because the Contractor's EFT information was
incorrect, or was revised within 30 days of Government release of the EFT payment transaction
instruction to the Federal Reserve System, and
a. If the funds are no longer under the control of the payment office, the Government is deemed to
have made payment and the Contractor is responsible for recovery of any erroneously directed
funds; or
b. If the funds remain under the control of the payment office, the Government will not make
payment, and the provisions of paragraph (D) of this clause will apply.
F. EFT and prompt payment. A payment will be deemed to have been made in a timely manner in
accordance with the prompt payment terms of this contract if, in the EFT payment transaction
instruction released to the Federal Reserve System, the date specified for settlement of the payment
is on or before the prompt payment due date, provided the specified payment date is a valid date
under the rules of the Federal Reserve System.
G. EFT and assignment of claims. If the Contractor assigns the proceeds of this contract as provided
for in the assignment of claims terms of this contract, the Contractor must require as a condition of
any such assignment, that the assignee must register separately in the SAM database and will be paid
by EFT in accordance with the terms of this clause. Notwithstanding any other requirement of this
contract, payment to an ultimate recipient other than the Contractor, or a financial institution
properly recognized under an assignment of claims, is not permitted. In all respects, the requirements
of this clause will apply to the assignee as if it were the Contractor. EFT information that shows the
ultimate recipient of the transfer to be other than the Contractor, in the absence of a proper
assignment of claims acceptable to the Government, is incorrect EFT information within the
meaning of paragraph (d) of this clause.
H. Liability for change of EFT information by financial agent. The Government is not liable for
errors resulting from changes to EFT information made by the Contractor's financial agent.
I. Payment information. The payment or disbursing office will forward to the Contractor available
payment information that is suitable for transmission as of the date of release of the EFT instruction
to the Federal Reserve System. The Government may request the Contractor to designate a desired
format and method(s) for delivery of payment information from a list of formats and methods the
payment office is capable of executing. However, the Government does not guarantee that any
particular format or method of delivery is available at any particular payment office and retains the
latitude to use the format and delivery method most convenient to the Government. If the
Government makes payment by check in accordance with paragraph (A) of this clause, the
Government will mail the payment information to the remittance address contained in the SAM
database.

39. Work Performance (09/2021) 6.5.2All work in performance of this Lease shall be done by skilled
workers or mechanics and shall be acceptable to the RECO. The RECO retains the right to reject the
Lessor’s workers 1) if such are either unlicensed, unskilled, or otherwise incompetent, or 2) if such
have demonstrated unacceptable performance in connection with work carried out in conjunction
with this Lease. In the event of such rejection, the Lessor shall offer substitute/replacement workers,
subject to the approval of the RECO.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

16 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

40. Construction Coordination (09/2021) 6.5.14A pre-construction meeting must be held at the facility
at least one week prior to the commencement of any construction, renovation, remodeling, or repair
within the leased premises or common use areas connected to or integrated with the leased premises.
The Contractor is responsible for planning, scheduling and coordinating the pre-construction
meeting with the RECO and the Government’s local supervisor or manager responsible for the
facility. Any FAA issues or concerns with respect to the construction, renovation, remodeling or
repair require full resolution before the project starts.

41. Wiring for Telephones (09/2021) 6.5.17The Government reserves the right to provide its own
telephone service in the space to be leased. It may have inside wiring and telephone equipment
installed by the local telephone company or a private contractor. Alternately, the Government may
consider using inside wiring installed by the Lessor, if available. However, the final decision will be
made by the Government.

42. Installation of Antennas, Cables & Other Appurtenances   (09/2021) 6.5.18 The Government
shall have the right to install, operate and maintain antennas, wires and supporting structures,
including any linking wires, connecting cables and conduits atop and within buildings and structures,
or at other locations, as deemed necessary by the Government. The Government will coordinate with
the Lessor when installing antennas, cables, and other appurtenances.

43. Doors (09/2021) 6.6.1 Exterior doors must be weather tight, equipped with cylinder locks and door
checks, automatic door closures and open outward. The Lessor must furnish the Government at least
two master keys and two keys for each lock. Interior doors must be solid cored and at least 32 by 80
inches with a minimum opening of 32 inches and be of sturdy construction. Fire doors must conform
to NFPA Standard No. 80. As designated by the Government, doors must be equipped with non-
removable hinge pins, and locks with 7-pin removable cores. The Government shall provide cores.
Locks, locking arrangements and latches must be in accordance with local building and fire codes, as
well as OSHA 29 CFR 1910.

44. Lighting (09/2021) 6.6.2Modern, diffused, energy efficient fixtures must be provided that maintain
a uniform lighting level of 50 foot candles at working surfaces. Emergency lighting must provide at
least 0.5 foot candles of illumination throughout the exit path, including exit access routes, exit
stairways, or other routes such as passageways to the outside of the building. Additionally, normal
and emergency egress lighting must comply with the requirements of local building and fire codes,
as well as, the Life Safety Code NFPA 101.

45. Adhesives and Sealants   (09/2021) 6.6.3The Lessor shall use adhesives and sealants that contain
no formaldehyde, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), or heavy metals.

46. Ceilings   (09/2021) 6.6.4Ceilings must have acoustical treatment with a flame spread of 25 or less
and smoke development rating of 50 or less.

47. Floor Load (09/2021) 6.6.5 All adjoining floor areas shall be:

A. Of a common level not varying more than 1/4 inch over a 10-foot, 0-inch horizontal run in
accordance with the American Concrete Institute standards,
B. Non-slip, and
C. Accepted by the RECO.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

17 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Under floor surfaces shall be smooth and level. Office areas shall have a minimum live load capacity 
of 50 pounds per square foot plus 20 pounds per square foot for moveable partitions. Storage areas 
shall have a minimum live load capacity of 100 pounds per square foot including moveable 
partitions. A report showing the floor load capacity, at no cost to the Government, by a registered 
professional engineer may be required by the RECO. Calculations and structural drawings may also 
be required.  

48. Painting  (09/2021) 6.6.6All surfaces must be newly painted with low-VOC, non-lead based paints
in colors acceptable to the Government. All surfaces must be repainted after working hours at
Lessor’s expense at least once every 5 years. Such repainting includes the moving and returning of
the furniture, including dismantling, moving and re-assembling the Government’s systems furniture,
if directed by the Government, at the Lessor’s expense. Any existing lead-based paint must be
properly maintained and managed per existing federal, state, and local regulatory requirements. If
there is chipping, flaking, or peeling paint in the leased premises during the period of Government
occupancy, it must be sampled for lead at the Lessor’s expense. If the paint contains lead, it must be
abated at the Lessor’s expense. This could be performed either by removal or sealing with an
encapsulating material.

49. Display Advertising (09/2021) 6.6.7If the leased premises are solely for Government use, no
advertising matter shall be constructed on or over the premises, unless authorized by the RECO.

50. Erection of Signs (07/2022) 6.6.8The Government has the right to erect on or attach to the Lessor's
premises such signs as may be required to clearly identify the Government's facility or to post
Government policies, rules, and regulations. Signs so erected will remain the property of the
Government and will be removed from the premises upon termination of the lease.

51. Window and Floor Covering  (09/2021) 6.6.9 All exterior windows shall be equipped with window
covering. Floors will be carpeted with a commercial grade of carpet acceptable (carpet tiles or carpet
broadloom) to the Government. Existing floor and window coverings may be accepted at the
discretion of the RECO; however, prior to occupancy all carpeting and window coverings shall be
cleaned.

At no additional cost to the Government, the Lessor shall replace carpeting at least every 8 years
during Government occupancy or any time during the lease when:
A. Backing or underlayment is exposed,
B. There are noticeable variations in surface color or texture, and/or
C. The condition of the carpet is such that it presents a clear and present danger to pedestrians.
Replacement includes moving and return of furniture including dismantling, moving and re-
assembling the Government’s systems furniture if directed by the Government.

52. Seismic Safety for Equipment (09/2021) 6.6.12All Lessor-installed equipment, either Government
provided or Lessor provided, shall be installed in strict accordance with the latest available edition of
the International Building Code (IBC) at the time of execution of this contract and the DOT
Specification FAA-G-2100H to ensure proper anchoring to protect personnel during a seismic event.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

18 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

53. Services, Utilities, and Maintenance of Premises (10/2022) 6.7.1The Lessor will maintain the
demised premises, including but not limited to, the building grounds, all equipment, fixtures and
appurtenances furnished by the Lessor under this Lease, in a good, clean and tenantable condition.

The Lessor will maintain landscape plants, lawns, walkways, and parking areas.  The Lessor will 
also remove snow, ice, and any other obstructions from the entrances, walkways, and parking areas 
around the premises, prior to and during normal business hours set forth below. 

The Lessor will provide the labor, materials, equipment and supervision necessary to ensure good 
repair and tenantable condition.    

Utility and maintenance services supplied to space that houses technical equipment will be supplied 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

The Government has the right to use appurtenant areas and facilities. The Government has unlimited 
access to the leased premises 24 hours per day, seven days per week, including, as applicable, the 
access to, and use of, electrical services, toilets, lights, elevators, and Government office machines at 
no additional cost.  Such access allows the Government to service Government-owned technical 
equipment, or to perform other mission-critical related duties, as it determines necessary in its sole 
and absolute discretion.   

In addition to such other services as are set forth elsewhere in this Contract, the Lessor will provide 
the following: 
A. Electricity (except TRACON – Room 207)
B. Water (hot and cold) and sewer
C. Potable water (see “Drinking Water” clause)
D. Restroom cleaning and supplies, daily (public/common areas only)
E. Window washing twice yearly (except tower cab windows)
F. Initial and replacement lamps, tubes and ballasts
G. Exterior and interior door locks and hardware – designed to accept 7-pin removable cores
supplied by the Government; and
H. Snow Removal and Ground Maintenance

54. Utilities not provided by the Lessor  6.7.1-2 The Lessor shall provide a separate meter for
electrical service required for Room 207 (TRACON) and is identified as Meter #300802. Said meter
will measure FAA usage only and the FAA is responsible to pay for cost incurred on a monthly
basis.  This utility cost is not included as part of the rental consideration.  In addition, the Lessor
shall provide proration of the cost of utilities for the Administrative Building (excluding TRACON
space) and is reflected in Lessor’s Annual Cost Statement accordingly.

55. Janitorial Services  6.7.2 The Government shall provide janitorial services for leased premises. The
Lessor shall provide janitorial services for the public areas, entrances, and all other common areas
and shall provide replacement of supplies.
– The Lessor must select environmentally preferable janitorial cleaning products, such as those that



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

19 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

meet or are equivalent to Green Seal Standard GS-37 and/or the EPA Safer Choice label. 
B. The Lessor shall provide to facility management the FAA Safety Data Sheets (SDS) for all
chemicals used for cleaning purposes prior to their use at the facility.
i. Selection of Paper Products – The Lessor shall select paper and paper products (i.e., bathroom
tissue and paper towels) with recycled content conforming to the Environmental Protection Agency's
(EPA) Comprehensive Procurement Guideline (CPG).

56. HVAC (09/2021) 6.7.3All heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems that service the leased
space must maintain a temperature range of 68-72 degrees Fahrenheit year-round or as dictated in
the most recent version of ASHRAE Standard 62, “Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality”
and ASHRAE Standard 55, “Thermal Environmental Conditions for Human Occupancy”. These
temperatures must be maintained during hours of operation (as dictated by the lease) throughout the
leased premises and service areas regardless of outside temperatures. An automatic control system
will be provided to ensure compliance with heating and air conditioning provisions included in this
contract.

In order to ensure that there is no degradation of air quality or air flow in the leased premises during
the term of the lease, Lessor agrees to perform preventative maintenance on all HVAC units in
accordance with the corresponding manufacturers operations and maintenance manuals (e.g. check
for defects, lubricate, make adjustments, change the filters, cleaned and make other necessary
service requirements). Lessor also agrees to service the VAV boxes annually (on or before each
lease anniversary date) and provide the service date to the RECO and FAA facility manager. Such
service will include checking the temperature ranges, checking all speeds on each fan, cleaning the
fans and other components, replacing defective parts and completing other necessary repairs and
maintenance.

57. Landscaping (09/2021) 6.7.4
A. Where conditions permit, the site shall be landscaped for low maintenance and water
conservation with plants that are either native or well-adapted to local growing conditions.

B. Landscape management practices shall prevent or minimize pollution and storm water runoff by:
i. Employing practices which avoid or minimize the need for fertilizers and pesticides;
ii. Prohibiting the use of the 2,4-Dichlorophenoxyacetic Acid (2,4-D) herbicide and
organophosphates; and
iii. Composting/recycling all yard waste.

C. The Lessor shall use landscaping products with recycled content required by Environmental
Protection Agency's (EPA's) Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines (CPG) for landscaping
products. Refer to EPA's CPG web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-
guideline-cpg-program.

58. Pest Control (09/2021) 6.7.5Pesticide application to exterminate and control pests within the leased
premises must be performed per periodic schedule for preventative maintenance and according to
need with 24-hour notification to the FAA facility management. Prior to any addition/change in type
of pesticides or other chemical pest control, Lessor must provide 48-hour written notice with
applicable Safety Data Sheet(s) (SDS) to be provided to the FAA facility management.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

20 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Herbicides/pesticides are not to be applied near the outside air intakes of the building when the 
HVAC system is in operation, nor within the leased premises during normal working hours or when 
the HVAC system is in operation.  

59. Fire and Life Safety Requirements (09/2021) 6.8.3The facility, its systems and appurtenances
must be in compliance with the following fire and life safety (FLS) requirements:

A. Construction features of the building must comply with state and local building codes in effect at
the time of construction or most recent alteration.
B. Maintenance and operations of the building must comply with the current edition of state and
local fire safety and fire prevention codes.
C. Construction features, maintenance and operations of the building must meet or exceed the
minimum level of fire and life safety specified by OSHA 29 CFR 1910.

Where compliance with the literal requirements of these standards has not been achieved, the Lessor 
must document, in writing to the Government, the specific deviation(s) from these standards and the 
equivalencies or alternative methods used by the Lessor as alternative methods of compliance. Each 
approach used as an alternative method of compliance must be documented in accordance with the 
Equivalency and Technical Documentation requirements of NFPA 101, signed by a Fire Protection 
Engineer, licensed in the subject property’s state, and a copy must be provided to the RECO.  

As provided in this section, all codes, standards, orders and directives refer to the current edition in 
place at the signing of this contract. If construction or alterations to the  premises are undertaken at 
any time during the term of this contract, fire protection and life safety systems must be brought into 
compliance where required by applicable codes and standards according to the then-current edition 
of local codes and standards and all requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910. The party initiating the 
construction or alterations is responsible for funding the upgrade of fire and life safety systems, 
construction or alteration to the facility must never decrease the level of fire and life safety provided. 

Regardless of local code requirements, when the premises (including garage areas under contract by 
the Government) is on the 6th floor or above, or below grade, automatic sprinklers are required. All 
Airport Traffic Control Towers must meet the requirements of OSHA’s Alternate Standard for Fire 
Safety in Airport Traffic Control Towers and the NFPA 101. Furthermore, buildings serving 
National Airspace System (NAS) air traffic control operations and constructed after June 2012, must 
be fully protected with an automatic, electrically supervised sprinkler system designed and installed 
in accordance with the requirements of NFPA 13. 

When space is located in multi-tenant buildings, the Lessor is responsible for the following: 

i. Development of a building Emergency Action Plan (EAP) and Fire Prevention Plan.
ii. Publishing and making copies of the EAP and Fire Prevention Plan, and making them available to
all FAA occupants.
iii. Conducting fire or other emergency evacuation drills, at least annually.
iv. Conducting review and modification of the EAP and Fire Prevention Plan at least annually.
v. Inviting FAA representation to develop, review and modify the EAP and Fire Prevention Plan.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

21 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

60. Fall Protection (09/2021) 6.8.4The Contractor must ensure proper fall protection safety systems are
in place for all work areas where Government personnel are required to perform work at four feet or
more above the next lowest level on fixed ladders and within access points to elevated work areas in
accordance with FAA Order 3900.19, FAA Occupational Safety and Health Policy, 29 CFR 1910,
Occupational Safety and Health Standards (General Industry), 29 CFR 1926 Subpart M, Safety and
Health Regulations for Construction, and applicable regulatory required American National Standard
Institute (ANSI) Standards. All such elevated work surfaces (platforms, catwalks, roofs, etc.) must
have OSHA compliant guardrails, railings, toe boards and/or parapets where applicable to meet
OSHA and ANSI requirements as referenced herein.

61. Environmental and Occupational Safety Health (EOSH) Requirements for ATCT (09/2021)
6.8.5-The Contractor must provide space, services, equipment, and conditions that comply with the
following EOSH standards:

A. 29 CFR 1910, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards (General
Industry)
B. 29 CFR 1926, Safety and Health Standards (Construction)
C. OSHA The Alternate Standard for Fire Safety in Airport Traffic Control Towers (For ATCTs
only)
D. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety Code
E. FAA Order 3900.19, FAA Occupational and Health Policy
F. FAA Standard HF-STD-001, Human Factors Design Standard
G. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 70, National Electrical Code, and NFPA 70E,
Electrical Safety in the Workplace
H. Local and state EOSH regulations
I. Local and state fire codes and building codes.
Federal, state and local EOSH (OSHA and EPA) standards and building codes must be complied
with when accomplishing any cleaning, construction, renovation, remodeling, maintenance activities
or testing done in or on the premises and areas connected to or integrated with the premises.
Additionally, whenever FAA standards require work processes or precautions to be provided, the
Contractor will coordinate with the FAA before and during the work so that the proper requirements
are met.

Any equipment designed, installed, or used that presents a potential safety hazard must be marked 
with appropriate warning labels or placards, in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.145, Specifications for 
Accident Prevention Signs and Tags, FAA HF-STD-001, Human Factors Design Standard, Chapter 
12.16, Safety Labels and Placards, American National Standards Institute (ANSI) Standard Z535.4, 
Product Safety Signs and Labels, and FAA-G-2100H, Electronic Equipment, General Requirements, 
Section 3.3.5.4.  

62. Recycling (09/2021) 6.8.6Where state or local law, code, or ordinance requires recycling programs
(including those for mercury containing lamps) for the space, the Contractor shall comply with state
and/or local law, code, or ordinance. In all other cases, the Contractor must establish a recycling
program for paper, corrugated cardboard, glass, plastics, and metals to the extent practicable and
where local markets for those recovered materials exist. The Contractor agrees, upon request, to



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

22 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

provide the Government with additional information concerning recycling programs maintained in 
the building and in the space after lease execution.  

63. Indoor Air Quality (09/2021) 6.8.7The Contractor must control contaminants at the source and/or
operate the space in such a manner that the indicator levels are not exceeded for carbon monoxide
(CO), carbon dioxide (CO2), and formaldehyde (CH2O). The indicator levels for office area are as
follows: CO less than 5 parts per million (PPM); CO2 - 700 PPM above outdoor air; CH2O - 0.027
PPM. All indoor air contaminant levels in the space must be kept below appropriate OSHA
regulations or OSHA required consensus standards. Air quality systems cleaning is required to
prevent the growth of mold, mildew and bacteria. Any visual evidence of these will require
immediate sampling and remediation. Moisture/standing water must be controlled to prevent the
growth of these.

During working hours, ventilation must be provided in accordance with the latest edition of
ANSI/American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)
Standard 62, Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality and ASHRAE Standard 55, Thermal
Environmental Conditions for Human Occupancy.

The Contractor must investigate indoor air quality (IAQ) complaints immediately and must
implement controls including alteration of building operating procedures (e.g., adjusting air intakes,
adjusting air distribution, cleaning and maintaining heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC)
systems, etc.). The Government is responsible for addressing IAQ problems resulting from its own
activities.

The Contractor must provide SDS to FAA facility management for all chemicals and cleaning
solutions at least 72 hours prior to their use in the FAA spaces or other areas of the buildings that
might affect air quality in the FAA space(s). Materials should contain low or no Volatile Organic
Compounds (VOC) and additional ventilation may be required when using chemicals and cleaning
solutions.

64. Mold Growth Identification and Control (09/2021) 6.8.8The contractor must prevent mold growth
and excessive levels of moisture and humidity. Adequate air quality, moisture control and facility
cleaning are required to prevent the growth of mold, mildew, and bacteria.  Any visual evidence of
mold requires immediate sampling and remediation by the contractor.

Following a water-intrusion event, the contractor must identify the water source and immediately
implement water extraction and drying efforts. Once the water source is identified, the contractor
must take action to prevent additional water damage and ensure that permanent fixes are in place
prior to build-back and restoring building materials. Within 24-48 hours of water damage from clean
water sources (e.g., water supply lines, rainwater, and snowmelt from rooftops), all building
materials must be dried to a moisture level that will prevent mold growth.

All porous materials contaminated with sewage or other Category 2 (e.g., washing machine
overflows, toilet overflows, and non-feces waters) or Category 3 (sewage backups and overflows
from beyond toilet traps, feces, floodwaters, and groundwater intrusion) water sources must be
discarded. All non-porous material must be cleaned and disinfected.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

23 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Mold remediation and cleaning must be conducted using recognized industry methods and practices 
(e.g. Institute of Inspection, Cleaning and Restoration Certification (IICRC) S500 Standard and 
Reference Guide for Professional Water Damage Restoration, IICRC-S520 Standard and Reference 
Guide for Professional Mold Remediation, 2008, and National Air Duct Cleaners Association 
(NADCA): Assessment, Cleaning and Restoration of HVAC Systems, ACR 2006). State   
requirements concerning mold remediation, contractors training and licensing must be followed. 

The contractor must coordinate with the FAA facility management and RECO regarding all mold 
remediation operations. The FAA must be afforded the opportunity to provide input in the mold 
remediation process. Biocides must be used cautiously and in accordance with EPA requirements. A 
Certified Industrial Hygienist (CIH) must pre-approve the use of EPA-approved biocides in air 
conveyance systems. 

65. Drinking Water (09/2021) 6.8.9The contractor must provide drinking water in the space that meets
the standards prescribed in the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. 300.  Acceptable potable water
must meet EPA’s primary drinking water standards with contaminants being less than established
Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) and action levels.  In cases where state and/or local
authorities have their own standards, potable water must meet those or federal standards, whichever
is more stringent.

The contractor must test the sources of drinking water in the space (faucets, drinking water
fountains, ice machines, etc.) on a periodic basis, but no less than every three (3) years, to ensure
water quality (e.g., lead, copper, total coliforms). If the contractor performs plumbing and/or
renovation work in the space that impacts the drinking water (i.e., replacement of water lines), the
contractor must test the drinking water in the system affected by the plumbing and/or renovation
work. If at any time, the FAA or contractor’s drinking water test results are not acceptable under the
EPA’s primary drinking water, and/or state and local authorities’ standards as described above, the
Lessor must immediately correct the deficiencies. The contractor must notify the Government prior
to performing all tests and provide a copy of any test report to the RECO and facility management or
their designee.

66. Halon (09/2021) 6.8.10Halon may not be used in any FAA space.

67. Radon Air Levels (09/2021) 6.8.11Contractor must provide the FAA with a Radon Evaluation
Report for the facility when requested. Radon air levels in FAA premises must not exceed the level
of 4.0 picocuries per liter (pCi/L). If radon levels are found to be at or above 4.0 pCi/L, the
contractor must immediately notify the RECO and FAA facility management of its finding and its
plan of corrective action, including testing, to ensure radon air levels are maintained below 4.0 pCi/L
at all times. Radon testing shall be done by a radon professional certified according to state and local
requirements using US EPA approved testing methods.

68. Asbestos (09/2021) 6.8.12The contractor must ensure that FAA personnel are protected from
asbestos hazards, in accordance with:

A. 29 CFR 1910.1001, Asbestos (General Industry)
B. 29 CFR 1926.1101, Asbestos (Construction)



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

24 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

C. 40 CFR 763, Subpart E, Asbestos Containing Materials in Schools, Asbestos Hazard Emergency
Response Act (AHERA)
D. 40 CFR 61, Subpart M, National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP)
E. State and local asbestos regulations

The contractor warrants that, notwithstanding inspection and acceptance by the Government or any 
provision concerning the conclusiveness thereof, all space under this contract, including, but not 
limited to; space above suspended ceilings in the leased space, air plenums elsewhere in the building 
that service the leased space, engineering spaces in the same ventilation zone as the leased space, 
public spaces in the same ventilation zone as the leased space, and public spaces and common use 
spaces (e.g., lobbies, hallways) will, at the time of acceptance and during the term of this Lease, 
including all extensions thereof, comply with asbestos regulatory requirements. 

All facilities are required to have a current asbestos building survey or an asbestos free certification 
(in accordance with federal, state or local regulations, and including sampling of all materials that 
have the potential to contain asbestos) conducted by a qualified inspector, including a visual 
examination and sampling of building materials. All asbestos identification survey reports must be 
sent to the RECO and FAA facility management.  

The RECO must notify the contractor in writing of any failure to comply with asbestos requirements, 
within five (5) days after the discovery thereof. If Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs) are found 
to be in the leased space, either prior to acceptance or during the course of the lease agreement, the 
Government reserves the right to require the contractor, at no cost to the Government, to take 
corrective action as required by OSHA, EPA, state and local requirements. In accordance with these 
regulations, the contractor must post asbestos warning labels and signs in accordance with OSHA 
regulations.  

In addition, all construction by the contractor is required to comply with OSHA, EPA, state and local 
requirements for asbestos. Prior to the start of any construction, renovation or maintenance activities 
that impact the building, the contractor must determine whether ACM will or could be released as 
part of the work. If ACM will or could be released, the contractor must notify the FAA and take 
corrective actions to prevent FAA employees from exposure to asbestos fibers. Corrective actions 
must be coordinated with the FAA at least 30 days prior to the start of any construction, renovation 
or maintenance activities that impact the building. 

After ACM remediation is performed, the contractor must adhere to regulatory required post-
asbestos abatement air monitoring requirements. As a part of this process, the contractor must 
provide the RECO and the FAA facility manager with an asbestos re-inspection report indicating the 
location and condition of all remaining ACM in the FAA leased areas and common areas of the 
facility. If the contractor supplies the janitorial or maintenance contracts, those employees must also 
be informed of the presence and location of asbestos at the facility. 
“Corrective Action“, as used in this clause, means the removal, encapsulation or enclosure of ACM. 
All corrective actions must be conducted by licensed asbestos abatement contractors in accordance 
with OSHA, EPA, state, local and FAA requirements. 



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

25 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

69. Warranty of Space 6.8.13 Space is leased as is with no warranty to make modifications or
alterations to be become compliant with current federal, state and local standards due to the age of
the facility. The space is not limited to that set forth in this contract, but also includes space above
suspended ceilings in the leased space, air plenums elsewhere in the building that service the leased
space, engineering spaces in the same ventilation zone as the leased space, public spaces in the same
ventilation zone as the leased space, and public spaces and common use spaces (e.g., lobbies,
hallways).

70. Electrical Safety (09/2021) 6.8.14The contractor must ensure electrical safety requirements are met,
including grounding, bonding, shielding, control of electrostatic discharge (ESD), and lightning
protection requirements, in accordance with:

A. 29 CFR 1910, Subpart S, Electrical
B. FAA Standard HF-STD-001, Human Factors Design Standard, Chapter 12.4, Electrical Hazards
C. DOT Specification FAA-G-2100H, Electronic Equipment, General Requirements
D. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 70, National Electrical Code
E. NFPA 70E, Electrical Safety in the Workplace
F. American National Standards Institute/Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
(ANSI/IEEE) Standard 1100-2005, Recommended Practice for Powering and Grounding Electrical
Equipment
G. DOT Standard FAA-STD-019F, Lightning and Surge Protection, Grounding, Bonding and
Shielding Requirements for Facilities and Equipment

The contractor must ensure that electrical equipment and infrastructure meets minimum clear 
working space requirements in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.303 and NFPA 70 Article 110.26, and 
is maintained and documented in accordance with NFPA 70E. Any change in the electrical 
equipment requires review of the current arc flash warning labels to determine if the arc flash 
warning labels posted meet the current safety requirements.  

71. Facility Security (01/2024) 6.9.1
Security requirements for Government occupied space must meet the baseline level of protection
security countermeasures based upon the facility security level (FSL) and type of facility covered by
this Lease. The security countermeasures for each FSL and type are identified in FAA Order
1600.69 FAA Facility Security Management Program (as amended).  The security countermeasures
identified below are tailored specifically for the type of facility covered by this Lease. The Lessor
shall provide or make accommodation to provide for all the security countermeasures required for
the leased premises covered by this Lease agreement:

None

The local Servicing Security Element (SSE) will determine the security countermeasures that are 
required for the leased space and shall conduct a final security assessment of the building.  If that 
assessment indicates that additional security countermeasures are required to the Premises, those 
countermeasures shall be contracted and paid for under separate contract at the Government’s 
expense and subject to the availability of funds.  The Lessor shall provide maintenance services to 



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

26 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

the security upgrades installed by the Lessor within the leased premises and covered under this 
Lease.  

72. Foreign Nationals as Contractor Employees (04/2022) 6.9.2
a) Definition. “Foreign National” is any citizen or national of a country other than the United States
who has not immigrated to the United States and is not a Legal Permanent Resident (LPR) of the
United States.
b) Each contractor or subcontractor employee under this contract, having access to FAA facilities,
sensitive information, or resources must be a citizen of the United States, or a foreign national who
has been lawfully admitted for permanent residence as evidenced by a Permanent Resident CardI-
551, or who presents other evidence from the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Service that
employment must not affect his/her immigration status.
c) Foreign Nationals proposed under this contract must meet the following conditions in accordance
with FAA Order 1600.1F, chapter 8, paragraph 10:
(1) Must have resided within the United States for a minimum of the last three (3) years unless a
waiver of this requirement is requested and approved in accordance with the requirements stated in
FAA Order 1600.1F, chapter 8, paragraph 10;
(2) A risk or sensitivity level designation can be made for the position; and
(3) The appropriate security-related background investigation can be adequately conducted, as
determined by the Office of Security and Hazardous Materials (ASH) Office of Personnel Security
(AXP).
d) Foreign Nationals proposed under this contract must meet the following additional conditions:
(1) Provide a current unexpired passport and their place of birth in order to  begin the background
investigation process in accordance with FAA Order 1600.1F, Personnel Security Program; and,
(2) Successfully pass an export control review as outlined in FAA Order 1240.13 FAA Export
Control Compliance.
e) Interim suitability requirements may not be applied unless the position is low/moderate in risk,
and/or temporary, and/or is not in a critical area position.

73. Real Estate Contractor Personnel Suitability Requirements (01/2024) 6.9.3
1. No contractor employee, subcontractor, or consultant will be allowed

unescorted access to any FAA facility;  
access to FAA classified information;   
access to FAA *Sensitive Unclassified Information (SUI); or   
access to FAA systems or resources   

unless they have been authorized by the FAA Office of Personnel Security (AXP).    

*SUI is defined as unclassified information, in any form including print, electronic, visual, or aural
forms, which is protected from uncontrolled release to persons outside the FAA and indiscriminate
dissemination within the FAA. It includes aviation security, homeland security, and protected critical
infrastructure information. SUI may include information that may qualify for withholding from the
public under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).

The lessor, employee, consultant, contractor or subcontractor may be required to sign a Non-



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

27 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Disclosure Agreement (NDA) prior to being allowed access to SUI and other information of a 
confidential nature that is owned by, produced by or otherwise under the control of the Unites States 
Government.  The NDA establishes a recipient’s responsibilities with respect to safeguarding 
sensitive information from being shared with unauthorized parties and the possible consequences of 
a recipient’s failure to do so.    

2. Consistent with FAA Order 1600.1F, AXP must approve designated risk levels for the positions
under the contract, to be determined by the FAA Operating Office (the organization with the
requirement) in coordination with the Contracting Officer (CO) or designee, using the OPM Position
Designation Automated Tool (PD Tool).

3. For all contractor employees, subcontractors, or consultants requiring access to FAA facilities,
classified information, sensitive unclassified information, systems, or resources, the prime contractor
must submit to their responsible AXP office and CO or their designee, a point of contact (POC) who
will be responsible for entering all contractor applicant data, to include subcontractor data, into the
Vendor Applicant Portal (VAP) system (AXP will provide the user with access to the VAP) for
security processing. The contractor must not enter contractor employees in VAP unless they have a
legitimate need for unescorted access to FAA facilities, classified information, sensitive unclassified
information and/or systems according to the terms of the contract.  Contractor employees who will
not require the aforementioned types of access or who would be under escort of other badged
personnel are not to be entered in VAP.

4. If an applicant has had a previous US Government conducted background investigation, which
meets the investigative requirements for the position and meets established reciprocity guidelines, it
will be accepted by the FAA. The FAA reserves the right to conduct further investigations, including
requesting additional information from the applicant, if necessary.

5. If no previous investigation exists, or if the previous investigation does not meet investigative
requirements for the position, AXP will:

Send the applicant an e-mail (this step may be delegated to VAP POC) with instructions for 
completing investigative requirements;   

Instruct the applicant how to enter and complete a background investigation questionnaire through 
the electronic Questionnaires for Investigation Processing (eQIP) or successor system;   

Provide where to upload, or send/fax applicable forms; and   

Provide instructions regarding fingerprinting (any fees associated with obtaining fingerprints are not 
the responsibility of the FAA).   

The contractor employee must complete the investigative requirements and submit required material 
within 15-calendar days of receiving the e-mail from AXP.  All items submitted directly to AXP 
must reference the contract number.   



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

28 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

6. No contract employee, subcontractor, or consultant, identified as requiring a background
investigation under the contract will be granted unescorted access to FAA occupied space unless
AXP has authorized them. Authorization will be in the form of an Interim or Final Suitability email
notification from AXP to the VAP POC and CO.

7. No contract employees, subcontractor, or consultant will be issued a FAA Personal Identity
Verification (PIV) card, or other FAA issued ID card, unless they have been granted a favorable
Interim or Final suitability determination from AXP.

8. The Contractor VAP POC must inform the CO or their designee and submit a VAP removal
record in VAP within twenty-four (24) hours after any contractor employee resigns, is terminated,
transferred, or otherwise removed from the contract. If the FAA issued the contract employee a PIV
card, or other ID card, the contractor must collect the card within twenty-four hours, and return it to
AXP no later than five business-days after the employee's termination or transfer.

9. The CO or their designee will provide notice to the contractor within 24 hours after receipt of a
determination that the contractor or its employee has not complied with security-related contract
requirements, security-related FAA Orders, or if a contractor employee's conduct is objectionable or
contrary to the public interest, or inconsistent with the best interest of national security. The notice
will instruct the contractor to remove its employee's access to FAA premises or networks, or
otherwise remedy the contractor's performance. The FAA Facility Manager has authority to remove
a contractor employee’s access to FAA occupied space when the Facility Manager determines a
contractor employee’s conduct is objectionable or contrary to the public interest.  The Facility
Manager must notify the CO within 24-hours of such removal.

10. The contractor must immediately comply with the CO or their designee's direction to remedy its
security performance at the contractor's expense, including removing the employee from FAA
premises and networks. If the contractor employee is working under an interim suitability
authorization, the contractor must take appropriate action, including the removal of the contractor
employee’s access, at their own expense. Once action has been taken, the contractor must report the
action via the VAP within the timeframe prescribed in this clause.

11. After coordination with AXP, the CO or the FAA Facility Manager or their designee may require
contractor employees to submit any other security information deemed reasonably necessary to
protect the interests of the FAA. This includes submitting to additional fingerprinting, responding to
letters of inquiry, and background reinvestigations required under Federal Investigative Standards. In
this event, the contractor must provide, or cause each of its employees to provide, such security
information to AXP. Failure to cooperate with security processing will result in an unfavorable
suitability determination.

12. The contractor must retrieve a current roster report through VAP on a quarterly basis to ensure
the roster is accurate, and immediately correct any discrepancies with the responsible AXP office.
The prime contractor is responsible for the accuracy of their subcontractors’ rosters as well.

13. Contractor employees subject to the requirements of this clause must take the FAA Security



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

29 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Awareness Virtual Initiative (SAVI) training within 90 days of reporting to work and annually 
thereafter. This training is available on the FAA's Electronic Learning Management System (eLMS). 
Contractor employees without access to eLMS must contact the FAA Facility Manager for a copy of 
the training.  

14. The prime contractor must contact the CO or their designee, and AXP within one business-day in
the event an employee (who has been cleared for FAA access by AXP) is arrested (i.e., taken into
custody by law enforcement for any offenses, other than minor traffic offenses) or is involved in
theft of government property or the Contractor becomes aware of any information that may raise a
question about the suitability of a contractor or subcontractor employee.

15. Failure to submit information required by this clause within the time required may result in
suspension or revoked access to FAA assets for the contractor’s employee, which may be
determined by the CO to be a material breach of the contract.

16. If subsequent to the effective date of this contract, the security classification or security
requirements under this contract are changed by the Government and if the changes cause an
increase or decrease in direct contract costs or otherwise affect any other term or condition of this
contract, the contract will be subject to an equitable adjustment.

17. The contractor agrees to insert terms that conform substantially to the language of this clause,
excluding any reference to the Changes clause of this contract, in all subcontracts under this contract
that involve access and where the exceptions under FAA Order 1600.1F do not apply.

74. Access to FAA Systems and Government Issued Keys and Personal Identification Verification
(PIV) Cards (01/2024) 6.9.4
1. It may become necessary for the Government to grant access to FAA systems or issue
Government property, to include FAA-issued ID cards, or sensitive unclassified information (SUI),
to contractor employees. The FAA shall have the authority to restrict or deny, unescorted access into
leased space to anyone. The FAA shall also have the authority to determine the number of PIV cards
to be issued to contractor personnel and subcontractors, based on operational necessity.  Individuals
requiring non-routine access for maintenance purposes shall be escorted by FAA personnel and be
issued appropriate FAA visitor badges. Prior to or upon completion or termination of the work under
the contract, the contractor must return all such Government property and SUI to FAA’s Facility
Manager or their designee.

2. Improper use, possession or alteration of Government property is subject to penalties under Title
18, USC 499, 506, 701, and 1030.

3. In the event such Government property is lost, stolen, or not returned, the contractor understands
and agrees that the Government may, in addition to any other withholding provision of the contract,
withhold the value of the asset for each item of Government property not returned. If the
Government property, to include FAA-issued ID cards, or SUI is not returned within 30-calendar-
days from the date the withholding action was initiated, any amount so withheld is forfeited by the
contractor. Regarding FAA Personally Identifiable Information (PII) contained within portable
devices that are lost, stolen, or not returned, the contractor must additionally report such a loss, theft,



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

30 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

or non-return within one (1) hour to the FAA Security Operations Center (phone (866)-580-1852 
(Option 1) or email 9-AWA-SOC@faa.gov).  

4. Access to aircraft ramp/hangar areas is authorized only to those persons displaying a flight line
identification card and for vehicles, with a current ramp permit issued pursuant to Title 49, Part
1542, Code of Federal Regulations.

5. The Government retains the right to inspect inventory, or audit Government property or sensitive
information issued to the contractor in connection with the contract and do so at the convenience of
the Government. Any items not accounted for, to the satisfaction of the Government, will be
assumed to be lost and the provisions of section (3) of this clause apply.

6. The issuance of Government property, to include SUI, to a Contractor must be approved by
FAA’s Facility Manager or designee who will require the Contractor’s employee to sign a receipt for
each item. Lost or stolen Government property or SUI must immediately be reported to the
Contracting Officer (CO), Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR), or FAA’s facility manager
or designee (as applicable) and the FAA SOC at the telephone number and email address listed
under section (3) above.

7. Each Contract employee, during all times of on-site performance at an FAA facility, must
prominently display his/her current and valid FAA PIV card, or other FAA issued ID card, on the
front portion of his/her body between the neck and waist. Each FAA ID cardholder must not affix
pins, stickers, or other item to the card.

8. Prior to any contractor employee obtaining a FAA ID Card or other government property, in
accordance with FAA Order 1600.78 the contractor is required to:

a. Enter data for each employee into the VAP as described in the "Real Estate Contractor Personnel
Suitability Requirements" clause.

b. The Office of Personnel Security (AXP) will determine whether a favorable interim and/or final
suitability determination can be granted to:

i. Exercise reciprocity when applicable.:

ii. Initiate the contractor applicant into the electronic Questionnaires for Investigations Processing
(eQIP), or subsequent system, so that the applicant can complete the investigative forms.

c. Interim suitability cannot be granted until all background investigation forms are completed, and
fingerprints and signature pages are submitted to AXP.

d. Authorization for the contractor employee to begin work on the FAA contract will be an Interim
or Final Suitability notification from AXP.

9. To obtain a FAA PIV card, in accordance with FAA Order 1600.78, the contractor employee will



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

31 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

be provided instructions by AXP for obtaining an FAA PIV or other ID card upon being granted 
authorization to begin work. a. The instructions will include how to submit an identification Card 
Application (DOT 1681) online at https://idms.faa.gov/1681, accessible only from within an FAA 
facility. The application must be approved by the CO or COR.   

b. The contractor employee will be notified when the identification card application has been
approved and is ready for processing by the FAA Identification Card issuer (e.g., Trusted Agent).

10. Off-Boarding. The contractor is responsible for ensuring final off-boarding is accomplished for
all departing contractor employees. This includes termination, resignation, retirement, death, change
of employment status (i.e., transferring from a contractor to a FAA employee), transfer to another
FAA contract, and (with CO approval) extended leave of absence. The Contractor may appoint an
off-boarding coordinator to oversee the off-boarding process.

a. For each departing employee having access to FAA facilities and/or Information Technology (IT)
systems, the Contractor must submit a completely filled out and signed "FAA Contractor Employee
Off-Boarding Checklist" (located in FAA Procurement Forms) to the Facility Manager or their
designee no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the employee's departure. The Contractor must
ensure that the Checklist confirms that all applicable Government property (including FAA-issued
ID cards) and sensitive information (including Classified National Security Information (CNSI) has
been collected and access to all FAA assets has been terminated.

b. When the Contractor is not collocated or within local driving distance of the responsible AXP
office, the Contractor must collect the PIV Card or other FAA issued ID card, and any other tokens
and provide to the CO or COR within one (1) business day of receiving the card/tokens from the
departing employee.

c. In event that the Contractor employee departs without completing the Checklist, the Contractor is
responsible for completing and submitting the Checklist on the employee's behalf. If the departing
Contractor employee served as the Property Custodian for the FAA contract, the Contractor must
designate a new Property Custodian and ensure accountability of all property under the contract, or
within fourteen calendar days with the CO's approval, provide to the CO the results of the associated
inventory/property accountability.

d. The designated VAP POC must submit a VAP removal record for the departing employee within
twenty-four (24) hours.

e. The Contractor must also comply with any local Employee Off-Boarding Checklists in use at FAA
Facilities.

11. All contractors and subcontractor employees with access to FAA systems must have a FAA-
issued PIV card and must use the PIV card to authenticate to the FAA system. Approved contactor
equipment or software in accordance with clause 3.14-13 "Use of Contractor Equipment or Software

- Permitted" that connects to FAA systems must be configured to accept and use FAA-issued PIV



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

32 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

cards. The contractor must provide the appropriate equipment for the PIV card, while the FAA will 
furnish and configure the PIV software.  

12. The contractor must insert this clause in all subcontracts under the contract.

75. Prohibition on Contracting for Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services
or Equipment (07/2023) 6.9.5
(a) Definitions. As used in this clause--

Backhaul means intermediate links between the core network, or backbone network, and the small 
subnetworks at the edge of the network (e.g., connecting cell phones/towers to the core telephone 
network). Backhaul can be wireless (e.g., microwave) or wired (e.g., fiber optic, coaxial cable, 
Ethernet).   

Covered foreign country means The People's Republic of China.  

Covered telecommunications equipment or services means—  
(1) Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE
Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);
(2) For the purpose of public safety, security of Government facilities, physical security surveillance
of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou
Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or
affiliate of such entities);
(3) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such
equipment; or
(4) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an
entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the
Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or
controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.

Critical technology means—  
(1) Defense articles or defense services included on the United States Munitions List set forth in the
International Traffic in Arms Regulations under subchapter M of chapter I of title 22, Code of
Federal Regulations;
(2) Items included on the Commerce Control List set forth in Supplement No. 1 to part 774 of the
Export Administration Regulations under subchapter C of chapter VII of title 15, Code of Federal
Regulations, and controlled—
(i) Pursuant to multilateral regimes, including for reasons relating to national security, chemical and
biological weapons proliferation, nuclear nonproliferation, or missile technology; or
(ii) For reasons relating to regional stability or surreptitious listening.
(3) Specially designed and prepared nuclear equipment, parts and components, materials, software,
and technology covered by part 810 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations (relating to assistance to
foreign atomic energy activities);
(4) Nuclear facilities, equipment, and material covered by part 110 of title 10, Code of Federal
Regulations (relating to export and import of nuclear equipment and material);



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

33 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(5) Select agents and toxins covered by part 331 of title 7, Code of Federal Regulations, part 121 of
title 9 of such Code, or part 73 of title 42 of such Code; or
(6) Emerging and foundational technologies controlled pursuant to section 1758 of the Export
Control Reform Act of 2018 (50 U.S.C. 4817).

Interconnection arrangements means arrangements governing the physical connection of two or 
more networks to allow the use of another's network to hand off traffic where it is ultimately 
delivered (e.g., connection of a customer of telephone provider A to a customer of telephone 
company B) or sharing data and other information resources.   
Reasonable inquiry means an inquiry designed to uncover any information in the entity's possession 
about the identity of the producer or provider of covered telecommunications equipment or services 
used by the entity that excludes the need to include an internal or third-party audit.   

Roaming means cellular communications services (e.g., voice, video, data) received from a visited 
network when unable to connect to the facilities of the home network either because signal coverage 
is too weak or because traffic is too high.   

Substantial or essential component means any component necessary for the proper function or 
performance of a piece of equipment, system, or service.   

(b) Prohibition.
(1) Section 889(a)(1)(A) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
2019 (Pub. L. 115-232) prohibits the head of an executive agency on or after August 13,
2019, from procuring or obtaining, or extending or renewing a contract to procure or obtain, any
equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. The
Contractor is prohibited from providing to the Government any equipment, system, or service that
uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of
any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, unless an exception at paragraph (c) of
this clause applies or the covered telecommunication equipment or services are covered by a waiver
described in AMS T3.8.9C.1.c(5).
(2) Section 889(a)(1)(B) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
2019 (Pub. L. 115-232) prohibits the head of an executive agency on or after August 13, 2020 from
entering into a contract, or extending or renewing a contract, with an entity that uses any equipment,
system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, unless an
exception at paragraph (c) of this clause applies or the covered telecommunication equipment or
services are covered by a waiver described in AMS T3.8.9C.1.c(5). This prohibition applies to an
entity that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services, including use not in support of
the Government.

(c) Exceptions. This clause does not prohibit contractors from providing—

(1) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or
interconnection arrangements; or



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

34 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(2) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or permit visibility
into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.

(d) Reporting requirement.

(1) In the event the Contractor identifies covered telecommunications equipment or services used as
a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system,
during contract performance, or the Contractor is notified of such by a subcontractor at any tier or by
any other source, the Contractor must report the information in paragraph (d)(2) of this clause to the
Contracting Officer, unless elsewhere in this contract are established procedures for reporting the
information. For indefinite delivery contracts, the Contractor must report to the Contracting Officer
for the indefinite delivery contract and the Contracting Officer(s) for any affected order.

(2) The Contractor must report the following information pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of this clause:
(i) Within one business day from the date of such identification or notification: The contract number;
the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unique entity identifier (if known);
supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code (if known); brand; model number
(original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item
description; and any readily available information about mitigation actions undertaken or
recommended.

(ii) Within 10 business days of submitting the information in paragraph (d)(2)(i) of this clause: Any
further available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. In addition, the
Contractor must describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of covered
telecommunications equipment or services, and any additional efforts that will be incorporated to
prevent future use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services.
(e) Subcontracts. The Contractor must insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph
(e), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments, including subcontracts for the acquisition
of commercial items.

76. Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services- Representations (09/2021) 6.9.5-1
(a) Definitions. As used in this provision, “covered telecommunications equipment or services” has
the meaning per the "Prohibition on Contracting for Certain Telecommunications and Video
Surveillance Services or Equipment” clause in this contract.
(b) Procedures. The offeror must review the list of excluded parties in the System for Award
Management (SAM) (https://www.sam.gov) for entities excluded from receiving federal awards for
covered telecommunications equipment or services.
(c) Representations.

1. The offeror represents that it _________ does, _________ does not provide covered
telecommunications equipment or services as part of its offered products or services to the
Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, or other contractual instrument.

2. After conducting a reasonable inquiry for purposes of this representation, the offeror represents



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

35 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

that it _____________ does, ______________ does not use covered telecommunications equipment 
or services, or any equipment, system, or service that uses telecommunications equipment or 
services.  

77. Representation Regarding Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or
Equipment (09/2021) 6.9.5-2NOTE: The offeror must not complete the representation at paragraph
(d)(1) in this provision if the offeror has represented that it does not provide covered
telecommunications equipment or services as part of its offered products or services to the
Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, or other contractual instrument in the
provision "Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services – Representation" (c)(1).
Additionally, The offeror must not complete the representation at paragraph (d)(2) in this provision
if the offeror has represented that it does not use covered telecommunications equipment or services,
or any equipment, system, or service that uses telecommunications equipment or services in the
provision "Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services – Representation" (c)(2).

PROVISION/CLAUSE:
(a) Definitions. As used in this provision--
Backhaul, covered telecommunications equipment or services, critical technology, interconnection
arrangements, reasonable inquiry, roaming, and substantial or essential component have the
meanings provided in the clause AMS clause 6.9.5, Prohibition on Contracting for Certain
Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment.

(b) Prohibitions.

(1) Section 889(a)(1)(A) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
2019 (Pub. L. 115-232) prohibits the head of an executive agency on or after August 13, 2019, from
procuring or obtaining, or extending or renewing a contract to procure or obtain, any equipment,
system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.
Nothing in this prohibition will be construed to—

(i) Prohibit the head of the agency from procuring with an entity to provide a service that connects to
the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or
(ii) Cover telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or cannot
permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.

(2) Section 889(a)(1)(B) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
2019 (Pub. L. 115-232) prohibits the head of an executive agency on or after August 13, 2020 from
entering into a contract or renewing a contract with an entity that uses any equipment, system, or
service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential part
of any system or as critical technology as part of any system. This prohibition applies to any entity
that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services, including uses not in support of the
Government.

Nothing in this prohibition will be construed to-  
(i) Prohibit the head of the agency from procuring with an entity to provide a service that connects to



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

36 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or  
(ii) Cover telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or cannot
permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.

(c) Procedures: The offeror must review the list of excluded parties in the System for Award
Management (SAM) (https://www.sam.gov) for entities excluded from Federal awards for covered
telecommunications equipment or services.

(d) Representations.

(1) The Offeror represents that it [ ] will, [ ] will not provide covered telecommunications equipment
or services to the Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract or other contractual
instrument resulting from this solicitation.

(2) After conducting a reasonable inquiry for purposes of this representation, the Offeror represents
that that it [ ]does, [ ]does not USE covered telecommunications equipment or services, or use any
equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services. The
Offeror must provide the additional disclosure information required at paragraph (e) if the Offeror
indicates “does”.

(e) Disclosures. Disclosure for the representation in paragraph (d) (1) of this provision-
If the Offeror has responded “will” in the representation in paragraph (d) (1) of this provision, the
Offeror must provide the following information as part of the offer—
(1) For covered equipment
(i) The entity that produced the covered telecommunications equipment (include entity name, unique
entity identifier, CAGE code, and whether the entity was the original equipment manufacturer
(OEM) or a distributor, if known;
(ii) A description of all covered telecommunications equipment offered (include brand; model
number, such as OEM number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item
description, as applicable); and
(iii) Explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications equipment and any factors
relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph (b) (1)
of this provision;

(2) For covered services-
(i) If the service is related to item maintenance, a description of all covered telecommunications
services offered (include on the item being maintained: brand, model number, such as OEM number,
manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable; or
(ii) If not associated with maintenance, the Product Service Code (PSC) of the service being
provided; and explanation of the proposed uses of covered telecommunications services and any
factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph
(b)(1) of this provision.

Disclosure for representation in paragraph (d) (2) of this provision. If the Offeror has responded 
“does” to paragraph (d)(2) of this provision, the offeror must provide the following information as 



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

37 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

part of the offer—  

(3) For covered equipment
(i)The entity that produced the covered telecommunications equipment (include entity name, unique
entity identifier, CAGE code, and whether the entity was the OEM or a distributor, if known;
(ii) A description of all covered telecommunications equipment offered (include brand; model
number, such as original equipment manufacturer (OEM) number, manufacturer part number, or
wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable); and
(iii) Explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications equipment and services and any
factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph
(b) (2) of this provision.
(4) For covered services-
(i) If the service is related to item maintenance, a description of all covered telecommunications
services offered (include on the item being maintained: brand, model number, such as OEM number,
manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable); or
(ii) If not associated with maintenance, the Product Service Code (PSC) of the service being

provided; and explanation of the proposed uses of covered telecommunications services and any 
factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph 
(b)(2) of this provision.  

78. Cooperation with Defensive Counterintelligence Program Requirements (DCIP) (09/2021)
6.9.6
a. The FAA’s Defensive Counterintelligence Program (DCIP) (AXI-310) detects, deters, and denies
illicit human and technical intelligence collection activities as well as addressing other national
security concerns.  Such activities and concerns include, but are not limited to, activities conducted
by, on behalf of, or otherwise supporting, foreign governments or elements thereof; entities or
individuals that meet the definition of “foreign power” or “agent of a foreign power” in 50 U.S.C. §
1801; foreign organizations; foreign persons; international terrorist organizations or activities; or
agents of any of the foregoing; or any other individuals or entities acting on behalf of, or otherwise
in support of, any of the foregoing, against the FAA, its employees, facilities, equipment, systems,
networks, operations, and information.
b. Consistent with FAA Order 1600.84 FAA Defensive Counterintelligence Program, the contractor
is required to cooperate to the fullest extent possible in the following requirements:

1) Any authorized DCIP inquiry or Counterintelligence (CI) investigation connected with this
contract requested by the FAA Office of Security and Hazardous Materials Safety (ASH) to include
granting authorized ASH or outside investigative department or agency personnel access to contract
information, records or contractor personnel;
2) All applicable FAA security requirements as required under the contract consistent with FAA
policy and applicable Federal law;
3) When requested by the DCIP, and necessary to protect Controlled National Security Information
(CNSI), Sensitive Unclassified Information (SUI), or otherwise protected information, contractor
employees must sign a Defensive Counterintelligence Program Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA)
prior to being briefed on any information pertaining to a DCIP inquiry, CI investigation by another
Department or Agency, or any other matter related to the DCIP. The NDA is located in Appendix C



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

38 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

of the Order and in AMS Procurement Forms. Contractor employees are exempt from 
acknowledging any language in the NDA associated with unauthorized disclosure of received 
information that subjects FAA employees to personnel actions specified in the Human Resources 
Policy Manual (HRPM) Volume 4: Employee Relations ER-4.1 (4) and applicable collective 
bargaining agreements. 
4) Contractors must first coordinate with the DCIP at ASH-CI-Notify@faa.gov before contacting
any law enforcement or investigative agencies on any known or suspected counterintelligence or
other national security concern described in Paragraph 1 of FAA Order 1600.84.
5) Contractors must notify the DCIP as soon as possible if any law enforcement or investigative
agency contacts them directly on any matter covered by FAA Order 1600.84.  If an employee
receives a direct request from an outside law enforcement or investigative agency for evidence
related to a counterintelligence or other national security concern as described in Paragraph 1 of
FAA Order 1600.84, the employee will refer the law enforcement or investigative agency to AXI-
310.
6) Contractors must immediately notify the DCIP at ASH-CI-Notify@faa.gov, and the CO or their
designee if their employees observe any of the following- 
 
a) Suspected or known acts of foreign intelligence collection activity against the FAA or its
employees, systems, networks, operations, facilities, equipment, or information;
b) Suspected or known espionage (See Appendix A of FAA Order 1600.84 for definition);
c) Suspected or known unauthorized disclosure of CNSI, SUI, or otherwise protected information in
the possession of the FAA by a FAA employee to a foreign government or element thereof, a foreign
organization, an entity or individual that meets the definition of “foreign power” or “agent of a
foreign power” in 50 U.S.C. § 1801, a foreign person, an international terrorist organization or
activity, an agent of any of the foregoing, or any other individual or entity acting on behalf of or
otherwise supporting any of the foregoing; or
d) Suspected or known theft, unauthorized disclosure, or unauthorized amassing of CNSI, SUI, or
otherwise protected information in the possession of the FAA known or suspected to be for the
purpose of conveying it to a foreign government or element thereof, an entity or individual that
meets the definition of “foreign power” or “agent of a foreign power” in 50 U.S.C. § 1801, a foreign
organization, a foreign person, an international terrorist organization or activity, an agent of any of
the foregoing, any other individual or entity acting on behalf of or otherwise supporting any of the
foregoing, or an unknown recipient, or statements of intent by an FAA employee to engage in any
such actions. SUI or otherwise protected unclassified information whose theft, unauthorized
disclosure, or unauthorized amassing, for the purposes described in the preceding sentence, is of
concern includes, but is not limited to:
i. Non-public information from an official FAA data network or information;
ii. Imagery;
iii. Technical specifications;
iv. Trade secrets;
v. Proprietary information;
vi. Sensitive Security Information (SSI); and
vii. Any other SUI
e) Activities similar to those described in paragraphs b(6)(a)-(d) by, on behalf of, or otherwise
supporting, potential lone wolf actors, malicious insiders, or transnational organizations of a national



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

39 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

security concern. 

If notification of the CO or their designee is not feasible owing to the CO and/or their designee being 
one of the suspicious actor(s), the contractor must notify the DCIP directly at the above email 
address if they observe any of the above activities. 
7) Elicitation attempts.  Elicitation is the strategic use of conversation to extract information from
people without giving them the feeling they are being interrogated. It is a technique used to
discreetly gather information. It is a conversation with a specific purpose: collect information that is
not readily available and do so without raising suspicion that specific facts are being sought. The
conversation can be in person, over the phone, or in writing.

Contractors must immediately notify the DCIP at ASH-CI-Notify@faa.gov, and the CO and/or their 
designee if their employees experience any known or suspected direct (e.g., personal encounter or 
telephone) or indirect (e.g., electronic or written communication) elicitation or attempted elicitation 
of CNSI, SUI, or otherwise protected information in the possession of the FAA by any suspicious 
entity or person, regardless of ethnicity, nationality, or FAA employment status, as soon as possible, 
but no later than 12 hours after the time of the incident, initial detection, or receipt of report, as 
applicable, or the next business day if the incident, initial detection, or receipt of report, as 
applicable, occurs on a weekend or holiday. Contractors must report these incidents regardless of 
where, when, or how the contact took place, or whether the employee was on or off duty. Suspicious 
activities include, but are not limited to: 
a) Direct or indirect contact or communication with a known or suspected foreign or foreign-
affiliated person, or an unknown or unfamiliar person, seeking access to or disclosure of any CNSI,
SUI, or otherwise protected information in the possession of the FAA for which such person does
not meet the applicable access requirements, or that is outside the scope of their official duties;
b) Direct or indirect contact or communication with a known or suspected foreign or foreign-
affiliated person, or an unknown or unfamiliar person, seeking specific information about an FAA
employee’s official duty responsibilities, work projects, access to information, security clearance,
travel plans, coworkers’ identities, or Information Technology (IT) system credentials for which
such person does not meet the applicable access requirements, or that is outside the scope of their
official duties;
c) Direct or indirect contact, communication, or observance of a known or suspected foreign or
foreign-affiliated person, or an unknown or unfamiliar person, seeking unauthorized access to FAA
employees, equipment, operations, systems, information, facilities, or networks, including through a
Personal Electronic Device (PED);
d) Direct or indirect contact, communication, or observance of a known or suspected foreign or
foreign-affiliated person, or an unknown or unfamiliar person, introducing, or seeking to introduce,
unauthorized digital media or software into any FAA equipment, facilities, systems, or networks,
including through a PED;

e) Offers of compensation, gifts, or favors in exchange for FAA information or access to such
information, regardless of medium; or access to FAA employees, equipment, operations, facilities,
systems, or networks;

f) Threats, attempts to coerce, or attempts to exploit any FAA employee by a known or suspected



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

40 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

foreign or foreign-affiliated person, or by an unknown or unfamiliar person, in order to illicitly 
acquire FAA information or access to FAA employees, equipment, operations, facilities, systems, 
information, or networks;  
g) Solicitation by any person of FAA information for which they do not meet the applicable access
requirements or that is outside the scope of their official duties;
h) A request by any person for access to FAA employees, facilities, equipment, operations, systems,
information, or networks for which they do not meet the applicable access requirements or that is
outside the scope of their official duties; and
i) Suspicious or unexplained contact by any person with an FAA employee, where the person has
suspicious or unexplained knowledge of the employee.

Unless requested by ASH, contractors must not disclose an elicitation attempt of the nature 
described above, in any other manner than to report the attempt to the CO or their designee and 
request that they report it to the DCIP. If that is not feasible, or if the CO or their designee are the 
suspicious actor(s), contractors may make these reports directly to the DCIP at the above email 
address. Contractors must not take any actions on their own initiative, as doing so may interfere with 
a DCIP inquiry or CI investigation.  
c. Failure to cooperate with any of the activities under section (b) above may be considered by the
FAA to be a material breach of the contract.
d. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that the provisions of this clause flow down to its
subsidiaries, subcontractors, and consultants performing this contract.

79. Foreign Ownership and Financing Requirements for High-Security Leased Space (07/2023)
6.9.7
a. Definitions. As used in this clause–

Financing means the process of raising or providing funds through debt or equity for purposes of 
meeting the requirements of the Lease, including, but not limited to, acquisition, maintenance, and 
construction of, or improvements to, the Property.   

Foreign entity means a:  
i. Corporation, company, business association, partnership, society, trust, or any other
nongovernmental entity, organization, or group that is headquartered or organized under the laws of
a country that is not the United States or a state, local government, tribe, or territory within the
United States; or
ii. Government or governmental instrumentality that is not the United States Government.

Foreign person means an individual who is not:  
i. A United States citizen; or
ii. An alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the United States.
Highest-level owner means the entity that owns or controls an immediate owner of the offeror or
Lessor, or that owns or controls one or more entities that control an immediate owner of the offeror
or Lessor. No entity owns or exercises control of the highest-level owner.

Immediate owner means an entity, other than the offeror or Lessor, that has direct control of the 



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

41 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

offeror or Lessor. Indicators of control include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following: 
ownership or interlocking management, identity of interests among family members, shared facilities 
and equipment, and the common use of employees.   

Unique entity identifier means a number or other identifier used to identify a specific commercial, 
nonprofit, or Government entity. See www.sam.gov for the designated entity for establishing unique 
entity identifiers.  

(b) Timing. The Offeror or Lessor shall complete this representation when submitting a proposal. If
the Offeror is the successful awardee, the Offeror (now Lessor) shall review, update, and provide
this representation on an annual basis, reflecting all changes to immediate owner, highest-level
owner and financing during the preceding 1-year period, starting one year from the Lease Term
Effective Date through final payment of any contract. If the Lessor intends to transfer the lease to a
successor in interest, the Lessor shall submit this representation to the Real Estate Contracting
Officer (RECO) with any request to novate the lease. The Offeror or Lessor is responsible for the
currency, accuracy and completeness of the data disclosed, and for any liability resulting from the
Government's reliance on inaccurate or incomplete data.

(c) Immediate owner.
(1) The Offeror or Lessor represents that it
☐does have an immediate owner.
☐does not have an immediate owner.

(2) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "does" in paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, then enter the
following information for the immediate owner. If the offeror or Lessor has more than one
immediate owner (e.g., joint venture), then the offeror or Lessor shall provide the information for
each entity.

Legal Name (do not use “doing business as” name”): 
________________________________________________ 
Unique entity identifier (if available): ________________________________ 

(3) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “does” in paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:

Is the immediate owner a foreign entity?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(4) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "does" in paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:
Is the immediate owner a foreign person?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(5) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "Yes" in either paragraph (c)(3) or (4) of this clause, indicating
that there is foreign ownership (as a foreign entity or foreign person), then enter the following



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

42 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

information for the foreign owner (respond for each as applicable).  

 Physical Address: _______________________________________________________ 

 Country: ______________________________________________________________ 

(d) Highest-level owner.
(1) The Offeror or Lessor represents that the immediate owner, if any,
☐is owned or controlled by another entity.
☐is not owned or controlled by another entity.

(2) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “is” in paragraph (d)(1) of this clause, indicating that the
immediate owner is owned or controlled by another entity, then enter the following information for
the highest-level owner.

Legal Name (do not use “doing business as” name”): 
________________________________________________ 
Unique entity identifier (if available): ________________________________ 

(3) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “is” in paragraph (d)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:

Is the highest-level owner a foreign entity?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(4) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "is" in paragraph (d)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:

Is the immediate owner a foreign person?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(5) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "Yes" in either paragraph (d)(3) or (4) of this clause, indicating
that there is foreign ownership (as a foreign entity or foreign person), then enter the following
information for the foreign owner (respond for each as applicable).

 Physical Address: _______________________________________________________ 

 Country: ______________________________________________________________ 

(e) Financing entity.

(1) The Offeror or Lessor represents that the financing
☐does involve a foreign entity
☐does not involve a foreign entity



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

43 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(2) The Offeror or Lessor represents that the financing
☐does involve a foreign person
☐does not involve a foreign person

(3) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “does” in either paragraph (e)(1) or (2) of this clause, indicating
foreign financing (as a foreign entity or foreign person), then enter the following information for the
foreign financing (respond for each as applicable).

Legal Name (do not use “doing business as” name”): 
________________________________________________ 
Unique entity identifier (if available): ________________________________ 

OFFEROR OR LESSOR NAME AND SIGNATURE: 

________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________ 
NAME       SIGNATURE 

80. Access Limitation for High-Security Leased Space (07/2023) 6.9.7-1 a. Definitions. As used in
this clause–

Financing means the process of raising or providing funds through debt or equity for purposes of
meeting the requirements of the Lease, including, but not limited to, acquisition, maintenance, and
construction of, or improvements to, the Property.

Foreign entity means a:
i. Corporation, company, business association, partnership, society, trust, or any other
nongovernmental entity, organization, or group that is headquartered or organized under the laws of
a country that is not the United States or a state, local government, tribe, or territory within the
United States; or
ii. Government or governmental instrumentality that is not the United States Government.

Foreign person means an individual who is not:  
i. A United States citizen; or
ii. An alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the United States.

Highest-level owner means the entity that owns or controls an immediate owner of the offeror or 
Lessor, or that owns or controls one or more entities that control an immediate owner of the offeror 
or Lessor. No entity owns or exercises control of the highest-level owner.   

Immediate owner means an entity, other than the offeror or Lessor, that has direct control of the 
offeror or Lessor. Indicators of control include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following: 
ownership or interlocking management, identity of interests among family members, shared facilities 
and equipment, and the common use of employees.   



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

44 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

Unique entity identifier means a number or other identifier used to identify a specific commercial, 
nonprofit, or Government entity. See www.sam.gov for the designated entity for establishing unique 
entity identifiers.  

(b) Timing. The Offeror or Lessor shall complete this representation when submitting a proposal. If
the Offeror is the successful awardee, the Offeror (now Lessor) shall review, update, and provide
this representation on an annual basis, reflecting all changes to immediate owner, highest-level
owner and financing during the preceding 1-year period, starting one year from the Lease Term
Effective Date through final payment of any contract. If the Lessor intends to transfer the lease to a
successor in interest, the Lessor shall submit this representation to the Real Estate Contracting
Officer (RECO) with any request to novate the lease. The Offeror or Lessor is responsible for the
currency, accuracy and completeness of the data disclosed, and for any liability resulting from the
Government's reliance on inaccurate or incomplete data.

(c) Immediate owner.
(1) The Offeror or Lessor represents that it
☐does have an immediate owner.
☐does not have an immediate owner.

(2) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "does" in paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, then enter the
following information for the immediate owner. If the offeror or Lessor has more than one
immediate owner (e.g., joint venture), then the offeror or Lessor shall provide the information for
each entity.

Legal Name (do not use “doing business as” name”): ____________________________________ 

Unique entity identifier (if available): ________________________________ 

(3) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “does” in paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:

Is the immediate owner a foreign entity?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(4) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "does" in paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:
Is the immediate owner a foreign person?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(5) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "Yes" in either paragraph (c)(3) or (4) of this clause, indicating
that there is foreign ownership (as a foreign entity or foreign person), then enter the following
information for the foreign owner (respond for each as applicable).



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

45 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

 Physical Address: _______________________________________________________ 

 Country: ______________________________________________________________ 

(d) Highest-level owner.
(1) The Offeror or Lessor represents that the immediate owner, if any,
☐is owned or controlled by another entity.
☐is not owned or controlled by another entity.

(2) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “is” in paragraph (d)(1) of this clause, indicating that the
immediate owner is owned or controlled by another entity, then enter the following information for
the highest-level owner.

Legal Name (do not use “doing business as” name”): _____________________________________ 

Unique entity identifier (if available): ________________________________ 

(3) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “is” in paragraph (d)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:

Is the highest-level owner a foreign entity?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(4) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "is" in paragraph (d)(1) of this clause, then complete this
additional representation:

Is the immediate owner a foreign person?: ☐ Yes or ☐No

(5) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates "Yes" in either paragraph (d)(3) or (4) of this clause, indicating
that there is foreign ownership (as a foreign entity or foreign person), then enter the following
information for the foreign owner (respond for each as applicable).

 Physical Address: _______________________________________________________ 

 Country: ______________________________________________________________ 

(e) Financing entity.
(1) The Offeror or Lessor represents that the financing
☐does involve a foreign entity
☐does not involve a foreign entity

(2) The Offeror or Lessor represents that the financing
☐does involve a foreign person
☐does not involve a foreign person



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

46 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(3) If the Offeror or Lessor indicates “does” in either paragraph (e)(1) or (2) of this clause, indicating
foreign financing (as a foreign entity or foreign person), then enter the following information for the
foreign financing (respond for each as applicable).

Legal Name (do not use “doing business as” name”): _____________________________________ 

Unique entity identifier (if available): ________________________________ 

OFFEROR OR LESSOR NAME AND SIGNATURE: 

________________________________________________  
NAME 
_________________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE 

81. Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders—Representation and Disclosures
(01/2024) 6.9.8

(a) Definitions. As used in this provision, Covered article, FASCSA order, Intelligence community,
National security system, Reasonable inquiry, Sensitive compartmented information, Sensitive
compartmented information system, and Source have the meaning provided in the AMS Real
Property Clause 6.9.8-1, Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders—Prohibition.

(b) Prohibition. Contractors are prohibited from providing or using as part of the performance of the
contract any covered article, or any products or services produced or provided by a source, if the
prohibition is set out in an applicable Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act (FASCSA)
order, as described in paragraph (b)(1) of AMS Real Property Clause 6.9.8-1, Federal
Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders—Prohibition.

(c) Procedures.
(1) The Offeror must search for applicable FASCSA orders of the type identified in paragraph

(b)(1) of AMS Real Property Clause 6.9.8-1 in the System for Award Management (SAM).
Issued FASCSA Orders may be identified by selecting the “View FASCSA Orders” button
from the SAM homepage (https://www.sam.gov) and viewing or downloading FASCSA
orders from the Supply Chain Security Orders webpage.

(2) The Offeror must review the SIR for any FASCSA orders that are not in SAM but are
effective and do apply to the SIR and resultant contract (see AMS Guidance
T3.8.9.C.4.c.(2)(A)(ii)).

(3) FASCSA orders issued after the publication date of the SIR do not apply unless the order is
subsequently added to the SIR via amendment.

(d) Representation. By submission of this offer, the offeror represents that it has conducted a
“reasonable inquiry” (as defined in AMS Real Property Clause 6.9.8-1), and that the offeror does
not propose to provide or use in response to this SIR any covered article, or any products or
services produced or provided by a source, if the covered article or the source is prohibited by an



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

47 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

applicable FASCSA order in effect on the date the SIR was issued, except as waived by the SIR, 
or as disclosed in paragraph (e) Disclosures, below. 

(e) Disclosures. The purpose for this disclosure is so the FAA may decide whether to issue a waiver.
For any covered article, or any products or services produced or provided by a source, if the
covered article or the source is subject to an applicable FASCSA order, and the Offeror is unable
to represent compliance, then the Offeror must provide the following information as part of the
offer:
(1) Name of the product or service provided to the Government;
(2) Name of the covered article or source subject to a FASCSA order;
(3) If applicable, name of the vendor, including the Commercial and Government Entity code

and unique entity identifier (if known), that supplied the covered article or the product or
service to the Offeror;

(4) Brand;
(5) Model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or

wholesaler number);
(6) Item description; and
(7) Reason why the applicable covered article or the product or service is being provided or

used.

(f) FAA review of disclosures. The Contracting Officer will review disclosures provided in
paragraph (e) Disclosures, to determine if any waiver may be sought. A Contracting Officer may
choose not to pursue a waiver for covered articles or sources otherwise subject to a FASCSA
order and may instead make an award to an offeror that does not require a waiver.

82. Federal Acquisition Supply Chain Security Act Orders—Prohibition (01/2024) 6.9.8-1
(a) Definitions. As used in this clause—

Covered article, as defined in 41 U.S.C. 4713(k), means—

(1) “Information technology,” as defined in 40 U.S.C. 11101, including cloud computing
services of all types;
(2) “Telecommunications equipment” or “telecommunications service,” as those terms
are defined in section 3 of the Communications Act of 1934 (47 U.S.C. 153);
(3) The processing of information on a Federal or non-Federal information system,
subject to the requirements of the Controlled Unclassified Information program (see 32
CFR part 2002); or
(4) Hardware, systems, devices, software, or services that include embedded or incidental
information technology.

FASCSA order means any of the following orders issued under the Federal Acquisition 
Supply Chain Security Act (FASCSA) requiring the removal of covered articles from 
executive agency information systems or the exclusion of one or more named sources or 
named covered articles from executive agency procurement actions, as described in 41 CFR 
201–1.303(d) and (e):  



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

48 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(1) The Secretary of Homeland Security may issue FASCSA orders applicable to civilian
agencies, to the extent not covered by paragraph (2) or (3) of this definition. This type of
FASCSA order may be referred to as a Department of Homeland Security (DHS)
FASCSA order.

(2) The Secretary of Defense may issue FASCSA orders applicable to the Department of
Defense (DoD) and national security systems other than sensitive compartmented
information systems. This type of FASCSA order may be referred to as a DoD FASCSA
order.
(3) The Director of National Intelligence (DNI) may issue FASCSA orders applicable to
the intelligence community and sensitive compartmented information systems, to the
extent not covered by paragraph (2) of this definition. This type of FASCSA order may
be referred to as a DNI FASCSA order.

Intelligence community, as defined by 50 U.S.C. 3003(4), means the following— 
(1) The Office of the Director of National Intelligence;
(2) The Central Intelligence Agency;
(3) The National Security Agency;
(4) The Defense Intelligence Agency;
(5) The National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency;
(6) The National Reconnaissance Office;
(7) Other offices within the Department of Defense for the collection of specialized
national intelligence through reconnaissance programs;
(8) The intelligence elements of the Army, the Navy, the Air Force, the Marine Corps,
the Coast Guard, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, the Drug Enforcement
Administration, and the Department of Energy;
(9) The Bureau of Intelligence and Research of the Department of State;
(10) The Office of Intelligence and Analysis of the Department of the Treasury;
(11) The Office of Intelligence and Analysis of the Department of Homeland Security; or
(12) Such other elements of any department or agency as may be designated by the
President, or designated jointly by the Director of National Intelligence and the head of
the department or agency concerned, as an element of the intelligence community.

National security system, as defined in 44 U.S.C. 3552, means any information system (including 
any telecommunications system) used or operated by an agency or by a contractor of an agency, 
or other organization on behalf of an agency— 

(1) The function, operation, or use of which involves intelligence activities; involves
cryptologic activities related to national security; involves command and control of
military forces; involves equipment that is an integral part of a weapon or weapons
system; or is critical to the direct fulfillment of military or intelligence missions, but does
not include a system that is to be used for routine administrative and business
applications (including payroll, finance, logistics, and personnel management
applications); or



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

49 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(2) Is protected at all times by procedures established for information that have been
specifically authorized under criteria established by an Executive order or an Act of
Congress to be kept classified in the interest of national defense or foreign policy.

Reasonable Inquiry means an inquiry designed to uncover any information in the entity's 
possession about the identity of any covered articles, or any products or services produced or 
provided by a source. This applies when the covered article or the source is subject to an 
applicable FASCSA order. A reasonable inquiry excludes the need to include an internal or 
third-party audit. 

Sensitive compartmented information means classified information concerning or derived from 
intelligence sources, methods, or analytical processes, which is required to be handled within 
formal access control systems established by the Director of National Intelligence. 

Sensitive compartmented information system means a national security system authorized to 
process or store sensitive compartmented information. 

Source means a non-Federal supplier, or potential supplier, of products or services, at any tier. 

(b) Prohibition.
(1) Unless an applicable waiver has been issued by the issuing official, Contractors

are prohibited from providing or using as part of the performance of the contract
any covered article, or any products or services produced or provided by a source,
if the covered article or the source is prohibited by any applicable FASCSA
orders identified by the checkbox(es) in this paragraph (b)(1).

Yes ☐ No ☐ DHS FASCSA orders
Yes ☐ No ☐ DoD FASCSA orders
Yes ☐ No ☐ DNI FASCSA orders

(2) The Contractor must search for applicable FASCSA orders of the type identified
in paragraph (b)(1) of this clause in the System for Award Management (SAM).
Issued FASCSA Orders may be identified by selecting the “View FASCSA
Orders” button from the SAM homepage (https://www.sam.gov) and viewing or
downloading FASCSA orders from the Supply Chain Security Orders webpage.

(3) The FAA may identify in the SIR additional FASCSA orders that are not in SAM,
which are effective and apply to the SIR and resultant contract.

(4) A FASCSA order issued after the publication date of the SIR applies to this
contract only if added by an amendment to the SIR or by modification to the
contract. However, see paragraph (c) of this clause.

(5) Contractor request for waivers.
(i) Required disclosures. If the contractor wishes to ask for a waiver of the

requirements of an existing order identified in a SIR or contract for a waiver of
the requirements of a new FASCSA order being applied through modification,
then the Contractor must disclose the following:



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

50 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(A) Name of the product or service provided to the Government;
(B) Name of the covered article or source subject to a FASCSA order;
(C) If applicable, name of the vendor, including the Commercial and Government

Entity code and unique entity identifier (if known), that supplied or supplies
the covered article or the product or service to the Offeror;

(D) Brand;
(E) Model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part

number, or wholesaler number);
(F) Item Description;
(G) Reason why the applicable covered article or the product or service is being

provided or used;
(ii) FAA review of disclosures. The Contracting Officer will review disclosures

provided in paragraph (b)(5)(i) to determine if any waiver is warranted. A
Contracting Officer may choose not to pursue a waiver for covered articles or
sources otherwise covered by a FASCSA order and to instead pursue other
appropriate action.

(c) Notice and reporting requirement.
(1) During contract performance, the Contractor is required to:

(i) Comply with all FASCSA orders identified under paragraph (b) of this clause;
and

(ii) Review SAM.gov at least once every three months, or as advised by the
Contracting Officer, to check for covered articles subject to FASCSA order(s), or
for products or services produced by a source subject to FASCSA order(s) not
currently identified under paragraph (b) of this clause.

(2) If the Contractor identifies a new FASCSA order(s) that could impact their supply chain,
then the Contractor must conduct a reasonable inquiry to identify whether a covered
article or product or service produced or provided by a source subject to the FASCSA
order(s) was provided to the Government or used during contract performance.

(3) If the Contractor identifies, including through any notification by a subcontractor at any
tier, that a covered article or product or service produced or provided by a covered source
was provided to the Government or used during contract performance and is subject to a
FASCSA order(s) identified in paragraph (b) of this clause, or a new FASCSA order
identified in paragraph (c)(2) of this clause, the Contractor must submit a report to the
Contracting Officer.

(4) The Contractor must report the following information for each covered article or each
product or service produced or provided by a source, where the covered article or source
is subject to a FASCSA order, pursuant to paragraph (c) of this clause:

(i) Within 3 business days from the date of such identification or notification:
(A) Contract number;
(B) Order number(s), if applicable;
(C) Name of the product or service provided to the Government or used during

performance of the contract;
(D) Name of the covered article or source subject to a FASCSA order;



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

51 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

(E) If applicable, name of the vendor, including the Commercial and Government
Entity code and unique entity identifier (if known), that supplied the covered
article or the product or service to the Contractor;

(F) Brand;
(G) Model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part

number, or wholesaler number);
(H) Item description; and
(I) Any readily available information about mitigation actions undertaken or

recommended.
(ii) Within 10 business days of submitting the information in paragraph (c)(4)(i)

of this clause:
(A) Any further available information about mitigation actions undertaken or

recommended.
(B) In addition, the Contractor must describe the efforts it undertook to prevent

submission or use of the covered article or the product or service produced or
provided by a source subject to an applicable FASCSA order, and any
additional efforts that will be incorporated to prevent future submission or use
of the covered article or the product or service produced or provided by a
source that is subject to an applicable FASCSA order.

(d) Removal.   Upon notification from the contracting officer, during the performance of the
contract, the Contractor must promptly make any necessary changes or modifications to
remove any covered article or any product or service produced or provided by a source that is
subject to an applicable Governmentwide FASCSA order.

(e) Subcontracts.
(1) The Contractor must insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e) and

excluding paragraph (c)(1) of this clause, in all subcontracts and other contractual
instruments, including subcontracts for the acquisition of commercial products and
commercial services.

(2) The Government may identify in the SIR additional FASCSA orders that are not in SAM,
which are effective and apply to the contract and any subcontracts and other contractual
instruments under the contract. The Contractor or higher-tier subcontractor must notify
their subcontractors, and suppliers under other contractual instruments, that the FASCSA
orders in the SIR that are not in SAM apply to the contract and all subcontracts.



FAA CONTRACT NO: 697DCM-24-L-00094 
ATID/FACILITY TYPE: (DLH) ATCT/TRACON/SSC/CWO 

LOCATION: Duluth, MN 

52 
Federal Aviation Administration 
Standard Space Lease, 01/2024 
OMB CONTROL NO. 2120-0595 

83. Notices (09/2021) 6.10.1All notices/correspondence must be in writing, reference the Contract
number, and be addressed as follows:

TO THE CONTRACTOR:
Duluth Airport Authority
4701 Grinden Drive
Duluth, MN 55811

TO THE GOVERNMENT:
Federal Aviation Administration
Real Estate Branch, AAQ-940
10101 Hillwood Parkway
Fort Worth, TX 76111

84. Signature Block (09/2021) 6.10.3 This Contract shall become binding when it is fully executed by
both parties.  In witness whereof, the parties hereto have subscribed their names as of the date shown
below.
DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY
By: _________________________
Print Name: _________________________
Title: ____________________
Date: _________________________

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION
By: _________________________
Print Name: _________________________
Title: Real Estate Contracting Officer
Date: _________________________

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Number Title Date Number 
of Pages 

1 Floor Plan – Exhibit A 3 
2 Parking Layout Plan – Exhibit B 1 
3 Certificate of Authorization         1 
4 
5 



Lease No. 697DCM-24-L-00128



697DCM-24-L-00128



697DCM-24-L-00128



697DCM-24-L-00128



Federal Aviation Administration 
Certificate of Authorization, 09/2021 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that ___________________________________, who signed this 
Insert Name of Individual who signed the contract 

instrument on of behalf of ________________________________ is in fact authorized to sign on behalf 
Insert Contractor Name 

of ____________________________________ by authority of its governing resolution, and is within the 
Insert Contractor Name 

 scope of its powers. 

Print Name*: _________________________     Print Title: __________________________ 

Signature: ___________________________   Date: ______________________________ 

*Note: the individual signing this certification cannot be the same person who signed the contract.



FOOD, BEVERAGE AND RETAIL CONCESSION AND LEASE 
AGREEMENT 

Between 
DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

And 
OAKWELLS COMMUTER RAIL LLC 
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

Terms:  The current agreement expires February 6, 2026.  Two, one-year options may 
be exercised upon mutual consent of the parties. 

Background: Oakwells Commuter Rail LLC entered into a food, beverage, retail 
concession, and retail concession agreement on February 7, 2021.  Lessee is selling 
their equity in the business to Tailwinds Hospitality Inc. effective August 27, 2024.  
Lessee requests assignment of the food, beverage, retail concession, and retail 
concession agreement to Tailwinds Hospitality Inc. 

Tailwinds Hospitality’s website states, “We are a leading food, beverage, and retail 
master airport concessionaire providing first-rate services and high-quality products for 
over 20 years. We take pride in partnering with local communities, ensuring they are at 
the forefront of everything we do. From buying local to sourcing local, every concession 
within our network celebrates the communities we serve.” 

VII. - G.



FOOD, BEVERAGE AND RETAIL CONCESSION AND LEASE AGREEMENT 
Between 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
And 

OAKWELLS COMMUTER RAIL LLC 
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

Parties to this Assignment and Assumption of Food, Beverage and Retail Concession and 
Lease Agreement are Oakwells Commuter Rail LLC, hereinafter referred to as “Assignor”, 
and Tailwind Hospitality, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “Assignee” and Duluth Airport 
Authority. 

Whereas, on February 7, 2021, the Duluth Airport Authority and Assignor entered into 
a Food, Beverage and Retail Concession and Lease Agreement (the “lease”) agreement for 
Assignor to offer food and beverage and related services in the Terminal at the Airport. 

Whereas, Assignor desires to assign the lease to Assignee and Assignee desires to 
assume the lease effective on the closing date of August 27, 2024. 

Whereas, the Duluth Airport Authority acknowledges and consents to the assignment 
in all respects under the lease 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, Assignor hereby sells, assigns and transfers to Assignee, and 
Assignee hereby buys, takes and assumes, all Assignor’s interest, rights and obligations in 
the lease between Assignor and the Duluth Airport Authority.  Assignor, Assignee, and 
Duluth Airport Authority agree that notwithstanding anything contained in the lease, Assignor 
shall have no further obligation or liability under the lease. 

OAKWELLS COMMUTER RAIL LLC TAILWIND HOSPITALITY, INC. 

ASSIGNOR  ASSIGNEE  

By____________________________ By_____________________________ 

Date: ___________________________ Date: ____________________________ 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

By: ______________________________ By: ______________________________ 
President Executive Director 

By: ______________________________ 
Secretary Date: ____________________________ 



Duluth Airport Authority 
Yellow Dog Aviation, LLC 

Sky Harbor Lot 8 Land Lease & Future Hangar Development 

Terms:  
• 20 year base term with two (2) additional five (5) year option terms.

Background: 

• Lot 8 is a vacant lot at Sky Harbor ready to be developed.

• DAA has twice published RFPs for the lot and received zero proposals.  Three
other parties have been interested and all have been terminated.

• Tenant is aware of current City of Duluth requirements for building at this
location.

Agreement Overview: 

• Lessee has until April 30, 2025 to submit construction plans to the DAA
Executive Director for approval.

• Upon approval of construction plans Lessee must complete construction by
December 31, 2025.

• Lessee is responsible for all preconstruction due diligence, construction and
hangar maintenance once constructed.

• Currently tenant does not plan to operate a business out of the hangar.

VII. - H.



Page 1 of 12 

HANGAR #8 LAND LEASE 
SKY HARBOR AIRPORT 

Yellow Dog Aviation, LLC 

Parties to this Agreement are the DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY, hereinafter called "Authority” 
and Yellow Dog Aviation, LLC, hereinafter referred to as "Lessee". 

THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pursuant to Laws 1969, Chapter 577, the Authority is the operator of Duluth Sky Harbor
Airport, located in the City of Duluth, State of Minnesota; and

2. Lessee is engaged in the non-commercial pursuit of aviation and desires to construct and
maintain a hangar building for its use on said Airport;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1 
DEFINITIONS 

The following terms, as used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings as ascribed to them 
hereunder. 

A. Airport: shall mean Sky Harbor Airport located in the City of Duluth, County of St. Louis, State of
Minnesota.

B. Consent or Approval of Authority and/or of Executive Director: where this Agreement calls for the
consent or approval of the Authority, the same shall be in the form of a resolution approved by
the Authority as provided by law; where the consent or approval of the Executive Director is
required, the same shall be evidenced by a written document signed by him/her.

C. Executive Director: shall refer to the Executive Director of the Authority or his/her designee.

D. Leased Premises: shall refer to that portion of the Airport leased to Lessee for its exclusive use
as further described in SECTION 3, Subparagraph A of this Agreement and Exhibit A and
Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein.

E. Leasehold Improvements: shall refer collectively to all items located on, within, and attached to
the Leased Premises provided or purchased by Lessee or a previous lessee, including such
items as buildings, structures, insulation, utilities, systems, ramps and taxiways.

SECTION 2 
OPERATIONS & PERFORMANCE 

Lessee is hereby authorized to utilize the Leased Premises only for the following purposes: 

A. To securely store and maintain aircraft in Lessee’s hangar which aircraft is owned or controlled
by Lessee for private and non-commercial aviation purposes.

B. To provide pilots’ lounge facilities, preflight briefing area, and related improvements.
C. To safely store other personal property in Lessee’s hangar as approved in writing by the

Executive Director which approval will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed



Page 2 of 12 

SECTION 3 
LEASED PREMISES & USE OF FACILITIES 

A. Leased Premises: During the term of this Agreement and any extensions thereof, Authority does
hereby lease to Lessee for its exclusive use that tract of land lying in Parcel 6 of the REFEREE’S
PLAT OF MINNESOTA POINT as recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds in Book “G”
of Plats, Page 38, labeled as Hangar 8 on Exhibit A and Exhibit B, more particularly described
as follows:
Commencing at a magnetic nail marking the northwest end of runway centerline 14/32 at Duluth
- Sky Harbor Airport; and assuming said runway centerline, as monumented by magnetic nails
being 2602 feet apart, located at the northwest and southeast end of said runway, bears South
37 degrees 05 minutes 00 seconds East; thence North 12 degrees 22 minutes 52 seconds East
640.56 feet; thence South 41 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds East 468.25 feet TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING; thence continue South 41 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds East 80.66 feet;
thence North 48 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds East 105.00 feet; thence North 41 degrees 43
minutes 50 seconds West 80.66 feet; thence South 48 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds West
105.00 feet to the point of beginning.

B. Use of Airport Facilities: Authority does additionally hereby grant to Lessee a license for the use
of all public facilities at the Airport to the same extent as other tenants, including, but not limited
to, runways, ramps and taxiways.

SECTION 4 
RENT, TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, LICENSE FEES, AND UTILITIES 

A. Rent: For the Term of this Agreement, Lessee agrees to pay rent on the Leased Premises
consisting of 8,400 square feet, more or less in the amount of $.26 cents per square foot per
year for a total yearly rent of $2,184.00, payable on or before August 1 each year.

On August 1st of each subsequent year during the term of this Agreement, or any extension, 
renewal or holding over thereof, the annual rent shall increase to the amount calculated by 
multiplying the previous year’s rent by the rate of increase, if any, of the most recent Consumer 
Price Index, U.S. City Average, published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics for the 
preceding twelve-month period.   

B. Taxes, Assessments and License Fees: Lessee shall be liable for the payment of all real
property and personal taxes, assessments, license fees or other charges that may be levied or
assessed during the term of this Agreement arising in any manner out of this Agreement,
charged by any governmental agency and shall provide evidence of payment of any such taxes
to Authority as such taxes shall become due.  If Lessee shall fail or neglect to pay any of said
taxes, assessments, license fees or other charges when the same become due, the Authority
may pay the same, together with any cost or penalty which may be accrued thereon, and collect
the entire amount so paid from Lessee, and Lessee hereby agrees to pay such entire amount
due to the Authority upon demand therefor.

C. Utilities: Lessee shall be responsible for providing and connecting any utilities to the Leased
Premises covered by this Agreement at no cost to the Authority, including, but not limited to,
electricity, gas, water, sewer, heat, telephone and garbage disposal.  Lessee shall be
responsible for paying the applicable monthly utility service charges and any other fees for use
of the Leased Premises.



Page 3 of 12 

SECTION 5 
TERM 

A. Base Term: The term of this Agreement shall commence on August 1, 2024, and terminate on
July 31, 2044, unless sooner or later terminated as herein provided.

B. Option Term: The parties reserve the right to exercise two (2) additional five (5) year option
terms beyond the base term provided that the parties mutually agree to exercise the option term
sixty (60) days prior to the end of the base term or any executed option term.

After the expiration of the base term and any exercised option terms, should Lessee have the 
Executive Director's written permission to remain in possession of the Leased Premises, then the 
tenancy shall be month to month under the same terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
subject to the right of either party to terminate said continuance of this Agreement upon twenty-eight 
(28) days' written notice to the other party. Lessee shall have the right, within 28 days prior to the
end of the term of this Agreement, to meet and negotiate with Authority for a new lease; the terms
and conditions of which are subject to negotiation.  Authority shall not lease the Leased Premises to
another party during this 28-day period without first offering to negotiate a new lease agreement with
Lessee.

SECTION 6 
PREMISES MAINTENANCE 

Lessee agrees to keep the Leased Premises in a clean, neat and orderly condition and in compliance 
with all laws and codes applicable to the Leased Premises.  In the event that Lessee shall fail to so 
maintain any portion of the said Leased Premises, Authority shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to itself perform or have performed said maintenance and to charge Lessee for said work 
plus a fifteen percent (15%) administrative fee, due and payable upon the date of the invoice.  Lessee 
is responsible to perform all maintenance on its own personal property including the hangar bay 
doors and door operating equipment.  

SECTION 7 
CONSTRUCTION 

On or before April 30, 2025 Lessee shall submit to the Executive Director in writing construction 
plans and specifications showing all details of proposed airplane hangar construction.  No 
improvement shall be made on the Leased Premises without the prior written approval of the 
Executive Director which approval will not be unreasonably delayed and then only in 
conformance with the approved plans and this Section.   

A. Design and Construction: Design of proposed hangar must be compatible with structures
currently at the Airport. The Airport is zoned AP for airport.  All design and construction must
meet local, State, and/or Federal building codes.

a. A paved apron connector to the proposed hangar is required and the sole
responsibility of the Lessee.

b. The Lessee must provide a construction schedule.
c. The Lessee must complete and submit for approval by the FAA, the Notification of

Proposed Construction or Alteration, FAA form 7460-1, prior to plans submittal.  Form
7460-1 is attached as Exhibit E.

d. Proposed construction must be of an aviation hangar. Uses and design of the hangar
will solely be for aviation uses in compliance with FAA regulations and minimum
standards as maybe amended from time to time.



Page 4 of 12 

B. Construction Standards and Approvals: All work done by Lessee, or under its direction, shall
conform to all applicable regulations, building codes and health standards, as well as the
following requirements:

a. All construction shall meet the requirement of Type I (fire resistant) construction as
set forth in the Minnesota State Building Code (current edition) and the building
standards for the Airport, where relevant.

b. Complete contract drawings and specifications on all work, including alterations,
additions or replacements, must be submitted for and receive prior written approval
of the Executive Director which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

c. All work must be done by competent contractors in the time and manner approved by
the Executive Director which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed and
coordinated with Executive Director.  Lessee shall comply with the indemnity and
insurance and bond requirements of this Agreement.

d. An authorized representative of Lessee shall be available at all reasonable times at
the site to coordinate the work of the leasehold improvements.

C. Construction Bonds and Insurance:
a. Bonds: During the term of this Agreement, when any modifications or improvements

are constructed, installed or renovated, Lessee shall procure and furnish to Authority
a contractors' bond or bonds written by a company or companies authorized to write
such bonds in the State of Minnesota and who are acceptable to the Executive
Director, in an amount not less than the cost of such construction, installation or
renovation, for the use obligee, Lessee and the Authority and all persons doing work
or furnishing skills, tools, machinery, materials, insurance premiums, equipment or
supplies incident to such construction, installation or renovation, such bond or bonds
to be conditioned for payment of claims as required and in full compliance with
Minnesota Statutes Section 574.26.  Further, during the term of this Agreement, for
any construction, installation or renovation, and before the commencement of work
thereon, Lessee shall furnish to Authority performance bonds, written by similarly
qualified companies, covering all work to be performed thereunder guaranteeing the
performance of all such work.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee may furnish Executive Director with a personal
indemnity or other evidences, at the sole option of and satisfactory to the Executive
Director, of its ability to complete construction without liens.

D. Contractor's Public Liability and Property Insurance: Before commencing any improvement,
work or equipment installation on the Airport, Lessee shall require all contractors and
subcontractors to procure and maintain insurance during the life of such contracts, protecting
both the Authority and the Lessee as follows:

a. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.
b. Contractors Comprehensive Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance.
c. Contractors Automobile Liability and Property Damage Insurance, including

automobile and non-ownership and hired cars.
d. Owners Protective Public Liability and Protective Property Damage Insurance.
e. Builders Risk Insurance (fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief,

including sprinkler leakage).
Amounts shall be not less than One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) for 
injuries, including accidental death to any one person, and subject to same limit for each person, 
and in an amount not less than One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) on 
account of any one accident, and property damage in an amount not less than One Million Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) aggregate for the policy.  Insurance, as above 
provided, shall be kept intact and in force throughout the term of construction work and 
equipment installation on the Leased Premises.  Such insurance shall be subject to the approval 



Page 5 of 12 

of the Executive Director and copies furnished to the Executive Director prior to the 
commencement of construction. 

E. Construction Completion: On or before December 31, 2025, Lessee shall have completed
construction of the airplane hangar as evidenced by Lessee’s submittal to the Executive
Director of a Certificate of Occupancy issued by the City of Duluth’s Construction
Services and Inspections Division.

F. Subsequent Leasehold Improvements: Any changes in, additions to or deletions from existing or
later constructed leasehold improvements shall be at Lessee’s sole expense and subject to the
prior written approval of the Executive Director which will not be unreasonably delayed, and the
Executive Director may impose such conditions as he/she shall deem necessary to protect and
promote the Authority and the integrity of all operations at the Airport, including, but not limited
to, bonding and insurance requirements.  Exterior signs, color of building or roof, exterior
construction materials and decorations are subject to the discretion, approval and regulation of
the Executive Director which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

SECTION 8 
AUTHORITY'S OBLIGATIONS 

The Authority shall properly maintain, operate, and manage the Airport at all times in a safe manner 
consistent with the generally accepted good practices in the State of Minnesota for airports of similar 
size and character.  If for any reason beyond the control of the Authority (including, without in any 
manner limiting the generality of the foregoing, war, strikes, riots, civil commotion’s and similar 
causes), the Authority shall fail to properly maintain, operate and manage said Airport, such failure 
shall not operate as a breach of this Agreement or render the Authority liable in damages. 

SECTION 9 
INDEMNITY, INSURANCE AND WAIVER OF CLAIMS 

A. Defense and Indemnity: Lessee shall indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend Authority and
the City of Duluth (the “City”), their officials, agents and employees, successors and assigns,
individually or collectively, (1) from and against any and all claims including a claim for
contribution or indemnity, demands, causes of action, loss, injury, liability, costs and expenses
of whatsoever kind or nature (including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees,
disbursements, court costs, and expert fees) and damages for or related to injury to or death of
persons or damage to property, and (2) from and against any fines in any way arising from or
based upon the violation by Lessee, its agents, employees, successors and assigns of any
federal, state, or municipal laws, statutes, resolutions, or regulations, including rules or
regulations of the Authority now in effect or hereafter promulgated; all arising out of, resulting
from, in conjunction with or incident to any act or omission of Lessee, its officials, agents or
employees, successors or assigns, Lessee’s  performance of obligations under this Agreement,
or the use and/or occupancy of the Leased Premises or of the Airport by Lessee, its officials,
agents or employees, or successors or assigns, and on ten (10) days’ written notice from the
Authority, the Lessee shall appear and defend all claims and lawsuits against the Authority and/or
the City growing out of any such injury or damage.

B. Environmental Liability: In addition to the general indemnity stated above, and as part of it, it is
specifically agreed between the parties that Lessee shall be responsible in all respects for the
use of or generation of or release or threatened release of any petroleum based substance or
product, or any volatile organic compound, or any substance classified as a pollutant,
contaminant, toxic substance, solid waste or a "hazardous waste" by either the Environmental
Protection Agency of the Government of the United States or the Minnesota Pollution Control



Page 6 of 12 

Agency by Lessee, its officials, agents or employees, successors or assigns.  Lessee shall 
specifically be responsible for the disposition of all such waste or substances and for the 
environmental response activities and costs, monitoring, or cleanup of any environmental 
condition deemed by those agencies or either of them to require environmental response, 
monitoring or cleanup activities of any kind which arises directly or indirectly out of the  use of or 
generation of such substances by Lessee, its officials, agents or employee, successors or 
assigns in its operations at the Airport; and Lessee specifically agrees that the obligations of 
Paragraph A above shall apply specifically to any costs or obligations of Authority arising out of 
any such disposition, cleanup, or environmental response. 

C. Survival: The provision of this Section shall survive the expiration, termination and early
cancellation of this agreement.

D. Insurance: Lessee shall carry and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this
Agreement the minimum amounts of insurance set forth below.  The Lessee shall carry workers'
compensation insurance on all of its employees employed on the Airport.  Lessee may request
the Authority to approve alternative types of insurance providing at least equal protection.  All
such insurance shall be in at least the following amounts and shall be in a form acceptable to the
Authority and approved by the City Attorney, shall name the Authority and the City of Duluth as
additional insureds on each liability policy and shall provide for thirty (30) days' written notice to
the Authority of any cancellation or modification thereof.    Certified copies thereof or appropriate
certificates of insurance evidencing the existence thereof shall be delivered to the Authority prior
to the execution of this agreement.  The Authority reserves the right and Lessee agrees to
revisions upward or downward in the minimum insurance requirements hereinafter set forth.  All
insurance required under this Agreement shall be taken out and maintained in responsible
insurance companies organized under the laws of the states of the United States and licensed
to do business in the State of Minnesota.

1. Commercial general liability insurance, including contractual, completed operations,
premises and operations and products liability coverage in an amount of not less than $1,500,000 
combined single limit or $1,500,000 bodily injury per occurrence; $1,500,000 property damage 
per occurrence and $1,500,000 in aggregate.  

2. Owned, non-owned and hired vehicles in an amount not less than $1,500,000 combined
single limit or $1,500,000 bodily injury per occurrence; $1,500,000 per occurrence if Operator 
uses any vehicles. 

3. Aircraft Liability insurance from an admitted aviation insurance carrier in limits per each
occurrence of not less than $1,000,000 and Aircraft Passenger Liability insurance in limits of not 
less than $100,000 for each passenger seat.  

4. Worker’s Compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.
E. Insurance Primary: All insurance policies required above shall be primary and shall not require

contribution from any coverage maintained by Authority and/or City.

F. Insurance Not Limitation: It is understood that the specified amounts of insurance stated in this
paragraph shall in no way limit the liability of Lessee under this Section.

G. Disclaimer: Authority does not represent or guarantee that these types or limits of coverage are
adequate to protect the Lessee’s interests and liabilities.  It shall be the obligation and
responsibility of Lessee to insure, as it deems prudent, its own personal property, against
damage.  Authority does not have insurance coverage for Lessee’s property and Authority
expressly disclaims any and all liability for any and all losses, damage and/or claims to vehicles
and/or personal possessions of Lessee.

H. Authority's Fire Insurance: Lessee covenants that it will not do or permit to be done any act which:



Page 7 of 12 

a. will invalidate or be in conflict with any fire insurance policies covering the Airport or any part
thereof or upon the contents of any building thereof; or

b. will increase the rate of fire insurance on the Airport or any part thereof or upon the contents
of any building thereof; or

c. in the opinion of the Authority, will constitute a hazardous condition so as to increase the
risks normally attendant upon the operations contemplated by this Agreement.

If, by reason of Lessee's failure to comply with the provisions of this section, any fire insurance 
rate on the Airport or any part thereof or upon the contents of any building thereof, at any time, 
be higher than it otherwise would be, then the Lessee shall, upon demand, reimburse the 
Authority for that part of all fire insurance premiums paid or payable by the Authority which shall 
have been charged because of   Lessee’s failure to comply with this section.  

I. Waiver of Claims: Lessee waives all claims or causes of action against the Authority, its officers,
agents or employees for any failure of the Authority to properly maintain, operate and manage
the Airport at all times in a safe manner resulting from any reason or cause beyond the control
of the Authority, including, but without the generality of the foregoing, war, strikes, riots, civil
commotion and similar causes.

SECTION 10 
LAWS, ORDINANCES, RULES, AND NON-DISCRIMINATION 

A. Laws, Ordinances and Rules: The Lessee agrees to observe and comply with all the laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations of the United States of America, State of Minnesota, the City
of Duluth, and their respective agencies now in effect or hereinafter promulgated which are
applicable to its business at the Airport including all laws relating to unlawful discrimination, and
further agrees to observe and comply with all Airport rules and regulations in existence at the
execution of this Agreement and which may, from time to time, be promulgated by the Authority
governing conduct on and operations at the Airport and the use of its facilities, as administered
by the Executive Director.  Further, Lessee agrees to fulfill its responsibilities pursuant to the
Airport Security Plan approved by the Federal Aviation Administration and any amendments
thereto.

B. Non-discrimination: The Lessee for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest,
and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a
covenant with the land that:

a. No person on the grounds of race, color or national origin shall be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in the
use of said facilities; and

b. In the construction of any improvement on, over or under such land and the furnishing
of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to
discrimination; and

c. That the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with all of the requirements
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of l964, and as said Regulations may be amended.

SECTION 11 
AUTHORITY'S RIGHTS UPON DEFAULT 

A. Rights: If at any time Lessee shall be in default, as defined in this Section, with regard to the
requirements of this Agreement, it shall be lawful for the Authority, and the Authority may at any
time thereafter:



Page 8 of 12 

1. Immediately or at any time thereafter without further notice to Lessee, re-enter onto or upon
the Leased Premises or any part thereof and take possession of the same fully and
absolutely without such re-entry working a forfeiture of the charges to be paid and of the
covenants, terms and conditions to be performed by Lessee for the full term of this
Agreement, and in the event of such re-entry, the Authority may proceed with the collection
of charges to be paid under this Agreement or to recover properly measured damages; or

2. Authority may at its election terminate this Agreement upon written notice in the manner
hereinafter provided and re-enter upon said Leased Premises as of its former estate therein,
and the Lessee covenants in case of such termination to indemnify the Authority against all
loss of rents and expense which the Authority has suffered or paid by reason of such
termination, during the residue of the term; or

3. The Authority shall further have all other rights and remedies including injunctive relief,
ejectment or summary proceedings for unlawful detainer, and any and all legal remedies,
actions and proceedings and all such remedies shall be cumulative.

B. Default Defined: For the purposes of this Section only "default" shall be defined when any of the
following circumstances exits:
1. If the Lessee fails to pay rent, fees, taxes or other charges when due hereunder and such

failure to pay shall continue for thirty (30) days after notice in writing in the manner hereinafter
provided for.

2. If Lessee fails to provide construction plans and specifications on or before April 30, 2025 or
fails to complete construction of the airplane hangar on or before December 31, 2025, or

3. If the Lessee fails in the observance or performance of any of the other terms, covenants
and conditions of this Agreement and such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after
Authority has given Lessee written notice, or the Lessee shall have failed to commence the
rectification of such failure within ten (10) days after such notice and to diligently prosecute
the same where the same cannot be completed within thirty (30) days, or

4. If a petition to reorganize the Lessee or for its arrangement of its unsecured debts shall be
filed, or

5. If the Lessee shall be adjudicated bankrupt, or
6. If a receiver or trustee of the Lessee's property shall be appointed by any court, or
7. If the Lessee shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or
8. If all of the interest of the Lessee in its property shall be taken by garnishment, attachment,

execution or other process of law, or
9. If the Leased Premises shall be deserted or vacated.

SECTION 12 
TERMINATION BY LESSEE 

A. Termination: Lessee may terminate this Agreement prior to the end of its term, or any extension
thereof, for the following reasons:
1. Failure of the Authority to substantially perform its obligations hereunder, if such failure shall

continue for sixty (60) days after Lessee has given Authority written notice or the Authority
shall fail to commence the rectification of such failure within sixty (60) days after such notice
and to diligently prosecute the same where the same cannot be completed within sixty (60)
days.

2. If the Authority shall commit any act or engage in any activity that prevents the Lessee from
conducting its uses and activities as provided under the terms of this Agreement for a period
of sixty (60) days without the consent of Lessee and after Lessee has given notice to the
Authority as provided for herein.

3. If by any act or cause, whether by the Authority or not, Lessee is unable, by reason of change
in regulation, termination of operation, or damage to the Leased Premises, to utilize the
Leased Premises herein rented by Lessee for a period of six (6) months.



Page 9 of 12 

B. Abatement in Lieu of Termination: In lieu of termination of this Agreement by the Lessee under
the provisions of Paragraph A above, the Lessee may, at its option, declare a moratorium on rent
payments, or any other payments provided hereunder to the Authority during the interruptions of
Lessee’s use of the Leased Premises and in such event, the term of this Agreement shall be
extended for a period of such interruption, or interruptions, and the moratorium on any payments
hereunder by Lessee shall continue until Lessee's use of the Leased Premises can be
uninterruptedly continued.

SECTION 13 
FORCE MAJEURE 

If war, civil insurrection, natural disaster, change in law, action of the federal, state or city 
government, or other force beyond the control of the parties render the continuance of this 
Agreement impossible, then it shall terminate on thirty (30) days’ notice to the other party. 

SECTION 14 
WAIVER OF BREACH 

The waiver by the Authority or the Lessee of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein 
contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other 
term, covenant or condition herein contained. 

SECTION 15 
REAL PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION 

A. Authority’s Option to Buy: At the termination of this Agreement, Authority shall have the option to
purchase from Lessee any Leasehold Improvements on the Leased Premises that are then
owned by Lessee.  The purchase price for said Leasehold Improvements shall be determined by
an appraisal of the fair market value thereof made by a board of three (3) appraisers, one of
whom shall be named by the Authority, one of whom shall be named by the Lessee, and the third
of whom shall be named by the two appraisers appointed respectively by the Lessee and the
Authority.  Upon approval of the Authority, said purchase price, as so determined, shall be paid
by Authority to Lessee after completion of said appraisal upon Lessee’s tendering to Authority
good and marketable title to said Leasehold Improvements, free and clear of all encumbrances.

B. Removal If Option Not Exercised: In the event that Authority does not exercise its option to
purchase said Leasehold Improvements as provided for herein, and if Lessee shall have paid all
taxes, assessments, rent or other charges by it payable under the terms of this Agreement, and
shall have kept and performed all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, then Lessee
shall have the right to remove from Leased Premises all Leasehold Improvements thereon
belonging to the Lessee, and shall restore Leased Premises to as good condition as they were
in when they were entered upon by Lessee, provided that Lessee shall do so within sixty (60)
days after the termination of this Agreement.  If said Leasehold Improvements are not so
removed, the Lessee hereby conveys the same absolutely to the Authority and title thereto, upon
the expiration of said sixty (60) day period shall vest with the Authority without further act or
conveyance; provided, however, that if Lessee demonstrates to Authority that for reasons beyond
the control of Lessee such removal cannot be completed within said sixty (60) day period, then
Executive Director may allow Lessee, in writing,  a reasonable extension of time for such removal.
In the event the Leasehold Improvements are not removed within said 60 day time period or such
extension thereof as may be allowed by the Executive Director, the Authority, at its sole option,
may remove or demolish or cause the removal or demolition of the Leasehold Improvements or
any portion thereof, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, and payment for said removal or
demolition shall be made immediately upon receipt by Lessee of invoice therefor.



Page 10 of 12 

C. Restore Premises: In all events upon the termination of this Agreement, Lessee agrees to repair
or restore any damage to the Leased Premises or diminution in the value thereof resulting from
Lessee’s operation on the Airport except normal wear and tear which are the natural and normal
consequences of Lessee’s operations at the Airport.

SECTION 16 
SUBLEASES AND ASSIGNMENTS 

The Lessee shall not assign, pledge, or transfer, in whole or in part, in any manner, this Agreement, 
nor any interest therein, nor permit the Agreement to become transferred by operation of law, 
including inheritance, or otherwise, nor do or suffer any acts to be done whereby the same may be 
or become assigned in whole or in part, unless the prior written consent of the Executive Director 
shall be obtained in each and every case of such underletting, assignment or transfer as shall from 
time to time occur or be desired.  The parties expressly agree that a majority change in ownership 
of the controlling interest in Lessee, if any, shall be deemed to be an assignment hereunder.  It is 
expressly agreed by the Lessee that in the event permission be granted by the Executive Director 
as herein provided, the sub-lessee or assignee shall be required to assume and agree to perform 
the covenants of this Agreement and that notwithstanding any such subletting or assignment, the 
Lessee shall be and remain liable for the payments of all rents and the performance of all covenants 
and conditions for the full term of this Agreement.  The parties agree that Executive Director shall 
meet and confer in good faith with any party Lessee proposes as a sub-lessee or assignee of this 
Agreement for the purpose of reaching an accord on occupation of the Leased Premises. 

SECTION 17 
ERECTION OF SIGNS 

The Lessee shall be allowed to erect suitable signs on the Leased Premises to indicate its location 
or occupancy, but the form, type, size and method of installation of any such signs shall be subject 
to the prior written approval of the Executive Director which will not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed. 

SECTION 18 
GOVERNMENTAL COMMITMENTS 

Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the Authority from making such commitments, as it 
determines is in its best interest, to the Government of the United States or to the State of Minnesota 
in order to qualify for the expenditure of Federal or State funds at the Airport or related in any manner 
to the operation thereof, and this Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or 
future agreement between the Authority and the Government of the United States or of the State of 
Minnesota relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport. 

SECTION 19 
SUBORDINATION 

This Agreement shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future Agreement between 
the Authority and the United States of America or the State of Minnesota relative to the operation or 
maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition 
precedent to the expenditure of Federal or State funds for the development of the Airport, or to any 
security requirements of State or Federal Government, including temporary security procedures or 
instructions.  



Page 11 of 12 

SECTION 20 
SEVERABILITY 

In the event any provision herein shall be deemed invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in force and effect and shall be binding upon the parties to this Agreement.  

SECTION 21 
MODIFICATION OF THE AGREEMENT 

Any of the terms of this Agreement may be changed upon the mutual consent of the Authority and 
the Lessee, but to be valid any such changes must be in writing, dated and must be executed with 
the same formalities as this Agreement. 

SECTION 22 
NOTICES 

All notices to be given by Lessee to the Authority shall be deemed to have been given by depositing 
written notice in the United States Mail addressed to Authority at the Duluth International Airport, 
470l Grinden Drive, Duluth, Minnesota, 558ll, Attn: Executive Director.  All notices to be given by 
Authority to Lessee shall be deemed to have been delivered by depositing the same in writing in the 
United States Mail addressed to 7784 Arabian Circle Lino Lakes, MN 55014. 

SECTION 23 
COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be 
an original as against any Party whose signature appears thereon, but all of which together shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument. Signatures to this Agreement transmitted by facsimile, 
by electronic mail in “portable document format” (“.pdf”), or by any other electronic means which 
preserves the original graphic and pictorial appearance of the Agreement, shall have the same effect 
as physical delivery of the paper document bearing the original signature. 

SECTION 24 
APPLICABLE LAW 

This Agreement, together with all of its articles, terms and provisions, is made in the State of 
Minnesota and shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Minnesota.  
The appropriate venue and jurisdiction for any litigation hereunder shall be in a court located in St. 
Louis County, Minnesota. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands this 20th day of August 2024 

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY   YELLOW DOG AVIATION, LLC 

By_______________________ By _______________________ 
Its President     

Its _______________________ 

By_______________________ 
Its Secretary 



Page 12 of 12 

EXHIBIT A 
SKY HARBOR AIRPORT (DYT) LOT #8-LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

That property in St. Louis County, Minnesota, lying in Parcel 6 of the REFEREE’S PLAT OF 
MINNESOTA POINT as recorded in the St. Louis County Office of the Register of Deeds in 
Book “G” of Plats, Page 38, more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a magnetic nail marking the northwest end of runway centerline 14/32 at 
Duluth - Sky Harbor Airport; and assuming said runway centerline, as monumented by 
magnetic nails being 2602 feet apart, located at the northwest and southeast end of said 
runway, bears South 37 degrees 05 minutes 00 seconds East; thence North 12 degrees 
22 minutes 52 seconds East 640.56 feet; thence South 41 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds 
East 468.25 feet TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue South 41 degrees 43 
minutes 50 seconds East 80.66 feet; thence North 48 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds 
East 105.00 feet; thence North 41 degrees 43 minutes 50 seconds West 80.66 feet; 
thence South 48 degrees 16 minutes 10 seconds West 105.00 feet to the point of 
beginning. 



B



Duluth Airport Authority 
Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. (SEH) Work Order 2024-11 for Final Design, Plan and Specification 

Development, Bidding Documents and Bidding for the Midfield Ramp Repair – Phase 3 at the 
Duluth International Airport 

Terms:  
• Estimated start date of August 20, 2024
• Estimated end date of January 2025

Fiscal Impact: 
• Proposal amount is $142,500.00.  MnDOT State share is $99,750, the DAA share is $42,750

(funded by Passenger Facility Charge (PFC))

Agreement Overview: 
This work order includes final design, plans and specifications development, bidding documents, and 
bidding for the Midfield Ramp Repair – Phase 3 project at the Duluth International Airport (DLH). The 
contract provisions included in the Master Agreement (dated 03/27/2023) between the DAA and SEH 
remain in effect for this work order.  

Background: 
The state grant opportunity was offered by MnDOT Aeronautics to provide engineering design to prepare 
plans and specifications to repair pavement on the Midfield Ramp Phase 3.  The project is anticipated to 
be bid in 2024, with construction occurring in the summer of 2025.  The construction amount is 
anticipated to be amended to the state grant once bids are received. 

The Midfield Ramp at the Duluth International Airport (DLH) is located adjacent to the Snow Removal 
Equipment Maintenance Facility, east of the Cirrus area.  The Midfield Ramp is approximately 36,100 
square yards and is intended to serve as parking for large transient aircraft, such as military cargo aircraft 
or commercial service aircraft that divert from other airports, also known as irregular operations (IROPS). 

Some of the Midfield Ramp pavement has been rated as some of the worst on the Airfield.  The most 
recent pavement inspection completed by MnDOT Aeronautics in 2021 showed the proposed portion of 
the pavement to be reconstructed as “poor” condition. 

This work scope includes final design, plans and specifications development, bidding documents, and 
bidding for the previously identified Phase 3 portion of the Midfield Ramp Repair (construction 
observation, administration, and closeout are excluded.)  It is understood the Midfield Ramp will be 
broken down into phases, and design work for subsequent phases is excluded.   

The project is eligible for MnDOT funding at 70 percent.  The DAA is responsible for the remaining 30 
percent, and that cost is anticipated to be funded with Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) revenue.   

VII. - I.



Duluth Airport Authority 
Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. (SEH) Work Order 2024-11 for Final Design, Plan and Specification 

Development, Bidding Documents and Bidding for the Midfield Ramp Repair – Phase 3 at the 
Duluth International Airport 

Terms: 
 Estimated start date of August 20, 2024
 Estimated end date of January 2025

Fiscal Impact: 
 Proposal amount is $142,500.00.  MnDOT State share is $99,750, the DAA share is $42,750

(funded by Passenger Facility Charge (PFC))

Agreement Overview: 
This work order includes final design, plans and specifications development, bidding documents, and 
bidding for the Midfield Ramp Repair – Phase 3 project at the Duluth International Airport (DLH). The 
contract provisions included in the Master Agreement (dated 03/27/2023) between the DAA and SEH 
remain in effect for this work order.  

Background: 
The state grant opportunity was offered by MnDOT Aeronautics to provide engineering design to prepare 
plans and specifications to repair pavement on the Midfield Ramp Phase 3.  The project is anticipated to 
be bid in 2024, with construction occurring in the summer of 2025.  The construction amount is 
anticipated to be amended to the state grant once bids are received. 

The Midfield Ramp at the Duluth International Airport (DLH) is located adjacent to the Snow Removal 
Equipment Maintenance Facility, east of the Cirrus area.  The Midfield Ramp is approximately 36,100 
square yards and is intended to serve as parking for large transient aircraft, such as military cargo aircraft 
or commercial service aircraft that divert from other airports, also known as irregular operations (IROPS). 

Some of the Midfield Ramp pavement has been rated as some of the worst on the Airfield.  The most 
recent pavement inspection completed by MnDOT Aeronautics in 2021 showed the proposed portion of 
the pavement to be reconstructed as “poor” condition. 

This work scope includes final design, plans and specifications development, bidding documents, and 
bidding for the previously identified Phase 3 portion of the Midfield Ramp Repair (construction 
observation, administration, and closeout are excluded.)  It is understood the Midfield Ramp will be 
broken down into phases, and design work for subsequent phases is excluded.   

The project is eligible for MnDOT funding at 70 percent.  The DAA is responsible for the remaining 30 
percent, and that cost is anticipated to be funded with Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) revenue.   



WORK ORDER 
No. 2024-11 

Between

The Duluth Airport Authority (DAA) (Owner) and 
Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. (SEH) (Consultant) Dated:  August 20, 2024 

MIDFIELD RAMP REPAIR – PHASE 3 
DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (DLH) 

This work order includes final design, plan and specification development, bidding documents, 
and bidding for the repair of the Midfield Ramp – Phase 3 at Duluth International Airport (DLH). 
The contract provisions included in the Master Agreement (dated 3-27-2023) between the DAA 
and SEH remain in effect for this work order.   

Estimated start date is August 20, 2024; estimated end date is January 2025.   

Compensation by the Owner to the Consultant shall be a lump sum amount of $142,500.00. 

A description of the services to be provided is included in Attachments A.  A detailed estimate of 
labor cost and expenses is included in Attachment B. 

Point of Contact:  Shawn McMahon, PE 

APPROVED: 

Duluth Airport Authority (DAA)  Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

Title:_________________________ Title:__Principal__________________ 

Date:_________________________ Date:_August 20, 2024 

_____________________________ 

Title:________________________ 

Date:_________________________ 



ATTACHMENT A 

Duluth International Airport (DLH) 
Midfield Ramp Repair – Phase 3 

Projected State Grant SP No. TBD 

Scope of Work 

(Final Design, Plans and Specifications Development, Bidding Documents, and Bidding) 

General – The Midfield Ramp at the Duluth International Airport (DLH) is located adjacent to the Snow 
Removal Equipment (SRE) Maintenance Facility, and east of the Cirrus area. The Midfield Ramp is 
approximately 36,100 square yards and is intended to serve as parking for large transient aircraft, such 
as military cargo aircraft or commercial service aircraft that diverted from other airports, also known as 
irregular operations (IROPS). 

Some of the Midfield Ramp pavement has been rated as some of the worst on the Airfield. The most 
recent pavement inspection completed by the Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) Office of 
Aeronautics in 2021 showed a portion of the pavement as “failed” and another portion in “good” or “fair” 
condition. See the excerpt from the pavement condition report below. Please note the following excerpt 
does not show Phase 1 or Phase 2 of the Midfield Ramp repair that was completed in 2023 and slated for 
2025, respectively. 

Figure 1: Portion of 2021 PCI Summary for DLH from the Pavement Condition Report 



 
Reconstruction of the Phase 3 portion on the Midfield Ramp is the proposed design project. The following 
figure shows the location of Phase 3 that will be designed and constructed as part of this effort. 

 
Figure 2: Proposed Phasing for the Midfield Ramp Repair 

This work scope includes final design, plans and specifications development, bidding documents, and 
bidding for the previously identified Phase 3 portion of the Midfield Ramp Repair. It is understood that the 
Midfield Ramp Repair will be broken down into phases, and design work for subsequent phases is 
excluded from this portion of work.  

The project schedule includes design in 2024 with anticipated bidding in December of 2024. Construction 
is anticipated to occur in 2025 or 2026, dependent on the availability of state funding support. 

 

Projected Project Schedule – The anticipated submittal dates are: 
August 20, 2024  DAA Board considers proposal 
September 24, 2024  30% Design plan submittal to DAA - Critical Milestone    
November 22, 2024  100% Bidding documents completion 

 December 20, 2024  Bid opening 
 January 2025   State grant application for construction 
 June 2025   Construction 



Project Deliverables – The project deliverables of this scope include the following: 

1. Project Formulation

2. Topographic Analysis

3. Plan Drawings and Specifications

4. Construction Bidding Documents

5. Bidding services

6. Public Outreach and Project Management

Project Scope – The project scope includes the following deliverables: 

Work Element 1: Project Formulation 

Specific tasks included with this work element include: 

Task 1.1 – Scoping, Review, and Coordination – Short Elliott Hendrickson (SEH and/or 
Consultant) will coordinate with the Duluth Airport Authority (DAA) (sponsor) to develop the 
appropriate scope of work. Additional coordination will include task definition and establishment of 
project goals and objectives. SEH will review documents on the existing conditions of the site. 
The scope of work will be presented to MnDOT Office of Aeronautics for review and will be 
updated based on input received. A maximum of 3 project scope concept alternatives will be 
presented to the DAA at the 30% design submittal. This submittal, upon review and comment 
from the DAA, will serve as the basis for the remaining work to be done. If any Owner scope 
changes are directed after this critical milestone that require rework by SEH, the rework will be 
compensated. 

Task 1.2 – Project Formulation – SEH will complete the project and grant pre-application 
documentation, permit review submittals (as required), and cost breakdowns for the approved 
scope of work. 

Task 1.3 – Geotechnical Evaluation Report – subconsultant will review original GER and do 
additional analysis. See subconsultant agreement for additional details. This task includes time 
for SEH staff to review the GER and any additional analysis that was performed. 

Task 1.4 – Review of Contaminated Materials Potential – SEH will review soil boring and 
testing information to consider the potential for needing mitigation strategies for contaminated 
material at the site. Any required mitigation plans to include removal or remediation are not 
included with this project scope. High level planning will be completed for future phases of the 
Midfield Ramp to account for contaminated materials. Work will include reviewing existing borings 
and environmental reports, coordination with MPCA, FUDS program, and Air National Guard. 

Work Element 2: Topographical Analysis  

Specific tasks included with this work element include: 

Task 2.1 – Topographic Survey – A topographic survey was completed as part of the Phase 1 
design. This task will include up to two trips for verification of Phase 1 grades and to pick up additional 
survey as required for this design effort. SEH will complete the survey work and provide escorting 
and oversight during the survey. This element also includes processing the gathered survey 
information into 2D and 3D drawings to be used as part of design and incorporated into the overall 
DLH base drawing. Preconstruction photos and or video will be taken at this time. 

Work Element 3: Plan Drawings and Specifications 

Final design and plan drawings for Midfield Ramp Repair, will be prepared in accordance with federal and 
state guidelines. FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5300-13B, Airport Design, will be utilized in the 
development of the plan set. Other applicable ACs, FAA Orders, Regulations and Policy Memorandums 
will be used as needed. Specific tasks included with this work element include:  



Task 3.1 – Environmental Coordination and Permits – SEH will complete the and/or coordinate 
the following permits: 

 National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) determination

 MPCA NPDES permit application

 City of Duluth Haul Route Application

 City of Duluth Stormwater permit

 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)

Task 3.2 – Construction Safety and Phasing Plan Development – SEH will complete the 
Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP). SEH will meet virtually with DAA staff, airfield 
tenants and users to evaluate potential risks and determine appropriate mitigation tactics. 
The preliminary CSPP will be enhanced to determine final phasing and sequencing, 
construction limits, haul routes, contractor staging areas, and anticipated impacts to airport 
users and airfield facilities. A final CSPP will be uploaded for FAA airspace review.  

Task 3.3 – Detailed Final Design – The final design will include design of the Phase 3 portion of 
the Midfield Ramp Repair. It is understood the Midfield Ramp will be broken down into 
phases, and design work for subsequent phases is excluded. Detailed design will include 
development of pavement design, repair techniques, joint layout, underdrain and storm drain 
design, and other necessary minor elements. SEH will also prepare a technical memorandum 
summarizing the stormwater calculations and the City of Duluth stormwater requirements. 
This report and supporting calculations will be used to submit the Application to the City of 
Duluth for the Stormwater Permit discussed in Task 3.1. 

Task 3.4 – Construction Plan Sheets – Specific plan sheets to be developed and included in the 
plan set are as follows: 

 Title Sheet
 Construction Safety and Phasing Plan and Details
 Traffic Control Plan
 General Notes
 Statement of Estimated Quantities
 Details and Construction Notes
 SWPPP (if needed)
 Erosion Control Plan and Details
 Alignment Plan
 Utility Locations Plan
 Typical Section(s)
 Removal Plan
 Temporary Pavement Marking Plan
 Grading Plan drawings for new pavement
 Storm Sewer and Drain Tile Plan and Details
 Concrete Pavement Joint Plan and Details
 Pavement Marking Plan and Details
 Cross Sections

Task 3.5 – Quality Control Site Visit – SEH will conduct one quality control site visit during final 
design to verify base maps, utility locations, light locations, grades, and other relevant site 
features to ensure conformance to bidding documents.  

Work Element 4: Construction Bidding Documents 

Elements of the Construction Bidding Documents will be prepared in accordance with applicable FAA AC’s, 
Orders, Regulations and Policy Memorandums. Specific tasks included with this work element include: 

Task 4.1 – Construction Bidding Documents – A bid proposal project manual will be prepared that 
will consist of a table of contents, advertisement for bids, proposal documents, schedule of 



prices, State and Federal requirements, wage rates, technical specifications and special 
provisions. Efforts to repackage bidding documents to accommodate any need to re-bid the 
project are not including as part of this contract scope. 

Task 4.2 – Quantity Calculations and Final Engineer’s Estimate –This task includes finalization 
of quantities associated with the project for use in the bid package. A final engineer’s estimate 
using these quantities is also included. 

Task 4.3 – Quality Control Reviews –This task includes quality control reviews of the project plans 
and specifications, quantity determinations and construction cost estimates. An on-site plan 
review with DAA staff is included.  

Work Element 5: Bidding Services  

Bidding Services include the following tasks: 

Task 5.1 – Bidding and Award – SEH will coordinate with the City of Duluth for advertisement and 
opening. Respond to questions from prospective bidders and issue addenda as needed. Assist 
the sponsor with obtaining construction bids for project, including arranging for bid 
advertisement, attending the bid opening and tabulating bid results. Provide a recommendation 
of award of contractor to the Sponsor and assist with requesting a State grant for the project.  

Work Element 6: Public Outreach and Project Management – This task includes the overall project 
management of Work Elements 1 through 5 noted above. Public Outreach and Project Management 
includes administration of the project, design team meetings, agency and Sponsor meetings, airfield user 
and tenant outreach meetings, and related project administration tasks. Specific tasks included with this 
work element include: 

Task 6.1 – Design Team Meetings –This task includes weekly meetings by the design team to 
discuss project elements, schedule, issues, and provide coordination between team members. 

Task 6.2 – Agency Meetings –This task includes monthly meetings by the design team, the City of 
Duluth, MnDOT Office of Aeronautics, FAA ADO, DAA staff, and other individuals and agencies 
as needed, to discuss the project design development, schedule, and any other related items. 

Task 6.3 – Public Involvement Meetings and Notifications – This task includes specific meetings 
with airfield businesses, airfield tenants, terminal tenants, DAA staff meetings, and other critical 
stakeholders to provide updates on the status of the project and address any issues or 
concerns. This task also includes project mailing and notifications will be sent out to the 
stakeholders. 

Task 6.4 – Overall Project Management –This task includes project coordination and 
administration, including Sponsor and agency communication, internal meetings, progress 
reports, budget updates and monthly invoices.  



Task 
No. Task Description

Project 
Director

Project 
Manager

Professional 
Engineer

Project 
Engineer II

Project 
Engineer I

Senior 
Technician

Sr. Aviation 
Planner

Sr 
Environment
al Engineer

Water 
Resources 

Professional 
Engineer

Water 
Resources 

Enginer Structural Surveyor
Admin 

Technician

1.1 Scoping, Review, and Coordination 1 4 7 2 15 2 3

1.2 Project Formulation 1 4 7 3 2 2 2

1.3 Geotechnical Analysis/Borings (see subconsultant) 1 2 1

1.4 Review of Contaminated Materials 2 2 4

2.1 Topographic Survey 2 2 8 16

3.1 Environmental Coordination and Permits 2 2 8 2 2

NEPA Determination 12 8

MPCA NPDES/SWPPP Permit 4 4 24

City of Duluth Permits (Haul Route, Stormwater) 1 3

3.2 Construction Safety and Phasing Plan Development 2 8 2

FAA Airspace Review 2 8

3.3 Detailed Final Design 16 50 60 8 32 2

3.4 Construction Plan Sheets 2 12 32 20 55 1 8

3.5 Quality Control Site Visits 8 10

4.1 Construction Bidding Documents 2 12 20 6 1 4

4.3 Quantity Calculations and Final Engineer's Estimate 2 8 8 2

4.4 Quality Control Reviews 1 12 8 8

5.1 Bidding and Award 12 12 8 4

6.1 Design Team Meetings 12 12 12 6
6.2 Agency Meetings 1 4 4 4
6.3 Public Involvement Meetings and Notifications 1 4 6 2

6.4 Overall Project Management 1 20

Total hours per labor category 6 110 153 180 69 77 18 4 8 60 15 16 8

ESTIMATE OF LABOR COSTS:
Labor Category Hours Rate Extension

6 $85.60 $513.60
110 $79.19 $8,710.90
153 $52.57 $8,043.21
180 $42.26 $7,606.80

Project Engineer I 69 $38.37 $2,647.53
Senior Technician 77 $48.75 $3,753.75
Sr. Aviation Planner 18 $55.33 $995.94
Sr Environmental Engineer 4 $65.04 $260.16
Water Resources Professional Engineer 8 $64.02 $512.16
Water Resources Engineer 60 $46.02 $2,761.20
Structural 15 $76.48 $1,147.20
Surveyor 16 $42.22 $675.52
Admin Technician 8 $35.44 $283.52

Total Direct Labor Costs: 724 $37,911.49
Direct Salary Costs plus Overhead (90%) $72,031.83

Total Labor Costs $109,943.32

Fixed Fee on Labor Costs (15%) $16,491.50

ESTIMATE OF EXPENSES:
Direct Expenses Quantity Rate Extension

1 $9,160.00 $9,160.00
2 $9.00 $18.00
2 $16.00 $32.00

Employee Mileage 2,368 $0.67 $1,586.56
Per Diem 2 $200.00 $400.00
Computer Charge 724 $5.55 $4,018.20
Survey Truck 16 $4.90 $78.40
Survey Equipment (Total Station/GPS) 16 $45.00 $720.00
Reproductions / Miscellaneous 1 $100.00 $100.00

Total Expenses $16,113.16

SUMMARY:
Total Labor Costs + Expenses + Fixed Fee $142,547.98

Estimated Total $142,500.00

ATTACHMENT B
ESTIMATED FEES AND EXPENSES

Project Manager

MIDFIELD RAMP REPAIR - PHASE 3
FIINAL DESIGN, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, BIDDING DOCUMENTS, AND BIDDING

Plan Drawings for Midfield Ramp Repair

DULUTH, MN
DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (DLH)

Project Formulation

Topographic Analysis

Project Director

Construction Bidding Documents

Public Outreach and Project Management 

Bidding Services

Project Engineer II
Professional Engineer

Parking
Auto Allowance

Geotechnical Field Investigation - Subconsultant (Braun Intertec)



 

AA/EOE 

Braun Intertec Corporation
4511 West First Street, Suite 4 
Duluth, MN 55807

Phone: 218.624.4967
Fax:      218.624.0196
Web:    braunintertec.com

June 24, 2024 Proposal QTB199792 

Allison Andrashko, PE 
Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 
3535 Vadnais Center Drive 
Saint Paul, MN 55110 

Re: Proposal for a Geotechnical Evaluation 
Proposed Midfield Ramp Phases 3 & 4 Addendum 
Duluth International Airport 
4701 Grinden Drive 
Duluth, Minnesota 

Dear Ms. Andrashko: 

Braun Intertec Corporation respectfully submits this proposal to complete a geotechnical evaluation for 
the proposed reconstruction of Phases 3 & 4 of the Midfield Ramp at the referenced site. 

Project Information 

Per our correspondence with you, the project will include the reconstruction of approximately 75,000 
square feet of the Midfield Ramp north of Hangar 104. This geotechnical evaluation will serve as an 
Addendum to our Geotechnical Evaluation and Limited Environmental Investigation Report for the 
Midfield Ramp, under project number B2106381, dated August 27, 2021. The Addendum will provide 
additional soil borings in the Phases 3 & 4 areas. The locations of the pavement cores and soil borings will 
be selected and surveyed by SEH. 

Purpose 

The purpose of our geotechnical evaluation will be to characterize existing pavement and subsurface 
geologic conditions at selected exploration locations and evaluate their impact on the design and 
reconstruction of the pavement area. 

Scope of Services 

We propose the following tasks to help achieve the stated purpose. If we encounter unfavorable or 
unforeseen conditions during the completion of our tasks that lead us to recommend an expanded scope 
of services, we will contact you to discuss the conditions before resuming our services. 

Site Access 
Based on aerial photographs and previous site visits, it appears that the site is accessible to a float  
tire-mounted drill rig. We understand our field work will be completed during daylight hours. We assume 
there will be no cause for delays in accessing the exploration locations.  



Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 
Proposal QTB199792 
July 11, 2024 
Page 2 

Depending on access requirements, ground conditions or potential utility conflicts, our field crew may 
alter the exploration locations from those proposed to facilitate accessibility. 

Utility Clearance 
Prior to drilling or excavating, we will contact Gopher State One Call and arrange for notification of the 
appropriate utility vendors to mark and clear the exploration locations of public underground utilities. A 
Braun Intertec representative will arrange an on-site utility meet with the notified locators at the project 
site. You, or your authorized representative, are responsible to notify us before we begin our work of the 
presence and location of any underground objects or private utilities that are not the responsibility of 
public agencies. 

Penetration Test Borings 
As requested, we will drill 4 standard penetration test (SPT) borings for the project, extending them to  
10 feet. Standard penetration tests will be performed continuously in the upper 5 feet and at 2 1/2-foot 
vertical intervals at greater depths.  

If the borings encounter groundwater during or immediately after drilling of each boring, we will record 
the observed depth on the boring logs. 

If the intended boring depths do not extend through unsuitable material, we will extend the borings at 
least 5 feet into suitable material at greater depths. If we identify a need for deeper (or additional) 
borings, we will contact you prior to increasing our total estimated drilled footage and submit a Change 
Order summarizing the anticipated additional effort and the associated cost, for your review and 
authorization. 

Pavement Coring 
We will core pavements at the soil boring locations. The cores will be extracted and visually evaluated. 
Thickness and pavement condition within the cores will be reported. We understand this work will take 
place when temperatures are above freezing. 

MDH Notification and Sealing Record 
Since our planned exploration will be less than 15 feet in depth, the Minnesota Statutes will not require that 
we complete any notifications or sealing records. If we extend any of the borings to a depth of 15 feet or 
greater, the Statutes requires that we seal the boreholes and complete a Sealing Record. If 25 feet or 
greater, the Statutes also require us to complete a Sealing Notification Form. If the Record or Form are 
required, we will contact you to discuss the additional fees and sealing requirements.   

Borehole Abandonment  
After completing the soil borings, the borings will be backfilled with cuttings and borings in the pavement 
will be patched. Over time, subsidence of borehole backfill may occur, requiring surface grades to be  
re-leveled or patches to be replaced. Braun Intertec is not assuming responsibility for re-leveling or  
re-patching subsequent to initial backfilling and patching long term. 



Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 
Proposal QTB199792 
July 11, 2024 
Page 3 

Sample Review and Laboratory Testing 
We will return recovered samples to our laboratory, where a geotechnical engineer will visually classify 
and log them. To help classify the materials encountered and estimate the engineering properties 
necessary to our analyses, we anticipate performing 4 moisture content tests, 2 Atterberg limits tests, 
and 2 mechanical analyses (through a #200 sieve only). We will adjust the actual number and type of 
tests based on the results of our borings. 

Addendum 
We will prepare an addendum including: 

▪ A sketch showing the boring locations.

▪ Logs of the borings describing the materials encountered and presenting the results of our
groundwater measurements and laboratory tests.

▪ A summary of the subsurface profile and groundwater conditions.

▪ Discussion identifying the subsurface conditions that will impact pavement design and
construction.

▪ Discussion regarding the reuse of on-site materials during construction.

▪ Recommendations for preparing pavement subgrades, and the selection, placement, and
compaction of fill.

We will only submit an electronic copy of our addendum to you unless you request otherwise. At your 
request, we can also send the addendum to additional project team members. 

Schedule 

We anticipate performing our work according to the following schedule. 

▪ Drill rig mobilization – we understand that soil borings can be performed concurrently with
the Taxiway A Phase 6 soil borings. We plan to perform these soil borings the week of
August 5, 2024.

▪ Field exploration – 1 day on site to complete the work

▪ Classification and laboratory testing – within 2 weeks after completion of field exploration

▪ Preliminary results – within 2 weeks after completion of field exploration

▪ Addendum submittal – within 4 weeks after completion of field exploration

If we cannot complete our proposed scope of services according to this schedule due to circumstances 
beyond our control, we may need to revise this proposal prior to completing the remaining tasks. 



Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 
Proposal QTB199792 
July 11, 2024 
Page 4 

Fees 

We will furnish the services described in this proposal for a lump sum fee of $9,160, Please note that our 
drilling/field services were budgeted to occur within our normal work hours of 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday. We have budgeted for nighttime work for a portion of the fieldwork. If 
conditions occur that require us to work outside of these hours discussed, we will request additional fees 
to cover our additional costs. Our work may extend over several invoicing periods. As such, we will 
submit partial progress invoices for work we perform during each invoicing period. 

General Remarks 

We will be happy to meet with you to discuss our proposed scope of services further and clarify the 
various scope components. 

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal to you. Please sign and return a copy to us in its 
entirety. 

We based the proposed fee on the scope of services described and the assumptions that you will 
authorize our services within 30 days and that others will not delay us beyond our proposed schedule. 



Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 
Proposal QTB199792 
July 11, 2024 
Page 5 

Our services will be provided under the terms of our Master Subcontractor Agreement with Short Elliott 
Hendrickson, Inc., dated March 19, 2024. 

To have questions answered or schedule a time to meet and discuss our approach to this project further, 
please contact Aaron Tast at 320.980.3504 (atast@braunintertec.com). 

Sincerely, 

BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION 

Colin L. Anderson, PE 
Project Engineer 

Aaron M. Tast Joseph C. Butler, PE 
Senior Manager, Aviation Services Associate Director, Senior Engineer 

The proposal is accepted, and you are authorized to proceed. 

Authorizer’s Firm 

Authorizer’s Signature 

Authorizer’s Name (please print or type) 

Authorizer’s Title 

Date 



Financial Row

Prior Year Actual 

(Jan 2023 - Jun 2023)

Current Year Actual 

(Jan 2024 - Jun 2024)

Budget Amount 

(Jan 2024 - Jun 

2024) % of Budget

Variance from 

Prior Year

Variance 

From Budget

Total Budget 

(Jan 2024 - 

Adjust 2024 )

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Non-Aeronautical Revenue 1,886,011 1,685,771 1,550,264 108.74% (200,239) 135,507 3,270,423

Non-Passenger Aeronautical Revenue 839,798 853,194 830,643 102.71% 13,396 22,551 1,699,641

Passenger Airline Aeronautical Revenue 686,140 808,841 814,755 99.27% 122,701 (5,914) 1,626,676

Total - Income 3,411,949 3,347,806 3,195,663 104.76% (64,142) 152,143 6,596,739

Gross Profit 3,411,949 3,347,806 3,195,663 104.76% (64,142) 152,143 6,596,739

Expense

Miscellaneous Expenses 47,400 155,950 53,160 293.36% 108,549 102,790 96,690

Personnel Compensation & Benefits 1,312,242 1,296,278 1,420,168 91.28% (15,965) (123,890) 3,015,668

Services and Charges 1,148,641 1,272,301 1,262,427 100.78% 123,660 9,874 2,433,958

Supplies 411,740 382,204 439,517 86.96% (29,536) (57,313) 767,463

Total - Expense 2,920,023 3,106,732 3,175,272 97.84% 186,709 (68,539) 6,313,779

Net Ordinary Income 491,925 241,074 20,391 1,182.24% (250,851) 220,683 282,959

Other Income and Expenses

Other Income

Capital Contributions 2,400,321 0 0 0.00% (2,400,321) 0 0

Non-Operating Revenue 460,557 383,948 390,970 98.20% (76,609) (7,022) 648,529

Total - Other Income 2,860,878 383,948 390,970 98.20% (2,476,930) (7,022) 648,529

Other Expense

Non-Operating Expense 70,982 60,660 70,587 85.94% (10,321) (9,927) 141,174

Total - Other Expense 70,982 60,660 70,587 85.94% (10,321) (9,927) 141,174

Net Other Income 2,789,896 323,287 320,383 100.91% (2,466,609) 2,904 507,355

Net Income Exclusive of Project Expenses, Depreciation & Amortization 3,281,822 564,362 340,774 165.61% (2,717,460) 223,587 790,315

Projects/Grants 1,003,456 6,510,569 9,885,231 65.86% 5,507,112 (3,374,662) 19,770,462

Depreciation & Amortization (5,689,515) 0 (5,371,825) 0.00% 5,689,515 5,371,825 (10,743,651)

Net Income (1,404,237) 7,074,930 4,854,180 145.75% 8,479,167 2,220,750 9,817,126

Duluth Airport Authority

DAA Board Packet Budget vs. Actual Summary

From Jan 2024 to Jun 2024

UNAUDITED

• Overall: At the time this report was generated for the above period, the DAA is at an overall favorable variance budget vs actual of $223K.
• Operating Revenue: Non-Aeronautical Revenue is $135k over budget overall. Concessions revenues are $6k over budget, parking revenues are $67k over budget and customer 

facility charges are $62k over budget. We also received an insurance reimbursement for damage to the terminal and cameras. No n-passenger aeronautical revenue is 22k over 
budget due to increased rent, aviation gas sales, and concessions. Security reimbursements are down over $13k due to the loss of the TSA LEO reimbursement program. 
Passenger Airline Aeronautical revenue is nearly 6k under budget due to less landing fees than predicted. Operating Revenues are 152k over budget overall.

• Operating Expenses: Miscellaneous Expenses are $102k over budget, mostly due to the North Business Development Area Buyout. Personnel Compensation and Benefits are 
$123k under budget. Supplies are $57k under budget. Services and charges are nearly $10k over budget. Operating expenses are $68k under budget overall. 

• Non-Operating Revenue: Non-operating revenue is under budget by $7k. Interest income of is under budget by over $12k and PFCs over budget by $5.6k..
• Non-Operating Expenses: Non-Operating Expenses is under budget by nearly 10k due to reduced interest expense as the line of credit was not been utilized in 2024.
• Report Disclaimer: The results of this report are expected to change slightly with delayed revenue and expense postings.
• OPERATING POLICY #28 MINIMUM CASH BALANCE REPORTING BASED ON 2023 AUDITED FINANCIALS AS OF 8/13/2024:

o Minimum Cash Balance Goal: $2,930,908 Current Balance: $2,531,143 (does not include grants receivable)
o Days Cash on Hand: 155 days currently vs 180 day benchmark (25 days UNDER goal)
o Construction grants receivable are over $3M.

VII. - J.



Duluth Airport Authority

Income Statement

From Jan 2024 to Jun 2024

Financial Row Amount

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Non-Aeronautical Revenue

Advertising Income $8,978.00

Concession Revenue

ATM $262.50

Car Rental Concession $253,283.77

Food & Beverage Concession $46,925.25

Lottery Concessions $720.24

Per Departure Fee $1,470.00

Per Passenger Fee $15,416.00

Services/Other $459.67

TNC Per Trip Fee $6,394.50

Vending $3,118.73

Total - Concession Revenue $328,050.66

Customer Facility Charges $165,424.00

Miscellaneous Revenues $61,793.92

Parking $902,047.93

Permits $5,014.93

Reimbursed Expenses $53,823.57

Rent $122,638.47

Sponsorship Income $38,000.00

Total - Non-Aeronautical Revenue $1,685,771.48

Non-Passenger Aeronautical Revenue

Aviation Gas $28,177.07

Concession Revenue $85,723.26

Event Income $38,179.00

Landing Fees $19,287.29

Ramp Fees $10,170.00

Rent $633,843.22

Security Reimbursement $36,274.26

Tie Downs $1,540.00

Total - Non-Passenger Aeronautical Revenue $853,194.10

Passenger Airline Aeronautical Revenue

Landing Fees $161,302.84

Per Use Fee $2,123.43

Terminal Office/Space Rental $645,414.58

Total - Passenger Airline Aeronautical Revenue $808,840.85

Total - Income $3,347,806.43

Gross Profit $3,347,806.43

Expense

Miscellaneous Expenses $155,949.82

Personnel Compensation & Benefits

Benefit Administration Fees $81.60

Employer Contributions for Retirement $115,239.50

Employer Paid Insurance $215,350.76

Retiree Benefits $69,109.91

Wages & Salaries $883,252.97

Worker's Compensation $13,243.02

Total - Personnel Compensation & Benefits $1,296,277.76

Services and Charges

Central Services Fee $38,980.00

Communications & Technology $156,999.26

Employee Development Services $36,418.47

Employee Physicals $1,615.00

Insurance $71,063.28



Financial Row Amount

Marketing $127,973.42

Professional Services $218,399.35

Rentals $11,334.90

Repairs and Maintenance - Contractual/Services $247,574.34

Sponsorship Expenses $4,000.00

Transportation $1,714.18

Utility Services

Electric $223,017.85

Natural Gas $36,914.52

Propane $2,858.74

Refuse Disposal $16,544.70

Storm Water $67,246.53

Water $9,646.19

Total - Utility Services $356,228.53

Total - Services and Charges $1,272,300.73

Supplies

Merchandise for Resale $26,982.64

Office Supplies $56,936.37

Operating Supplies $75,194.76

Repairs & Maintenance Supplies

Airfield $116,316.55

Building $32,790.33

Fencing & Gates $3,174.90

Fuel System $387.28

Grounds & Landscaping $2,820.19

Heavy Equipment $34,946.35

Heavy Equipment Accessories $1,117.95

Jet Bridge $2,897.33

Large Tools $40.28

Light Equipment $22,625.37

Sand/Deicer $489.02

Shop Supplies $3,086.41

Small Tools $2,398.25

Total - Repairs & Maintenance Supplies $223,090.21

Total - Supplies $382,203.98

Total - Expense $3,106,732.29

Net Ordinary Income $241,074.14

Other Income and Expenses

Other Income

Capital Contributions

Grants $6,510,568.81

Total - Capital Contributions $6,510,568.81

Non-Operating Revenue

Interest Income $119,893.52

Passenger Facility Charges $264,054.31

Total - Non-Operating Revenue $383,947.83

Total - Other Income $6,894,516.64

Other Expense

Non-Operating Expense

Interest Expense $60,660.38

Total - Non-Operating Expense $60,660.38

Total - Other Expense $60,660.38

Net Other Income $6,833,856.26

Net Income $7,074,930.40



Duluth Airport Authority

Balance Sheet

End of Jun 2024

Financial Row Amount

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank $2,719,940.09

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Restricted PFC $98,708.21

Accounts Receivable Billed $538,562.07

Accrued Receivable $21,520.30

Grants Receivable $6,770,956.89

ST Lease Receivable $29,630.33

Total Accounts Receivable $7,459,377.80

Other Current Asset $286,145.75

Total Current Assets $10,465,463.64

Fixed Assets

Accumulated Depreciation ($162,823,496.37)

Capital Assets $280,664,254.47

Work in Progress $14,963,790.43

Total Fixed Assets $132,804,548.53

Other Assets

Accumulated Amortization ($3,152,423.67)

Airport Planning Projects - Contributed $5,518,016.49

Airport Planning Projects - Invested $772,784.00

Deferred Outflows - OPEB $225,995.00

Deferred Outflows - Pension $408,765.00

LT Lease Receivable $2,229,714.06

Total Other Assets $6,002,850.88

Total ASSETS $149,272,863.05

Liabilities & Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $2,861,865.40

Credit Card $3,135.74

Other Current Liability

Accrued Interest $60,586.92

Accrued Sales Taxes Payable - All $10,980.00

Accrued Vacation $122,778.26

Deferred Inflows - Lease Asset $2,155,143.79

Deferred Inflows - OPEB Liabilities $435,328.00

Deferred Inflows - Pension $402,277.00

Loans Payable to City of Duluth $955,000.00

Unearned Revenue - Current $112,543.32

Unearned Revenue - Non Current $10,932.40

Total Other Current Liability $4,265,569.69

Total Current Liabilities $7,130,570.83

Long Term Liabilities

LT Loans Payable to City of Duluth $3,210,000.00

Net Pension Liability $1,252,584.00

Total Other Post Employment Benefit Liability $3,056,943.02

Total Long Term Liabilities $7,519,527.02

Equity

Contributed Equity $16,621,668.70

Retained Earnings $110,926,166.10

Net Income $7,074,930.40

Total Equity $134,622,765.20

Total Liabilities & Equity $149,272,863.05



Customer 60 Days 90 Days >90 Days Total
Open Balance Open Balance Open Balance Open Balance

Azbell, Austin $0.00 $0.00 $51.00 $51.00
Bellamy Bill $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($191.64)
Benson Electric $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $115.00
Chad's Pad, LLC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $502.90
Churchill, Sean $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $254.28
Cirrus Design Corporation $1,665.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,967.48
City of Duluth $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,770.34
Civil Air Patrol $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $417.79
Clobes, Nathan $153.00 $0.00 $0.00 $153.00
Cohen, Marc $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $51.00
Delta Airlines ($6,242.00) $0.00 $115.00 $50,365.07
DeSutter, Peter $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $51.00
Divine Carriers $147.60 $147.60 $242.80 $685.60
Dudley Bruce $0.00 $0.00 $90.00 $90.00
Duluth Economic Development Authority $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,616.00
Duluth Hangar, LLC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $899.04
Dunker, Christopher L $0.00 $0.00 $9,028.20 $9,028.20
Ellefson, Nicholas $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $745.00
Enterprise Leasing Company ($29,158.80) $0.00 $0.00 ($52,281.53)
Federal Aviation Administration $13,026.00 $13,026.00 $13,026.00 $52,104.00
Galchus, Kurt $379.28 $254.28 $0.00 $887.84
General Services Administration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,725.48
Goritchan Boris $0.00 $0.00 $2,004.00 $2,004.00
Griffith Evans $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90.00
GSSC $525.00 $0.00 $0.00 $725.00
Hagberg, Rick $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $254.28
Hall John $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $312.67
Harris, Melissa $153.00 $0.00 $0.00 $153.00
Hatfield, Dan $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $254.28
Hermantown Hydraulics $0.00 $0.00 $1,526.68 $1,526.68
Hillman Colin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $275.00
Hunstad, Nicholas $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $114.83
HydroSolutions Of Duluth, Inc. $3,466.75 $3,466.75 $0.00 $6,933.50
Johnson, Richard $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $583.30
Johnston, Paul $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $254.28
K & D Auctions $0.00 $0.00 ($1,968.62) ($8,493.06)
Kern & Kompany $630.00 $0.00 $0.00 $630.00
KGM Contractors, Inc. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,025.00
Kleen-Tech Services, LLC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $844.97
Lake Superior College $34,468.27 $0.00 $0.00 $31,281.17
Lake Superior Helicopters $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,297.69
Larsen, Shane ($90.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($90.00)
Maurices, Inc. $900.00 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00
Messerer Jon $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,138.96
Minnesota Air National Guard $1,256,296.75 $2,187.42 $0.00 $1,260,780.92

Duluth Airport Authority
Duluth A/R Aging Report

As of August 14, 2024

VII. - K.



Minnesota Department of Transportation $0.00 $903.06 $1,024,502.40 $2,472,161.30
Minnesota Power $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $466.46
Miscellaneous $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($200.00)
Monaco Air Duluth $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,671.52
National Weather Service $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125.00
Northland Constructors, Inc. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $181.50
Oakwells CR, LLC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $712.00
Opack Matthew Jr. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $249.15
Payne, Robert $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $329.02
Pfaltzgraff, George $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $745.00
PGKK (Goldschmidt & Kundel) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,399.00
Piirto, Cynthia I $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $189.92
Plucinak, Joseph ($1,249.99) ($115.01) $0.00 ($1,365.00)
Rasier, LLC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($918.00)
Rogers, Alexander $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $254.28
RS&H $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,839.82
SEH ($792.78) $0.00 $0.00 ($662.78)
Shafer Contracting $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,100.00
Stevens, Mike $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $254.28
Sun Country, Inc. dba Sun Country Airlines $0.00 $0.00 $120.00 $240.00
Sydow Dan $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $329.02
The Landline Company $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $618.19
Tom Sullivan $275.00 $0.00 $0.00 $550.00
Transportation Security Administration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $345.00
Twin Ports Dermatology $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00
unifi $0.00 $0.00 $4,147.00 $4,462.00
United Airlines $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,758.39)
United Parcel Service $65.00 $0.00 $0.00 $65.00
University of Minnesota Duluth $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,250.00
Valentine, Ian $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $51.00
Williams, Ron $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $319.28
Winter, Detrich $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $745.00
Total $1,284,617.08 $19,870.10 $1,052,884.46 $3,942,551.89



Year to Date Airline Statistics

2024 Deplanements 2024 Enplanements
Month Revenue Non Rev Revenue Non Rev Total Revenue Non Rev Revenue Non Rev Total Revenue Non Rev Revenue Non Rev Total
JAN 5,411   119   4,885  151   10,566   2,540   46   2,309   44   4,939   -  -  -  -  -  
FEB 4,823   150   5,916   155   11,044   2,654   56   2,641   46   5,397   1,434   1  1,117   1  2,553  
MAR 5,206   165   5,145   158   10,674   3,252   89   3,374   83   6,798   1,563   3  1,465   2  3,033  
APR 5,260   211   5,125   214   10,810   4,013   103   4,232   102   8,450   947   - 1,184  1  2,132  
MAY 5,493   165   5,959   171   11,788   3,969   145   4,418   125   8,657   177   4   177   4   362  
JUN 6,907   167   7,040   178   14,292   3,915   128   4,047   109   8,199   -  -  -  -  -  
JUL 7,761   196   8,393   217   16,567   5,180   120   5,167   122   10,589   -  -  -  -  -  
AUG -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
SEP -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
OCT -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
NOV -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
DEC -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Total 40,861   1,173   42,463   1,244   85,741   25,523   687   26,188   631   53,029   4,121   8  3,943   8  8,080  

Month Revenue Non Rev Revenue Non Rev Total Rev Non Rev Total Rev Non Rev Total
JAN 182   - 180  - 362  8,133   165   8,298   7,374   195   7,569   15,867   (466) (1,364) (1,830)  
FEB -  -  -  -  - 8,911  207   9,118   9,674   202   9,876   18,994   (408) (323) (731)  
MAR 181   - 217  - 398  10,202  257   10,459   10,201   243   10,444   20,903   (3,337)  1,896  (1,441)  
APR 181   - 180  - 361  10,401  314   10,715   10,721   317   11,038   21,753   (79) (17) (96)  
MAY -  -  -  -  - 9,639  314   9,953   10,554   300   10,854   20,807   (712) (458) (1,170)  
JUN -  -  -  -  - 10,822  295   11,117   11,087   287   11,374   22,491   1,389   1,691   3,080  
JUL -  -  -  -  - 12,941  316   13,257   13,560   339   13,899   27,156   1,182   1,670   2,852  
AUG -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (13,744)  (13,216)  (26,960)  
SEP -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (11,126)  (10,493)  (21,619)  
OCT -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (10,283)  (9,640)  (19,923)  
NOV -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (9,058)  (8,811)  (17,869)  
DEC -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (8,306)  (8,412)  (16,718)  
Total 544   - 541  - 1,121  71,049  1,868   72,917  73,171  1,883   75,054  147,971   (54,948)  (47,477)  (102,425)  

Enplanemen
ts

Deplanemen
ts

Total 
Passengers

2024 Enplanements 2024 Deplanements Total 
Passenger

SUN COUNTRY

2023 - 2024 Difference

2024 Enplanements 2024 Deplanements 2024 Enplanements 2024 Deplanements

2024 Total Passenger Data Including Charters
2024 Deplanements2024 Enplanements

CHARTERS

DELTA UNITED

VII. - L.



Revenue Non-Rev Seats (AU) Total Revenue Non-Rev Seats (AU) Total Grand Total

2023 
Grand 
Total Inc /Dec

January 446   13   1,104  459   732   17   1,104  749  1,208   2,206  (998)  
February 614   13   1,150  627   703   16   1,150  719  1,346   2,064  (718)  
March 638   13   1,242  651   693   20   1,242  713  1,364   2,266  (902)  
April 613   11   1,058  624   685   6  1,058  691  1,315   2,328  (1,013)  
May 659   16   1,012  675   522   16   1,012  538  1,213   1,601  (388)  
June 601   13   1,196  614   519   7  1,196  526  1,140   1,558  (418)  
July 578   15   1,196  593   740   10   1,196  750  1,343   1,879  (536)  
August -  -  -   1,697  -  
September -  -  -   902  -  
October -  -  -   1,083  -  
November -  -  -   1,190  -  
December -  -  -   1,616  -  

4,149  94   7,958  4,243  4,594  92   7,958  4,686  8,929   20,390  (4,973)  

2024 Landline Passengers
Arrivals Departures


	Notice of Meeting
	Meeting Agenda
	I. *Executive Director's Review
	II. *Previous Meeting Minutes
	III. *DAA Cash Disbursements
	IV. Correspondence
	IV. - A. - i. DLH Construction Notice July 12, 2024.
	IV. - A. - ii. DLH Construction Notice July 19, 2024.
	IV. - A. - iii. DLH Construction Notice July 29, 2024.
	IV. - A. - iv. DLH Construction Notice August 1, 2024.
	IV. - B. July 2024: Letter from International 180/185 Club.
	IV. - C. July 2024: The Breeze of Park Point. 
	IV. - D. July 2024: Airport of the Month – Duluth – DLH. Minnesota Flyer.
	IV. - E. July 10, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport hosts ribbon-cutting ceremony for new $2.6 million terminal. Northern News Now. 
	IV. - F. July 10, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport opens new terminal for pilots and passengers. WDIO.
	IV. - G. July 11, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport Soars to New Heights Opening New Terminal. Fox21.
	IV. - H. July 14, 2024: Sky Harbor Airport unveils new $2.66 million terminal. Duluth News Tribune.
	IV. - I. July 16, 2024: Annual Certification Inspection Closeout. Federal Aviation Administration.
	IV. - J. July 19, 2024: DLH urges passengers to check flight status amid delays due to global IT outage. Northern News Now. 
	IV. - K. July 21, 2024: July 19-22, 2024 operation, An update to Delta customers from CEO Ed Bastain. Delta News Hub. 
	IV. - L. July 23, 2024: Duluth International Airport experiencing minimal issues following global tech outage. Northern News Now. 
	IV. - M. July 25, 2024: Reconstruction of Rice Lake Road to boost city’s growth. Northern News Now. 
	IV. - N. July 29, 2024: Letter to President Joseph Biden re: Duluth ATC Tower.
	IV. - O. July 29, 2024: Explore the Great Outdoors with Kids in Duluth, Minnesota. Chicago Parent. 
	IV. - P. August 10, 2024: Discovery Flights takes off over the Iron Range. Northern News Now. 

	VII. New Business
	VII. - A. Resolution to Approve the Updated 2024 Rates and Charges Schedule for DLH.
	VII. - B. Resolution to Approve the Updated 2024 Rates and Charges Schedule for DYT.
	VII. - C. Resolution to Approve the Amended and Restated Operator Agreement between the Duluth Airport Authority and Monaco Air Duluth, LLC.
	VII. - D. Resolution to Approve the Space Lease Agreement between the Duluth Airport Authority and Monaco Air Duluth, LLC. 
	VII. - E. Resolution to Approve the Peer to Peer Car Sharing Agreement between the Duluth Airport Authority and TURO Inc.
	VII. - F. Resolution to Approve Standard Space Lease between the United States of America Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and Duluth Airport Authority.
	VII. - G. Resolution to Approve the Assignment of a Food, Beverage, Retail Concession, and Lease Agreement Between the Duluth Airport Authority and Oakwells Commuter Rail LLC to Tailwinds Hospitality Inc. effective August 27, 2024. 
	VII. - H. Resolution to Approve the Lot 8 Land Lease Agreement between the Duluth Airport Authority and Yellow Dog Aviation, LLC.
	VII. - I. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2024-11 between Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc and the Duluth Airport Authority for the Design of Midfield Ramp – Phase 3.
	VII. - J. *June 2024 Financial Reports
	VII. - K. *August 2024 Accounts Recievable
	VII. - L. *July 2024 Airline Statistics, Landline Statistics


	Name of Signee: 
	Name of Contractor: 
	Name of Certifier: 
	Title of Certifier: 
	Date_af_date: 


